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STRATEGIC REPORT
Liberty Global is a public limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales.

We are subject to disclosure obligations in the U.S. and the U.K. While some of these disclosure requirements overlap or are
otherwise similar, some differ and require distinct disclosures. Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, this document
includes our strategic report, directors’ report and required financial information (including our statutory accounts and statutory
Auditors’ Report for the year ended December 31, 2014), and forms part of our U.K. annual report and accounts for the year ended
December 31, 2014 (the U.K. Report and Accounts), as required by English law.

We are also subject to the information and reporting requirements of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the Exchange Act), and, in accordance with the Exchange Act, file periodic reports and other information with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), including, without limitation, our 2014 10-K and our proxy statement on Schedule 14A (the 2015
proxy statement) for our 2015 annual general meeting. We have incorporated by reference in the U.K. Report and Accounts certain
information required by the Companies Act, which information is an important part of the U.K. Report and Accounts, and is
deemed to be part hereof. Investors may obtain any of these documents, without charge, from the SEC at the SEC’s website at
www.sec.gov or from our website at www.libertyglobal.com. The information on our website is not part of this U.K. Report and
Accounts and is not incorporated by reference herein.

The capitalized terms used throughout the U.K. Report and Accounts are defined in the notes to our consolidated financial

statements unless otherwise indicated. In the following text, the terms “we,” “our,” “our company” and “us” may refer, as the
context requires, to Liberty Global (or its predecessor) or collectively to Liberty Global (or its predecessor) and its subsidiaries.

Unless otherwise indicated, convenience translations into U.S. dollars are calculated, and operational data (including subscriber
statistics) are presented, as of December 31, 2014.

For a description of our business (including our model, strategy and competitive strengths), risks associated with our business
and our company and management’s discussion and analysis of our results of operations (including key performance indicators),
see the following sections of the 2014 10-K: Part I, Item 1, Business, Item 1A, Risk Factors, and Part 11, Item 7, Management s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk, each of which sections are herein incorporated by reference.

Employees, Corporate Responsibility and Environmental Matters

The details of our full-time equivalent directors, senior managers and employees by gender as of December 31, 2014 are as
follows:

Director (a):

A B2 RO RRRPORRTRRRPRRRON 11
| SSS 41 T2 (SRR 1
12

IVLALE ...ttt ettt st 6

Employee (a):
IMIALE ..ottt ettt et ettt e bt e be e be e beeabe e be et e ebeeabeeabe e beenbeeabeeabeenbeenbeenbeenbe e beenbaenbeenbeenbaenbeenseenren 25,900
FOMAIC ..ottt ettt et e e et e e be et e e beeabe e st e e be e beeabeesbeenbeenbeeabeenbeenbeebeenbeenbeenbaenbeenseenren 12,100
38,000

(a) Employees are included in each category, if applicable. Our senior manager group is comprised of our chief executive
officer and our executive vice presidents.
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Our employees’ development, motivation, health and wellbeing are critical to our business. We aim to create a dynamic,
talented workforce that reflects our diverse customers and a culture of innovation in which our 38,000 employees can grow and
feel supported. At the heart of this commitment to our employees is ‘The People Agenda,” Liberty Global’s multi-year people
strategy. The People Agenda sets forth our vision for developing and investing in our people across three key areas: Talent,
Leadership and Culture. The People Agenda ensures our employees are supported in their careers, have the tools to work and
develop and are engaged in our business, because engaged employees deliver superior business performance. Through the activities
of The People Agenda, we aim to provide all our employees with the skills, opportunities and support they need to reach their full
potential at all levels of the organization.

We have a range of employee development programs, such as Fast Forward, focusing on our emerging leaders. Through this
program we develop leaders who enable growth, are innovative and able to embrace the opportunities and challenges of this
amazing industry. In 2014, we also launched Lead Forward, which focuses on developing our senior management. Lead Forward
provides a platform and tools for our senior management to improve their personal leadership effectiveness while building a
framework for a common culture within the Company despite its locations in several different countries. In addition, we provide
graduate training and ongoing personal development programs, reflecting our commitment to employee development as a top
priority. At Liberty Global, we encourage an inspiring and supportive culture that enables our employees to give their best. We
strive to ensure that all of our employees are engaged, informed and aligned with our corporate development goals by communicating
often with all employees through email, newsletters and employee meetings.

We give full and fair consideration to all applications for employment, including those from persons with disabilities where
the requirements of the job can be adequately fulfilled by a person with disabilities. Where existing employees become disabled,
to the extent practicable, we provide continuing employment under normal terms and conditions and provide training and career
development and promotion as appropriate.

For more information regarding our corporate responsibility initiatives, including with respect to social, community and
human rights issues and environmental matters, see the Directors’ Report.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors on April 27, 2015 and was signed on its behalf by:

/s BRYAN H. HALL
Bryan H. Hall

Executive Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Company registered number: 8379990
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Political Donations

We did not make any political contributions during 2014. Our code of business conduct prohibits the use of company funds
and assets for political contributions to political parties, political party officials and candidates for office, unless approved by our
general counsel. Additionally, our charitable giving programs available to employees prohibit political contributions by our
company.

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on Liberty Global Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary shares, and we have no present
intention of so doing. Payment of cash dividends, if any, in the future will be determined by our board of directors in light of our
earnings, financial condition and other relevant considerations, including applicable laws in England and Wales. Except as noted
below, there are currently no contractual restrictions on our ability to pay dividends in cash or shares. The credit facilities to
which certain of our subsidiaries are parties restrict our ability to access their cash for, among other things, our payment of cash
dividends.

On January 26, 2014, our board of directors approved a share split in the form of a share dividend (the 2014 Share Dividend),
which constitutes a bonus issue under our articles of association and English law, of one Liberty Global Class C ordinary share
on each outstanding Liberty Global Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary share as of the February 14, 2014 record date. The
distribution date for the 2014 Share Dividend was March 3, 2014. All Liberty Global share and per share amounts presented herein
have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to the 2014 Share Dividend.

Share Repurchases

The following table provides details of our share repurchases during 2014:

Liberty Global Class A Liberty Global Class C
ordinary shares ordinary shares
Average price Average price % of
Shares paid per Shares paid per share
purchased share (a) purchased share (a) Total cost (a) capital
in millions
Shares purchased pursuant to
repurchase programs during the
YO o e 8062792 § 4219 28401019 § 4425 § 15969 _ 41%

(a)  Includes direct acquisition costs and the effects of derivative instruments, where applicable.
Payment to Creditors - Policy and Practice

We follow the requirements of our vendors for payment, which normally requires payment within 30 to 90 days. We also
owe amounts pursuant to interest-bearing vendor financing arrangements that are generally due within one year.

Charitable Giving
We measure the impact of our community investment programs using the globally recognized London Benchmarking Group
(LGB) model. This methodology records the outputs and positive community impacts of our investments in cash, time and in-

kind.

During 2014, our total community contribution was $10.3 million, of which $7.0 million was in the form of cash donations.
These figures cover our corporate organization and all of our operations in Europe and Latin America and the Caribbean.
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Corporate Responsibility

Our corporate responsibility (CR) strategy focuses on the issues that are most important to our stakeholders, as well as those
issues that have a material impact on the future competitiveness of our business.

These are grouped into four key issue areas:

Promoting a digital society;
Building trust with our customers;
Managing our environmental impacts; and

Being a responsible business.

Further details are available at www.libertyglobal.com/cr

Focusing on the issues that matter most

In 2014, we consulted with internal and external stakeholders in the most extensive materiality assessment we have performed
to date. The process involved several stages including:

A comprehensive review of CR topics identified in our business sector;

A review of topics that were reported in the media and attracted public interest;

Personal interviews with sustainability experts from within and outside the company;

A CR-related employee survey across all Liberty Global markets;

A review of our RepTrak™ consumer reputation survey results, based on 6,000 consumers surveyed; and

Several workshops and consultation sessions with senior management.

The outcome of this engagement process enabled us to prioritize the issues that are most material to our business and to our
stakeholders. The issues that ranked highest include:

Privacy and data security;

Improving energy efficiency;

Protection of children while online and watching TV;
Digital inclusion and education;

Electronic waste reduction; and

Reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions
The environmental priorities we have identified with our stakeholders are energy efficiency, GHG emissions and electronic
waste. Our GHG emissions are expressed in metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e), a universal measure that allows

the global warming potential of different GHGs to be compared.

Gross GHG emissions

Metric tons of CO2e
2014 2013 2012 (base year)
SCOPE 1 (DIACCL) ..neieviienieiieie ettt enas 81,500 * 85,100 82,200
SCOPE 2 (INAITECE) ...ttt ettt 483,400 * 451,800 461,000
Total gross emissions (Scope 1 and 2)........ccceveeveneninveenenencncene. 564,900 536,900 543,200
Total gross emissions per terabyte of data usage (a).......ccccceerveerveennenn 0.057 0.082 0.119

(a) In order to provide a meaningful target to measure our energy usage against our business operations, we measure our GHG
emissions per terabyte (TB) of data traffic generated as we run our network and customers use our services. This calculation
reflects internet protocol (IP) based data traffic from fixed broadband services, such as web browsing, IP streaming voice and
video services, from all our market operations that we can reliably measure. For more information, please see our full
‘Environmental Reporting Criteria’ at www.libertyglobal.com/cr/cr-report-2014.

Metric tons of CO2e
2014 2013 2012
Scope 3 (INAITECE) (2) ..veeveevieiieiieiieiieieee et 49,900 * 12,900 13,200

(a) Our Scope 3 indirect emissions include business air and land travel; water and waste; emissions arising from water, waste
(which includes the impact of recycling customer premises equipment) and travel by our third-party service and installation
vehicles. In 2014, for the first time, emissions from the travel by our third-party service and installation vehicles have been
included as part of our Scope 3 emissions. This data was excluded in our 2013 and 2012 data.

Net GHG emissions
In line with good practice, we also disclose our net GHG emissions, which illustrates the impacts of our procurement and
production of alternative energy.

Metric tons of CO2e
2014 2013 2012 (base year)
Total net emissions (Scope 1,2 and 3)......ccceevevirieciereneneeieiereeeenn 540,300 482,400 498,100

Environmental reporting criteria

All data in this U.K. Report and Accounts covers the period January 1 to December 31, 2014, unless otherwise stated. The
comparative data for 2013 includes a full year’s worth of data for Virgin Media even though it was not acquired until June 7, 2013.
We have also made adjustments to our 2012 base year’s environmental results to include Virgin Media’s data, for comparative
purposes.

Liberty Global’s reported environmental data follows the World Resources Institute and World Business Council on Sustainable
Development’s GHG Protocol Corporate Standard as of December 31, 2014 using the operational control approach. This covers
all global operations, including Virgin Media, operations under the UPC brand, Unitymedia KabelBW, Telenet, VTR and Liberty
Puerto Rico. We have reported 100% of the emissions from Telenet and Liberty Puerto Rico, in which we had ownership interests
0f 56.6% and 60.0%, respectively, as of December 31,2014. Emissions from businesses in which we have non-controlling equity
stakes are not included within our reported figures.
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Our policy is to include any new subsidiaries that have been entered into in the first six months of the reporting period.
Therefore, we exclude the recent acquisition of Ziggo in the Netherlands (closed in November 2014) from our 2014 environmental
reporting.

For more information, please see our full ‘Environmental Reporting Criteria’ at www.libertyglobal.com/cr/cr-report-2014.
External assurance

We engaged KPMG LLP to undertake independent limited assurance, reporting to Liberty Global plc, using the assurance
standards ISAE 3000 and ISAE 3410, over the GHG emissions that have been highlighted on page I-5 with *. Their full statement
is available on our website at www.libertyglobal.com/cr/cr-report-2014 and they have provided an unqualified opinion on this
data.

The level of assurance provided for a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than a reasonable assurance
engagement. In order to reach their opinion they performed a range of procedures, which included interviews with management,
examination of reporting systems, site visits to four operating companies, as well as specific data testing at corporate offices. A
summary of the work they performed is included within their assurance opinion.

Non-financial performance information, greenhouse gas quantification in particular, is subject to more inherent limitations
than financial information. It is important to read the GHG emissions information in the context of the full KPMG LLP limited
assurance statement and our reporting criteria as set out in the Liberty Global ‘Environmental Reporting Criteria’ available at
www.libertyglobal.com/cr/cr-report-2014.

Qualifying Indemnity Provisions

Under our articles of association, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, we may, broadly, (i) indemnify to any extent
any person who is or was a director, or a director of any associated company, directly or indirectly against any liability incurred
by him or her whether in connection with negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust or otherwise by him or her in
relation to Liberty Global or any associated company, or in connection with that company’s activities as a trustee of an occupational
pension scheme and (ii) purchase and maintain insurance for any person who is or was a director, or a director of an associated
company, against any loss or liability or any expenditure he or she may incur, whether in connection with any proven or alleged
negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust by him or her, in relation to Liberty Global or any associated company.

We enter into deeds of indemnity with directors, executive officers and certain other officers and employees (including
directors, officers and employees of subsidiaries and other affiliates). These deeds of indemnity require that we indemnify such
persons, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, against all losses suffered or incurred by them in the event that they are
a party to or involved in any claim arising in connection with their appointment as director, officer, employee, agent or fiduciary
of Liberty Global or another corporation at the request of Liberty Global.

Directors of the Company during 2014

The following persons were directors of Liberty Global during the year ended December 31, 2014 and up to the date of
issuance of the U.K. Report and Accounts:

John C. Malone (Chairman)
Michael T. Fries (Vice Chairman)
Andrew J. Cole

John P. Cole

Miranda Curtis

John W. Dick

Paul A. Gould

Richard R. Green

David E. Rapley

Larry E. Romrell

JC Sparkman

J. David Wargo
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Details of the directors’ compensation (remuneration) and their interests in the shares of Liberty Global are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and sections of the 2015 proxy statement (including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis
section). For additional information, see Table of Contents.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which Liberty Global’s auditors are unaware; and each director has taken all the steps that they
ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that Liberty Global’s
auditors are aware of that information.

Re-Appointment of the Auditors

In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act, a resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG LLP (U.K.) as statutory
auditors of the company has been proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Directors’ Report was approved by the Board of Directors on April 27, 2015 and was signed on its behalf by:

/s BRYAN H. HALL
Bryan H. Hall

Executive Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Company registered number: 8379990
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 2014 U.K. COMPANIES ACT ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable U.K. law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have elected to
prepare the group financial statements in accordance with GAAP and applicable law, and have elected to prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance with U.K. Accounting Standards and applicable law (U.K. Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

Under company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the
group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

»  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
* make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

»  state whetherapplicable GAAPhas been followed in the group financial statements, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements;

»  state whether applicable U.K. Accounting Standards have been followed in the parent company financial statements, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the parent
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to
ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act. They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company’s

website. Legislation in the U.K. governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of Liberty Global plc for the year ended December 31, 2014 set out on pages II-3
to [1-130. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP).

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page II-1, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit,
and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the group financial statements:
» give atrue and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at December 31, 2014 and of its loss for the year then ended;
*  have been properly prepared in accordance with US GAAP; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the group financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our
opinion:

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

»  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Liberty Global plc for the year ended December 31,
2014 and on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

/s/ JOHN CAIN

John Cain (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square, London, E14 5GL
April 27,2015
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2014 2013
Liberty Liberty
Global Companies Global Companies
10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)
in millions
ASSETS
Fixed assets:
Intangible assets not subject to amortization (note 9) ............. $ 557.0 $ 557.0 $ 4702 $ 491.1
Intangible assets subject to amortization, net (notes 9
AN 21t 9,189.8 9,189.8 5,795.4 5,941.1
GOOdWIlL (NOL€ ) .. 29,001.6 29,001.6 23,748.8 23,973.2
Total intangible assets and goodwill............ccccvevverveennnennen. 38,748.4 38,748.4 30,014.4 30,405.4
Property and equipment, net (notes 9 and 21) ........cccceeveeeenes 23,840.6 23,840.6 23,974.9 24,018.0
Investments (including $1,662.7 million and $3,481.8 million,
respectively, measured at fair value) (notes 6 and 21)........... 1,808.2 1,808.2 3,491.2 2,893.4
Long-term assets of discontinued operation (note 5)................. — — 513.6 —
Total fixed aSSetS.......covievvievieeiieirieirieee et 64,397.2 64,397.2 57,994.1 57,316.8
Current assets:
Trade receivables, Net........cccoevveeieiieiieiieceeeeeceese e 1,499.5 1,499.5 1,588.7 1,727.5
Other assets: amounts recoverable in less than one year
(TOLE 7) oot s e 262.7 262.7 2194 295.7
Other assets: amounts recoverable in more than one year
(IOTE 7) cereeeeereei et 4,519.4 4,519.4 4,231.8 4,287.3
Derivative instruments (NOt€ 7) .....ecveveververeervesieeveneeneeenens 446.6 446.6 252.1 252.1
Deferred income taxes (note 11) ....ccceevvercvenienienienieeieneeene 290.3 290.3 226.1 226.1
Prepaid EXPenSes ......coeveeeerienenenieieeneneeeetee e 189.7 189.7 238.2 257.2
Current assets of discontinued operation (note 5)................... — — 238.7 —
Total debtors and other assets..........cccceevvveerienrienieenreenneennen. 7,208.2 7,208.2 6,995.0 7,045.9
Cash and cash equivalents ...........coccoeeeeirenieenenenieeneneeenens 1,158.5 1,158.5 2,701.9 2,706.5
Restricted cash (NOte 12) ....oooviiiiviiiiieieeeeee e 78.0 78.0 23.3 26.2
Total CUITENt ASSELS ..eeveevieiieieeiieieerieesteereesteeseee e esaeeeeas 8,444.7 8,444.7 9,720.2 9,778.6
TOtal @SSELS.....oveveeeicrireeeeee ettt § 728419 $§ 72,8419 § 67,7143 $§ 67,095.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS — (Continued)

December 31,

2014 2013
Liberty Liberty
Global Companies Global Companies
10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)
in millions
LIABILITIES
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year:
Current portion of debt (note 10).......ccceeveereerienieneeneenieennen. $ 1,3524 $ 1,3524 $ 7904 $ 790.4
Current portion of capital lease obligations (note 10)............. 198.5 198.5 233.0 233.0
Total current portion of debt and capital lease
OBIIZALIONS ......oeveceevce e 1,550.9 1,550.9 1,023.4 1,023.4
Accounts Payable.........ccovveiierienieiie e e 1,039.0 1,039.0 1,072.9 1,114.9
Deferred revenue and advance payments from subscribers
ANA OLNETS ..o 1,452.2 1,452.2 1,406.2 1,409.8
Derivative instruments (N0t 7) ......ccevververrerrereeierrenreseeeeeeenns 1,043.7 1,043.7 751.2 752.6
ACCTUC INTETESL .....eeuveeeeeieeieieieeee et 690.6 690.6 598.7 598.7
Accrued programming and copyright fees ...........ccocervreennne. 327.5 327.5 359.1 375.0
Current liabilities of discontinued operation (note 5).............. — — 127.5 —
Other accrued and current liabilities (note 11)..........ccueeueeee. 2,696.8 2,696.8 2,234.6 2,295.8
Deferred revenue, derivatives, accruals and other
current Habilities ............ceveeeeverceerereeeeeeseeeeee e, 6,210.8 6,210.8 5,471.3 5,431.9
Total creditors: amounts falling due within one year..... 8,800.7 8,800.7 7,573.6 7,570.2
Net current assets (liabilities).......ccceeveerierierienienierieseeeeeeeen (356.0) (356.0) 2,146.6 2,208.4
Total assets less current liabilities..........coceveeereenieneneneeieens 64,041.2 64,041.2 60,140.7 59,525.2

Creditors — amounts falling due after one year:

Long-term debt (Note 10).......ccceovevieieviiniiiieiereeece e, 43,259.0 43,259.0 42,065.6 42,065.6
Long-term capital lease obligations (note 10)...........cecueeene. 1,349.1 1,349.1 1,615.3 1,615.3
Total long-term debt and capital lease obligations......... 44,608.1 44,608.1 43,680.9 43,680.9

Other non-current liabilities (NOt€ 7) ...c.cccevveereeverierierireereneennn. 4,011.2 4,011.2 3,962.2 3,968.5
Deferred income and deposits .........ccevverereeieieniereseeeenenes 158.6 158.6 149.6 149.6
Total creditors: amounts falling due after one year....... 48,777.9 48,777.9 47,792.7 47,799.0
Provisions for liabilities (notes 14 and 21) ......c.ccveevvevieeieennnnns 1,147.3 1,147.3 786.7 803.6
Long-term liabilities of discontinued operation (note 5)........... — — 19.8 —
Total Habilities ......ccevrvereeieeieieieeee e § 587259 $§ 58,7259 § 56,172.8 $§ 56,172.8

Commitments and contingencies (notes 4, 7, 10, 11, 15, 17
and 20)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS — (Continued)

December 31,

2014 2013
Liberty Liberty
Global Companies Global Companies
10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)

in millions
EQUITY
Equity (note 12):
Liberty Global shareholders:

Class A ordinary shares, $0.01 nominal value. Issued

and outstanding 251,167,686 and 222,081,117 shares,

respectively....% ............................................................... $ 25 % 25 % 228 22
Class B ordinary shares, $0.01 nominal value. Issued

and outstanding 10,139,184 and 10,147,184 shares,

TESPECHIVELY . c.vetieiieiirierieeitee et 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Class C ordinary shares, $0.01 nominal value. Issued

and outstanding 630,353,372 and 556,221,669 shares,

TESPECHIVELY . c.veieeiiiiiiiiieeiete ettt 6.3 6.3 5.6 5.6
Additional paid-in capital ..........ccceeevereriiinieeeeeee 17,070.8 12,809.4
Share premium reserve (component of additional paid-in
capital in 10-K).......cccooviiniiicecce 6,496.8 449.0
Share option and other reserves (component of additional
paid-in capital in 10-K) ........coovuerrrerreieieieinieseeeienane. 10,574.0 12,360.4
Accumulated deficit........occvvecineirneinincncicce (4,007.6) (4,007.6) (3,312.6) (3,928.2)
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings, net of
BAXES . vvoenereneeeesee ettt 1,646.6 1,646.6 2,528.8 2,525.5
Treasury shares, at COSt.......ccccevirerieriininenieiccncneeene 4.2) 4.2) (7.7) (7.7)
Total Liberty Global shareholders..............cccovervrrrennenne. 14,714.5 14,714.5 12,025.8 11,406.9
Noncontrolling INterests..........cccoveeereerireenireereeeseeenes (598.5) (598.5) (484.3) (484.3)
TOtal EQUILY....eeeeeeeeeeiieeeeee e 14,116.0 14,116.0 11,541.5 10,922.6
Total liabilities and equity.........coceevereverreereererennnn. § 72,8419 § 72,8419 § 67,7143 § 67,0954

(a) In order to comply with the Companies Act, amounts have been reclassified in the case of the Liberty Global 10-K columns
and further adjusted in the case of the Companies Act columns from those that were presented in our December 31, 2014
Form 10-K. See note 1.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on April 27, 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:

/s/ MICHAEL T. FRIES
Michael T. Fries

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

Company registered number: 8379990

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Revenue (note 18) ..c.eevvveeevveieieiereeieeeee
Operating costs and expenses:

Operating (other than depreciation and
amortization) (including share-based
compensation) (note 13)......cccceecvevvereennne

Depreciation and amortization......................

Cost Of TEVENUE......c.eeeeveiereeeeeecieeereeean,

Administrative expenses including selling,
general and other expenses (SG&A)
(MO 13) i

Release of litigation provision (note 17) ......

Impairment, restructuring and other
operating items, net (notes 4, 9, 14
ANA 17) oo

Other operating income

Operating inCome ........c.eceeverrerrerveeeneen
Interest, financial and other items:
Interest EXpense ........cceevevveereeenieniieeneeennee.
Interest and dividend income..........c.cccucueee.
Financial and other items:

Gains (losses) on derivative instruments,
NEt (NOLE 7) ..eevveireinieiinieienieieereecnienene

Foreign currency transaction gains
(10SS€8), NEL c.ovvenenieieieiieceiceeeeeae

Gains (losses) due to changes in fair
values of certain investments, net
(notes 6 and 8)........cceeeeereruiriineieene

Losses on debt modification,
extinguishment and conversion, net
(N0t€ 10) ceeveiiieieieieeeceeeceeeee

Settlement of equity-related derivative
instrument (NOte 21)....cceveevvereeeereeniens

Gains due to changes in ownership
(NOE 21) et

Gain on disposal of discontinued
OPETALIONS ..ottt

Other income (expense), net (note 21).......

Loss from continuing operations before
INCOME tAXES...vivenrenrenreereerreeseerreeenaenns

Earnings (loss) before income taxes........
Income tax benefit (expense) (note 11)...........

Loss from continuing operations.............

LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2014 2013 2012
Liberty Liberty Liberty
Global Companies Global Companies Global Companies
10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)
in millions, except share and per share amounts
18,248.3 18,2749 § 144742 § 148828 $ 9,930.8 10,604.5
6,810.4 6,829.2 5,417.7 5,699.0 3,349.7 3,766.1
5,500.1 5,500.1 4,276.4 4,305.5 2,661.5 2,691.1
12,310.5 12,329.3 9,694.1 10,004.5 6,011.2 6,457.2
5,937.8 5,945.6 4,780.1 4,878.3 3,919.6 4,147.3
3,172.8 3,180.1 2,616.5 2,696.8 1,860.3 1,975.8
— — (146.0) (146.0) — —
536.8 536.7 297.5 309.1 76.2 109.7
536.8 536.7 151.5 163.1 76.2 109.7
16,020.1 16,046.1 12,462.1 12,864.4 7,947.7 8,542.7
2,228.2 2,228.8 2,012.1 2,018.4 1,983.1 2,061.8
(2,544.7) (2,544.8) (2,286.9) (2,285.7) (1,673.6) (1,713.4)
31.7 31.6 113.1 34.8 42.1 45.0
88.8 88.9 (1,020.4) (1,022.4) (1,070.3) (1,065.3)
(836.5) (837.9) 3493 346.1 438.4 436.2
205.2 (39.5) 524.1 (62.9) (10.2) (29.9)
(186.2) (186.2) (212.2) (212.2) (213.8) (215.8)
— 258.4 — — — —
— 671.7 — — — 52.2
333.5 — 928.2
(42.4) (111.2) (5.6) 40.8 (4.6) 4.5)
(771.1) 177.7 (364.8) (910.6) (860.5) 101.1
(1,055.9) (526.5) (508.9)
(106.7) (1,143.1) 494.5
75.0 74.9 (355.5) (378.2) (75.0) (107.2)
(980.9) $ (882.0) $ (583.9)



LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS — (Continued)

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Liberty Global Companies Liberty Global Companies Liberty Global Companies
10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)

in millions, except share and per share amounts

Discontinued operations (note 5):

Earnings (loss) from discontinued

operations, net of taxes .............. $ 0.8 $ (23.7) $ 47.1
Gain on disposal of discontinued
operations, net of taxes .............. 332.7 — 924.1
3335 (23.7) 971.2
Net earnings (10SS) .......ccecevenee (647.4) (31.8) (905.7) (1,521.3) 3873 387.3
Net earnings attributable to
noncontrolling interests ................ (47.6) (47.6) (58.2) (58.2) (64.5) (64.5)
Net earnings (loss) attributable
to Liberty Global
shareholders........c.ccccoveeneee $ (695.0) § (79.4) $ 963.9) § (1,579.5) $ 3228 % 322.8

Basic and diluted earnings (loss)
attributable to Liberty Global
shareholders per share (note 3):

Continuing operations............... $ (1.29) $ (1.39) $ (1.17)
Discontinued operations............ 0.42 (0.04) 1.77
$ 0.87) § (0.10) $ (1.43) § (2.35) § 0.60 $ 0.60

Weighted average ordinary shares
outstanding - basic and diluted...... 798,869,761 798,869,761 672,348,540 672,348,540 534,641,440 534,641,440

(a) In order to comply with the Companies Act, amounts have been reclassified in the case of the Liberty Global 10-K columns and further
adjusted in the case of the Companies Act columns from those that were presented in our December 31, 2014 Form 10-K. See note 1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS (LOSS)

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Liberty Liberty Liberty
Global Companies Global Companies Global Companies
10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a) 10-K (a) Act (a)

in millions

Net earnings (10SS) ......c.cveveeveeereereereeereereeereenns $ (6474) $ (31.8) $ (905.7) $ (1,521.3) $ 3873 $ 3873

Other comprehensive earnings (loss), net of
taxes (note 16):

Foreign currency translation adjustments....... (935.9) (932.6) 900.8 897.5 98.0 98.0
Reclassification adjustments included in net
€arnings (10SS)......v.ovoveeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeerenn. 124.4 124.4 (0.7) 0.7) (12.1) (12.1)
Pension-related adjustments and other............ (71.2) (71.2) 11.3 11.3 5.4 5.4
Other comprehensive earnings (loss)......... (882.7) (879.4) 911.4 908.1 91.3 91.3
Comprehensive earnings (10Ss) .................. (1,530.1) (911.2) 5.7 (613.2) 478.6 478.6
Comprehensive earnings attributable to
noncontrolling interests.............cccoceevevevveneee. 47.1) 47.1) (41.3) (41.3) (64.8) (64.8)

Comprehensive earnings (loss)

ttributable to Liberty Global
SATQhOLAOTS o S (15772) § (9583) S (35.6) § (654.5) § 4138 $ 4138

(a) In order to comply with the Companies Act, the amounts presented in the Companies Act columns have been adjusted from
those that were presented in our December 31, 2014 Form 10-K. See note 1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net €arnings (10SS) .....eeieverierieieieierieseet ettt ettt ere et e aessesreeseesnessesseeseens

Loss (earnings) from discontinued OpPerations ............cecceeeeeeeeeruerienreeeeneenieneeneeenes

Loss from continuing OPETationS ............ccueevueerveerrrerieeireeieereesteesseeseereeseesseeseennes

Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing operations to net cash provided

by operating activities:

Share-based cOMPENSAtION EXPENSE ....eevvverreerrierrierieerieerieenieenreesreesseesseesseesseennes
Depreciation and amortiZation ............c.eeceereerierienienieneeseeseeseeseeseeseeneeenee
Release of litigation ProViSION.........cceveereerierienienieneesieeseesieesee e sieenaeeseeenee
Impairment, restructuring and other operating items, Net .......c..c.cecevvevveveennenee
Amortization of deferred financing costs and non-cash interest accretion .......
Losses (gains) on derivative inStruments, Net...........cccceeveeereeriereeeeeeseneeeenes
Foreign currency transaction 10sses (gains), Net........cccoeveeereereneeeeeeneneeeene

Losses (gains) due to changes in fair values of certain investments, including
IMPact Of diVIAENdS.......ocveeeieieieieei e

Losses on debt modification, extinguishment and conversion, net...................
Deferred income tax expense (Denefit).........ccccververvienienieniieneerieniesieneereenne
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation............cccceevvereerieneeneene

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of the effects of acquisitions
and dispositions:

Receivables and other operating assets ...........ccceverereerierieneseeieseneseeeens
Payables and accruals ..........ccooeiieieiierieieeeee e

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities of discontinued operations.........
Net cash provided by operating activities ..........cceoererereereneneeeeeieseeeeee

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital EXPENAITUIES ....c.veervieirieriieriiesiere et esteerteeteesreesteesseesseesbeesseesseeseesseensaesseensas
Investments in and loans to affiliates and others...........ccccoveviriieieninininiencneee

Proceeds received upon disposition of discontinued operations, net of disposal

Cash paid in connection with acquisitions, net of cash acquired .............cccceueeueenee.
Other iNVeSting aCtIVITIES, ML .....ecvieierieieeiieieieierieeeetesee e ere et eeessesseeseeseessessesseens

Net cash used by investing activities of discontinued operations, including
deconsolidated Cash..........cocooeviiiiiiiiiii e

Net cash used by Investing aCtiVIties ..........cceeveeereerereeieieeseee e

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
in millions

$ (647.4) $ (905.7) $ 387.3
(333.5) 23.7 (971.2)
(980.9) (882.0) (583.9)
257.2 300.7 110.1
5,500.1 4276.4 2,661.5
— (146.0) —
536.8 297.5 76.2
84.3 78.0 65.7
(88.8) 1,020.4 1,070.3
836.5 (349.3) (438.4)
(203.7) (523.1) 19.6
186.2 212.2 213.8
(350.6) 18.6 36.0
(7.0) (41.0) 6.7)
860.5 866.7 785.0
(1,017.8)  (1,208.1)  (1,171.7)
9.6) 10.3 82.2
5,603.2 3,931.3 2,919.7
(2,684.4)  (2,481.5)  (1,868.3)
(1,016.6)  (1,350.3) (32.4)
988.5 — 1,055.4
(73.3) (4,073.4) (154.2)
(13.8) (44.9) 41.8
(3.8) (14.9) (123.2)
$ (2,803.4) $ (7,965.0) $ (1,080.9)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (Continued)

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

in millions

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayments and repurchases of debt and capital lease obligations ...........c.cccceeee. $ (11,316.1) $ (8,318.6) $ (4,373.6)
Borrowings 0f debt .......c.ooieuieiiieiieeee e 9,572.4 9,670.3 5,981.4
Repurchase of Liberty Global and LGI Shares ..........cccovveevreinieennieinnecneeenne (1,584.9) (1,157.2) (970.3)
Payment of financing costs, debt premiums and exchange offer consideration....... (379.8) (389.6) (229.8)
Purchase of additional shares of subsidiaries ............cccccoceviiiiiiiiiniiiiie (260.7) (461.3) —
Net cash received (paid) related to derivative instruments............cccceceveveerienennenne. (221.0) 524.5 (108.4)
Change in cash collateral ..........c.covevinieiineuinineieirc e (58.7) 3,593.8 59.6
Distributions by subsidiaries to noncontrolling interest OWNers..........c.cocceevveeruennee (11.7) (538.1) (335.1)
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash related to the Telenet Tender..........c.ccceuene. — 1,539.7 (1,464.1)
Contributions by noncontrolling interest owners to subsidiaries .............cccoceceeeneeee — 22.2 115.1
Other financing aCtiVities, NEt........ccovvevveirrerieiiirieieenterct ettt 0.4 137.6 (139.9)
Net cash used by financing activities of discontinued operations............c.cccceeuenen. (1.2) (7.4) 4.7
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities ............cecveerereerenerieennne (4,261.3) 4,615.9 (1,469.8)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash:

Continuing OPEIatioNS ...........cceeuiiiriiiiiieiiiiieiece e (81.9) 85.4 28.3
Discontinued OPerations..........ceverereeierieninenietene ettt — — 9.6)
TOtal...oiiiiii (81.9) 85.4 18.7
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents:
ContinUInNg OPEIALIONS ........eveveveuirreriirierireteeeereteee ettt eene (1,528.8) 679.6 443.0
Discontinued OPerations..............cceerueuerirueuirieieinieeniseeseeee e (14.6) (12.0) (55.3)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents............c..cceeeveeurennen. (1,543.4) 667.6 387.7
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning Of YEar......cc.ooiiiiiiiiiieee e 2,701.9 2,038.9 1,651.2
ENd Of @A ...t e 1,158.5 2,706.5 2,038.9
Less cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations at end of year..... — (4.6) —
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations at end of year ........... $ 11,1585 $ 2,701.9 $ 2,0389

Cash paid for interest:

COoNtINUING OPETALIONS.........eevertemreuertinteneetieteteateieseesteueeteseeteresaeeesestesseseeresaeneenessennes $ 23767 $ 21488 $ 1,562.7
Discontinued OPEIatiONS ..........coueceririeieinrerieiienieeeieetesee e steeene et ere et srenes — — 28.9
TORAL e e e $ 23767 $ 21488 $ 1,591.6

Net cash paid for taxes:
CoNtiNUING OPETALIONS....c..eoveeuteiertirteetetenteeieeitetent et etteteste st e sbeestesaesbesbeeseenaesbesienae $ 973 $ 975 $ 0.3
Discontinued OPETatiONS ..........cc.ceeeeeierieriinieienienienieetetenestesteeseentestesteeseeseenuenieene 2.2 11.7 11.5
TOtAL ...ttt $ 99.5 § 1092 § 11.8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

0} Basis of Presentation

Liberty Global plc (Liberty Global) is a public limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales. As a result
of a series of mergers that were completed on June 7, 2013, Liberty Global became the publicly-held parent company of the
successors by merger of Liberty Global, Inc. (LGI) (the predecessor to Liberty Global) and Virgin Media Inc. (Virgin Media). In

these notes, the terms “we,” “our,” “our company” and “us” may refer, as the context requires, to Liberty Global (or its predecessor)
or collectively to Liberty Global (or its predecessor) and its subsidiaries.

We are an international provider of video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services, with consolidated
operations at December 31,2014 in 14 countries. Through Virgin Media and Unitymedia Kabe]IBW GmbH (Unitymedia KabeIBW),
each awholly-owned subsidiary, and Telenet Group Holding NV (Telenet), a 56.6%-owned subsidiary, we provide video, broadband
internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services in the United Kingdom (U.K.), Germany and Belgium, respectively. In the
Netherlands, we provide video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services through (i) Ziggo Holding B.V.
(Ziggo), formerly known as Ziggo N.V., which, as described in note 4, we acquired on November 11,2014, and (ii) UPC Nederland
B.V. (UPC Nederland). We also provide (i) video, broadband internet and fixed-line telephony services in eight other European
countries and (ii) mobile services in four other European countries. The operations of Virgin Media, Unitymedia KabelBW, Telenet,
Ziggo, UPC Nederland and our other operations in Europe are collectively referred to herein as the “European Operations Division.”
In Chile, we provide video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services through VTR GlobalCom SpA (VTR).
Our consolidated operations also include the broadband communications operations of Liberty Cablevision of Puerto Rico LLC
(Liberty Puerto Rico), an entity in which we hold a 60.0% ownership interest.

At December 31, 2013, we owned programming interests in Europe and Latin America that were held through Chellomedia
B.V. (Chellomedia). Certain of Chellomedia’s subsidiaries and affiliates provided programming services to certain of our broadband
communications operations, primarily in Europe. On January 31, 2014, we completed the sale of substantially all of Chellomedia’s
assets (the Chellomedia Disposal Group). On May 23, 2012, we completed the sale of our then 54.15%-owned subsidiary, Austar
United Communications Limited (Austar), a provider of direct-to-home (DTH) services in Australia. We have accounted for the
Chellomedia Disposal Group and Austar as discontinued operations in our consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, (i) the
Chellomedia Disposal Group is presented as a discontinued operation in our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013,
(i1) our consolidated statements of operations and cash flows have been reclassified to present the Chellomedia Disposal Group
and Austar as discontinued operations for all periods presented and (iii) the amounts presented in these notes relate only to our
continuing operations, unless otherwise noted. For additional information regarding our discontinued operations, see note 5.

On January 26, 2014, our board of directors approved a share split in the form of a share dividend (the 2014 Share Dividend),
which constitutes a bonus issue under our articles of association and English law, of one Liberty Global Class C ordinary share
on each outstanding Liberty Global Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary share as of the February 14, 2014 record date. The
distribution date for the 2014 Share Dividend was March 3,2014. All Liberty Global share and per share amounts presented herein
have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to the 2014 Share Dividend.

Unless otherwise indicated, ownership percentages and convenience translations into United States (U.S.) dollars are calculated
as of December 31, 2014.

The directors have elected to prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (GAAP) for purposes of our 2014 and 2013 U.K. statutory annual reports, as permitted by the U.K.
Companies Act 2006 (Companies Act) to the extent that those principles do not contravene with any provisions of the Companies
Act. Accordingly, in order to comply with the Companies Act, we have revised the presentation of our consolidated balance sheets,
statements of operations, statements of comprehensive earnings (loss) and statements of equity from that which we included in
our December 31, 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K (2014 10-K). In addition, we have included Companies Act columns or
tables in these statements, as applicable, that have been further adjusted (i) to account for our investment in Ziggo under the equity
method of accounting instead of the fair value method prior to the Ziggo Acquisition, (which resulted in a (a) $615.6 million
decrease to our net loss and a $3.3 million decrease to our other comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2014 and a
$615.6 million increase to our net loss and a $3.3 million decrease to our other comprehensive earnings for the year ended
December 31,2013 and (b) $618.9 million decrease to the December 31, 2013 carrying value of our investment in Ziggo), (ii) to
reclassify our discontinued operations (the Chellomedia Disposal Group at December 31, 2013 and for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012) from discontinued to continuing operations and (iii) to add note 21, which contains certain
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

supplemental disclosures required by the Companies Act, including information with respect to the application of the equity method
ofaccounting to our Ziggo investment. Due to materiality considerations, we have not adjusted our footnote disclosures to reclassify
the Chellomedia Disposal Group to continuing operations. Under GAAP, we do not amortize goodwill. Instead goodwill is
carried at cost less impairment, as described in note 3. The Companies Act, in accordance with the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Group (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, also requires that goodwill be carried at cost, as reduced by
provisions for depreciation calculated to write off the goodwill systematically over a period chosen by the directors, which does
not exceed its useful economic life. However, the directors consider that this would fail to give a true and fair view of our results
for the year and that the economic measure of performance in any period is properly made by reference only to any impairment
that may have arisen. It is not practicable to quantify the effect on the financial statements of this departure. Any impairment
charge would be included in operating income (loss).

Beginning with our 2015 U.K. statutory annual report, we will prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union beginning with the consolidated financial

statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015 in order to maintain compliance with the Companies Act.

2) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (ASU 2014-09), which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be
entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. ASU 2014-09 will replace existing revenue recognition GAAP
when it becomes effective, currently scheduled for January 1, 2017, although an extension to January 1, 2018 is being considered.
Early application is not permitted. This new standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition
method. We are currently evaluating the effect that ASU 2014-09 will have on our consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures. We have not yet selected a transition method nor have we determined the effect of the standard on our ongoing
financial reporting.

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and assumptions are used in accounting for, among other things, the valuation
of acquisition-related assets and liabilities, allowances for uncollectible accounts, programming and copyright expenses, deferred
income taxes and related valuation allowances, loss contingencies, fair value measurements, impairment assessments, capitalization
of internal costs associated with construction and installation activities, useful lives of long-lived assets, share-based compensation
and actuarial liabilities associated with certain benefit plans. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of all voting interest entities where
we exercise a controlling financial interest through the ownership of a direct or indirect controlling voting interest and variable
interest entities for which our company is the primary beneficiary. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash
Cash equivalents consist of money market funds and other investments that are readily convertible into cash and have maturities
of three months or less at the time of acquisition. We record money market funds at the net asset value reported by the investment
manager as there are no restrictions on our ability, contractual or otherwise, to redeem our investments at the stated net asset value

reported by the investment manager.
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Restricted cash consists of cash held in restricted accounts, including cash held as collateral for debt and other compensating
balances. Restricted cash amounts that are required to be used to purchase long-term assets or repay long-term debt are classified
as long-term assets. All other cash that is restricted to a specific use is classified as current or long-term based on the expected
timing of the disbursement. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, our aggregate current and long-term restricted cash balances
aggregated $78.0 million and $23.3 million, respectively.

Our significant non-cash investing and financing activities are disclosed in our consolidated statements of equity and in notes
4,5,9, and 10.

Trade Receivables

Our trade receivables are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Such allowance aggregated $116.1 million and
$122.6 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon our assessment
of probable loss related to uncollectible accounts receivable. We use a number of factors in determining the allowance, including,
among other things, collection trends, prevailing and anticipated economic conditions and specific customer credit risk. The
allowance is maintained until either receipt of payment or the likelihood of collection is considered to be remote.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to the large number of customers and their dispersion
across many different countries worldwide. We also manage this risk by disconnecting services to customers whose accounts are
delinquent.

Investments

We make elections, on an investment-by-investment basis, as to whether we measure our investments at fair value. Such
elections are generally irrevocable. We generally elect the fair value method for all investments, except those investments over
which we exercise significant influence. For investments over which we have significant influence, we consider statutory reporting
obligations, the significance of transactions between our company and our equity affiliates and other factors in determining whether
the fair value should be applied. We generally will not elect the fair value option if we are required to account for an investment
under the equity method of accounting under statutory reporting obligations. In addition, we generally do not elect the fair value
option for those significant-influence investments with which Liberty Global or its consolidated subsidiaries have significant
related-party obligations.

Under the fair value method, investments are recorded at fair value and any changes in fair value are reported in gains or
losses due to changes in fair values of certain investments, net, in our consolidated statements of operations. All costs directly
associated with the acquisition of an investment to be accounted for using the fair value method are expensed as incurred. Under
the equity method of accounting, investments are recorded at cost and are subsequently increased or reduced to reflect the share
of income or losses of the investee. All costs directly associated with the acquisition of an investment to be accounted for using
the equity method are included in the carrying amount of the investment. For additional information regarding our fair value and
equity method investments, see notes 6 and 8.

Dividends from publicly-traded investees are recognized when declared as dividend income in our consolidated statements
of operations. Dividends from privately-held investees generally are reflected as reductions of the carrying values of the applicable
investments.

Realized gains and losses are determined on an average cost basis. Securities transactions are recorded on the trade date.
Financial Instruments
Due to the short maturities of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, short-term liquid investments, trade and other
receivables, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, subscriber advance payments and deposits and other current
liabilities, their respective carrying values approximate their respective fair values. For information concerning the fair values of

certain of our investments, our derivatives and debt, see notes 6, 7 and 10, respectively. For information concerning how we arrive
at certain of our fair value measurements, see note 8.
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Derivative Instruments

All derivative instruments, whether designated as hedging relationships or not, are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value.
If the derivative instrument is not designated as a hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument are recognized in
earnings. Ifthe derivative instrument is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument
and of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in earnings. If the derivative instrument is designated as a
cash flow hedge, the effective portions of changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument are recorded in other comprehensive
earnings or loss and subsequently reclassified into our consolidated statements of operations when the hedged forecasted transaction
affects earnings. Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized in earnings. We generally
do not apply hedge accounting to our derivative instruments. For information regarding our derivative instruments, including our
policy for classifying cash flows related to derivative instruments in our consolidated statements of cash flows, see note 7.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. We capitalize costs associated with the construction
of new cable transmission and distribution facilities and the installation of new cable services. Capitalized construction and
installation costs include materials, labor and other directly attributable costs. Installation activities that are capitalized include
(i) the initial connection (or drop) from our cable system to a customer location, (ii) the replacement of a drop and (iii) theinstallation
of equipment for additional services, such as digital cable, telephone or broadband internet service. The costs of other customer-
facing activities such as reconnecting customer locations where a drop already exists, disconnecting customer locations and repairing
or maintaining drops, are expensed as incurred. Interest capitalized with respect to construction activities was not material during
any of the periods presented.

Capitalized internal-use software is included as a component of property and equipment. We capitalize internal and external
costs directly associated with the development of internal-use software. We also capitalize costs associated with the purchase of
software licenses. Maintenance and training costs, as well as costs incurred during the preliminary stage of an internal-use software
development project, are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset. Equipment
under capital leases is amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of the asset.
Useful lives used to depreciate our property and equipment are assessed periodically and are adjusted when warranted. The useful
lives of cable distribution systems that are undergoing a rebuild are adjusted such that property and equipment to be retired will
be fully depreciated by the time the rebuild is completed. For additional information regarding the useful lives of our property
and equipment, see note 9.

Additions, replacements and improvements that extend the asset life are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance are charged
to operations.

We recognize a liability for asset retirement obligations in the period in which it is incurred if sufficient information is available
to make a reasonable estimate of fair values. Asset retirement obligations may arise from the loss of rights of way that we obtain
from local municipalities or other relevant authorities. Under certain circumstances, the authorities could require us to remove
our network equipment from an area if, for example, we were to discontinue using the equipment for an extended period of time
or the authorities were to decide not to renew our access rights. However, because the rights of way are integral to our ability to
deliver broadband communications services to our customers, we expect to conduct our business in a manner that will allow us
to maintain these rights for the foreseeable future. In addition, we have no reason to believe that the authorities will not renew
our rights of way and, historically, renewals have been granted. We also have obligations in lease agreements to restore the property
to its original condition or remove our property at the end of the lease term. Sufficient information is not available to estimate the
fair value of our asset retirement obligations in certain of our lease arrangements. This is the case for long-term lease arrangements
in which the underlying leased property is integral to our operations, there is not an acceptable alternative to the leased property
and we have the ability to indefinitely renew the lease. Accordingly, for most of our rights of way and certain lease agreements,
the possibility is remote that we will incur significant removal costs in the foreseeable future and, as such, we do not have sufficient
information to make a reasonable estimate of fair value for these asset retirement obligations.

Asof December 31,2014 and 2013, the recorded value of our asset retirement obligations was $65.1 million and $79.3 million,
respectively.
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Intangible Assets

Our primary intangible assets relate to goodwill, customer relationships and cable television franchise rights. Goodwill
represents the excess purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in a business combination. Customer
relationships and cable television franchise rights were originally recorded at their fair values in connection with business
combinations.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but instead are tested for impairment at
least annually. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their respective estimated useful lives
to their estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment.

We do not amortize our franchise rights and certain other intangible assets as these assets have indefinite lives. For additional
information regarding the useful lives of our intangible assets, see note 9.

Impairment of Property and Equipment and Intangible Assets

We review, when circumstances warrant, the carrying amounts of our property and equipment and our intangible assets (other
than goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets) to determine whether such carrying amounts continue to be recoverable.
Such changes in circumstance may include, among other items, (i) an expectation of a sale or disposal of a long-lived asset or
asset group, (ii) adverse changes in market or competitive conditions, (iii) an adverse change in legal factors or business climate
in the markets in which we operate and (iv) operating or cash flow losses. For purposes of impairment testing, long-lived assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which cash flows are largely independent of other assets and liabilities, generally at or below
the reporting unit level (see below). If the carrying amount of the asset or asset group is greater than the expected undiscounted
cash flows to be generated by such asset or asset group, an impairment adjustment is recognized. Such adjustment is measured
by the amount that the carrying value of such asset or asset group exceeds its fair value. We generally measure fair value by
considering (a) sale prices for similar assets, (b) discounted estimated future cash flows using an appropriate discount rate and/or
(c) estimated replacement cost. Assets to be disposed of are carried at the lower of their financial statement carrying amount or
fair value less costs to sell.

We evaluate the goodwill, franchise rights and other indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment at least annually on
October 1 and whenever other facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets may not be recoverable. For impairment evaluations with respect to both goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangibles, we first make a qualitative assessment to determine if the goodwill or other indefinite-lived intangible may be impaired.
In the case of goodwill, if it is more-likely-than-not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying value, we then compare
the fair value of the reporting unit to its respective carrying amount. A reporting unit is an operating segment or one level below
an operating segment (referred to as a “component”). In most cases, our operating segments are deemed to be a reporting unit
either because the operating segment is comprised of only a single component, or the components below the operating segment
are aggregated as they have similar economic characteristics. If the carrying value of a reporting unit were to exceed its fair value,
we would then compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying amount, and any excess of the carrying
amount over the fair value would be charged to operations as an impairment loss. With respect to franchise rights or other indefinite-
lived intangible assets, if it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than its carrying
value, we then estimate its fair value and any excess of the carrying value over the fair value of the franchise right or other indefinite-
lived intangible asset is also charged to operations as an impairment loss.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and income tax basis of assets
and liabilities and the expected benefits of utilizing net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, using enacted tax rates in effect
for each taxing jurisdiction in which we operate for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. We recognize the financial statement effects of a tax position when it is more-likely-than-not, based on technical merits,
that the position will be sustained upon examination. Net deferred tax assets are then reduced by a valuation allowance if we
believe it is more-likely-than-not such net deferred tax assets will not be realized. Certain of our valuation allowances and tax
uncertainties are associated with entities that we acquired in business combinations. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax liabilities related to
investments in foreign subsidiaries and foreign corporate joint ventures that are essentially permanent in duration are not recognized
until it becomes apparent that such amounts will reverse in the foreseeable future. Interest and penalties related to income tax
liabilities are included in income tax expense. For additional information on our income taxes, see note 11.

Defined Benefit Plans

Certain of our subsidiaries maintain various employee defined benefit plans. Certain assumptions and estimates must be made
in order to determine the costs and future benefits that will be associated with these plans. These assumptions include (i) the
estimated long-term rates of return to be earned by plan assets, (ii) the estimated discount rates used to value the projected benefit
obligations and (iii) estimated wage increases. We estimate discount rates annually based upon the yields on high-quality fixed-
income investments available at the measurement date and expected to be available during the period to maturity of the benefits
under the applicable defined benefit plan. For the long-term rates of return, we consider relevant factors such as discount rates
and estimated returns on the subsidiaries’ targeted and actual asset allocations. To the extent that net actuarial gains or losses
exceed 10% of the greater of plan assets or plan liabilities, such gains or losses are amortized over the average future service period
of plan participants. For additional information, see note 15.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

The reporting currency of our company is the U.S. dollar. The functional currency of our foreign operations generally is the
applicable local currency for each foreign subsidiary and equity method investee. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries
(including intercompany balances for which settlement is not anticipated in the foreseeable future) are translated at the spot rate
ineffect atthe applicable reporting date. With the exception of certain material transactions, the amounts reported in our consolidated
statements of operations are translated at the average exchange rates in effect during the applicable period. The resulting unrealized
cumulative translation adjustment, net of applicable income taxes, is recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
earnings or loss in our consolidated statements of equity. With the exception of certain material transactions, the cash flows from
our operations in foreign countries are translated at the average rate for the applicable period in our consolidated statements of
cash flows. The impacts of material transactions generally are recorded at the applicable spot rates in our consolidated statements
of operations and cash flows. The effect of exchange rates on cash balances held in foreign currencies are separately reported in
our consolidated statements of cash flows.

Transactions denominated in currencies other than our or our subsidiaries’ functional currencies are recorded based on exchange
rates at the time such transactions arise. Changes in exchange rates with respect to amounts recorded in our consolidated balance
sheets related to these non-functional currency transactions result in transaction gains and losses that are reflected in our consolidated
statements of operations as unrealized (based on the applicable period end exchange rates) or realized upon settlement of the
transactions.

Revenue Recognition

Service Revenue — Cable Networks. We recognize revenue from the provision of video, broadband internet and fixed-line
telephony services over our cable network to customers in the period the related services are provided. Installation revenue
(including reconnect fees) related to services provided over our cable network is recognized as revenue in the period during which
the installation occurs to the extent these fees are equal to or less than direct selling costs, which costs are expensed as incurred.
To the extent installation revenue exceeds direct selling costs, the excess revenue is deferred and amortized over the average
expected subscriber life.
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Sale of Multiple Products and Services. We sell video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and, in certain markets, mobile
services to our customers in bundled packages at a rate lower than if the customer purchased each product on a standalone basis.
Revenue from bundled packages generally is allocated proportionally to the individual services based on the relative standalone
price for each respective service.

Mobile Revenue — General. Arrangement consideration from mobile contracts is allocated to the airtime service element and
the handset service element based on the relative standalone prices of each element. The amount of arrangement consideration
allocated to the handset is limited to the amount that is not contingent upon the delivery of future airtime services. Certain of our
operations that provide mobile services offer handsets under a subsidized contract model, whereby upfront revenue recognition is
limited to the upfront cash collected from the customer as the remaining monthly fees to be received from the customer, including
fees that may be associated with the handset, are contingent upon delivering future airtime services. At certain of our operations,
mobile customers may choose to enter into two distinct contractual relationships: (i) a mobile handset contract and (ii) a mobile
airtime services contract. Under the mobile handset contract, the customer takes full title to the handset upon delivery and typically
has the option to either (a) pay for the handset in cash upon delivery or (b) pay for the handset in installments over a contractual
period. Under these arrangements, the handset installments payments are not contingent upon delivering future airtime services
and the arrangement consideration allocated to the handset is not limited to the upfront cash collected.

Mobile Revenue — Airtime Services. We recognize revenue from mobile services in the period the related services are provided.
Revenue from pre-pay customers is recorded as deferred revenue prior to the commencement of services and revenue is recognized
as the services are rendered or usage rights expire.

Mobile Revenue — Handset Revenue. Arrangement consideration allocated to handsets is recognized as revenue when the
goods have been delivered and title has passed. For customers under a mobile handset installment contract that is independent of
amobile airtime services contract, revenue is recognized upon delivery only if collectibility is reasonably assured. Our assessment
of collectibility is based principally on internal and external credit assessments as well as historical collection information for
similar customers. To the extent that collectibility of installment payments from the customer is not reasonably assured upon
delivery of the handset, handset revenue is recognized on a cash basis as customer payments are received.

Business-to-Business (B2B) Revenue. We defer upfront installation and certain nonrecurring fees received on B2B contracts
where we maintain ownership of the installed equipment. The deferred fees are amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis
over the term of the arrangement or the expected period of performance.

Promotional Discounts. For subscriber promotions, such as discounted or free services during an introductory period, revenue
is recognized only to the extent of the discounted monthly fees charged to the subscriber, if any.

Subscriber Advance Payments and Deposits. Payments received in advance for the services we provide are deferred and
recognized as revenue when the associated services are provided.

Sales, Use and Other Value-Added Taxes (VAT). Revenue is recorded net of applicable sales, use and other value-added taxes.
Share-Based Compensation

We recognize all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee share incentive awards based on their
grant-date fair values and our estimates of forfeitures. We recognize the fair value of outstanding awards as a charge to operations
over the vesting period. The cash benefits of tax deductions in excess of deferred taxes on recognized share-based compensation
expense are reported as a financing cash flow.

‘We use the straight-line method to recognize share-based compensation expense for our outstanding share awards that do not
contain a performance condition and the accelerated expense attribution method for our outstanding share awards that contain a
performance condition and vest on a graded basis.

We have calculated the expected life of options and share appreciation rights (SARs) granted by Liberty Global to employees

based on historical exercise trends. The expected volatility for Liberty Global options and SARs is generally based on a combination
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of (i) historical volatilities of Liberty Global ordinary shares for a period equal to the expected average life of the Liberty Global
awards and (ii) volatilities implied from publicly traded Liberty Global options.

Under U.K. corporate law, we are required to issue new shares of Liberty Global ordinary shares when Liberty Global options
or SARs are exercised and when restricted share units (RSUs) and performance-based restricted share units (PSUs) vest. Although
we repurchase Liberty Global ordinary shares from time to time, the parameters of our share purchase and redemption activities
are not established solely with reference to the dilutive impact of our share-based compensation plans.

For additional information regarding our share-based compensation, see note 13.
Litigation Costs

Legal fees and related litigation costs are expensed as incurred.
Earnings or Loss per Ordinary Share

Basic earnings or loss per share attributable to Liberty Global shareholders is computed by dividing net earnings or loss
attributable to Liberty Global shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding restricted shares)
outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings or loss per share attributable to Liberty Global shareholders presents the dilutive
effect, ifany, on a per share basis of potential ordinary shares (e.g., options, SARs, restricted shares, RSUs and convertible securities)
as if they had been exercised, vested or converted at the beginning of the periods presented.

We reported losses from continuing operations attributable to Liberty Global shareholders during 2014, 2013 and 2012.
Therefore, the potentially dilutive effect at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 of (i) the aggregate number of shares issuable
pursuant to outstanding options, SARs, PSARs (as defined in note 13) and restricted shares and RSUs of approximately 39.1
million, 40.3 million and 19.7 million, respectively, (ii) the number of shares issuable pursuant to PSUs and PGUs (as defined in
note 13) of approximately 5.4 million, 3.7 million and 3.0 million, respectively, and (iii) the aggregate number of shares issuable
pursuant to obligations that may be settled in cash or shares of approximately 2.6 million, 2.6 million and 7.3 million, respectively,
were not included in the computation of diluted loss per share attributable to Liberty Global shareholders because their inclusion
would have been anti-dilutive to the computation or, in the case of certain PSUs, because such awards had not yet met the applicable
performance criteria.

The details of our net earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty Global shareholders are set forth below:

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
in millions

Amounts attributable to Liberty Global sharcholders:

Loss from continuing OPErations ............ccueeveereeeerierriereereeeesteereereeeesseereeseeeesseesenns $ (1,028.5) $ (937.6) $ (623.7)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations .............cceeceevveeceenienieireneeseeseenee 3335 (26.3) 946.5
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty Global shareholders.......................... $ (695.0) $ (963.9) $ 322.8

“) Acquisitions
Pending 2015 Acquisition

On December 9, 2014, one of our subsidiaries, together with investment funds affiliated with Searchlight Capital Partners,
L.P. (collectively, Searchlight), entered into an agreement to acquire 100% of the parent of Puerto Rico Cable Acquisition Company
Inc., dba Choice Cable TV (Choice), the second largest cable and broadband services provider in Puerto Rico (the Choice
Acquisition). The transaction values Choice at an enterprise value, before transaction costs, of approximately $272.5 million.
Most of the purchase price is expected to be funded through $257.5 million of committed facilities under the Liberty Puerto Rico
Bank Facility, as defined and described in note 10. The Choice Acquisition is subject to customary closing conditions, including
regulatory approvals, and is expected to close in the first half of 2015. Upon completion of the Choice Acquisition, Choice’s
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operations will be combined with those of Liberty Puerto Rico, and the combined business will be 60%-owned by our company
and 40%-owned by Searchlight.

2014 Acquisition

Ziggo. On November 11, 2014 (the Ziggo Acquisition Date), pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the Ziggo Merger
Agreement) with respect to an offer to acquire all of the shares of Ziggo that we did not already own (the Ziggo Offer), we gained
control of Ziggo through the acquisition of 136,603,794 additional Ziggo shares, which increased our ownership interest in Ziggo
to 88.9% (the Ziggo Acquisition). From November 12, 2014 through November 19, 2014, we acquired 18,998,057 additional
Ziggo shares, further increasing our ownership interest in Ziggo to 98.4% (the Ziggo NCI Acquisition). We have accounted for
the Ziggo Acquisition using the acquisition method of accounting and the Ziggo NCI Acquisition as the acquisition of a
noncontrolling interest. Ziggo is a provider of video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services in the
Netherlands. We acquired Ziggo in order to achieve certain financial, operational and strategic benefits through the integration
of Ziggo with UPC Nederland and our other European operations.

Pursuant to the Ziggo Merger Agreement, Ziggo shareholders who tendered their Ziggo shares received an offer price of (i)
0.2282 Liberty Global Class A ordinary shares, (ii) 0.5630 Liberty Global Class C ordinary shares and (iii) €11.00 ($13.71 at the
applicable rates) in cash for each Ziggo share that they tendered. In connection with the completion of the Ziggo Acquisition and
the Ziggo NCI Acquisition, we (i) issued an aggregate of 35,508,342 Liberty Global Class A and 87,603,842 Liberty Global Class
C ordinary shares and (ii) paid aggregate cash consideration of €1,711.6 million ($2,133.6 million at the applicable rates) to holders
of Ziggo ordinary shares.

On December 3, 2014, we initiated a statutory squeeze-out procedure in accordance with the Dutch Civil Code (the Statutory
Squeeze-out) in order to acquire the remaining 3,162,605 Ziggo shares not tendered through November 19, 2014. Under the
Statutory Squeeze-out, Ziggo shareholders other than Liberty Global will receive cash consideration. We have submitted €39.78
($48.14) per share as the suggested cash consideration to be paid in the Statutory Squeeze-out. This suggested per share consideration
is subject to confirmation of the applicable court in the Netherlands. Effective upon the commencement of the Statutory Squeeze-
out, the remaining noncontrolling interest in Ziggo became mandatorily redeemable, and accordingly, is reflected as a liability that
is included in other accrued and current liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet. The difference between the carrying value
of the noncontrolling interest immediately prior to the date that the noncontrolling interest became mandatorily redeemable and
the expected redemption value of €125.8 million ($152.2 million) was reflected as a $2.6 million decrease to additional paid-in
capital in our consolidated statement of equity. The Statutory Squeeze-out is expected to be completed during the second quarter
of 2015. For additional information, see note 20.

In connection with the completion of the Ziggo Acquisition, we obtained regulatory clearance from the European Commission
on October 10, 2014, subject to the following commitments:

*  our commitment to divest our Fi/m/ channel to a third party and to carry Filml on our network in the Netherlands for a
period of three years; and

*  our commitment for a period of eight years with respect to our network in the Netherlands (i) not to enforce certain clauses
currently contained in carriage agreements with broadcasters that restrict the ability of broadcasters to offer their channels
and content via over-the-top services, (ii) not to enter into carriage agreements containing such clauses and (iii) to maintain
adequate interconnection capacity through at least three uncongested routes into our network in the Netherlands, at least
one of which must be with a large transit provider.

On March 27, 2015, we agreed to sell our FilmI channel to Sony Pictures Television Networks, which sale is subject to

customary closing conditions, including regulatory approval. All five Film1 channels will continue to be carried on our networks
for a period of at least three years.
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For accounting purposes, the Ziggo Acquisition was treated as the acquisition of Ziggo by Liberty Global. In this regard, the

equity and cash consideration paid to acquire Ziggo plus the fair value of our pre-existing investment in Ziggo on the Ziggo
Acquisition Date is set forth below (in millions):

Liberty Global Class A ordinary SHAres (@) .........cccverierieeiiiiiiieitierieeieeieeteeteeteereesteeaeevesseeseessesssessseessesssesssenns $ 1,448.7
Liberty Global Class C ordinary Shares (2)...........cceceeieviiriiiieieieieiieceeee ettt st eseesresteeteessesaesreereessenns 3,457.1
(0 Y+ I () IS OO OO OSSR 1,872.9
Fair value of pre-existing inveStment iN ZIZEO (C).....evveveveverererereeieeeeeeeeeteseeeseeeeeseseseseseesesesenseseseseseseseeeanesessns 2,015.4
TOMAL oottt ettt ettt s et $ 8,794.1
(a)  Represents the value assigned to the 31,172,985 Liberty Global Class A and 76,907,936 Liberty Global Class C ordinary

(b)
(©)

shares issued to Ziggo shareholders in connection with the Ziggo Acquisition through the Ziggo Acquisition Date. These
amounts are based on (i) the exchange ratios specified by the Ziggo Merger Agreement, (ii) the applicable closing per share
prices of Liberty Global Class A and Class C ordinary shares and (iii) 136,603,794 ordinary shares of Ziggo tendered in the
Ziggo Offer through the Ziggo Acquisition Date.

Represents the cash consideration paid in connection with the Ziggo Acquisition.

Represents the fair value of the 41,329,850 million shares of Ziggo held by Liberty Global and its subsidiaries immediately
prior to the Ziggo Acquisition.

We have accounted for the Ziggo Acquisition using the acquisition method of accounting, whereby the total purchase price

was allocated to the acquired identifiable net assets of Ziggo based on assessments of their respective fair values, and the excess
of the purchase price over the fair values of these identifiable net assets was allocated to goodwill. A summary of the purchase
price and the preliminary opening balance sheet for the Ziggo Acquisition as of the Ziggo Acquisition Date is presented in the
following table. The preliminary opening balance sheet is subject to adjustment based on our final assessment of the fair values
of the acquired identifiable assets and liabilities. Although most items in the valuation process remain open, the items with the
highest likelihood of changing upon finalization of the valuation process include property and equipment, goodwill, intangible
assets associated with customer relationships and income taxes (in millions):

Cash and cash €QUIVAIEIES () .....ccueeciiriiriiiiiecieeeeeee et e et e et et e st e e teeteesteestaesssesseesssesssesssasssesssesssesssenssesssensns $ 1,889.7
OthET CUITENT ASSELS ....cutiutitieiieietete ettt ettt eee et et ekt e st e s e e te b e ebeeseem e e tetees e emeenseseeseeseene e seabeeseeneensenseeseeneeneesens 69.6
Property and eQUIPIMENT, NEL...........ceeieieriiirietieieteete ettt ettt ete et ete b et e eteeseessessesseessessessesseeseessessessesseessessesens 2,714.9
GOOAWILL (D) 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt b st et et ettt en e b e e b e st e st et e s e s eb e e be e s emeebe et e seseebeabeneeneeaensenea 7,724.3
Intangible assets subject t0 AMOTTIZALION (€) ...coverveteuirtirieietiriertetete ettt ettt ettt st e st sae e eseseeneeneas 5,000.9
ONET ASSEES, TIET.. . evvieeeeeeieeeeeeeee e ettt e e et eeee e eeeeaeateeeseeaaeessaaseessasaaeeessaseeesssasasesseasaeesessastessasasaeessanseeesssasseessnns 394.6
Current portion of debt and capital lease OblIZAtIONS.........c.ccevveeeieiierieriieieieiere ettt ese e naens (604.0)
Other accrued and current HaDILILIES ........c.eeieieierieieeieieee ettt e sttt e eaesseeseeneeneennens (443.5)
Long-term debt and capital 1ease ODIIZAtIONS..........cccueiiiiiieiecieiie ettt ea e e eve e be b e eeaeeene e (5,351.5)
Other 1onG-terM [HADTIILIES ......eoiuiiiiiiiieeieeicce ettt e e et e s taeetaesaaessbessbessbeesaesssessseessanssesssesens (1,520.3)
NONCONTOIING INLETESt () ...vivievieiiiiiiticiieiete ettt ettt ettt et b e et e teess e b e beereessessebeereessessessesseeseessessenns (1,080.6)
TOtal PUICRASE PIICE (©)...veuviviirieeierieiiitiitieteeteste st ete et etestesteeteessessesteeteessessassesseessessessessesssessessessessesssessansensas $ 8,794.1
(a)  The Ziggo Acquisition resulted in $16.8 million of net cash received after deducting the cash consideration paid in the Ziggo

(b)

Acquisition.

The goodwill recognized in connection with the Ziggo Acquisition is primarily attributable to (i) the ability to take advantage
of Ziggo’s existing advanced broadband communications network to gain immediate access to potential customers and
(i1) substantial synergies that are expected to be achieved through the integration of Ziggo with UPC Nederland and our
other European operations.
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(¢)  Amountprimarily includes intangible assets related to customer relationships. Asofthe Ziggo Acquisition Date, the weighted
average useful life of Ziggo’s intangible assets was approximately ten years.

(d)  Represents the fair value of the noncontrolling interest in Ziggo as of the Ziggo Acquisition Date.

()  Excludes direct acquisition costs of $84.1 million incurred through December 31, 2014, which are included in impairment,
restructuring and other operating items, net, in our consolidated statement of operations.

We have accounted for the Ziggo NCI Acquisition as an equity transaction, with the carrying amount of the noncontrolling
interest adjusted to reflect the change in ownership of Ziggo. The difference between the fair value of consideration paid and the
amount by which the noncontrolling interest was adjusted has been recognized as additional paid-in capital in our consolidated
statement of equity. The impact of the Ziggo NCI Acquisition is summarized in the following table (in millions):

Reduction of NONCONITOIING INEETESES .....ccuviiiieiieeieitieiiesieeteeee e st e eteete e staeeseessaessaessbesssesseesssesssesssenssesssensns $ 927.2
Additional Paid-in CAPILAL.........ccoeviiiiiirieieiiiti ettt ettt ettt st et e te e b e st e teete e st e besaeeteers e s e eresaeessensannas 235
Fair value of consideration Paid (2) .........ccccceeieriiriiieeieiesiiee ettt sseste s e essesbessesreessessesesseeseessessenns $ 950.7

(a)  Represents (i) the value assigned to the 4,335,357 Liberty Global Class A and 10,695,906 Liberty Global Class C ordinary
shares issued to Ziggo shareholders and (ii) cash consideration of €209.0 million ($260.7 million at the applicable rates)
paid to Ziggo shareholders, based on the 18,998,057 ordinary shares of Ziggo tendered in connection with the Ziggo NCI
Acquisition.

The cash consideration paid in the Ziggo Acquisition and the Ziggo NCI Acquisition was funded with a combination of debt
and our existing liquidity. For information regarding the various debt financing arrangements that we entered into in connection
with the execution of the Ziggo Merger Agreement and the completion of the Ziggo Acquisition and the Ziggo NCI Acquisition,
see note 10. For information regarding additional debt financing transactions involving Ziggo and UPC Nederland that we
completed during the first quarter of 2015, see note 20.

2013 Acquisition

Virgin Media. On June 7, 2013, pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the Virgin Media Merger Agreement) with
Virgin Media and following receipt of regulatory and shareholder approvals, we acquired Virgin Media in a stock and cash merger
(the Virgin Media Acquisition). Virgin Media is one of the U.K.’s largest providers of residential broadband internet, television,
fixed-line telephony and mobile services in terms of number of customers. We acquired Virgin Media in order to achieve certain
financial, operational and strategic benefits through the integration of Virgin Media with our existing European operations.

Pursuant to the Virgin Media Merger Agreement:

*  Each share of common stock of Virgin Media was converted into the right to receive (i) 0.2582 Class A ordinary shares
of Liberty Global, (ii) 0.6438 Class C ordinary shares of Liberty Global and (iii) $17.50 in cash (collectively, the Virgin
Media Merger Consideration); and

*  Each share of Series A common stock of LGI was converted into the right to receive one Class A ordinary share of Liberty
Global; each share of Series B common stock of LGI was converted into the right to receive one Class B ordinary share
of Liberty Global; and each share of Series C common stock of LGI was converted into the right to receive one Class C
ordinary share of Liberty Global.

In connection with the completion of the Virgin Media Acquisition, we issued 70,233,842 Class A and 175,122,182 Class C
ordinary shares to holders of Virgin Media common stock and 141,234,331 Class A, 10,176,295 Class B and 362,556,220 Class
C ordinary shares to holders of LGI Series A, Series B and Series C common stock, respectively.

In connection with the execution of the Virgin Media Merger Agreement, we entered into various debt financing arrangements.
For additional information, see note 10.
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In a transaction that did not impact our cash and cash equivalents, the net proceeds (after deducting certain transaction expenses)
from the February 2013 issuance of the April 2021 VM Senior Secured Notes and 2023 VM Senior Notes (each as defined and
described in note 10) of $3,557.5 million (equivalent at the transaction date) were placed into segregated escrow accounts (the
Virgin Media Escrow Accounts) with a trustee. Such net proceeds were released in connection with the closing of the Virgin Media
Acquisition.

The Virgin Media Acquisition and related refinancing transactions were funded with a combination of (i) the proceeds from
the Virgin Media Escrow Accounts, (ii) borrowings under the VM Credit Facility (as defined and described in note 10) and (iii)
our and Virgin Media’s existing liquidity.

For accounting purposes, the Virgin Media Acquisition was treated as the acquisition of Virgin Media by Liberty Global (as
the successor to LGI). In this regard, the equity and cash consideration paid to acquire Virgin Media is set forth below (in millions):

Class A OTAINATY SRATES (@)....uecuieieierieiierieiieeteetest e st e et e etesteesteesebeesaesseesssessaeessasssesssessseassasssesssessseessenssesssenses $ 2,735.0
Class C ordinary SNATES (@).......c.ccveevieierieriiirierieeeetesteeteeteetestesteete et esessesseeseessessessesseessessessesteessessessesseeseessensessens 6,369.9
CASI (D) -ttt etttk h et h bttt bt h e e he et e a ekt hea b e et e bt et en e ene ket e st et e ete e eneeneabeneas 4,760.2
Fair value of the vested portion of Virgin Media stock incentive awards (C)........cceceevverierierieierierieieeeeiesiennns 270.4

Total equity and cash CONSIACIATION...........ceeierieriiriieieieieste ettt ettt te e eaessesseesaessesessesseessensensens $ 14,135.5

(a)  Represents the value assigned to the 70,233,842 Class A and 175,122,182 Class C ordinary shares issued to Virgin Media
shareholders in connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition. These amounts are based on (i) the exchange ratios specified
by the Virgin Media Merger Agreement, (ii) the closing per share price on June 7,2013 of Series A and Series C LGI common
stock of $38.94 and $36.37, respectively, and (iii) the 272,013,333 outstanding shares of Virgin Media common stock at
June 7, 2013.

(b)  Represents the cash consideration paid in connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition. This amount is based on (i) the
$17.50 per share cash consideration specified by the Virgin Media Merger Agreement and (ii) the 272,013,333 outstanding
shares of Virgin Media common stock at June 7, 2013.

(c)  Represents the portion of the estimated fair value of the Virgin Media stock incentive awards that are attributable to services
provided prior to the June 7, 2013 acquisition date. The estimated fair value is based on the attributes of the 13.03 million
outstanding Virgin Media stock incentive awards at June 7, 2013, including the market price of the underlying Virgin Media
common stock. The outstanding Virgin Media stock incentive awards at June 7, 2013 include 9.86 million stock options
that have been valued using Black Scholes option valuations. In addition, Virgin Media’s stock incentive awards at June
7, 2013 included 3.17 million restricted stock units that included performance conditions and, in certain cases, market
conditions. Those restricted stock units with market conditions have been valued using Monte Carlo simulation models.
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We have accounted for the acquisition of Virgin Media using the acquisition method of accounting, whereby the total purchase
price was allocated to the acquired identifiable net assets of Virgin Media based on assessments of their respective fair values, and
the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of these identifiable net assets was allocated to goodwill. A summary of the
purchase price and opening balance sheet for the Virgin Media Acquisition at the June 7, 2013 acquisition date is presented in the
following table. The opening balance sheet presented below reflects our final purchase price allocation (in millions):

Cash and Cash EQUIVAISIIES ...........cciiiiiiieeieiiect ettt ettt s b e st e st esteestaeessessaessaessbesssasssesssesssesssesssesssensns $ 694.6
OhET CUITENT ASSELS ...utiutitieiieiietete ettt ettt ettt et e et e et e e st et et e bt eb e e st en e et e ebeeseeme e beebeebeeneentenbeebeeneeneeneens 932.2
Property and eqUIPIMENE, NEL...........ciciirieriiitietieieteteeteete et te et e st e b e reeteeseessessesseeseessessessesseessessessesseessessesens 9,863.1
GOOAWILL (@) .vevvivieeieiieietiete ettt ettt ettt et et et et e e te e st e be b eeseeseesse b e seeseeseessessaeseeseessassensenseesaessesseeseeseensessans 9,000.8
Intangible assets subject t0 aMOTTIZAtION (D) .....cc.ecveriiriieieierieiieeetete ettt e et reeeeeaessesresseesaessesseeseeseensensens 3,925.8
ONET ASSEES, TET.....evviiieeieieeeeeee e e ettt e ettt eeee et e e eeeeateeeseateeeesaseessaaaaeessaasteesasssasessansaeesesastessesnsseessanseeessssseessnnes 4,259.4
Current portion of debt and capital 1ease ObIIZAtIONS..........ccceeciiiiiiiieieeie et (1,184.5)
Other accrued and current 1HabilitieS (C) () ....eovivieriiiiiiieeiecie ettt eb et e b eabeeaaeeene e (1,892.2)
Long-term debt and capital 1ease 0DIIZAtIONS..........cccueiviiieeieeieiieciecee et s eae s beesaeeaaeeeee e (8,477.4)
Other 10ng-term HADIIES (C)....viiviivieieiiiiiitietieeeiecteeteete ettt ettt e st te et e s e st e e teeseessesbesbeeseessessesseeseessessenens (1,326.3)
Additional Paid-in CAPILAL () ...cverververrieieriiiiiiiietieieste sttt et et et e e ete et e saesteeteestessessesteeseessasesaeessessessessesseessensennas (1,660.0)
Total PUrchase PriCe (£).....c.eviiiiieieiieiiiieieee ettt sttt ettt e s e b e s beetaesbessesaesseessessessessesseessensensas $ 14,135.5

(a)  The goodwill recognized in connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition is primarily attributable to (i) the ability to take
advantage of Virgin Media’s existing advanced broadband communications network to gain immediate access to potential
customers and (ii) substantial synergies that were expected to be achieved through the integration of Virgin Media with our
other broadband communications operations in Europe.

(b)  Amount primarily includes intangible assets related to customer relationships. At June 7,2013, the weighted average useful
life of Virgin Media’s intangible assets was approximately seven years.

(c)  No amounts were allocated to deferred revenue with respect to the then ongoing performance obligations associated with
Virgin Media’s B2B service contracts, as the remaining fees to be received under these contracts approximated fair value
given our estimates of the costs associated with these performance obligations.

(d)  Amount includes a $35.6 million liability that was recorded to adjust an unfavorable capacity contract to its estimated fair
value. This amount was amortized through the March 31, 2014 expiration date of the contract as a reduction of Virgin
Media’s operating expenses so that the net effect of this amortization and the payments required under the contract
approximated market rates. During the period from June 8, 2013 through December 31, 2013 and the year ended
December 31,2014, $22.8 million and $12.8 million, respectively, of this liability was amortized as a reduction of operating
expenses in our consolidated statements of operations.

(e)  Represents the equity component of the VM Convertible Notes (as defined and described in note 10). During the period
from June 7, 2013 through December 31, 2013, 94.4% of the VM Convertible Notes were exchanged for Liberty Global
Class A and Class C ordinary shares and cash pursuant to the terms of the VM Convertible Notes Indenture. For additional
information, see note 10.

(f)  Excludes direct acquisition costs of $51.5 million, which are included in impairment, restructuring and other operating
items, net, in our consolidated statements of operations.

2012 Acquisitions

Puerto Rico. On November 8, 2012, one of our subsidiaries, LGI Broadband Operations, Inc. (LGI Broadband Operations),
completed a series of transactions (collectively, the Puerto Rico Transaction) with certain investment funds affiliated with
Searchlight that resulted in their joint ownership of (i) Liberty Cablevision of Puerto Rico LLC (Old Liberty Puerto Rico), a
subsidiary of LGI Broadband Operations, and (ii) San Juan Cable, LLC, doing business as OneLink Communications (OneLink),
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a broadband communications operator in Puerto Rico. In connection with the Puerto Rico Transaction, (i) Old Liberty Puerto
Rico and OneLink were merged, with OneLink as the surviving entity, and (ii) OneLink was renamed Liberty Puerto Rico.

Immediately prior to the acquisition of OneLink, LGI Broadband Operations contributed its 100% interest in Old Liberty
Puerto Rico, and Searchlight contributed cash of $94.7 million, to Leo Cable LP (Leo Cable), a newly formed entity. Leo Cable
in turn used the cash contributed by Searchlight to fund the acquisition of 100% of the equity of OneLink from a third party (the
OneLink Seller) for a purchase price of $96.5 million, including closing adjustments and $1.8 million of transaction-related costs
paid by Old Liberty Puerto Rico on behalf of the OneLink Seller. Such purchase price, together with OneLink’s consolidated net
debt (aggregate fair value of debt and capital lease obligations outstanding less cash and cash equivalents) at November 8, 2012
of $496.0 million, resulted in total consideration of $592.5 million, excluding direct acquisition costs of $18.1 million, which are
included in impairment, restructuring and other operating items, net, in our consolidated statement of operations.

In November 2013, LGI Broadband Operations reached a settlement agreement with respect to certain claims against the
OneLink Seller, pursuant to which, among other matters, LGI Broadband Operations received a cash payment of $20.0 million.
This amount is included as a credit within impairment, restructuring and other operating items, net, in our consolidated statement
of operations, and the cash received is included within cash provided by operating activities in our consolidated statement of cash
flows.

As aresult of the Puerto Rico Transaction, LGI Broadband Operations acquired a 60.0% interest, and Searchlight acquired a
40.0% interest, in Leo Cable. As LGI Broadband Operations’ 60.0% interest represents a controlling financial interest, LGI
Broadband Operations consolidates Leo Cable.

We have accounted for the Puerto Rico Transaction as the acquisition of OneLink and the effective sale of a 40.0% interest
in Old Liberty Puerto Rico. The effective sale of the 40.0% interest in Old Liberty Puerto Rico was accounted for as an equity
transaction. We have accounted for the acquisition of OneLink using the acquisition method of accounting.

A summary of the purchase price and opening balance sheet for OneLink at the November 8, 2012 acquisition date is presented
in the following table. The opening balance sheet presented below reflects our final purchase price allocation (in millions):

Cash and Cash EQUIVALENLS........c.ccuirieieieiertiettetete ettt et et et e ete et esaesbesteeseesaessessesseeseessessessenssessensessessenssessensens $ 4.4
OthEr CUITENE ASSELS (@) ....eveeirieiriiitieitieetieeteeiteeeteesteeeteesteeeeeeteeeteesteessseesseassesssessseessaessessseasseesseassessseessesssenssesaseasns 19.2
Property and @qQUIPIMENT, NEL..........ecieieieieeiieteeieie ettt et ettt et eteste st eseeseesessesseeseensessesseeseeneensessesseeneensensens 150.2
Intangible assets subject t0 aMOTtIZAtION (D) .......cceeiiieiiiiiieieeie ettt reeeb e e s eaeebe s e eaaeeeseeens 90.5
Intangible assets not subject to amortization - cable television franchise rights ..........c..cccoeeeeviiiciiiciiecieecieee, 285.0
GOOAWILL (€) vttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e st e st st e e ea e et e b ea e es e e seesenees e s enseseebeeseneeseesenseneeseaseneeneeseseneas 226.1
(011153 = ST 1o 1 1] SRRSO 1.2
Current portion of debt and capital lease ODIIGAtIONS..........c.ccevvievieieriiriiiieieieerie ettt aesae e re e eesneas (3.5)
Other current HaADIIITIES () ...c.eecviiivieeiieieeiiiee ettt ettt et e et e et e et e e teeetaeetaeetseetseeaseeaseetseeeseeaneeaseeaseeareeens (54.1)
Long-term debt and capital 1ease ObliAtiONS..........ccevieierierieriieieieieeee ettt e e eneeeennens (496.9)
Deferred tax HHADIIITIES .....eouieieieieeieee ettt ettt e et e st e et e st e sesseeseeseensesseeseeseensensesseeseeneensensens (125.6)
TOtAl PUICRASE PIICE.....cviiviiiiiicieete ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e e e et e e teeae et eseeteeteeaeeseeseeseeseessesesteereessensentens $ 96.5

(a)  Other current liabilities include an accrual for a loss contingency that was measured based on our best estimate of the
probable loss. The OneLink Seller partially indemnified us for the outcome of this loss contingency and, accordingly, other
current assets includes an indemnification asset, measured using the same basis as the associated loss contingency.

(b)  Amount primarily includes intangible assets related to customer relationships. At November 8, 2012, the weighted average
useful life of OneLink’s intangible assets was approximately 10 years.

(c)  The goodwill recognized in connection with the Puerto Rico Transaction is primarily attributable to (i) the ability to take
advantage of the existing advanced broadband communications networks of OneLink to gain immediate access to potential
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customers and (ii) substantial synergies that were expected to be achieved through the integration of OneLink with our
existing broadband communications operations in Puerto Rico.

Pro Forma Information

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated operating results give effect to (i) the acquisition of 100% of Ziggo and (ii)
the Virgin Media Acquisition, as if they had been completed as of January 1, 2013. These pro forma amounts are not necessarily
indicative of the operating results that would have occurred if these transactions had occurred on such date. The pro forma
adjustments are based on certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable.

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013

in millions, except per
share amounts

Revenue:
CONLINUING OPETATIONS ....eveuvinreiieierienteteetiteeteiestetest ettt et eteste st estesestestetesbessentebesaeneesesbenseneenesaeneenesen $ 20,0957 $ 19,301.2
DiSCONtINUE OPETATIONS .....cuveeeviriaiiirietenteit ettt ettt ettt sae ettt st bt e e ene b s eneene e 26.6 408.6
TOTAL.... bbb $ 20,1223 § 19,709.8
Net loss attributable to Liberty Global shareholders...........cocoveiriinieininenieininicnnecceeneeeenen $ (1,223.0) § (1,200.2)
Basic and diluted loss attributable to Liberty Global shareholders per share............ccccceevvencncinnins $ (1.35) § (1.30)

Our consolidated statement of operations for 2014 includes revenue and net loss of $272.0 million and $98.7 million,
respectively, attributable to Ziggo.

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated operating results give effect to (i) the Virgin Media Acquisition and (ii) the
Puerto Rico Transaction, as if they had been completed as of January 1, 2012. These pro forma amounts are not necessarily
indicative of the operating results that would have occurred if these transactions had occurred on such date. The pro forma
adjustments are based on certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable.

Year ended December 31,
2013 2012

in millions, except per
share amounts

Revenue:
CONtINUING OPETALIONS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt st e s e et st et saeneneas $ 17,239.1 $ 16,465.0
DiSCONINUE OPETALIONS .....c.vvevirinieiiititeieit ettt ettt ettt sttt sbe sttt et st bt et ebe b s eneenenee 408.6 673.7
TORAL et e e e e e et ee e ee e $ 17,6477 $ 17,138.7
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty Global shareholders (2) .......ccoccveveiereriiirieieereceee $ (1,3004) $ 3,701.5
Basic earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty Global shareholders per share (a).........ccocceevevenvrennne $ (1.63) $ 448
Diluted earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty Global shareholders per share (a)........ccccceevereeenennene $ (1.63) § 4.39

(a) The 2012 amounts reflect the impact of a $4,144.9 million release of valuation allowances on Virgin Media’s deferred tax
assets. This release was included in Virgin Media’s historical results for the fourth quarter of 2012.

Our consolidated statement of operations for 2013 includes revenue and net loss of $3,653.7 million and $987.8 million,
respectively, attributable to Virgin Media.
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Q)] Discontinued Operations

Chellomedia Disposal Group. On January 31, 2014, we completed the sale of the Chellomedia Disposal Group to AMC
Networks Inc. for €750.0 million ($1,013.1 million at the applicable rate) in cash (the Chellomedia Transaction). Accordingly,
the Chellomedia Disposal Group is reflected as a discontinued operation in our consolidated statements of operations and cash
flows for all periods presented. The assets disposed of pursuant to the Chellomedia Transaction exclude Chellomedia’s premium
sports and film channels in the Netherlands. In connection with the sale of the Chellomedia Disposal Group, we recognized a
pre-tax gain of $342.2 million. This pre-tax gain is net of a $64.0 million cumulative foreign currency translation loss, which was
reclassified to net loss from accumulated other comprehensive earnings. The associated income tax expense of $9.5 million differs
from the amount computed by applying the U.K. statutory income tax rate in effect at the time of 21.5% primarily due to the fact
that (i) the transaction was not subject to taxation in the U.K. and (ii) most elements of the transaction were not subject to taxation
in the Netherlands or the U.S. The net after-tax gain of $332.7 million is included in gain on disposal of discontinued operations,
net of taxes, in our consolidated statement of operations.

Certain of our broadband communications operations will continue to receive programming services from the Chellomedia
Disposal Group through contracts that were negotiated as part of the disposal. As such, Liberty Global will have continuing cash
outflows associated with the Chellomedia Disposal Group through at least 2017. However, our involvement as an ongoing customer
of'the Chellomedia Disposal Group does not disqualify discontinued operations classification because (i) the ongoing cash outflows
are not considered significant to the Chellomedia Disposal Group and (ii) Liberty Global does not possess any rights within the
ongoing contractual arrangements that would allow us to exert influence over the Chellomedia Disposal Group.

The summarized financial position of the Chellomedia Disposal Group as of December 31, 2013 is as follows (in millions):

Assets:
Cash and CaSh EQUIVALENLS ........c.ccuieieiiitiiticietete sttt ettt ettt e aesbeeteete e s e sbesaeeseessassesseeseessessessesaeessessassesseaseas $ 4.6
OLhET CUITENE ASSCLS. .. .euieiieeieiiitietietieteste sttt et estesteeteestessesbesteessessessesseessessessesesseassessassessesssessassessesssessessansessesseas 234.1
TIIVESEIMEIIES ... ..ottt ettt et ettt et et e e bt ea bt et e enbeea bt e beenbe e b e en bt e st e e beenbe e bt enbeebeenbeenbeente 21.1
Property and eqUIPIMENE, NEL..........cccverierieitieieierieeteeeete e ste e e etestesaessesteessessessesseeseessensessesseessessessessesssessansessessens 43.1
(6o TaT 4 174 1 | SRS 2244
Intangible assets subject t0 AMOTtIZAtION, NEL ........c..ccuieriieiiieiieecieeie et et ettt e e e e e steebe e reesteesseesseesbeesseesseeseenns 145.7
(0133 TC3 g 1T £ USSR 79.3
TOLAL ASSCES (@)..1uveevierreriirietierietest e et et et et e e te e st et e b e e teeteessebesbeeseessessesbaeseessessesbeeseeseessessesbeeseensessesseeseessessessasseans $ 752.3
Liabilities:
CUITENE LHADIIITIES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e st et e st e et et et e s et et e seseebe st ebeseneeseneneeee $ 127.5
Other 10ng-term HHADIIIEIES. .......ecviitieieierie sttt sttt et st eesa e s e bessesseesaessensessesssensensessenseas 19.8
TOtAl TIADIIIEIES () .vevveuveeieeieieieie ettt ettt ettt et et et e e st et e et e et e eaeensesse et e eseeneese et eeseensensesseeseensensessenseans 147.3
TOTAL @QUILY .. uveeuviete ettt ettt ettt ettt et e e e et e e bt e beeabeeabeesbeesseenseesseesseesseesseesseenseenseenseenseesseensaenseenseenseenseenseenris 605.0
Total lHabilities and EQUILY .......ccecviiiiieiectieie ettt ettt ettt ettt e et et e st e et e ete e s e saesbeeteessesesbeereessesessesreans $ 752.3

(a)  Excludes intercompany payables and receivables that are eliminated within Liberty Global’s consolidated financial
statements.

Austar. On July 11,2011, our company and Austar entered into agreements with certain third parties (collectively, FOXTEL)
pursuant to which FOXTEL agreed to acquire 100% of Austar’s ordinary shares through a series of transactions (the Austar
Transaction), one of which involved our temporary acquisition of the 45.85% of Austar’s ordinary shares held by the noncontrolling
shareholders (the Austar NCI Acquisition). On April 26, 2012, pursuant to the terms of the Austar NCI Acquisition, all of the
shares of Austar that we did not already own were acquired by a new wholly-owned subsidiary of Liberty Global (LGI Austar
Holdco), with funding provided by a loan from FOXTEL. On May 23,2012, FOXTEL acquired 100% of Austar from LGI Austar
Holdco for AUD 1.52 ($1.50 at the transaction date) per share in cash, which represented a total equity sales price of AUD 1,932.7
million ($1,906.6 million at the transaction date) for the 100% interest in Austar (based on Austar ordinary shares outstanding at
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the transaction date) or AUD 1,046.5 million for our 54.15% interest in Austar. Upon completion of these transactions and excluding
proceeds related to the shares acquired in the Austar NCI Acquisition, our company realized cash proceeds equivalent to $1,056.1
million after taking into account applicable foreign currency forward contracts and before considering cash paid for disposal costs.

In connection with the sale of Austar, we recognized a pre-tax gain of $928.2 million that includes (i) cumulative foreign
currency translation gains of $22.6 million and (ii) cumulative cash flow hedge losses of $15.1 million, each of which have been
reclassified to net earnings from accumulated other comprehensive earnings. The associated deferred income tax expense of $4.1
million differs from the amount computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% primarily due to the fact that (i)
the Austar Transaction was not subject to taxation in Australia and (ii) most elements of the Austar Transaction were not subject
to taxation in the U.S. This gain, net of income taxes, is included in gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of taxes, in
our consolidated statement of operations.

The combined operating results of the Chellomedia Disposal Group (2014, 2013 and 2012) and Austar (2012) are classified
as discontinued operations in our consolidated statements of operations and are summarized in the following table:

Year ended December 31,
2014 (a) (b) 2013 (b) 2012 (b) (¢)
in millions

REVEIUC. .....uiietieieicieietet ettt ettt ettt ettt e b et e bt e s et eseesesaseesese s esesessenens $ 266 $ 4086 $ 6737
OPErating INCOME ......oveeeeevieeeeeeeeee ettt e te ettt e s et te s eteaeeeeaeas s et eas et eseseseseeseseasesesens $ 06 $ 121 $ 78.7
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and noncontrolling interests.............c.coceeerveevennnnn. $ 09 3 (1.0) $ 75.2
TNCOME TAX EXPEIISE ....o.vveveveeeetetieeeteeeeteteee et eteeetete et eteas et ete s eseteeeesess et etessesetersesesssesensesesens $ 01 $ @27 %8 (28.1)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to Liberty Global -
SHATCOIAETS, TIEE OF LAXES +.vvvvevereeee et eee e ee et e eeeeeseeeteseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseeeeeseeeens $ 08 § (263) % 22.4

(a)  Includes the operating results of the Chellomedia Disposal Group through January 31, 2014, the date the Chellomedia
Disposal Group was sold.

(b)  Excludes the Chellomedia Disposal Group's intercompany revenue and expenses that are eliminated within Liberty Global's
consolidated financial statements.

(c) Includes the operating results of Austar through May 23, 2012, the date the Austar Transaction was completed.
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6) Investments

The details of our investments are set forth below:

December 31,
Accounting Method 2014 2013

in millions

Fair value:

Ziggo:
Not subject to re-use rights (34.1 million shares at December 31, 2013) .....cccoevveineneccncnnns $ — 3 1,560.1
Subject to re-use rights (22.9 million shares at December 31, 2013) ......ccccevvriereienieniennne. — 1,049.4
TOtAl —— ZIZO ..o — 2,609.5
ITV — subject t0 T-USE TIZNLS ...cueeeuiriiiiiiirieeceetrtcet ettt 871.2 —
11108V 110) 04 Lo J TSPt 473.1 572.9
(0731 TSRO UU SRR RSRUSURSRROE 3184 299.4
TOtal — fAIE VAIUC ... .eieeieeeieeiie ettt ettt st s e ssa e s e e e b e esaessaesebesssennnensnens 1,662.7 3,481.8
EQUILY ot sttt st et 145.1 8.9
COSE ettt h et b et h ettt h ekt b et b e bbbt et bt b e bt et e e e nbeebeeae 0.4 0.5
TOTAL ..ttt ettt et h et b bbbttt eb bbb naen $ 1,8082 $ 3,491.2
Discontinued operation — Investments held by the Chellomedia Disposal Group....................... $ $ 21.1

Fair Value Investments

Ziggo. Prior to the November 11, 2014 completion of the Ziggo Acquisition, we accounted for our investment in shares of
Ziggo as a fair value investment. For additional information regarding the Ziggo Acquisition, see note 4.

At December 31, 2013, we owned 57,000,738 shares of Ziggo, representing 28.5% of the then outstanding shares of Ziggo.
In April 2013, LGE HoldCo V BYV, our wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a limited recourse margin loan agreement (the Ziggo
Margin Loan) with respect to a portion of our investment in Ziggo and, in July 2013, we entered into a share collar (the Ziggo
Collar) and secured borrowing arrangement (the Ziggo Collar Loan) with respect to a portion of our owned Ziggo shares. All but
4,743,738 of the Ziggo shares that we owned at December 31, 2013 were pledged as collateral under one or the other of the Ziggo
Collar and Ziggo Collar Loan. During 2013, we received aggregate cash dividends from Ziggo of $78.4 million after taking into
account the impact of the Ziggo Collar. In connection with the Ziggo Acquisition, the Ziggo Collar was terminated and the Ziggo
Collar Loan was settled. For additional information on the Ziggo Collar and Ziggo Collar Loan, see note 7. As described in note
10, we repaid the Ziggo Margin Loan during the first quarter of 2014.

The summarized financial condition of Ziggo as of December 31, 2013 is set forth below (in millions):

CUITEIE ASSCES ..veuvivieiieeririeteeteeteseete et et essesseeteestessesseeseeseessessasseeseessessesseeteessessesseseessessessesseeseessessessesseateessensessesseans $ 261.9
LLON@EEIIN SSELS .uveeuvieiieieetietieieesie et eteeteeteeteeste e seesseesseesseesseenseesseenseansaenseanseenseenseensesaseenseensaensesnseensennsennsennsas 6,131.5

TOTAL ASSEES ...ttt ettt ettt et e et e e et e e e e ae e e et e st e e et eeaaaeesaeeeaneeseaaeeseaee e neeeeaeeesaeeseneeeeneeseneesereeeeneenneas $ 6,393.4
CUITENE HADTIHIES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e st te b et ete b e besaebe b essesees e besseseebessessese s essesaebessessesesenseseesenee $ 539.3
LONG-tEIM HADIIIEIES ....c.vietieviitieieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e e be e b e esbeeabeesbeesbeenbeenseenbeesseessaenseenseenseenseenseenses 4,516.0
OWIIETS” EQUILY ..veeuvietieitieiteeiteeste et et eteeteesteeseesse e se e seesseesseesseesseasseesseesseassaasseasseesseenseenseesseesseansaesseenseanseessenssennsis 1,338.1

Total liabilities and OWNETS” EQUILY........eiieriertiertieieeseeste et este et esteesteesteesseeseesseesseesseesseesseessaesseesseenseessenseenses $ 6,393.4
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The summarized results of operations of Ziggo for the periods indicated are set forth below:

2014 (a) 2013 (b)
in millions
REVEIUE. ...ttt e et e e et e et e e e e et e e eae e s e e e e s st eeeaeeeeaeeseaeesereessneenaneens $ 1,876.9 $ 1,570.7
OPETALING INCOIME......evieveeietitesieiteteetesteteetestesseteesesseseesessesseseasessessesessessessesessessassssessessasessessesens $ 336.0 $ 418.5
Net €arNINES (L0SS) ....uvevevieeeiereeeeeeeee ettt e ettt et te et ee et e et e e eteeteesensessesesereeseesensereeseseneas $ (230.3) $ 199.1

(a)  Amounts relate to the period from January 1, 2014 through the Ziggo Acquisition Date.
(b)  Amounts relate to the period from March 28, 2013 (the date of our initial investment in Ziggo) through December 31, 2013.

ITV. On July 17, 2014, we acquired an aggregate of 259,820,065 shares of ITV plc (ITV) from British Sky Broadcasting
Group plc at a price of £1.85 ($3.14 at the transaction date) per share, for a total investment of £480.7 million ($816.3 million at
the transaction date). ITV is a commercial broadcaster in the U.K. Our ITV shares represent 6.4% of the total outstanding shares
of ITV as of September 30, 2014, the most current publicly-available information. All of our ITV shares are subject to a share
collar (the ITV Collar) and pledged as collateral under a secured borrowing arrangement (the ITV Collar Loan). Under the terms
of the ITV Collar, the counterparty has the right to re-use all of the pledged ITV shares. For additional information regarding the
ITV Collar Loan and the ITV Collar, including a description of the related re-use rights and the impact of the ITV Collar on the
dividends we receive on our ITV shares, see note 7.

Sumitomo. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, we owned 45,652,043 shares of Sumitomo Corporation (Sumitomo) common
stock. Our Sumitomo shares represented less than 5% of Sumitomo’s outstanding common stock at December 31, 2014. These
shares secure the Sumitomo Collar Loan, as defined and described in note 7.

Other. Includes various fair value investments, the most significant of which is our 17.0% interest in ITI Neovision S.A. (ITI
Neovision) (formerly Canal+ Cyfrowy S.A.), a privately-held DTH operator in Poland.

Equity Method Investments

All3Media. Asof December 31,2014, our most significant equity method investment is our investment in All3Media Holdings
Limited (All3Media), an independent television, film and digital production and distribution company in the U.K. Our investment
in All3Media is held through our 50.0% interest in DLG Acquisition Limited (DLG), a joint venture between one of our subsidiaries
and a subsidiary of Discovery Communications, Inc. (Discovery). In September 2014, we and a subsidiary of Discovery each
contributed £90.0 million ($147.2 million at the transaction date) to DLG in connection with DLG’s acquisition of 100% of
All3Media.

Chellomedia Disposal Group
Substantially all of the investments held by the Chellomedia Disposal Group were measured at fair value. The investments
held by the Chellomedia Disposal Group at December 31, 2013 are included in long-term assets of discontinued operations on

our consolidated balance sheet. For additional information regarding the Chellomedia Disposal Group, see note 5.

@) Derivative Instruments

In general, we seek to enter into derivative instruments to protect against (i) increases in the interest rates on our variable-rate
debt and (ii) foreign currency movements, particularly with respect to borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the borrowing entity. In this regard, through our subsidiaries, we have entered into various derivative
instruments to manage interest rate exposure and foreign currency exposure with respect to the U.S. dollar ($), the euro (€), the
British pound sterling (£), the Swiss franc (CHF), the Chilean peso (CLP), the Czech koruna (CZK), the Hungarian forint (HUF),
the Polish zloty (PLN) and the Romanian lei (RON). We generally do not apply hedge accounting to our derivative instruments.
Accordingly, changes in the fair values of most of our derivative instruments are recorded in gains or losses on derivative instruments,
net, in our consolidated statements of operations.
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The following table provides details of the fair values of our derivative instrument assets and liabilities:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Current Long-term (a) Total Current Long-term (a) Total
in millions
Assets:

Cross-currency and interest rate

derivative contracts (b)................... $ 4436 $ 9137 § 13573 § 2484 $ 5208 § 7692
Equity-related derivative

INSErUMENTS (C).vovvvveveiereeeieneeiieennn, — 400.2 400.2 — 4304 4304
Foreign currency forward

CONLTACES ..vveeeeeiecenieeceeeee e 25 — 25 2.6 — 2.6
Other ....ocoovevinicirecececeeeee 0.5 0.9 1.4 1.1 0.9 2.0

Total..ooveeriricneccccee $ 446.6 $ 1,314.8 $ 1,761.4 § 252.1 % 952.1 § 1,204.2

Liabilities:

Cross-currency and interest rate

derivative contracts (b).................. $ 1,0274 § 1,4439 $§ 24713 $ 7272 % 2,1914 $§ 2918.6
Equity-related derivative

INStIUMENtS (C).vovoveveveeeeeeeeeeverenene, 15.3 73.1 88.4 15.6 101.3 116.9
Foreign currency forward

CONLTACES v.vovevererereeecececeeee e 0.8 — 0.8 8.2 12.0 20.2
Other ...oooovvevininiiicccccee 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.6 0.8

Total..coooeeiiicicccce $ 1,043.7 $ 1,517.1 § 2,560.8 $ 7512 % 2,3053 § 3,056.5

(a) Our long-term derivative assets and liabilities are included in other assets: amounts recoverable in more than one year, and

(b)

(©)

other non-current liabilities, respectively, in our consolidated balance sheets.

We consider credit risk in our fair value assessments. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, (i) the fair values of our cross-
currency and interest rate derivative contracts that represented assets have been reduced by credit risk valuation adjustments
aggregating $30.9 million and $9.8 million, respectively, and (ii) the fair values of our cross-currency and interest rate derivative
contracts that represented liabilities have been reduced by credit risk valuation adjustments aggregating $64.6 million and
$173.0 million, respectively. The adjustments to our derivative assets relate to the credit risk associated with counterparty
nonperformance and the adjustments to our derivative liabilities relate to credit risk associated with our own nonperformance.
In all cases, the adjustments take into account offsetting liability or asset positions within a given contract. Our determination
of credit risk valuation adjustments generally is based on our and our counterparties’ credit risks, as observed in the credit
default swap market and market quotations for certain of our subsidiaries’ debt instruments, as applicable. The changes in the
credit risk valuation adjustments associated with our cross-currency and interest rate derivative contracts resulted in net gains
(losses) of ($120.9 million), $15.3 million and ($57.3 million) during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These amounts are
included in gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net, in our consolidated statements of operations. For further information
concerning our fair value measurements, see note 8.

Our equity-related derivative instruments include the fair value of (i) the ITV Collar (as described below) at December 31,
2014, (ii) the share collar (the Sumitomo Collar) with respect to the Sumitomo shares held by our company, (iii) the Virgin
Media Capped Calls (as defined and described below) and (iv) the Ziggo Collar (as described below) at December 31, 2013.
The fair values of our equity collars do not include credit risk valuation adjustments as we assume that any losses incurred by
our company in the event of nonperformance by the respective counterparty would be, subject to relevant insolvency laws,
fully offset against amounts we owe to such counterparty pursuant to the related secured borrowing arrangements.
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The details of our gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net, are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
in millions
Cross-currency and interest rate derivative CONtracts ...........cveveeererieirerenieenenieneeennens $ 2936 $ (586.5) $ (958.3)
Equity-related derivative instruments:
Z1ZEO0 COIIAT ...ttt ettt sttt st (113.3) (152.5) —
ITV COlIAT ..ttt sttt b ettt naen (77.4) — —
SUMILOMO COILAT ....c.cviuiiiiiirietiitcc ettt aens (46.0) (206.4) (109.0)
Virgin Media Capped Calls.......cccooeviiiiiininiiieeeeeeeseeecete e 0.4 (3.4) —
Total equity-related derivative inStrUMents ..........cocceceevevienerereerieniencreeteesecseeee (236.3) (362.3) (109.0)
Foreign currency forward CONtrACES ........c..coveriririeniinininieicieneeeceeeteste e 31.6 (72.9) (6.0)
OTRET .ttt ettt sttt eb ettt b bbb 0.1) 1.3 3.0
TOTAL .ttt $ 88.8 $ (1,020.4) $ (1,070.3)

The net cash received or paid related to our derivative instruments is classified as an operating, investing or financing activity
in our consolidated statements of cash flows based on the objective of the derivative instrument and the classification of the applicable
underlying cash flows. For derivative contracts that are terminated prior to maturity, the cash paid or received upon termination
that relates to future periods is classified as a financing activity. The classification of these cash inflows (outflows) are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
in millions
OPETating ACHVITIES ...eveveuieveeiieteeirietesieteiest ettt ettt sttt s et es e ebe s tebe e besessesenea $ (4457) $ (402.1) $ (435.5)
INVESHNG ACHIVILIES ...ttt (30.2) (66.5) 23.7
FINanCing @CtIVITIES ......e.ervrveeirieieirieteririe ettt sttt ettt ettt sttt (221.0) 524.5 (108.4)
TOLAL ... $ (696.9) $ 559 § (520.2)

Counterparty Credit Risk

We are exposed to the risk that the counterparties to the derivative instruments of our subsidiary borrowing groups will default
on their obligations to us. We manage these credit risks through the evaluation and monitoring of the creditworthiness of, and
concentration of risk with, the respective counterparties. In this regard, credit risk associated with our derivative instruments is
spread across a relatively broad counterparty base of banks and financial institutions. Collateral is generally not posted by either
party under the derivative instruments of our subsidiary borrowing groups. At December 31, 2014, our exposure to counterparty
credit risk included derivative assets with an aggregate fair value of $1,040.9 million.

Each of our subsidiary borrowing groups have entered into derivative instruments under master agreements with each
counterparty that contain master netting arrangements that are applicable in the event of early termination by either party to such
derivative instrument. The master netting arrangements under each of these master agreements are limited to the derivative
instruments governed by the relevant master agreement within each individual borrowing group and are independent of similar
arrangements of our other subsidiary borrowing groups.

Under our derivative contracts, it is generally only the non-defaulting party that has a contractual option to exercise early
termination rights upon the default of the other counterparty and to set off other liabilities against sums due upon such termination.
However, in an insolvency of a derivative counterparty, under the laws of certain jurisdictions, the defaulting counterparty or its
insolvency representatives may be able to compel the termination of one or more derivative contracts and trigger early termination
payment liabilities payable by us, reflecting any mark-to-market value of the contracts for the counterparty. Alternatively, or in
addition, the insolvency laws of certain jurisdictions may require the mandatory set off of amounts due under such derivative
contracts against present and future liabilities owed to us under other contracts between us and the relevant counterparty. Accordingly,
it is possible that we may be subject to obligations to make payments, or may have present or future liabilities owed to us partially
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or fully discharged by set off as a result of such obligations, in the event of the insolvency of a derivative counterparty, even though
it is the counterparty that is in default and not us. To the extent that we are required to make such payments, our ability to do so
will depend on our liquidity and capital resources at the time. In an insolvency of a defaulting counterparty, we will be an unsecured
creditor in respect of any amount owed to us by the defaulting counterparty, except to the extent of the value of any collateral we
have obtained from that counterparty.

In addition, where a counterparty is in financial difficulty, under the laws of certain jurisdictions, the relevant regulators may
be able to (i) compel the termination of one or more derivative instruments, determine the settlement amount and/or compel, without
any payment, the partial or full discharge of liabilities arising from such early termination that are payable by the relevant counterparty
or (ii) transfer the derivative instruments to an alternative counterparty.

Details of our Derivative Instruments

In the following tables, we present the details of the various categories of our subsidiaries’ derivative instruments. For each
subsidiary, the notional amount of multiple derivative instruments that mature within the same calendar month are shown in the
aggregate and interest rates are presented on a weighted average basis. In addition, for derivative instruments that were in effect
as of December 31, 2014, we present a single date that represents the applicable final maturity date. For derivative instruments
that become effective subsequent to December 31, 2014, we present a range of dates that represents the period covered by the
applicable derivative instruments.

Cross-currency and Interest Rate Derivative Contracts

Cross-currency Swaps:

The terms of our outstanding cross-currency swap contracts at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Notional Notional

amount amount Interest rate Interest rate
Subsidiary / due from due to due from due to
Final maturity date counterparty counterparty counterparty counterparty

in millions

Virgin Media Investment

Holdings Limited

(VMIH), a subsidiary of

Virgin Media:
February 2022.............. $ 1,400.0 £ 873.6 5.01% 5.49%
June 2020.......ccccevneneen $ 1,384.6 £ 901.4 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.75% 6 mo. GBP LIBOR + 3.18%
October 2020 ............... $ 1,370.4 £ 881.6 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.75% 6 mo. GBP LIBOR + 3.10%
January 2021................ $ 500.0 £ 308.9 5.25% 6 mo. GBP LIBOR + 2.06%
October 2022 ............... $ 450.0 £ 272.0 6.00% 6.43%
January 2022................ $ 4250 £ 255.8 5.50% 5.82%
April 2019.....ccveeee. $ 2915 £ 186.2 5.38% 5.49%
November 2016 (a)...... $ 550 £ 27.7 6.50% 7.03%
October 2019 ............... $ 500 £ 30.3 8.38% 8.98%
October 2019 -

October 2022............ $ 500 £ 30.7 6.00% 5.75%
UPC Broadband Holding

BV (UPC Broadband

Holding), a subsidiary of

UPC Holding BV:
July 2018 ..o $ 525.0 € 396.3 6 mo. LIBOR + 1.99% 6.25%
January 2020................ $ 3275 € 249.5 6 mo. LIBOR + 4.92% 7.52%
January 2015 - July

2021 $ 3120 € 240.0 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.50% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 2.87%
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Notional Notional
amount amount Interest rate Interest rate
Subsidiary / due from due to due from due to
Final maturity date counterparty counterparty counterparty counterparty
in millions

January 2015................ $ 300.0 € 226.5 6 mo. LIBOR + 1.75% 5.78%
October 2020 ............... $ 300.0 € 219.1 6 mo. LIBOR + 3.00% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 3.04%
January 2017 - July

2021 i, $ 262.1 € 194.1 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.50% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 2.51%
November 2019 ........... $ 250.0 € 181.5 7.25% 7.74%
November 2021 ........... $ 250.0 € 181.4 7.25% 7.50%
July 2018 ..o $ 200.0 € 151.0 6 mo. LIBOR + 3.00% 7.31%
January 2020................ $ 1975 € 150.5 6 mo. LIBOR + 4.92% 6 mo. EURIBOR +4.91%
July 2021 o $ 128.0 € 97.2 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.50% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 2.90%
January 2015 - July

2018 ., $ 100.0 € 75.4 6 mo. LIBOR + 1.75% 5.77%
December 2016............ $ 340.0 CHF 370.9 6 mo. LIBOR + 3.50% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR +4.01%
January 2017 - July

2021 i, $ 300.0 CHF 278.3 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.50% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 2.46%
November 2019 ........... $ 250.0 CHF 226.8 7.25% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR +5.01%
January 2020................ $ 225.0 CHF 206.3 6 mo. LIBOR +4.81% 5.44%
January 2015 - July

2021 e $ 200.0 CHF 186.0 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.50% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR +2.55%
January 2015................ $ 171.5 CHF 187.1 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.75% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 2.95%
July 2020 ..o $ 201.5 RON 489.3 6 mo. LIBOR + 3.50% 11.34%
January 2015................ € 898.4 CHF 1,466.0 6 mo. EURIBOR + 1.68% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 1.94%
January 2015 - January

2021 i, € 720.8 CHF 877.0 6 mo. EURIBOR +2.50% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 2.62%
January 2015 -

September 2022 ....... € 383.8 CHF 477.0 6 mo. EURIBOR +2.00% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR +2.22%
January 2015 - January

2017 e € 360.4 CHF 589.0 6 mo. EURIBOR +3.75% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 3.94%
April 2018........ocneenee. € 285.1 CHF 346.7 10.51% 9.87%
January 2020................ € 175.0 CHF 258.6 7.63% 6.76%
January 2015 - July

2021 e € 161.4 CHF 187.1 6 mo. EURIBOR +2.35% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR +2.76%
July 2020 ..o € 107.4 CHF 129.0 6 mo. EURIBOR +3.00% 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 3.28%
January 2017................ € 75.0 CHF 110.9 7.63% 6.98%
December 2015............ € 69.1 CLP 53,000.0 3.50% 5.75%
January 2015................ € 365.8 CZK  10,521.8 5.48% 5.99%
January 2015 - January

2020..c.ciiieieeee € 3189 CZK 8,818.7 5.58% 5.44%
January 2015 - January

2017 e € 60.0 CZK 1,703.1 5.50% 6.99%
July 2017 v € 39.6 CZK 1,000.0 3.00% 3.75%
January 2015................ € 260.0 HUF  75,570.0 5.50% 9.40%
January 2015 - January

2017 i € 260.0 HUF  75,570.0 5.50% 10.56%
December 2016............ € 150.0 HUF  43.367.5 5.50% 9.20%
July 2018 ..o € 78.0 HUF  19,500.0 5.50% 9.15%
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Notional Notional
amount amount Interest rate Interest rate
Subsidiary / due from due to due from due to
Final maturity date counterparty counterparty counterparty counterparty
in millions
January 2015................ € 400.5 PLN 1,605.6 5.50% 7.50%
January 2015 - January
2017 i € 2450 PLN 1,000.6 5.50% 9.03%
September 2016........... € 200.0 PLN 892.7 6.00% 8.19%
January 2015 - January
2020, € 144.6 PLN 605.0 5.50% 7.98%
July 2017 oo € 82.0 PLN 318.0 3.00% 5.60%
December 2015............ CLP 53,000.0 € 69.1 5.75% 3.50%
Amsterdamse Beheer-en
Consultingmaatschappij
BV (ABCB.V.), a
subsidiary of Ziggo:
January 2022................ $ 2,350.0 € 1,727.0 6 mo. LIBOR + 2.75% 4.56%
Unitymedia Hessen GmbH
& Co. KG (Unitymedia
Hessen), a subsidiary of
Unitymedia KabelBW:
January 2023................ $ 1,6529 € 1,252.5 5.67% 4.50%
January 2021................ $ 797.1 € 546.5 5.50% 5.60%
VTR:
January 2022................ $ 1,400.0 CLP 760,340.0 6.88% 10.94%

(a) Unlike the other cross-currency swaps presented in this table, the identified cross-currency swap does not involve the exchange
of notional amounts at the inception and maturity of the instrument. Accordingly, the only cash flows associated with this
instrument are interest payments and receipts.

Interest Rate Swaps:

The terms of our outstanding interest rate swap contracts at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Interest rate due from Interest rate due to
Subsidiary / Final maturity date Notional amount counterparty counterparty
in millions
VMIH:
October 2018......oovvveieeeeeieieeeeeeeeee £ 2,155.0 6 mo. GBP LIBOR 1.52%
January 2021 .....oovveevieeiiieieieeeeeeiene £ 650.0 5.50% 6 mo. GBP LIBOR + 1.84%
January 2021 ...c.ooveeeveiiiiiieeeeeeee £ 650.0 6 mo. GBP LIBOR + 1.84% 3.87%
December 2015 ......ccevevieiieieeeiee £ 600.0 6 mo. GBP LIBOR 2.90%
APl 2018 oo £ 300.0 6 mo. GBP LIBOR 1.37%
UPC Broadband Holding:
July 2020 ..o $ 1,000.0 6.63% 6 mo. LIBOR + 3.03%
January 2022 ......ccooveinneinneeieee $ 750.0 6.88% 6 mo. LIBOR + 4.89%
January 2015 ..o € 1,554.0 1 mo. EURIBOR + 3.75% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 3.56%
January 2015 - January 2016 ................ € 1,554.0 1 mo. EURIBOR + 3.75% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 3.58%
January 2015 ..ccoovieeeieeeeeeeee € 1,364.8 6 mo. EURIBOR 3.44%
July 2020 ..o € 750.0 6.38% 6 mo. EURIBOR + 3.16%
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Interest rate due from

Interest rate due to

Subsidiary / Final maturity date Notional amount counterparty counterparty
in millions
January 2015 - January 2021 ................ € 750.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 2.57%
January 2015 - December 2016 € 500.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 4.32%
January 2015 - January 2023 ................ € 290.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 2.79%
December 2015 .....occoeeiiniiiiieeeee € 263.3 6 mo. EURIBOR 3.97%
January 2023 ......cooveeieieieeeeeeee € 210.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 2.88%
January 2015 - January 2018 ................ € 175.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 3.74%
January 2015 - July 2020 ..........ccceee. € 171.3 6 mo. EURIBOR 3.95%
July 2020 ... € 171.3 6 mo. EURIBOR 4.32%
January 2015 - November 2021 € 107.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 2.89%
January 2015 ..o CHF 2,380.0 6 mo. CHF LIBOR 2.81%
January 2015 - January 2022 ................ CHF 711.5 6 mo. CHF LIBOR 1.89%
January 2015 - January 2021 ................ CHF 500.0 6 mo. CHF LIBOR 1.65%
January 2015 - January 2018 ................ CHF 400.0 6 mo. CHF LIBOR 2.51%
January 2015 - December 2016 CHF 370.9 6 mo. CHF LIBOR 3.82%
January 2015 - November 2019 CHF 226.8 6 mo. CHF LIBOR + 5.01% 6.88%
ABCB.V.:
January 2022 ......cccoocivvieiiininiieieenn € 1,566.0 6 mo. EURIBOR 1.66%
Telenet International Finance S.a.r.1
(Telenet International), a subsidiary of
Telenet:
June 2023 ..o € 500.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 1.45%
July 2017 - June 2022 ......ccoovvveeennne € 420.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 2.08%
June 2021 ..o € 400.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 0.41%
July 2017 - June 2023 .....ccccoevveveenene € 382.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 1.89%
July 2017 oo € 150.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 3.55%
August 2015 - June 2022 .........cccceeene. € 55.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 1.81%
June 2015 oo € 50.0 3 mo. EURIBOR 3.55%
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Interest Rate Caps

Our purchased and sold interest rate cap contracts with respect to EURIBOR at December 31, 2014 are detailed below:

December 31, 2014
- . . Notional EURIBOR
Subsidiary / Final maturity date amount cap rate

in millions
Interest rate caps purchased (a):
Liberty Global Europe Financing BV (LGE Financing), the immediate parent of

UPC Holding BV:
January 2015 - January 2020 ........ccccoviiiiiiniiiiiiee s € 735.0 7.00%
Telenet International:
JUNE 2015 = JUNE 2017ttt sttt sttt et st st sttt € 50.0 4.50%
Telenet NV, a subsidiary of Telenet:
DECEMDET 2017 ..ottt ettt st e et e et e s tbesebeesbeesbestbeesbeenbeesaeesbeesbeenaeensennseans € 0.6 6.50%
DECEMDET 2017 ..ottt ettt e st e et e e e et e s b e esaeesaessbeesbeenbeesaeesbeesbeenseensennseans € 0.6 5.50%

Interest rate cap sold (b):
UPC Broadband Holding:
January 2015 - January 2020 ........ccccooiviiiiiniiiii s € 735.0 7.00%

(a)  Ourpurchased interest rate caps entitle us to receive payments from the counterparty when EURIBOR exceeds the EURIBOR
cap rate.

(b)  Our sold interest rate cap requires that we make payments to the counterparty when EURIBOR exceeds the EURIBOR cap
rate.

Interest Rate Collars

Our interest rate collar contracts establish floor and cap rates with respect to EURIBOR on the indicated notional amounts at
December 31, 2014, as detailed below:

December 31, 2014
. ) ) Notional EURIBOR  EURIBOR
Subsidiary / Final maturity date amount floor rate (a)  cap rate (b)
in millions

UPC Broadband Holding:

January 2015 - January 2020 ..o € 1,135.0 1.00% 3.54%
Telenet International:

JULY 20017 oottt ettt a ettt b e e aeeae s nbenas € 650.0 2.00% 4.00%

(a)  We make payments to the counterparty when EURIBOR is less than the EURIBOR floor rate.

(b)  We receive payments from the counterparty when EURIBOR is greater than the EURIBOR cap rate.
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Equity-Related Derivative Instruments

Ziggo Collar and Secured Borrowing. In July 2013, Liberty Global Incorporated Limited (Liberty Global Limited), our wholly-
owned subsidiary, paid a net option premium of €38.6 million ($51.0 million at the transaction date) to enter into the Ziggo Collar
with respect to the then owned 24,957,000 Ziggo shares. The Ziggo Collar was comprised of (i) purchased put options exercisable
by Liberty Global Limited and (ii) sold call options exercisable by the counterparty. Prior to the Ziggo Acquisition, the Ziggo
Collar effectively hedged the value of a portion of our investment in Ziggo shares from significant losses due to market price
decreases below the put option price while retaining a portion of the gains from market price increases up to the call option price.

The Ziggo Collar and related agreements also provided Liberty Global Limited with the ability to effectively finance the
purchase of certain of its Ziggo shares pursuant to the Ziggo Collar Loan. In this regard, in July 2013, we borrowed €617.1 million
($816.4 million at the transaction date) under the Ziggo Collar Loan, including €486.4 million ($643.5 million at the transaction
date) of non-cash borrowings that were used to finance the acquisition of Ziggo shares. At December 31, 2013, borrowings under
the Ziggo Collar Loan were secured by 24,957,000 shares of Ziggo that were placed into a custody account. The Ziggo Collar
Loan was issued at a discount with a zero coupon rate and an average implied yield of 45 basis points (0.45%). Under the terms
of the Ziggo Collar, the counterparty had the right to re-use most of the Ziggo shares held in the custody account (up to an estimated
22.9 million shares at December 31, 2013), but we had the right to recall the shares that were re-used by the counterparty subject
to certain costs. Pursuant to the terms of the Ziggo Collar, we lent to the counterparty 15.7 million Ziggo shares (the Lent Shares)
on October 10, 2014. In addition, the counterparty had the right to retain dividends on the Ziggo shares that the counterparty would
need to borrow from the custody account to hedge its exposure under the Ziggo Collar (an estimated 18.7 million shares at
December 31, 2013). In January 2014, we settled a portion of the Ziggo Collar and Ziggo Collar Loan such that the number of
Ziggo shares covered by these instruments was reduced to 19,965,600. Upon completion of the Ziggo Acquisition (see note 4), the
Ziggo Collar was terminated, the Ziggo Collar Loan was settled and the counterparty was relieved of its obligation to redeliver to
us the Lent Shares.

ITV Collar and Secured Borrowing. In July 2014, Liberty Global Limited entered into the ITV Collar with respect to all
259,820,065 of our ITV shares. The ITV Collar is comprised of (i) purchased put options exercisable by Liberty Global Limited
and (ii) written call options exercisable by the counterparty. The ITV Collar effectively hedges the value of our investment in ITV
shares from significant losses due to market price decreases below the put option price while retaining a portion of the gains from
market price increases up to the call option price. For additional information regarding our investment in ITV, see note 6.

The ITV Collar and related agreements also provided Liberty Global Limited with the ability to effectively finance the purchase
of its ITV shares pursuant to the ITV Collar Loan. In this regard, in July 2014, we borrowed £446.9 million ($764.5 million at the
transaction date) under the ITV Collar Loan. At December 31, 2014, borrowings under the ITV Collar Loan were secured by all
259,820,065 of our ITV shares, which have been placed into a custody account. The ITV Collar Loan was issued at a discount
with a zero coupon rate and an average implied yield of 173 basis points (1.73%). The ITV Collar Loan, which has an average
maturity of three years and contains no financial covenants, provides for customary representations and warranties, events of default
and certain adjustment and termination events. Under the terms of the ITV Collar, the counterparty has the right to re-use the
pledged ITV shares held in the custody account, but we have the right to recall the shares that are re-used by the counterparty subject
to certain costs. In addition, the counterparty retains dividends on the ITV shares that the counterparty would need to borrow from
the custody account to hedge its exposure under the ITV Collar (an estimated 205 million shares at December 31, 2014).

Sumitomo Collar and Secured Borrowing. The Sumitomo Collar is comprised of purchased put options exercisable by Liberty
Programming Japan LLC (Liberty Programming Japan), a wholly-owned subsidiary, and written call options exercisable by the
counterparty with respect to all of the common shares of Sumitomo owned by Liberty Programming Japan. The Sumitomo Collar
effectively hedges the value of our investment in Sumitomo shares from losses due to market price decreases below a per share
value of ¥2,118.50 ($17.68) while retaining gains from market price increases up to a per share value of ¥2,787.50 ($23.26). At
December 31,2014, the market price of Sumitomo common stock was ¥1,242.00 ($10.36) per share. The Sumitomo Collar provides
for a projected gross cash ordinary dividend to be paid per Sumitomo share during the term of the Sumitomo Collar. If the actual
dividend paid does not exactly match the projected dividend, then an adjustment amount shall be payable between the parties to
the Sumitomo Collar depending on the dividend actually paid by Sumitomo. The Sumitomo Collar may, at the option of Liberty
Programming Japan, be settled in Sumitomo shares or in cash. The Sumitomo Collar also includes a purchased fair value put option,
which effectively provides Liberty Programming Japan with the ability to sell the Sumitomo shares when the market price is trading
between the put and call strike prices. The Sumitomo Collar matures in five equal semi-annual installments beginning on May 22,
2016. The fair value of the Sumitomo Collar as of December 31, 2014 was a net asset of $351.1 million.
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The Sumitomo Collar and related agreements also provide Liberty Programming Japan with the ability to borrow funds on a
secured basis. Borrowings under these agreements, which are secured by a pledge of 100% of the Sumitomo shares owned by
Liberty Programming Japan, bear interest at 1.883%, mature in five equal semi-annual installments beginning on May 22, 2016,
and are included in long-term debt in our consolidated balance sheets. During 2007, Liberty Programming Japan borrowed ¥93.660
billion ($757.6 million at the transaction date) under these agreements (the Sumitomo Collar Loan). The pledge arrangement entered
into by Liberty Programming Japan provides that Liberty Programming Japan will be able to exercise all voting and consensual
rights and, subject to the terms of the Sumitomo Collar, receive dividends on the Sumitomo shares.

Virgin Media Capped Calls. During 2010, Virgin Media entered into conversion hedges (the Virgin Media Capped Calls) with
respect to the VM Convertible Notes, as defined and described in note 10, in order to offset a portion of the dilutive effects associated
with conversion of the VM Convertible Notes. We account for the Virgin Media Capped Calls at fair value using a binomial pricing
model and changes in fair value are reported in gains or losses on derivative instruments, net, in our consolidated statements of
operations. The Virgin Media Capped Calls mature on dates ranging from September 30, 2016 to November 10, 2016.

As further described in note 10, most of the VM Convertible Notes were exchanged for Liberty Global Class A and Class C
ordinary shares and cash pursuant to the terms of the VM Convertible Notes Indenture (as defined in note 10). Accordingly, during
2013, we settled 93.8% of the notional amount of the Virgin Media Capped Calls for cash proceeds of $534.8 million.

Foreign Currency Forwards

The following table summarizes our outstanding foreign currency forward contracts at December 31, 2014:

Currency Currency
. purchased sold .
Subsidiary forward forward Maturity dates

in millions

UPC Broadband Holding...........c.covvvevereerccnnnnnnnn $ 0.8 CZK 14.9 January 2015 - March 2015
UPC Broadband Holding............cccceeinieuininecnnnnee. € 63.8 CHF 76.0 January 2015 - December 2015
UPC Broadband Holding............ccccoeeineeinccnnes € 45 CZK 123.3 January 2015 - March 2015
UPC Broadband Holding.............cceceveienieieennne € 4.1 HUF 1,275.0 January 2015 - March 2015
UPC Broadband Holding...........c.cceceveiininceennne. € 12.0 PLN 51.0 January 2015 - March 2015
UPC Broadband Holding.........c.ccccceevneneneininnencns £ 12 € 1.4 January 2015 - March 2015
UPC Broadband Holding...........ccceoeveninencennennenn. CHF 67.0 € 55.7 January 2015

UPC Broadband Holding...........cccccoevvenincnienncnnnn. CZK 300.0 € 10.9 January 2015

UPC Broadband Holding...........ccccceeenerenncninnennne HUF  7,400.0 € 23.6 January 2015

UPC Broadband Holding...........ccceevecenerenccninnennne PLN 90.0 € 20.9 January 2015

UPC Broadband Holding............ccccoeeineiinccnnes RON 31.0 € 6.9 January 2015

VTR oottt $ 524 CLP 31,7394 January 2015 - December 2015
()] Fair Value Measurements

We use the fair value method to account for (i) certain of our investments and (ii) our derivative instruments. The reported
fair values of these investments and derivative instruments as of December 31, 2014 likely will not represent the value that will
be paid or received upon the ultimate settlement or disposition of these assets and liabilities. In the case of the investments that
we account for using the fair value method, the values we realize upon disposition will be dependent upon, among other factors,
market conditions and the forecasted financial performance of the investees at the time of any such disposition. With respect to
our derivative instruments, we expect that the values realized generally will be based on market conditions at the time of settlement,
which may occur at the maturity of the derivative instrument or at the time of the repayment or refinancing of the underlying debt
instrument.
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GAAP provides for a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into
three broad levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting
entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability. We record transfers of assets or liabilities in or out of Levels 1, 2 or 3 at the beginning of the quarter during
which the transfer occurred. During 2014, no such transfers were made.

All of our Level 2 inputs (interest rate futures, swap rates and certain of the inputs for our weighted average cost of capital
calculations) and certain of our Level 3 inputs (forecasted volatilities and credit spreads) are obtained from pricing services. These
inputs, or interpolations or extrapolations thereof, are used in our internal models to calculate, among other items, yield curves,
forward interest and currency rates and weighted average cost of capital rates. In the normal course of business, we receive market
value assessments from the counterparties to our derivative contracts. Although we compare these assessments to our internal
valuations and investigate unexpected differences, we do not otherwise rely on counterparty quotes to determine the fair values
of our derivative instruments. The midpoints of applicable bid and ask ranges generally are used as inputs for our internal valuations.

For our investments in [TV and Sumitomo, the recurring fair value measurements are based on the quoted closing price of
the respective shares at each reporting date. Accordingly, the valuations of these investments fall under Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy. Our other investments that we account for at fair value are privately-held companies and, therefore, quoted market
prices are unavailable. The valuation technique we use for such investments is a combination of an income approach (discounted
cash flow model based on forecasts) and a market approach (market multiples of similar businesses). With the exception of certain
inputs for our weighted average cost of capital calculations that are derived from pricing services, the inputs used to value these
investments are based on unobservable inputs derived from our assumptions. Therefore, the valuation of our privately-held
investments falls under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Any reasonably foreseeable changes in assumed levels of unobservable
inputs for the valuations of our Level 3 investments would not be expected to have a material impact on our financial position or
results of operations.

The recurring fair value measurement of our equity-related derivatives are based on binomial option pricing models, which
require the input of observable and unobservable variables such as exchange traded equity prices, risk-free interest rates, dividend
yields and forecasted volatilities of the underlying equity securities. The valuations of our equity-related derivatives are based on
a combination of Level 1 inputs (exchange traded equity prices), Level 2 inputs (interest rate futures and swap rates) and Level 3
inputs (forecasted volatilities). As changes in volatilities could have a significant impact on the overall valuations, we have
determined that these valuations fall under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. For the December 31, 2014 valuation of the ITV
Collar, we used estimated volatilities ranging from 23.8% to 27.3%. At December 31, 2014, the valuations of the Sumitomo
Collar and the Virgin Media Capped Calls were not significantly impacted by forecasted volatilities.

As further described in note 7, we have entered into various derivative instruments to manage our interest rate and foreign
currency exchange risk. The recurring fair value measurements of these derivative instruments are determined using discounted
cash flow models. Most of the inputs to these discounted cash flow models consist of, or are derived from, observable Level 2
data for substantially the full term of these derivative instruments. This observable data includes most interest rate futures and
swap rates, which are retrieved or derived from available market data. Although we may extrapolate or interpolate this data, we
do not otherwise alter this data in performing our valuations. We incorporate a credit risk valuation adjustment in our fair value
measurements to estimate the impact of both our own nonperformance risk and the nonperformance risk of our counterparties.
Our and our counterparties’ credit spreads represent our most significant Level 3 inputs, and these inputs are used to derive the
credit risk valuation adjustments with respect to our various interest rate and foreign currency derivative valuations. As we would
not expect changes in our or our counterparties’ credit spreads to have a significant impact on the valuations of these derivative
instruments, we have determined that these valuations fall under Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Our credit risk valuation
adjustments with respect to our cross-currency and interest rate swaps are quantified and further explained in note 7.

Fair value measurements are also used in connection with nonrecurring valuations performed in connection with impairment
assessments and acquisition accounting. These nonrecurring valuations include the valuation of reporting units, customer
relationship intangible assets, property and equipment and the implied value of goodwill. The valuation of private reporting units
is based at least in part on discounted cash flow analyses. With the exception of certain inputs for our weighted average cost of
capital and discount rate calculations that are derived from pricing services, the inputs used in our discounted cash flow analyses,
such as forecasts of future cash flows, are based on our assumptions. The valuation of customer relationships is primarily based
on an excess earnings methodology, which is a form of a discounted cash flow analysis. The excess earnings methodology requires
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us to estimate the specific cash flows expected from the customer relationship, considering such factors as estimated customer
life, the revenue expected to be generated over the life of the customer, contributory asset charges, and other factors. Tangible
assets are typically valued using a replacement or reproduction cost approach, considering factors such as current prices of the
same or similar equipment, the age of the equipment and economic obsolescence. The implied value of goodwill is determined
by allocating the fair value of a reporting unit to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit as if the reporting unit had been acquired
in a business combination, with the residual amount allocated to goodwill. All of our nonrecurring valuations use significant
unobservable inputs and therefore fall under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. During 2014 and 2013, we performed nonrecurring
valuations for the purpose of determining the acquisition accounting for the Ziggo Acquisition and the Virgin Media Acquisition,
respectively. We used discount rates of 8.5% and 9.0%, respectively, for our valuations of the customer relationships acquired as

a result of these acquisitions. For additional information, see note 4.

A summary of our assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis is as follows:

Fair value measurements at
December 31, 2014 using:

Quoted prices  Significant

in active other Significant
markets for observable  unobservable
December 31, identical assets inputs inputs
Description 2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in millions
Assets:
Derivative instruments:
Cross-currency and interest rate derivative contracts............. $ 1,3573  $ — $ 13573 %§ —
Equity-related derivative instruments............cceceeceenercreennene 400.2 — — 400.2
Foreign currency forward contracts............ceceeevevereneeeennenne. 2.5 — 2.5 —
ONCT oo 14 — 1.4 —
Total derivative iNStruments..........coeceeveeerueerieeneenieeneenieens 1,761.4 — 1,361.2 400.2
INVESTMENLS....outiiiieiiiiieiieee e 1,662.7 1,344.3 — 318.4
TOtal ASSELS...cvieeieeieieieieee e $ 34241 $ 1,3443 $ 13612 $ 718.6
Liabilities - derivative instruments:
Cross-currency and interest rate derivative contracts............. $ 24713 $ — § 24713 § —
Equity-related derivative instruments..........c.cceceeeeenerereennne 88.4 — — 88.4
Foreign currency forward contracts.........c..ceceeevevereneenennenne. 0.8 — 0.8 —
OFNET ..ot 0.3 — 0.3 —
Total Habilities.......coceoveeririeirinieicerece e $ 2,560.8 $ — $ 24724 3§ 88.4
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Fair value measurements
at December 31, 2013 using:

Quoted prices  Significant

in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
December 31, identical assets inputs inputs
Description 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

in millions
Assets:

Derivative instruments:

Cross-currency and interest rate derivative contracts ............ $ 7692 $ — 3 7692 $ —
Equity-related derivative instrument.............cocccceeeceveueuennnee. 430.4 — — 430.4
Foreign currency forward contracts ........c..c.ceecevvevveenennennn 2.6 — 2.6 —
ONET .. 2.0 — 2.0 —
Total derivative inStruMents .........ccceeerereeiereeneseeeeeene. 1,204.2 — 773.8 430.4
INVESTMENLS ..c.eeiiiiiiiiiiicii e 3,481.8 3,182.4 — 299.4
TOtal ASSELS ..cuvivieeiciieieieie ettt $ 4,686.0 $ 3,1824 $§ 7738 $ 729.8

Liabilities - derivative instruments: -
Cross-currency and interest rate derivative contracts ............ $ 2,9186 $ — $ 29186 $ —
Equity-related derivative instrument..........c.cccceccvevveenenennn 116.9 — — 116.9
Foreign currency forward contracts ........c..c.cocevevvevvecenennennn 20.2 — 20.2 —
ONET .. 0.8 — 0.8 —
Total Habilities. ......coveereveririeirireirerec e $ 3,056.5 § — $ 29396 $ 116.9

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
using significant unobservable, or Level 3, inputs is as follows:

Equity-related
derivative
Investments instruments Total

in millions

Balance of net assets at January 1, 2014.........ccoooviiiiiininieee e $ 2994 $ 3135 $ 612.9
Termination and other activity related to Ziggo Collar (a) ........cceevvevvervennnene — 212.5 212.5
Gains (losses) included in loss from continuing operations (b):

Losses on derivative inStruments, Net..........occeeeeverereereeneneneeeenenenieneenns — (236.3) (236.3)
Gain due to changes in fair values of certain investments, net..................... 26.1 — 26.1
Foreign currency translation adjustments, dividends and other, net................. (7.1) 22.1 15.0
Balance of net assets at December 31, 2014.........cooviiiiiiiieiiiiiieeeeeee e $ 3184 $ 311.8 $ 630.2

(a)  For additional information regarding the Ziggo Collar, see note 7.
(b)  With the exception of a $113.3 million loss that we incurred during 2014 with respect to the Ziggo Collar, substantially all

of these net losses relate to assets and liabilities of our continuing operations that we continue to carry on our consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2014.
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) Long-lived Assets

Property and Equipment, Net

The details of our property and equipment and the related accumulated depreciation are set forth below:

Estimated useful December 31,
life at
December 31, 2014 2014 2013

in millions

DiStriDULION SYSEEIMS......eevitiureierienieeetinteteienieneetese sttt sie et saeseeseenessenee 3 to 30 years $ 262865 $ 25,1932
Customer premises EQUIPIIENL .......c.veerrererreriereerenrenreeereseseeneenesseneenennenee 3 to 5 years 6,213.9 6,126.0
Support equipment, buildings and land............ccccooiiiiiiiiniiie 3 to 50 years 4,024.4 3,581.9
36,524.8 34,901.1

Accumulated dePreCiation. .......c..eeieiiriririetiie ettt sttt s (12,684.2) (10,926.2)
Total property and eqUIPMENT, NEL........co.evereeriiriririeteneneeeetee ettt sttt $ 23,8406 $ 239749

Depreciation expense of our continuing operations related to our property and equipment was $4,401.6 million, $3,499.6
million and $2,201.4 million during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Depreciation expense of our discontinued operations
related to our property and equipment was nil, $11.5 million and $12.3 million during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the amount of property and equipment, net, recorded under capital leases was $1,580.8
million and $1,877.3 million, respectively. Most of these amounts relate to assets included in our distribution systems category.
Depreciation of assets under capital leases of our continuing operations is included in depreciation and amortization in our
consolidated statements of operations.

During 2014, 2013 and 2012, we recorded non-cash increases to our property and equipment related to assets acquired under
capital leases of $127.2 million, $143.0 million and $63.1 million, respectively. In addition, during 2014, 2013 and 2012, we
recorded non-cash increases related to vendor financing arrangements of $975.3 million, $573.5 million and $246.5 million,
respectively, which exclude related VAT of $114.9 million, $46.0 million and $28.5 million, respectively, that were also financed
by our vendors under these arrangements.

Most of our property and equipment is pledged as security under our various debt instruments. For additional information,
see note 10.

In May 2012, we began offering mobile services in Chile through a combination of our own wireless network and a third-
party wireless access arrangement. During the second quarter of 2013, we began exploring strategic alternatives with respect to
VTR’s mobile operations, including alternatives that involved the use of expanded mobile virtual network operator (MVNO)
arrangements. Effective April 1, 2013, we reduced the useful lives of certain of VIR’s network equipment to reflect our then
expectation that we would enter into a new MVNO arrangement and cease commercial use of VTR’s mobile network during the
fourth quarter of 2013. In September 2013, VTR (i) completed the process of migrating its mobile traffic to a third-party wireless
network pursuant to its existing roaming agreement and (ii) ceased commercial use of its mobile network, which resulted in a
further reduction in the useful lives of the aforementioned network equipment. As aresult of these reductions in useful lives, VIR’s
mobile operations recognized aggregate incremental depreciation expense of $98.3 million during 2013. In connection with the
foregoing, we have recorded restructuring charges totaling $84.9 million during the third and fourth quarters of 2013. These
restructuring charges include the fair value of (i) the remaining payments due under certain tower and real estate operating leases
of $71.5 million and (ii) certain other required payments associated with VTR ’s mobile network. In December2013, VTR amended
its existing roaming agreement with an agreement that provides for a full MVNO relationship. For information regarding our
restructuring charges, see note 14.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we recorded a $68.7 million impairment charge to reduce the carrying amount of certain

of Ziggo’s internal-use software assets to zero. This internal-use software has no future service potential for Liberty Global as it
will not be used by our combined operations in the Netherlands.
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Goodwill

Changes in the carrying amount of our goodwill during 2014 are set forth below:

Foreign
currency
Acquisitions  translation
January 1, and related  adjustments December 31,
2014 adjustments and other 2014

in millions

European Operations Division:

UKIEEIANd ... $  9,8442 § 21§ (601.2) $  9,245.1
The Netherlands ..........ccooereeirieieeeeeeeeee e 1,260.4 7,724.3 (379.7) 8,605.0
GETIMANY ....ceveeiiieientett ettt ettt ettt eae e re b aeseeae e 3,939.4 — (482.5) 3,456.9
BeIGIUM ..ot 2,255.1 — (276.2) 1,978.9
Switzerland/AUSHIIa. ......co.oeerueuieinieinecre e 4,031.1 2.3 (441.5) 3,591.9
Total Western EUrOpe.......cccevverienierienieniesieeesee e 21,330.2 7,728.7 (2,181.1) 26,877.8
Central and Eastern EUrope ..........c.cocovecieinenernincnencnceen, 1,520.1 8.3 (226.3) 1,302.1
Total European Operations DivisSion..........ccccecevereeerenieeenennes 22,850.3 7,737.0 (2,407.4) 28,179.9
ChILE .o 508.5 — (68.2) 440.3
Corporate and Other ..........coccvuecirirenieiinieneineneeeeeeeee e 390.0 — (8.6) 3814
TOTAL et $ 23,7488 $§ 7,737.0 § (2,484.2) $ 29,001.6

Based on the results of our October 1, 2014 goodwill impairment test, a hypothetical decline of 20% or more in the fair value
of one of our reporting units, Liberty Puerto Rico, could result in the need to record a goodwill impairment charge. At December 31,
2014, the goodwill associated with the Liberty Puerto Rico reporting unit, which is included in our corporate and other category,
was $347.0 million. If, among other factors, (i) our equity values were to decline significantly or (ii) the adverse impacts of
economic, competitive, regulatory or other factors were to cause our results of operations or cash flows to be worse than anticipated,
we could conclude in future periods that impairment charges are required in order to reduce the carrying values of our goodwill
and, to a lesser extent, other long-lived assets. Any such impairment charges could be significant.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013 and based on exchange rates as of those dates, the accumulated goodwill impairments of
our continuing operations were $209.7 million and $239.6 million, respectively. These amounts represent accumulated impairments
related to our broadband communications operations in Romania, which operations are included within the European Operations
Division’s Central and Eastern Europe segment.
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Changes in the carrying amount of our goodwill during 2013 are set forth below:

Reclassification Foreign
of Chellomedia currency
Acquisitions  Disposal Group translation
January 1, and related to discontinued adjustments December 31,
2013 adjustments operations and other 2013

in millions

European Operations Division:

UK /reland .....o.eceveeeeeenienenincineinecenccneeneees $ 2355 $ 90008 $ — 3 6079 $ 9,844.2
The Netherlands..........cccceceevenininienininicnennenn 1,206.2 — — 54.2 1,260.4
GEIMANY ....ovvvvinieieiiieieereeeeetee et 3,770.3 — — 169.1 3,939.4
Belgium......ccooccevieieinieiiiiccceceeeee 2,158.3 — — 96.8 2,255.1
Switzerland/Austria .........ccceeeeieieniereeieeeieens 3,903.9 0.6 — 126.6 4,031.1
Total Western Europe..........ocoeevevevienveveeeneene 11,274.2 9,001.4 — 1,054.6 21,330.2
Central and Eastern Europe ..........cccocveveveveveennnne 1,509.5 — — 10.6 1,520.1
Total European Operations Division........... 12,783.7 9,001.4 — 1,065.2 22,850.3

ChILE .. 558.0 — — (49.5) 508.5
Corporate and other..........ccccocevenininiencncncneene. 535.9 77.2 (223.4) 0.3 390.0
Total . $138776 § 9,078.6 $ (223.4) $ 1,016.0 $ 23,7488

Intangible Assets Subject to Amortization, Net

The details of our intangible assets subject to amortization are set forth below:

Estimated December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
useful life at Gross Net Gross Net
December 31, carrying  Accumulated carrying carrying  Accumulated carrying
2014 amount amortization amount amount amortization amount

in millions

Customer relationships ....... 4to15years $12,1425 § (3,056.3) $ 9,0862 $ 81167 $ (2,458.4) $ 5,658.3
Other.....ccooeeveeeiieieeieeieeee 2 to 15 years 235.4 (131.8) 103.6 288.1 (151.0) 137.1
TOtal et $12,3779 § (3,188.1) $ 9,189.8 $ 84048 $ (2,609.4) $§ 5,795.4

In December 2013, Telenet’s management determined that it would no longer be able to utilize its spectrum rights as a result
of the conclusion of negotiations with network operators in Belgium and the absence of regulatory alternatives. This resulted in
a triggering event with respect to the intangible asset related to Telenet’s spectrum rights and, after performing an impairment
analysis, Telenet recorded an impairment charge of $73.0 million during the fourth quarter of 2013 to reduce the carrying amount
of this intangible asset to zero.
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Amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives of our continuing operations was $1,098.5 million, $776.8 million
and $460.1 million during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives of our
discontinued operations was nil, $17.6 million and $17.3 million during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Based on the amortizable
intangible asset balances of our continuing operations at December 31, 2014, we expect that amortization expense will be as
follows for the next five years and thereafter. The U.S. dollar equivalents of such amortization expense amounts as of December 31,
2014 are presented below (in millions):

205 et h et bkt b s h e bt h ekt b st e b bt a e e bt b st b e bt he bt b a bbb et eh et et eb e b e $ 1,406.8
2016 .ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt b e sttt b e st et e et e b esteR e s e b es s ek e b es b eR e R e s s eR b ek e b esbeseeRe s ent et e s enbese s e eaentes e s ensessesenne 1,360.6
2017 ettt ettt ettt b sttt seatee e et e b enteR e s et entes et enteRe R et enteR e b enseReeReesentes et ensese s e eseneeneesenseneesenne 1,226.4
2018 ettt ettt ettt ettt ea et et eateRe s et st et ek enteRe s et entes e b enteReeR et enteR et eateneeReesentes et e s eseeReeseneeneesenseneenenne 1,089.2
2010 ettt h ettt h et et a e ek ek en e e Rt ek et en e e Rtk ea s eRe oA e s en e Rt A eateReeReesen e eh e ket eneeReeaeneene et enseneeaenen 1,086.8
TRETEATEET ..ottt ettt et et et et e e s te e bt et e e be e seesbeenseesseesseenseenseenseenseenseenseensaensaenseenseenseenseensenntes 3,020.0

] | SRS STURPRUSRRIN $ 9,189.8

Other Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets

At December 31,2014 and 2013, franchise rights and other indefinite-lived intangible assets aggregating $557.0 million and
$470.2 million, respectively, were included in intangible assets not subject to amortization in our consolidated balance sheets.
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10) Debt and Capital Lease Obligations

The U.S. dollar equivalents of the components of our consolidated debt and capital lease obligations are as follows:

December 31, 2014

Weighted

Unused borrowing

i Estimated fair value (c Carrying value (d
e T T
rate (a) currency  equivalent 2014 2013 2014 2013
in millions
Debt:
VM Notes......ccoovevreereerrennennn. 5.83% — 3 — 84610 $ 9,1887 § 8,060.7 $ 9,150.1
VM Credit Facility............... 3.78% £  660.0 1,028.4 4,734.9 4,388.9 4,804.0 4,352.8
VM Convertible
NOteS (€) .eeveervrerrereereeane 6.50% — — 178.7 164.1 56.8 57.5
UPC Broadband Holding
Bank Facility .................... 3.56% € 1,046.2 1,266.0 3,156.4 5,717.8 3,179.2 5,671.4
UPC Holding Senior
NOLES .o 7.16% — — 2,603.6 3,297.4 2,391.6 3,099.2
UPCB SPE Notes................. 6.88% — — 4,279.0 4,536.5 4,009.4 4,219.5
Unitymedia KabelBW
NOLES .o 5.75% — — 7,869.3 8,058.2 7,400.9 7,651.9
Unitymedia KabelBW
Faciltens oo 263% € 2200 2662 3194 — 338.8 —
Ziggo Credit Facility............ 3.63% € 650.0 786.5 4,663.0 — 4,710.8 —
Ziggo NOtes .....cccveveeveennnnen. 6.82% — — 1,082.3 — 1,077.0 —
Telenet SPE Notes............... 5.93% — — 2,450.4 2,916.5 2,299.0 2,759.2
Telenet Credit Facility ......... 3.44% € 3229 390.8 1,633.4 1,956.9 1,638.6 1,936.9
VTR Finance Senior
Secured Notes .................. 6.88% — — 1,439.4 — 1,400.0 —
Sumitomo Collar Loan (f) ... 1.88% — — 818.0 939.3 787.7 894.3
Liberty Puerto Rico Bank
Facility ....cccoeeveceriienne, 520% $ 40.0 40.0 666.2 666.2 672.0 665.0
ITV Collar Loan (f) ............. 1.73% — — 678.2 — 667.0 —
Vendor financing (g)............ 3.45% — — 946.4 603.1 946.4 603.1
Other (h)....coccveveiiiiiieen, 9.28% (1) 196.2 171.5 1,795.4 171.5 1,795.1
Total debt............c.c........ 5.13% $ 39741 $ 46,151.1 § 44229.0 44,6114 42,856.0
Capital lease obligations:
Unitymedia KabeIBW (1) ...cvecuiiiiiiiieiieieeieieitcete ettt ettt sttt v e ve et sa s saeeteene s e saesaeensens 810.1 952.0
TEIENET (K)...veeuiiiicieceeetet ettt ettt ettt ettt ese e s e b e e teeaeessesbesbeeaeesaesse b e eseeseensenbeereereeneas 4134 451.2
VITZIN MEAIA.....cviviceicieieetceeeet ettt ettt ettt et e b e teeseessesbesseeseessessesseeseeseessessanseeseeneas 2553 373.5
Other SUDSIAIATICS ......eeuvevietieiieieieete ettt ettt et et e ese et essesbeeseeseessessesseessessessenseeseeseensensensenseeneas 68.8 71.6
Total capital 1ease ODlIZAtIONS..........ccverierieriieiieierieee ettt sre st esae b e sseesaeaessesseeneens 1,547.6 1,848.3
Total debt and capital 1ease ObIIZAtIONS..........cceruirieieiieeeieieee et eeeens 46,159.0 44,704.3
CUITENE MALUTTEIES ..vevviiivieiieieeeieeeteeteeteete et e ebeeaeesveesbeesbeesseesseesseesseasseesseesseesseasseesseesseesseessensseessens (1,550.9) (1,023.4)
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations ...........cceeevievuiecieeciieiieieeieee e § 44,608.1 § 43,6809
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(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(@

(h)

Represents the weighted average interest rate in effect at December 31, 2014 for all borrowings outstanding pursuant to
each debt instrument, including any applicable margin. The interest rates presented represent stated rates and do not include
the impact of our interest rate derivative instruments, deferred financing costs, original issue premiums or discounts or
commitment fees, all of which affect our overall cost of borrowing. Including the effects of derivative instruments, original
issue premiums and discounts and commitment fees, but excluding the impact of financing costs, our weighted average
interest rate on our aggregate variable- and fixed-rate indebtedness was 6.0% at December 31, 2014. For information
concerning our derivative instruments, see note 7.

Unused borrowing capacity represents the maximum availability under the applicable facility at December 31,2014 without
regard to covenant compliance calculations or other conditions precedent to borrowing. At December 31, 2014, the full
amount of unused borrowing capacity was available to be borrowed under each of the respective subsidiary facilities based
on the applicable leverage and other financial covenants, except as noted below. At December 31, 2014, our availability
under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility and the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities (each as defined
and described below) was limited to €906.7 million ($1,097.2 million) and €15.1 million ($18.3 million), respectively.
When the relevant December 31, 2014 compliance reporting requirements were completed and assuming no changes from
December 31,2014 borrowing levels, our availability under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility and the Unitymedia
KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities was limited to €889.1 million ($1,075.9 million) and €123.7 million ($149.7 million),
respectively. In addition to the limitations noted above, the debt instruments of our subsidiaries contain restricted payment
tests that limit the amount that can be loaned or distributed to other Liberty Global subsidiaries and ultimately to Liberty
Global. At December 31, 2014, these restrictions did not impact our ability to access the liquidity of our subsidiaries to
satisfy our corporate liquidity needs beyond what is described above, except that the availability to be loaned or distributed
by Virgin Media and Ziggo was limited to £508.8 million ($792.8 million) and €37.1 million ($44.9 million), respectively.
When the relevant December 31, 2014 compliance reporting requirements were completed and assuming no changes from
December 31, 2014 borrowing levels, the availability of Virgin Media and Ziggo was limited to £525.7 million ($819.1
million) and €11.4 million ($13.8 million), respectively. For information concerning transactions completed subsequent to
December 31, 2014 that could have an impact on unused borrowing capacity, see note 20.

The estimated fair values of our debt instruments were determined using the average of applicable bid and ask prices (mostly
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy) or, when quoted market prices are unavailable or not considered indicative of fair value,
discounted cash flow models (mostly Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy). The discount rates used in the cash flow models
are based on the market interest rates and estimated credit spreads of the applicable entity, to the extent available, and other
relevant factors. For additional information concerning fair value hierarchies, see note 8.

Amounts include the impact of premiums and discounts, where applicable.

The amount reported in the estimated fair value column for the VM Convertible Notes (as defined and described below)
represents the estimated fair value of the remaining VM Convertible Notes outstanding as of December 31,2014, including
both the debt and equity components.

For information regarding the Sumitomo Collar Loan and the ITV Collar Loan, see note 7.

Represents amounts owed pursuant to interest-bearing vendor financing arrangements that are used to finance certain of
our property and equipment additions. These obligations are generally due within one year. At December 31, 2014 and
2013, the amounts owed pursuant to these arrangements include $101.7 million and $47.3 million, respectively, of VAT that
was paid on our behalf by the vendor. Repayments of vendor financing obligations are included in repayments and
repurchases of debt and capital lease obligations in our consolidated statements of cash flows.

The December 31, 2013 amounts include (i) outstanding borrowings of $113.1 million under VTR’s then-existing CLP 60.0
billion ($98.9 million) term loan bank facility, (ii) $852.6 million related to the Ziggo Collar Loan and (iii) $634.3 million
related to the Ziggo Margin Loan. In January 2014, all outstanding amounts under VTR’s term loan bank facility were
repaid and this facility was cancelled. In connection with this transaction, we recognized a loss on debt modification,
extinguishment and conversion, net, of $2.0 million related to the write-off of deferred financing costs. During the first
quarter of 2014, we used existing cash to repay the full amount of the Ziggo Margin Loan that was secured by a portion of
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our investment in Ziggo. In connection with this transaction, we recognized a loss on debt modification, extinguishment
and conversion, net, of $2.3 million related to the write-off of deferred financing costs. Upon completion of the Ziggo
Acquisition, the Ziggo Collar was terminated and the Ziggo Collar Loan was settled. In connection with this transaction,
we recognized a loss on debt modification, extinguishment and conversion, net, of $4.0 million related to the payment of
redemption premium. For information regarding our investment in Ziggo, see note 6.

(i)  Unused borrowing capacity relates to the senior secured revolving credit facility of entities within VTR, which includes a
$160.0 million U.S. dollar facility (the VTR Dollar Credit Facility) and a CLP 22.0 billion ($36.2 million) Chilean peso
facility (the VTR CLP Credit Facility and, together with the VTR Dollar Credit Facility, the VTR Credit Facility), each of
which were undrawn at December 31, 2014.

(j)  Primarily represents Unitymedia Kabe]IBW’s obligations under duct network lease agreements with Telekom Deutschland
GmbH (Deutsche Telekom), an operating subsidiary of Deutsche Telekom AG, as the lessor. The original contracts were
concluded in 2000 and 2001 and have indefinite terms, subject to certain mandatory statutory termination rights for either
party after a term of 30 years. With certain limited exceptions, the lessor generally is not entitled to terminate these leases.
For information regarding litigation involving these duct network lease agreements, see note 17.

(k) At December 31, 2014 and 2013, Telenet’s capital lease obligations included €328.6 million ($397.6 million) and €309.0
million ($373.9 million), respectively, associated with Telenet’s lease of the broadband communications network of the four
associations of municipalities in Belgium, which we refer to as the pure intercommunalues or the “PICs.” All capital
expenditures associated with the PICs network are initiated by Telenet, but are executed and financed by the PICs through
additions to this lease that are repaid over a 15-year term. These amounts do not include Telenet’s commitment related to
certain operating costs associated with the PICs network. For additional information regarding this commitment, see note
17.

VM Notes

On March 28, 2014, Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC (Virgin Media Secured Finance), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Virgin Media, issued (i) $425.0 million principal amount of 5.5% senior secured notes due January 15, 2025 (the 2025 VM 5.5%
Dollar Senior Secured Notes), (ii) £430.0 million ($670.0 million) principal amount of 5.5% senior secured notes due January 15,
2025 (the 2025 VM 5.5% Sterling Senior Secured Notes and, together with the 2025 VM 5.5% Dollar Senior Secured Notes, the
2025 VM Senior Secured Notes) and (iii) £225.0 million ($350.6 million) principal amount of 6.25% senior secured notes due
March 28, 2029 (the Original 2029 VM Senior Secured Notes). In April 2014, the net proceeds from the 2025 VM Senior Secured
Notes and the Original 2029 VM Senior Secured Notes were used to redeem all of the £875.0 million ($1,363.4 million) principal
amount of 7.0% senior secured notes due 2018 (the 2018 VM Sterling Senior Secured Notes). In connection with these transactions,
we recognized a gain on debt modification, extinguishment and conversion, net, of $5.2 million, which includes (i) the write-off
of $61.8 million of unamortized premium, (ii) the payment of $51.3 million of redemption premium and (iii) the write-off of $5.3
million of deferred financing costs.

In April 2014, Virgin Media Secured Finance issued £175.0 million ($272.7 million) principal amount of 6.25% senior secured
notes due March 28, 2029 (the Additional 2029 VM Senior Secured Notes and, together with the Original 2029 VM Senior Secured
Notes, the 2029 VM Senior Secured Notes) at an issue price of 101.75%. The net proceeds from the Additional 2029 VM Senior
Secured Notes, together with the proceeds from VM Facilities D and E (as defined and described below), were used to fully redeem
the $1.0 billion principal amount of 6.5% senior secured notes due 2018 (the 2018 VM Dollar Senior Secured Notes). In connection
with this transaction, we recognized a loss on debt modification, extinguishment and conversion, net, of $5.4 million, which
includes (i) the write-off of $33.9 million of unamortized premium, (ii) the payment of $32.4 million of redemption premium and
(iii) the write-off of $6.9 million of deferred financing costs.

On October 7, 2014, Virgin Media Finance PLC (Virgin Media Finance), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Virgin Media, issued
(i) £300.0 million ($467.4 million) principal amount of 6.375% senior notes due October 15, 2024 (the 2024 VM Sterling Senior
Notes) and (ii) $500.0 million principal amount of 6.0% senior notes due October 15, 2024 (the 2024 VM Dollar Senior Notes
and, together with the 2024 VM Sterling Senior Notes, the 2024 VM Senior Notes). On October 24, 2014, the net proceeds from
the 2024 VM Senior Notes were used to fully redeem (i) the $507.1 million principal amount of 8.375% senior notes due 2019
(the 2019 VM Dollar Senior Notes) and (ii) the £253.5 million ($395.0 million) principal amount of 8.875% senior notes due 2019
(the 2019 VM Sterling Senior Notes and, together with the 2019 VM Dollar Senior Notes, the 2019 VM Senior Notes). In connection
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with these transactions, we recognized a gain on debt modification, extinguishment and conversion, net, of $32.5 million, which
includes (i) the write-off of $75.2 million of unamortized premium, (ii) the payment of $39.3 million of redemption premium and
(iii) the write-off of $3.4 million of deferred financing costs.

The details of the outstanding senior notes of Virgin Media as of December 31, 2014 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding principal
amount
. Interest Borrowing US.$ Estimated Carrying
VM Notes Maturity rate currency  equivalent  fair value  value (a)

in millions

2022 VM Senior Notes:

2022 VM Dollar Senior Notes............. February 15,2022 4.875% $ 1187 § 1187 $ 1139 §$ 119.6

2022 VM Dollar Senior Notes............. February 15,2022 5.250% $ 95.0 95.0 90.5 95.8

2022 VM Sterling Senior Notes .......... February 15,2022 5.125% £ 44.1 68.7 69.7 69.3
2023 VM Senior Notes:

2023 VM Dollar Senior Notes............. April 15,2023 6.375% §  530.0 530.0 555.8 530.0

2023 VM Sterling Senior Notes .......... April 15,2023 7.000% £ 250.0 389.5 425.1 389.5
2024 VM Senior Notes:

2024 VM Dollar Senior Notes............. October 15,2024  6.000% $  500.0 500.0 525.0 500.0

2024 VM Sterling Senior Notes .......... October 15,2024 6.375% £  300.0 467.4 504.8 467.4

January 2021 VM Senior Secured Notes:
January 2021 VM Sterling Senior

Secured NOtES .......vurereereerrerrerrennns January 15,2021 5.500% £  628.4 979.1 1,055.0 992.2
January 2021 VM Dollar Senior
Secured NOLES ...vvevreeeeeeeeeeesens January 15,2021  5250% § 4479 447.9 463.0 460.1

April 2021 VM Senior Secured Notes:
April 2021 VM Sterling Senior

Secured NOES .......cvoveveerieeeeirereneenns April 15, 2021 6.000% £ 1,100.0 1,713.9 1,810.3 1,713.9
April 2021 VM Dollar Senior Secured
NOLES .o April 15,2021 5.375% § 1,000.0 1,000.0 1,033.1 1,000.0
2025 VM Senior Secured Notes:
2025 VM 5.5% Sterling Senior
Secured NOtES .......cvevevrereerererererennes January 15,2025  5.500% £  430.0 670.0 694.7 670.0
2025 VM 5.5% Dollar Senior Secured
NOLES vt e et eeenenes January 15,2025  5.500% $ 425.0 425.0 440.1 425.0
2029 VM Sterling Senior Secured
NOLES .ottt March 28, 2029 6.250% £  400.0 623.2 675.0 627.9

TOUAL v e e e eeeeeseeeee e e e e e eeesseeeeese s e eeeese e e e s e eeeeseee e $ 80284 $ 84610 $ 8060.7

(a)  Amounts include the impact of premiums, where applicable, including amounts recorded in connection with the acquisition
accounting for the Virgin Media Acquisition.

The 2022 VM Senior Notes, the 2023 VM Senior Notes and the 2024 VM Senior Notes were issued by Virgin Media Finance
and are collectively referred to as the “VM Senior Notes.” The January 2021 VM Senior Secured Notes, the April 2021 VM Senior
Secured Notes, the 2025 VM Senior Secured Notes and the 2029 VM Senior Secured Notes were issued by Virgin Media Secured
Finance and are collectively referred to as the “VM Senior Secured Notes” and, together with the VM Senior Notes, the VM Notes).

The VM Senior Notes are unsecured senior obligations of Virgin Media Finance that rank equally with all of the existing and
future senior debt of Virgin Media Finance and are senior to all existing and future subordinated debt of Virgin Media Finance.
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The VM Senior Notes are guaranteed on a senior basis by Virgin Media and certain subsidiaries of Virgin Media, and on a senior
subordinated basis by VMIH and Virgin Media Investments Limited (VMIL).

The VM Senior Secured Notes are senior obligations of Virgin Media Secured Finance that rank equally with all of the existing
and future senior debt of Virgin Media Secured Finance and are senior to all existing and future subordinated debt of Virgin Media
Secured Finance. The VM Senior Secured Notes are guaranteed on a senior basis by Virgin Media and certain subsidiaries of
Virgin Media (the VM Senior Secured Guarantors), and are secured by liens on substantially all of the assets of Virgin Media
Secured Finance and the VM Senior Secured Guarantors (except for Virgin Media).

The VM Notes contain certain customary incurrence-based covenants. For example, the ability to raise certain additional
debt and make certain distributions or loans to other subsidiaries of Liberty Global is subject to a consolidated gross leverage ratio
test (or a consolidated net leverage ratio test with respect to the 2024 VM Senior Notes, the 2025 VM Senior Secured Notes and
the 2029 VM Senior Secured Notes), in each case, as specified in the applicable indenture. In addition, the VM Notes provide
that any failure to pay principal prior to expiration of any applicable grace period, or any acceleration with respect to other
indebtedness of £50.0 million ($77.9 million) (or £75.0 million ($116.9 million) with respect to the 2024 VM Senior Notes, the
2025 VM Senior Secured Notes and the 2029 VM Senior Secured Notes) or more in the aggregate of Virgin Media and/or certain
of its subsidiaries (as specified under the applicable indenture), is an event of default under the VM Notes.

Subject to the circumstances described below, the VM Notes are non-callable prior to the applicable call date as presented in
the below table. At any time prior to the respective call date, Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin Media Finance may redeem
some or all of the applicable notes by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining scheduled
interest payments to the applicable call date using the discount rate (as specified in the applicable indenture) as of the redemption
date plus 50 basis points (25 basis points in the case of the January 2021 VM Senior Secured Notes).

VM Notes Call Date
2022 VM SENIOT INOTES .....cvieiiiiiiiciiieieere ettt nees (a)

2023 VM SENIOT INOES ..ottt enes April 15,2018
2024 VIM SENIOT INOLES ..e.uvieivieiieieeieeieesttesteesteeteesteesseesseesseesseesseesseesseesseesseesseesseenseesssesseesseesseessesssessseesseenses October 15,2019
January 2021 VM Senior Secured NOES .........cceviiiiiiiiiieieicccc s (a)

April 2021 VM Senior SECUTEd INOTES ....cc.eeuiriirtiriieienieitieitet ettt ettt ettt st sttt et sbesbeeaeesaesbesbeeaeenee April 15,2017
2025 VM Senior Secured NOTES .........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicciiin s January 15, 2019
2029 VM Senior Secured NOES .........cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciii s January 15, 2021

(@)  The 2022 VM Senior Notes and the January 2021 VM Senior Secured Notes are non-callable. At any time prior to maturity,
some or all of these notes may be redeemed by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining
scheduled interest payments to February 15, 2022 in the case of the 2022 VM Senior Notes or January 15, 2021 in the case
of the January 2021 VM Senior Secured Notes.
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Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin Media Finance (as applicable) may redeem some or all of the April 2021 VM Senior
Secured Notes, the 2023 VM Senior Notes, the 2024 VM Senior Notes, the 2025 VM Senior Secured Notes or the 2029 VM Senior
Secured Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid
interest and additional amounts (as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed
during the twelve-month period commencing on October 15, in the case of the 2024 VM Senior Notes, or April 15, in the case of
the April 2021 VM Senior Secured Notes and the 2023 VM Senior Notes and January 15, in the case of the 2025 VM Senior
Secured Notes and the 2029 VM Senior Secured Notes of the years set forth below:

Redemption price

April 2021 April 2021
VM Dollar VM Sterling 2023 VM 2023 VM 2024 VM 2024 VM 2025 VM 2029 VM

Senior Senior Dollar Sterling Dollar Sterling Senior Senior

Secured Secured Senior Senior Senior Senior Secured Secured
Year Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes
2015 e N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2016 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2017 i 102.688% 103.000% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2018 i 101.344% 101.500% 103.188%  103.500% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2019 . 100.000% 100.000% 102.125% 102.333%  103.000%  103.188%  102.750% N.A.
2020 ... 100.000% 100.000% 101.063% 101.667%  102.000%  102.125%  101.833% N.A.
2021 o N.A. N.A. 100.000%  100.000%  101.000% 101.063%  100.000%  103.125%
2022 i N.A. N.A. 100.000%  100.000%  100.000% 100.000%  100.000%  102.083%
2023 i N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 100.000%  100.000%  100.000% 101.042%
2024 and

thereafter........... N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 100.000%  100.000%

If VMIH or Virgin Media Finance (as applicable) or the restricted subsidiaries (as specified in the applicable indenture) sell
certain assets, Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin Media Finance must offer to repurchase the relevant VM Notes at par, or
if Virgin Media Communications Limited (Virgin Media Communications), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Virgin Media, or certain
of'its subsidiaries experience changes in control (as specified in the applicable indenture), Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin
Media Finance (as applicable) must offer to repurchase all of the relevant VM Notes at a redemption price of 101%.

For information regarding certain senior notes issued by Virgin Media Secured Finance and Virgin Media Finance subsequent
to December 31, 2014, see note 20.

VM Credit Facility

On June 7, 2013, VMIH, together with certain other subsidiaries of Virgin Media as borrowers and guarantors (the Virgin
Media Credit Facility Borrowers), entered into a new senior secured credit facility agreement, as amended and restated on June
14, 2013 (the VM Credit Facility), pursuant to which the lenders thereunder agreed to provide the borrowers with (i) a £375.0
million ($584.3 million) term loan (VM Facility A), (ii) a $2,755.0 million term loan (VM Facility B), (iii) a £600.0 million ($934.9
million) term loan (VM Facility C) and (iv) a £660.0 million ($1,028.4 million) revolving credit facility (the VM Revolving
Facility). With the exception of the VM Revolving Facility, all available amounts were borrowed under the VM Credit Facility
in June 2013.

In April 2014, Virgin Media entered into (a) a new £100.0 million ($155.8 million) term loan (VM Facility D) and (b) a new
£849.4 million ($1,323.5 million) term loan (VM Facility E), each under the VM Credit Facility. In connection with these
transactions, (1) certain lenders under the then-existing VM Facility C effectively rolled £500.4 million ($779.7 million) of their
drawn commitments under VM Facility C to VM Facilities D and E and (2) the remaining outstanding balance of VM Facility C
was repaid with existing liquidity.

The VM Credit Facility requires that certain of the Virgin Media Credit Facility Borrowers that generate not less than 80%
of such group’s EBITDA (as specified in the VM Credit Facility) in any financial year, guarantee the payment of all sums payable
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under the VM Credit Facility and such group members are required to grant first-ranking security over all or substantially all of
their assets to secure the payment of all sums payable. In addition, the holding company of each borrower must give a share pledge
over its shares in such borrower.

In addition to mandatory prepayments which must be made for certain disposal proceeds (subject to certain de minimis
thresholds), the lenders may cancel their commitments and declare the loans due and payable after 30 business days following the
occurrence of a change of control in respect of VMIH, subject to certain exceptions.

The VM Credit Facility contains certain customary events of default, the occurrence of which, subject to certain exceptions
and materiality qualifications, would allow the lenders to (i) cancel the total commitments, (ii) accelerate all outstanding loans
and terminate their commitments thereunder and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the loans be payable on demand. The VM Credit
Facility contains certain representations and warranties customary for facilities of this type, which are subject to exceptions, baskets
and materiality qualifications.

The VM Credit Facility restricts the ability of the Virgin Media Credit Facility Borrowers and certain of their subsidiaries to,
among other things, (i) incur or guarantee certain financial indebtedness, (ii) make certain disposals and acquisitions and (iii) create
certain security interests over their assets, in each case, subject to carve-outs from such limitations.

The VM Credit Facility requires the borrowers to observe certain affirmative undertakings or covenants, which covenants are
subject to materiality and other customary and agreed exceptions. In addition, the VM Credit Facility also requires compliance
with various financial covenants such as senior net debt to annualized EBITDA and total net debt to annualized EBITDA, each as
specified in the VM Credit Facility.

In addition to customary default provisions, the VM Credit Facility provides that any event of default with respect to
indebtedness of £50.0 million ($77.9 million) or more in the aggregate of Virgin Media Finance and its subsidiaries is an event of
default under the VM Credit Facility.

The VM Credit Facility permits the Virgin Media Credit Facility Borrowers and certain of their subsidiaries to make certain
distributions and restricted payments to its parent company (and indirectly to Liberty Global) through loans, advances or dividends

subject to compliance with applicable covenants.

The details of our borrowings under the VM Credit Facility as of December 31, 2014 are summarized in the following table:

Facility amount Unused
(in borrowing borrowing Carrying
Facility Maturity Interest rate currency) capacity value (a)

in millions

A e June 7, 2019 LIBOR +3.25% £ 3750 $ — $ 5843
B June 7, 2020 LIBOR + 2.75% (b) $ 2,755.0 — 2,744.0
Do June 30, 2022 LIBOR + 3.25% (b) £ 100.0 — 155.4
E oo June 30, 2023 LIBOR + 3.50% (b) £ 849.4 — 1,320.3
VM Revolving Facility (c)....... June 7, 2019 LIBOR +3.25% £ 660.0 1,028.4 —

TOTAL ..ttt st $§ 1,0284 $ 4,804.0

(a)  The carrying values of VM Facilities B, D and E include the impact of discounts.
(b) VM Facilities B, D and E each have a LIBOR floor of 0.75%.

C € cevolvin acilit as a fee on unused commitments o .J /0 PEer year.
(¢)  The VM Revolving Facility has a . d i f1.3% per y
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VM Convertible Notes

In April 2008, Virgin Media issued $1.0 billion principal amount of 6.50% convertible senior notes (the VM Convertible
Notes), pursuant to an indenture (as supplemented, the VM Convertible Notes Indenture). The VM Convertible Notes mature on
November 15, 2016, unless the VM Convertible Notes are exchanged or repurchased prior thereto pursuant to the terms of the
VM Convertible Notes Indenture.

As aresult of the application of acquisition accounting in connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition, the $2,716.8 million
estimated fair value of the VM Convertible Notes at June 7, 2013 was allocated between the respective debt and equity components.
The portion allocated to the debt component of $1,056.8 million was measured based on the estimated fair value of a debt instrument
that has the same terms as the VM Convertible Notes without the conversion feature. The amount allocated to the debt component
resulted in a premium to the principal amount of the VM Convertible Notes. The $1,660.0 million portion allocated to the equity
component was recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital in our consolidated statement of equity.

The VM Convertible Notes are exchangeable under certain conditions for (subject to further adjustment as specified in the
VM Convertible Notes Indenture and subject to Virgin Media’s right to settle in cash or a combination of Liberty Global ordinary
shares and cash) 13.4339 of our Class A ordinary shares, 33.4963 of our Class C ordinary shares and $910.51 in cash (without
interest) for each $1,000 in principal amount of VM Convertible Notes exchanged. The circumstances under which the VM
Convertible Notes are exchangeable are more fully described in the VM Convertible Notes Indenture, including, for example,
based on the relationship of the value of the Virgin Media Merger Consideration to the conversion price of the VM Convertible
Notes. Based on the trading prices of our Class A and Class C ordinary shares during a specified period, as provided for in the
VM Convertible Notes Indenture, the VM Convertible Notes are currently exchangeable.

During the 2013 period following the Virgin Media Acquisition, an aggregate of $944.2 million principal amount of VM
Convertible Notes had been exchanged following the Virgin Media Acquisition for 13.1 million Class A and 9.8 million Class C
ordinary shares and $885.1 million of cash. The difference between the cash portion of the exchange consideration and the aggregate
$998.8 million fair value of the exchanged VM Convertible Notes on the exchange dates resulted in a net increase to equity of
$113.7 million. No gain or loss on extinguishment was recorded for these exchanges as the debt component of the VM Convertible
Notes was measured at fair value shortly before the exchanges pursuant to the application of acquisition accounting in connection
with the Virgin Media Acquisition. After giving effect to all exchanges completed through December 31, 2014, the remaining
principal amount outstanding under the VM Convertible Notes was $54.8 million.

The VM Convertible Notes are senior unsecured obligations of Virgin Media that rank equally in right of payment with all of
Virgin Media’s existing and future senior and unsecured indebtedness and rank senior in right to all of Virgin Media’s existing and
future subordinated indebtedness. The VM Convertible Notes are effectively subordinated to all existing and future indebtedness
and other obligations of Virgin Media’s subsidiaries. The VM Convertible Notes Indenture does not contain any financial or
restrictive covenants. The VM Convertible Notes are non-callable.

UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility

The UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility, as amended from time to time, is the senior secured credit facility of UPC
Broadband Holding, our wholly-owned subsidiary. The security package for the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility includes
a pledge over the shares of UPC Broadband Holding and the shares of certain of UPC Broadband Holding’s majority-owned
operating companies. The UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility is also guaranteed by UPC Holding B.V. (UPC Holding), the
immediate parent of UPC Broadband Holding, and is senior to other long-term debt obligations of UPC Broadband Holding and
UPC Holding. The agreement governing the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility contains covenants that limit, among other
things, UPC Broadband Holding’s ability to merge with or into another company, acquire other companies, incur additional debt,
dispose of assets, make distributions or pay dividends, provide loans and guarantees and enter into hedging agreements. In addition
to customary default provisions, including defaults on other indebtedness of UPC Broadband Holding and its subsidiaries, the
UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility provides that any event of default with respect to indebtedness of (i) €50.0 million ($60.5
million) or more in the aggregate of (a) Liberty Global Europe LLC (the indirect parent of Liberty Global Europe Holding BV,
Liberty Global Europe), (b) any other company of which UPC Broadband Holding is a subsidiary and which is a subsidiary
of Liberty Global Europe and (c) UPC Holding I BV (a subsidiary of UPC Holding) and (ii) €15.0 million ($18.2 million) or more
in the aggregate of any member of the UPC Broadband Holding borrower group, is an event of default under the UPC Broadband
Holding Bank Facility.
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The UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility permits UPC Broadband Holding to transfer funds to its parent company (and
indirectly to Liberty Global) through loans, advances or dividends provided that UPC Broadband Holding maintains compliance
with applicable covenants. If a change of control occurs, as specified in the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility, the facility
agent may (if required by the majority lenders) cancel each facility and declare all outstanding amounts immediately due and
payable. The UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility requires compliance with various financial covenants such as: (i) senior debt
(after deducting cash and cash equivalent investments) to annualized EBITDA, (ii) EBITDA to total cash interest, (iii) EBITDA
to senior debt service, (iv) EBITDA to senior interest and (v) total debt (after deducting cash and cash equivalent investments) to
annualized EBITDA, each term as specified in the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility.

The covenant in the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility relating to disposals of assets includes a basket for permitted
disposals of assets, the annualized EBITDA of which does not exceed a certain percentage of the annualized EBITDA of the UPC
Broadband Holding borrower group, each term as specified in the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility. The UPC Broadband
Holding Bank Facility includes a recrediting mechanism, in relation to the permitted disposals basket, based on the proportion of
net sales proceeds that are (i) used to prepay facilities and (ii) reinvested in the borrower group.

The UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility includes a mandatory prepayment requirement of four times annualized EBITDA
of certain disposed assets. The prepayment amount may be allocated to one or more of the facilities at UPC Broadband Holding’s
discretion and then applied to the loans under the relevant facility on a pro rata basis, as specified in the UPC Broadband Holding
Bank Facility. A prepayment may be waived by the majority lenders subject to the requirement to maintain pro forma covenant
compliance. If the mandatory prepayment amount is less than €100.0 million ($121.0 million), then no prepayment is required
(subject to pro forma covenant compliance). No such prepayment is required to be made where an amount, equal to the amount
that would otherwise be required to be prepaid, is deposited in a blocked account on terms that the principal amount deposited
may only be released in order to make the relevant prepayment or to reinvest in assets in accordance with the terms of the UPC
Broadband Holding Bank Facility, which expressly includes permitted acquisitions and capital expenditures. Any amounts
deposited in the blocked account that have not been reinvested (or contracted to be so reinvested), within 12 months of the relevant
permitted disposal, are required to be applied in prepayment in accordance with the terms of the UPC Broadband Holding Bank
Facility.

The details of our borrowings under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility as of December 31, 2014 are summarized in
the following table:

Facility amount Unused
(in borrowing borrowing Carrying
Facility Maturity Interest rate currency) (a) capacity (b) value (c)

in millions

V(@)oo January 15, 2020 7.625% € 500.0 $ — $ 6050
Y ()i July 1, 2020 6.375% € 750.0 — 907.5
Z(d) oo, July 1, 2020 6.625% $ 1,000.0 — 1,000.0
AC(d) e, November 15, 2021 7.250% $ 750.0 — 750.0
AD (d) e January 15, 2022 6.875% $ 750.0 — 750.0
AG (€)oo March 31, 2021 EURIBOR +3.75% € 1,554.4 — 1,877.2
AH..cooooiieieiceeeeeeeee June 30, 2021 LIBOR +2.50% (f) $ 1,305.0 — 1,302.0
Al oo April 30,2019 EURIBOR +3.25% € 1,046.2 1,266.0 —
Elimination of Facilities V, Y, Z, AC and AD in consolidation (d)...........cceeerverierieceerienieninrerennns — (4,012.5)
o] 721 RO $ 1,2660 $ 3,179.2

(a)  Except as described in (d) below, amounts represent total third-party facility amounts at December 31, 2014 without giving
effect to the impact of discounts.

(b) At December 31, 2014, our availability under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility was limited to €906.7 million
($1,097.2 million). When the relevant December 31, 2014 compliance reporting requirements have been completed, we
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anticipate that our availability under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility will be limited to €889.1 million ($1,075.9
million). Facility Al has a fee on unused commitments of 1.3% per year.

(¢)  The carrying values of Facilities AG and AH include the impact of discounts.

(d)  As further discussed in the below description of the UPCB SPE Notes, the amounts outstanding under Facilities V, Y, Z,
AC and AD are eliminated in Liberty Global’s consolidated financial statements.

(e)  For information regarding certain financing transactions subsequent to December 31, 2014 whereby, among other items, a
portion of Facility AG was rolled into a new facility, see note 20.

(f)  Facility AH has a LIBOR floor of 0.75%.

Refinancing Transactions. During 2014, 2013 and 2012, we completed a number of refinancing transactions that generally
resulted in additional borrowings or extended maturities under the the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility. In connection with
these transactions, we recognized losses on debt modification, extinguishment and conversion, net, of $16.5 million, $11.9 million
and $16.3 million during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These losses include (i) write-offs of deferred financing costs and
unamortized discounts of $16.5 million, $4.2 million and $14.3 million, respectively, and (ii) nil, $7.7 million and $2.0 million of
third-party debt modification costs, respectively.

UPC Holding Senior Notes

2014 Transactions. During April 2014, we used existing cash to fully redeem UPC Holding’s $400.0 million principal amount
of 9.875% senior notes due 2018 (the UPC Holding 9.875% Senior Notes). In connection with this transaction, we recognized a
loss on debt modification, extinguishment and conversion, net, of $41.5 million, which includes (i) the payment of $19.7 million
of redemption premium, (ii) the write-off of $17.4 million of unamortized discount and (iii) the write-off of $4.4 million of deferred
financing costs.

2013 Transactions. On March 26, 2013, UPC Holding issued (i) €450.0 million ($544.5 million) principal amount of 6.75%
senior notes (the UPC Holding 6.75% Euro Senior Notes) and (ii) CHF 350.0 million ($352.1 million) principal amount of 6.75%
senior notes (the UPC Holding 6.75% CHF Senior Notes and, together with the UPC Holding 6.75% Euro Senior Notes, the UPC
Holding 6.75% Senior Notes).

On April 25, 2013, the net proceeds from the issuance of the UPC Holding 6.75% Senior Notes were used to redeem in full
(a) UPC Holding’s €300.0 million ($363.0 million) principal amount of 8.0% senior notes due 2016 (the UPC Holding 8.0% Senior
Notes) and (b) UPC Holding’s €400.0 million ($484.0 million) principal amount 0f 9.75% senior notes due 2018 (the UPC Holding
9.75% Senior Notes). Our obligations with respect to the UPC Holding 8.0% Senior Notes and the UPC Holding 9.75% Senior
Notes were legally discharged with the trustee on March 26,2013 and March 27, 2013, respectively, in connection with the issuance
of the UPC Holding 6.75% Senior Notes. The trustee, in turn, paid all amounts due to the holders of the UPC Holding 8.0% Senior
Notes and UPC Holding 9.75% Senior Notes on April 25,2013. We incurred aggregate debt extinguishment losses of $85.5 million
during the first quarter of 2013, which includes (i) $35.6 million of redemption premium related to the UPC Holding 8.0% Senior
Notes and the UPC Holding 9.75% Senior Notes, (ii) the write-off of $24.5 million of unamortized discount related to the UPC
Holding 9.75% Senior Notes, (iii) the write-off of $19.0 million of deferred financing costs associated with the UPC Holding 8.0%
Senior Notes and the UPC Holding 9.75% Senior Notes and (iv) $6.4 million of aggregate interest incurred on the UPC Holding
8.0% Senior Notes and the UPC Holding 9.75% Senior Notes between the respective dates that we and the trustee were legally
discharged, as described above.

We collectively refer to the UPC Holding 6.75% Senior Notes, UPC Holding’s €600.0 million ($726.0 million) principal
amount of 6.375% senior notes due 2022 (the UPC Holding 6.375% Senior Notes) and UPC Holding’s €640.0 million ($774.4
million) principal amount of 8.375% senior notes due 2020 (the UPC Holding 8.375% Senior Notes) as the “UPC Holding Senior
Notes.”
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The details of the UPC Holding Senior Notes as of December 31, 2014 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding principal
amount
. . . Borrowing US.$ Estimated  Carrying
UPC Holding Senior Notes Maturity currency equivalent  fair value  value (a)

in millions

UPC Holding 8.375% Senior Notes................... August 15,2020 € 6400 $§ 7744 § 8334 § 7744
UPC Holding 6.375% Senior Notes................... September 15,2022 € 600.0 726.0 786.8 720.6
UPC Holding 6.75% Euro Senior Notes............ March 15, 2023 € 450.0 544.5 597.3 544.5
UPC Holding 6.75% CHF Senior Notes............ March 15,2023 ~ CHF 350.0 352.1 386.1 352.1

TOLAL ...ttt ettt bttt $ 2,397.0 $ 2,603.6 $2,391.6

(a)  Amounts include the impact of discounts, where applicable.

Each issue of the UPC Holding Senior Notes are senior obligations that rank equally with all of the existing and future senior
debt and are senior to all existing and future subordinated debt of UPC Holding. The UPC Holding Senior Notes are secured (on
a shared basis) by pledges of the shares of UPC Holding. The UPC Holding Senior Notes contain certain customary incurrence-
based covenants. For example, the ability to raise certain additional debt and make certain distributions or loans to other subsidiaries
of Liberty Global is subject to a consolidated leverage ratio test, as specified in the applicable indenture. In addition, the UPC
Holding Senior Notes provide that any failure to pay principal prior to expiration of any applicable grace period, or any acceleration
with respect to other indebtedness of €50.0 million ($60.5 million) or more in the aggregate of UPC Holding or its restricted
subsidiaries (as specified in the applicable indenture), including UPC Broadband Holding, is an event of default under the UPC
Holding Senior Notes.

At any time prior to August 15, 2015, in the case of the UPC Holding 8.375% Senior Notes, September 15, 2017, in the case
of'the UPC Holding 6.375% Senior Notes, and March 15,2018, in the case of the UPC Holding 6.75% Senior Notes, UPC Holding
may redeem some or all of such UPC Holding Senior Notes by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of
all scheduled interest payments until August 15, 2015, September 15, 2017 or March 15, 2018 (as applicable) using the discount
rate (as specified in the applicable indenture) as of the redemption date, plus 50 basis points.

UPC Holding may redeem some or all of the UPC Holding Senior Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as a
percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional amounts (as specified in the applicable
indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve-month period commencing on August 15, in
the case of the UPC Holding 8.375% Senior Notes, September 15, in the case of the UPC Holding 6.375% Senior Notes, and
March 15, in the case of the UPC Holding 6.75% Senior Notes, of the years set forth below:

Redemption Price

UPC Holding UPC Holding UPC Holding
8.375% 6.375% 6.75%
Year Senior Notes Senior Notes Senior Notes
20 et sttt e 104.188% N.A. N.A.
2000 oottt et sttt seaesaaeenaeenee s 102.792% N.A. N.A.
2007 et e s sttt st eaee s 101.396% 103.188% N.A.
2018 ettt st sttt 100.000% 102.125% 103.375%
2009 et sttt 100.000% 101.063% 102.250%
2020 .ottt e et e e ntb e e beeetaeeenbeesreeetaeeanne 100.000% 100.000% 101.125%
2021 and thereafter.........cocvveviiiiiiieieiceeceeeeeeee e N.A. 100.000% 100.000%
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If all or substantially all of the assets of UPC Holding and certain of its subsidiaries are disposed of or any other change of
control (as specified in the applicable indenture) is triggered, UPC Holding must offer to repurchase all of the relevant UPC Holding
Senior Notes at a redemption price of 101% of the principal amount of such UPC Holding Senior Notes.

For information regarding certain financing transactions completed subsequent to December 31, 2014 that impact the UPC
Holding Senior Notes, see note 20.

UPCB SPE Notes

UPCB Finance Limited (UPCB Finance I), UPCB Finance II Limited (UPCB Finance II), UPCB Finance III Limited (UPCB
Finance III), UPCB Finance V Limited (UPCB Finance V) and UPCB Finance VI Limited (UPCB Finance VI and, together with
UPCB Finance I, UPCB Finance II, UPCB Finance III and UPCB Finance V, the UPCB SPEs) are all special purpose financing
entities that are owned 100% by charitable trusts. The UPCB SPEs were created for the primary purposes of facilitating the
offerings of €500.0 million ($605.0 million) principal amount of 7.625% senior secured notes (the UPCB Finance I Notes), €750.0
million ($907.5 million) principal amount of 6.375% senior secured notes (the UPCB Finance II Notes), $1.0 billion principal
amount of 6.625% senior secured notes (the UPCB Finance III Notes), $750.0 million principal amount of 7.25% senior secured
notes (the UPCB Finance V Notes) and $750.0 million principal amount of 6.875% senior secured notes (the UPCB Finance VI
Notes and, together with the UPCB Finance I Notes, the UPCB Finance II Notes, the UPCB Finance III Notes and the UPCB
Finance V Notes, the UPCB SPE Notes), respectively. The UPCB Finance I Notes, the UPCB Finance II Notes, the UPCB Finance
III Notes, the UPCB Finance V Notes and the UPCB Finance VI Notes were issued on January 20, 2010, January 31,2011, February
16,2011, November 16, 2011 and February 7, 2012, respectively.

The UPCB Finance I Notes were issued at an original issue discount of 0.862%, resulting in cash proceeds before commissions
and fees of €495.7 million ($699.7 million at the transaction date). The UPCB Finance II Notes, UPCB Finance III Notes, UPCB
Finance V Notes and UPCB Finance VI Notes were each issued at par. UPCB Finance I, UPCB Finance II, UPCB Finance III,
UPCB Finance V and UPCB Finance VI used the proceeds from the (i) UPCB Finance I Notes and available cash, (ii) UPCB
Finance II Notes, (iii) UPCB Finance III Notes, (iv) UPCB Finance V Notes and (v) UPCB Finance VI Notes to fund new additional
Facilities V, Y, Z, AC and AD, respectively, (each, a UPCB SPE Funded Facility, and together, the Funded Facilities) under the
UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility, with UPC Financing Partnership (UPC Financing) as the borrower. The proceeds from
the Funded Facilities generally were used to repay amounts outstanding under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility.

Each UPCB SPE is dependent on payments from UPC Financing under the applicable UPCB SPE Funded Facility in order
to service its payment obligations under each respective UPCB SPE Note. Although UPC Financing has no equity or voting
interest in any of the UPCB SPEs, each of the UPCB SPE Funded Facility loans creates a variable interest in the respective UPCB
SPE for which UPC Financing is the primary beneficiary, as contemplated by GAAP. As such, UPC Financing and its parent
entities, including UPC Holding and Liberty Global, are required by the provisions of GAAP to consolidate the UPCB SPEs. As
a result, the amounts outstanding under the Funded Facilities are eliminated in Liberty Global’s consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the respective indentures for the UPCB SPE Notes (the UPCB SPE Indentures) and the respective accession
agreements for the Funded Facilities, the call provisions, maturity and applicable interest rate for each UPCB SPE Funded Facility
are the same as those of the related UPCB SPE Notes. The UPCB SPEs, as lenders under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank
Facility, are treated the same as the other lenders under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility, with benefits, rights and
protections similar to those afforded to the other lenders. Through the covenants in the applicable UPCB SPE Indentures and the
applicable security interests over (i) all of the issued shares of the relevant UPCB SPE and (ii) the relevant UPCB SPE’s rights
under the applicable UPCB SPE Funded Facility granted to secure the relevant UPCB SPE’s obligations under the relevant UPCB
SPE Notes, the holders of the UPCB SPE Notes are provided indirectly with the benefits, rights, protections and covenants granted
to the UPCB SPEs as lenders under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility.

The UPCB SPEs are prohibited from incurring any additional indebtedness, subject to certain exceptions under the UPCB
SPE Indentures.
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The details of the UPCB SPE Notes as of December 31, 2014 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding principal
amount
. Borrowing US. § Estimated Carrying
UPCB SPEs Maturity Interest rate  currency  equivalent  fair value  value (a)

in millions

UPCB Finance I Notes.................... January 15, 2020 7.625% € 5000 $ 6050 $ 6319 $§ 6019
UPCB Finance II Notes.................. July 1, 2020 6.375% € 750.0 907.5 954.0 907.5
UPCB Finance III Notes ................ July 1, 2020 6.625% $ 1,000.0 1,000.0 1,054.4 1,000.0
UPCB Finance V Notes.................. November 15, 2021 7.250% $ 750.0 750.0 821.7 750.0
UPCB Finance VI Notes................. January 15, 2022 6.875% $ 750.0 750.0 817.0 750.0

TOTAL ..ttt ettt st b ettt eae $ 40125 $ 4279.0 $ 4,009.4

(a)  Amounts include the impact of discounts, where applicable.

Subject to the circumstances described below, the UPCB Finance I Notes are non-callable until January 15, 2015, the UPCB
Finance II Notes and the UPCB Finance I1I Notes are non-callable until July 1, 2015, the UPCB Finance V Notes are non-callable
until November 15, 2016 and the UPCB Finance VI Notes are non-callable until January 15, 2017 (each a UPCB SPE Notes Call
Date). If, however, at any time prior to the applicable UPCB SPE Notes Call Date, all or a portion of the loans under the related
UPCB SPE Funded Facility are voluntarily prepaid (an Early Redemption Event), then the applicable UPCB SPE will be required
to redeem an aggregate principal amount of its UPCB SPE Notes equal to the aggregate principal amount of loans so prepaid under
the related UPCB SPE Funded Facility. In general, the redemption price payable will equal the sum of (i) 100% of the principal
amount of the applicable UPCB SPE Notes to be redeemed, (ii) the excess of (a) the present value at such redemption date of (1)
the redemption price of such UPCB SPE Notes on the applicable UPCB SPE Notes Call Date, as determined in accordance with
the table below, plus (2) all required remaining scheduled interest payments thereon due through the applicable UPCB SPE Notes
Call Date (excluding accrued and unpaid interest to such redemption date), computed using the discount rate specified in the
applicable UPCB SPE Indenture, over (b) the principal amount of such UPCB SPE Notes to be redeemed and (iii) accrued but
unpaid interest thereon and additional amounts (as specified in the applicable UPCB SPE Indenture), if any, to the applicable
redemption date (the Make-Whole Redemption Price). However, in the case of an Early Redemption Event with respect to Facility
Z, AC or AD occurring prior to the applicable UPCB SPE Notes Call Date, the redemption price payable upon redemption of an
aggregate principal amount of the relevant UPCB SPE Notes not exceeding 10% of the original aggregate principal amount of
such UPCB SPE Notes during each twelve-month period commencing on February 16, 2011, in the case of Facility Z, November
16, 2011, in the case of Facility AC, or February 7, 2012, in the case of Facility AD, will equal 103% of the principal amount of
the relevant UPCB SPE Notes redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon and additional amounts, if any, to the applicable
redemption date. The redemption price payable for any principal amount of such UPCB SPE Notes redeemed in excess of the
10% limitation will be the Make-Whole Redemption Price.
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Upon the occurrence of an Early Redemption Event on or after the applicable UPCB SPE Notes Call Date, the applicable
UPCB SPE will redeem an aggregate principal amount of its UPCB SPE Notes equal to the principal amount of the related UPCB
SPE Funded Facility prepaid at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount), plus accrued
and unpaid interest and additional amounts, (as specified in the applicable UPCB SPE Indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption
date, if redeemed during the twelve-month period commencing on January 15, in the case of the UPCB Finance I Notes and the
UPCB Finance VI Notes, July 1, in the case of the UPCB Finance II Notes and the UPCB Finance III Notes, and November 15,
in the case of the UPCB Finance V Notes, of the years set forth below:

Redemption Price
UPCB Finance  UPCB Finance  UPCB Finance  UPCB Finance = UPCB Finance

Year I Notes 11 Notes 111 Notes V Notes VI Notes
2015 e 103.813% 103.188% 103.313% N.A. N.A.
2016 e 102.542% 102.125% 102.208% 103.625% N.A.
2017 oo 101.271% 101.063% 101.104% 102.417% 103.438%
2018 e 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 101.208% 102.292%
2019 i 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 101.146%
2020 and thereafter.........ccocevereennenn. 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%

For information regarding certain financing transactions completed subsequent to December 31, 2014 that impact the UPCB
SPE Notes, see note 20.

Unitymedia KabelBW Notes and KBW Notes

Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange, Special Optional Redemptions and KBW Fold-in. Prior to the exchange and redemption
transactions described below, the KBW Notes consisted of (i) UPC Germany HoldCo 1 GmbH’s €680.0 million ($822.8 million)
principal amount of 9.5% senior notes due 2021 (the KBW Senior Notes) and (ii) the following notes issued by Kabel BW GmbH
(KBW): (a) €800.0 million ($968.1 million) principal amount of 7.5% senior secured notes due 2019 (the KBW Euro Senior
Secured Notes), (b) $500.0 million principal amount of 7.5% senior secured notes due 2019 (the KBW Dollar Senior Secured
Notes and together with the KBW Euro Senior Secured Notes, the KBW Senior Secured Fixed-Rate Notes) and (c) €420.0 million
($508.2 million) principal amount of senior secured floating-rate notes due 2018 (the KBW Senior Secured Floating-Rate Notes
and together with the KBW Senior Secured Fixed-Rate Notes, the KBW Senior Secured Notes).

In May 2012, Unitymedia KabelBW and certain of its subsidiaries completed (i) the exchange (the Unitymedia KabelBW
Exchange) of (a) 90.9% of the outstanding principal amount of the KBW Senior Notes for an equal amount of UM Senior Exchange
Notes (as defined and described below) and (b) 92.5% of the outstanding principal amount of the KBW Senior Secured Notes for
an equal amount of UM Senior Secured Exchange Notes (as defined and described below), (ii) the redemption (the Special Optional
Redemptions) of the remaining KBW Notes that were not exchanged pursuant to the Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange and (iii) a
series of mergers and consolidations, pursuant to which an indirect parent company of KBW became a subsidiary of Unitymedia
Hessen (the KBW Fold-in). The redemption price with respect to the Special Optional Redemptions was 101% of the applicable
principal amount thereof, and such redemptions were initially funded with borrowings under the Unitymedia KabeIBW Revolving
Credit Facilities (as defined and described below). In connection with these transactions, we recognized aggregate losses on debt
modification, extinguishment and conversion, net, of $7.0 million during 2012, which includes (i) $5.6 million of third-party costs
and (ii) $1.4 million of redemption premium pursuant to the Special Optional Redemptions.
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The details of (i) the Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange and (ii) the Special Optional Redemptions are as follows:

Outstanding principal Principal amount Principal amount
amount prior to the exchanged pursuant to the redeemed pursuant to the
Unitymedia KabelBW Unitymedia KabelBW Special Optional
Exchange Exchange Redemptions
Borrowing US.$ Borrowing US.$ Borrowing US. §
KBW Notes currency equivalent (a) currency equivalent (a) currency equivalent (a)

in millions

KBW Senior Notes (b) ........cccvevvevennenee. € 6800 $ 890.0 € 6180 $ 808.8 € 62.0 $ 81.2
KBW Euro Senior Secured Notes (c)..... € 800.0 1,047.0 € 735.1 962.1 € 64.9 84.9
KBW Dollar Senior Secured
NOLES (d) c.venveveerereiecrereeeeseeeee § 500.0 500.0 § 4593 459.3 § 40.7 40.7
KBW Senior Secured Floating-Rate
NOLES (€).vveerererererererreeeeeeeeeerere e € 4200 549.7 € 3959 5182 € 241 315
Total .o $ 29867 § 27484 $ 238.3

(a)  Translations are calculated as of the May 4, 2012 transaction date.

(b)  The KBW Senior Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of 9.5% senior notes issued
by Unitymedia KabelBW due March 15, 2021 (the UM Senior Exchange Notes).

(c)  The KBW Euro Senior Secured Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of 7.5% senior
secured notes issued by Unitymedia Hessen and Unitymedia NRW GmbH (each, a subsidiary of Unitymedia KabelBW
and, together, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers) due March 15, 2019 (the UM Euro Senior Secured Exchange Notes).

(d)  The KBW Dollar Senior Secured Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of 7.5% senior
secured notes issued by the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers due March 15,2019 (the UM Dollar Senior Secured Exchange
Notes and, together with the UM Euro Senior Secured Exchange Notes, the UM Senior Secured Fixed-Rate Exchange
Notes). In December 31, 2014, the UM Senior Secured Fixed-Rate Exchange Notes were redeemed in full as described
below.

(e)  The KBW Senior Secured Floating-Rate Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of
senior secured floating-rate notes issued by the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers due March 15, 2018 (the UM Senior
Secured Floating-Rate Exchange Notes and, together with the UM Senior Secured Floating-Rate Exchange Notes, the UM
Senior Secured Exchange Notes). The UM Senior Secured Floating-Rate Exchange Notes, prior to their redemption as
described below, bore interest at a rate of EURIBOR plus 4.25%.

December 2014 UM Senior Secured Notes. On December 17,2014, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued (i) €1,000.0
million ($1,210.1 million) principal amount of 4.0% senior secured notes due January 15, 2025 (the December 2014 UM Euro
Senior Secured Notes) and (ii) $550.0 million principal amount of 5.0% senior secured notes due January 15, 2025 (the December
2014 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes and, together with the December 2014 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes, the December
2014 UM Senior Secured Notes). A portion of the net proceeds from the December 2014 UM Senior Secured Notes were used
to redeem in full the UM Senior Secured Fixed-Rate Exchange Notes. In connection with this transaction, we recognized a loss
on debt extinguishment of $59.5 million, which includes (i) the payment of $70.1 million of redemption premium and (ii) the
write-off of $10.6 million of unamortized premium.

October 2014 UM Senior Notes. On October 22, 2014, Unitymedia KabelBW issued $900.0 million principal amount of
6.125% senior notes due January 15, 2025 (the October 2014 UM Senior Notes). On November 7, 2014, the net proceeds from
the October 2014 UM Senior Notes were used to fully redeem Unitymedia KabelBW’s €665.0 million ($804.7 million) principal
amount of 9.625% senior notes (the 2009 UM Senior Notes). In connection with this transaction, we recognized a loss on debt
extinguishment of $71.3 million, which includes (i) the payment of $45.0 million of redemption premium, (ii) the write-off of
$14.0 million of deferred financing costs and (iii) the write-off of $12.3 million of unamortized discount.
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November 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes. On November 21, 2013, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued €475.0
million ($574.8 million) principal amount of 6.25% senior secured notes due January 15, 2029 (the November 2013 UM Senior
Secured Notes). A portion of the net proceeds from the issuance of the November 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes were used to
redeem all of the then outstanding 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes (as defined and described below). In connection with
this transaction, we recognized a loss on debt extinguishment of $41.4 million, which includes (i) the payment of $24.5 million
of redemption premium and (ii) the write-off of $16.9 million associated with deferred financing costs and unamortized discount.

April 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes. On April 16,2013, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued €350.0 million ($423.5
million) principal amount of 5.625% senior secured notes due April 15, 2023 (the April 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes).

January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes. On January 21, 2013, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued €500.0 million
($605.0 million) principal amount of 5.125% senior secured notes due January 21, 2023 (the January 2013 UM Senior Secured
Notes). The net proceeds from the issuance of the January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes were used to redeem a portion of the
€1,430.0 million ($1,730.4 million) principal amount of 8.125% senior secured notes (the 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes).
In connection with this transaction, we recognized a loss on debt extinguishment of $71.1 million, which includes (i) the payment
of $50.5 million of redemption premium and (ii) the write-off of $20.6 million associated with deferred financing costs and
unamortized discount.

December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes. On December 14,2012, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued $1.0 billion
principal amount of 5.5% senior secured notes due January 15, 2023 (the December 2012 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes) and
€500.0 million ($605.0 million) principal amount of 5.75% senior secured notes due January 15, 2023 (the December 2012 UM
Euro Senior Secured Notes and, together with the December 2012 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes, the December 2012 UM
Senior Secured Notes), each at par. The net proceeds from the issuance of the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes were
used to purchase and redeem (i) all of the $845.0 million principal amount 8.125% senior secured notes (the 2009 UM Dollar
Senior Secured Notes) and (ii) €524.0 million ($634.1 million) of the 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes. In connection with
these transactions, we recognized a loss on debt extinguishment of $175.8 million, which includes (i) the payment of $125.9 million
of redemption premium and (ii) the write-off of $49.4 million associated with deferred financing costs and unamortized discount.

September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes. On September 19, 2012, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued €650.0
million ($786.5 million) principal amount of 5.5% senior secured notes due September 15, 2022 (the September 2012 UM Senior
Secured Notes). The net proceeds from the issuance of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes were used to redeem in
full the UM Senior Secured Floating-Rate Exchange Notes at a redemption price of 101%, with the remaining €241.8 million
($292.6 million) available for general corporate purposes. In connection with this transaction, we recognized a loss on debt
extinguishment of $10.2 million representing the payment of redemption premium.

We refer to the UM Senior Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, the December 2012 UM Senior
Secured Notes, the January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes, the April 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes, the November 2013 UM
Senior Secured Notes, the October 2014 UM Senior Notes and the December 2014 UM Senior Secured Notes, collectively, as the
“Unitymedia KabelBW Notes.”
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The details of the Unitymedia KabelBW Notes as of December 31, 2014 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding principal
amount

Interest Borrowing US. $ Estimated  Carrying
Unitymedia KabelBW Notes Maturity rate currency equivalent fair value value (a)

in millions

UM Senior Exchange Notes....................... March 15, 2021 9.500% € 6180 $ 7477 $ 8379 $ 746.1
September 2012 UM Senior Secured

NOLES ..ttt September 15,2022  5.500% € 650.0 786.5 843.5 786.5
December 2012 UM Dollar Senior

Secured NOtES.......c.ovvviveeeeeeeeeeeerreenans January 15, 2023 5.500% § 1,000.0 1,000.0 1,046.3 1,000.0
December 2012 UM Euro Senior Secured

NOLES. .ot January 15, 2023 5.750% € 500.0 605.0 657.9 605.0
January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes...  January 21, 2023 5.125% € 500.0 605.0 646.6 605.0
April 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes...... April 15,2023 5.625% € 350.0 423.5 461.1 423.5
November 2013 UM Senior Secured

NOLES. ..t January 15, 2029 6.250% € 475.0 574.8 654.5 574.8
October 2014 UM Senior Notes ................ January 15, 2025 6.125% $  900.0 900.0 932.6 900.0
December 2014 UM Euro Senior Secured

INOTES. .ot January 15, 2025 4.000% € 1,000.0 1,210.0 1,237.2 1,210.0
December 2014 UM Dollar Senior

Secured NOES........ccoceiriviiiiciiice January 15, 2025 5.000% $ 550.0 550.0 551.7 550.0

0] 7Y TP $ 7,402.5 $ 7,869.3 $ 7,400.9

(a)  Amounts include the impact of discounts, where applicable.

The UM Senior Exchange Notes and the October 2014 UM Senior Notes are senior obligations of Unitymedia KabelBW that
rank equally with all of the existing and future senior debt of Unitymedia KabelBW and are senior to all existing and future
subordinated debt of Unitymedia KabelBW. The UM Senior Exchange Notes and the October 2014 UM Senior Notes are guaranteed
on a senior subordinated basis by various subsidiaries of Unitymedia KabelBW and are secured by a first-ranking pledge over the
shares of Unitymedia KabelBW and junior-priority share pledges and other asset security of certain subsidiaries of Unitymedia
KabelBW.

The September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, the January 2013 UM Senior
Secured Notes, the April 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes, the November 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes and the December 2014
UM Senior Secured Notes are (i) senior obligations of the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers that rank equally with all of the
existing and future senior debt of each UM Senior Secured Notes Issuer and are senior to all existing and future subordinated debt
of each of the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers and (ii) are secured by a first-ranking pledge over the shares of Unitymedia
KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers and certain other share and/or asset security of Unitymedia KabelBW and
certain of its subsidiaries.

The Unitymedia KabelBW Notes contain certain customary incurrence-based covenants. For example, the ability to raise
certain additional debt and make certain distributions or loans to other subsidiaries of Liberty Global is subject to a consolidated
leverage ratio test, as specified in the applicable indenture. The Unitymedia KabelBW Notes provide that any failure to pay
principal prior to expiration of any applicable grace period, or any acceleration with respect to other indebtedness of €25.0 million
($30.3 million) (or €75.0 million ($90.8 million) with respect to the October 2014 UM Senior Notes and the December 2014 UM
Senior Secured Notes) or more in the aggregate of Unitymedia KabelBW or a UM Senior Secured Notes Issuer or any of the
restricted subsidiaries (as specified in the applicable indenture) is an event of default under the Unitymedia KabelBW Notes.

Subject to the circumstances described below, the Unitymedia KabelBW Notes are non-callable prior to the applicable call
date as presented in the below table. At any time prior to the respective call date, Unitymedia KabelBW or UM Senior Secured
Notes Issuers may redeem some or all of the applicable notes by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of
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all remaining scheduled interest payments to the applicable call date using the discount rate (as specified in the applicable indenture)
as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.

Unitymedia KabelBW Notes Call Date

UM Senior EXChange INOLES ........c.cciviiiiiiiieiiiicicirenect sttt s March 15, 2016
September 2012 UM Senior SECUIed NOLES. .......ocvieieierieriieiieieiesteeteeeeiestesteeeesessessesseessessessessesseenees September 15, 2017
December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes January 15, 2018
January 2013 UM Senior Secured NOES .......ccceriiirieiereieeieeeieie ettt ettt see e eneenes January 21, 2018

April 2013 UM Senior SECUIEd NOLES .....c.eervieriieriieiieieeieeieesieeieeteeveeteeaeesesseesseessesssesssessesssesssenns April 15,2018

November 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes January 15, 2021
October 2014 UM Senior NOtes.........coeeeeerenvenennenn January 15, 2020
December 2014 UM Senior Secured Notes January 15, 2020

Unitymedia KabelBW or the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers (as applicable) may redeem some or all of the Unitymedia
KabelBW Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid
interest and additional amounts (as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed
during the twelve-month period commencing on March 15, in the case of the UM Senior Exchange Notes, September 15, in the
case of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, January 15, in the case of the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes,
the November 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes, the October 2014 UM Senior Notes and the December 2014 UM Senior Secured
Notes, January 21, in the case of the January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes, or April 15, in the case of the April 2013 UM Senior
Secured Notes, of the years set forth below:

Redemption Price

December  December December  December
September 2012 2012 January April November 2014 UM 2014 UM
UM 2012 UM Dollar UM Euro 2013 UM 2013 UM 2013 UM October Euro Dollar
Senior UM Senior Senior Senior Senior Senior Senior 2014 UM Senior Senior
Exchange Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Senior Secured Secured
Year Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes
104.750% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
103.167% 102.750% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
101.583% 101.833% 102.750% 102.875%  102.563% 102.813% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
100.000% 100.917% 101.833% 101.917%  101.708% 101.875% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
100.000% 100.000% 100.917% 100.958%  100.854%  100.938% N.A. 103.063%  102.000% 102.500%
N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%  100.000%  100.000%  103.125%  102.042%  101.333% 101.667%
N.A. N.A. 100.000% 100.000%  100.000% 100.000%  102.083%  101.021%  100.667% 100.833%
N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 101.042%  100.000%  100.000% 100.000%
2024 and
thereafter .... N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 100.000%  100.000%  100.000% 100.000%

KBW and its immediate parent (collectively, the New UM Guarantors) have granted, in addition to guarantees provided by
Unitymedia KabelBW and/or certain of its subsidiaries, a senior guarantee of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, the
December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, the January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes, the April 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes,
the November 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes and the December 2014 UM Senior Secured Notes. The New UM Guarantors have
also granted a senior subordinated guarantee of the UM Senior Exchange Notes and the October 2014 UM Senior Notes. In
addition, the New UM Guarantors have provided certain share and asset security in favor of the September 2012 UM Senior
Secured Notes, the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, the January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes, the April 2013 UM
Senior Secured Notes, the November 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes and the December 2014 UM Senior Secured Notes.

If all or substantially all of the assets of (i) Unitymedia KabelBW and certain of its subsidiaries or (ii) the UM Senior Secured
Notes Issuer and certain of their subsidiaries are disposed of or any other change of control (as specified in the relevant Unitymedia
KabelBW Notes) is triggered, Unitymedia KabelBW or the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers (as applicable) must offer to
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repurchase all of the relevant Unitymedia KabelBW Notes at aredemption price of 101% of the principal amount of such Unitymedia
KabelBW Notes.

Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities

During the third quarter of 2014, Unitymedia Hessen completed the refinancing of its then existing €337.5 million ($408.4
million) and €80.0 million ($96.8 million) revolving credit facilities (the Old Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities).
Pursuant to this refinancing, the respective commitments of the lenders under the Old Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit
Facilities were cancelled and Unitymedia Hessen entered into (i) anew €80.0 million ($96.8 million) super senior secured revolving
credit facility agreement (the UM Super Senior Secured Facility) and (ii) a new €420.0 million ($508.2 million) senior secured
revolving credit facility agreement (the UM Senior Secured Facility and, together with the UM Super Senior Secured Facility, the
Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities). At December 31, 2014, we had €280.0 million ($338.8 million) outstanding
under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities and our availability was limited to €15.1 million ($18.3 million).
When the relevant December 31, 2014 compliance reporting requirements have been completed and assuming no changes from
December 31, 2014 borrowing levels, we anticipate that our availability will be limited to €123.7 million ($149.7 million).

The UM Super Senior Secured Facility bears interest at EURIBOR plus a margin of 2.25%, matures in December 2020 and
has a fee on unused commitments of 0.9% per year. The UM Senior Secured Facility bears interest at EURIBOR plus a margin
of 2.75%, matures in December 2020 and has a fee on unused commitments of 1.1% per year. The UM Super Senior Secured
Facility is senior with respect to the priority of proceeds received from the enforcement of shared collateral to (i) the Unitymedia
KabelBW Notes and (ii) the UM Senior Secured Facility. The Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities may be used for
general corporate and working capital purposes.

In addition to customary restrictive covenants and events of default, the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities
require compliance with a consolidated net leverage ratio, as specified in the applicable facility, in the event that the outstanding
borrowings under either facility are more than 33.3% of the total commitments. The Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit
Facilities are secured by a pledge over the shares of the borrower and certain other asset security of certain subsidiaries of Unitymedia
KabelBW. The Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities permit Unitymedia KabelBW to transfer funds to its parent
company (and indirectly to Liberty Global) through loans, dividends or other distributions provided that Unitymedia KabelBW
maintains compliance with applicable covenants. Ifachange of control occurs, as specified in the Unitymedia Kabe]IBW Revolving
Credit Facilities, each lender may cancel its commitments and declare all outstanding amounts immediately due and payable.

Ziggo Credit Facility

On January 27, 2014, in connection with our then pending acquisition of Ziggo, Ziggo B.V. and certain of its subsidiaries
entered into (i) a U.S. dollar-denominated term loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of $2,350.0 million (the Ziggo Dollar
Facility), (ii) a euro-denominated term loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of €1,566.0 million ($1,895.0 million) (the
Ziggo Euro Facility) and (iii) an aggregate €650.0 million ($786.5 million) in revolving credit facilities (the Ziggo Revolving
Facilities, as further described below). The Ziggo Dollar Facility, the Ziggo Euro Facility and the Ziggo Revolving Facilities are
collectively referred to as the “Ziggo Credit Facility.” Ziggo B.V. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ziggo Bond Company B.V.
(Ziggo Bondco), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ziggo.

Also on January 27, 2014, LGE HoldCo VII B.V., our wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into (i) a €434.0 million ($525.2
million) term loan facility (the Ziggo Acquisition Facility) and (ii) a euro-denominated revolving credit facility in an aggregate
principal amount of €650.0 million ($786.5 million) (the Ziggo Acquisition Revolving Facility). Upon completion of the Ziggo
Acquisition (a) the Ziggo Acquisition Facility was rolled into the Ziggo Euro Facility and (b) the Ziggo Acquisition Revolving
Facility was cancelled.
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The details of our borrowings under the Ziggo Credit Facility as of December 31, 2014 are summarized in the following
table:

Facility amount Unused
(in borrowing borrowing Carrying
Facility Maturity Interest rate currency) capacity value (a)

in millions

Ziggo Euro Facility........ccccoeuennen. January 15, 2022 EURIBOR +3.00% € 2,000.0 $ — § 23955
Ziggo Dollar Facility .................... January 15, 2022 LIBOR +2.75% $ 2,350.0 — 2,315.3
Ziggo Revolving Facilities ........... June 30, 2020 (b) € 650.0 786.5 —

TORAL. ettt e e e et e e e e e e e ————eeee e e e e e e ————————aeeeeaaeaar—————aaaaaan $ 786.5 $ 4,710.8

(a)  Amounts include the impact of discounts, where applicable.

(b)  The Ziggo Revolving Facilities include (i) a €600.0 million ($726.0 million) facility that bears interest at EURIBOR plus
a margin of 2.75% and has a fee on unused commitments of 1.1% per year and (ii) a €50.0 million ($60.5 million) facility
that bears interest at EURIBOR plus a margin of 2.00% and has a fee on unused commitments of 0.8% per year.

The Ziggo Credit Facility requires that certain subsidiaries of Ziggo (as specified in the applicable indenture) that generate
not less than 80% of such group’s EBITDA (as specified in the Ziggo Credit Facility) in any financial year, guarantee the payment
of all sums payable under the Ziggo Credit Facility and such group members are required to grant first-ranking security over all
or substantially all of the assets to secure the payment of all sums payable. In addition, the holding company of each borrower
must give a share pledge over its shares in such borrower and all rights under subordinated shareholder funding must be pledged.

In addition to mandatory prepayments which must be made for certain disposal proceeds (subject to certain de minimis
thresholds), the facility agent may (if required by the majority lenders) cancel their commitments and declare the loans due and
payable after 30 business days following the occurrence of a change of control.

The Ziggo Credit Facility contains certain customary events of default, the occurrence of which, subject to certain exceptions
and materiality qualifications, would allow the lenders to (i) cancel the total commitments, (ii) accelerate all outstanding loans
and terminate their commitments thereunder and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the loans be payable on demand. The Ziggo
Credit Facility contains certain representations and warranties customary for facilities of this type, which are subject to exceptions
and materiality qualifications.

The Ziggo Credit Facility restricts the ability of the borrowers to, among other things, (i) incur or guarantee certain financial
indebtedness, (ii) make certain disposals, distributions and acquisitions and (iii) create certain security interests over their assets,
in each case, subject to carve-outs from such limitations.

The Ziggo Credit Facility requires the borrowers to observe certain affirmative undertakings, which are subject to materiality
and other customary and agreed exceptions. In addition, the Ziggo Credit Facility also requires compliance with certain financial
covenants such as a senior net debt leverage ratio and a total net debt leverage ratio, as specified in the indenture.

The Ziggo Credit Facility permits certain members of the Ziggo borrowing group to make certain distributions and restricted
payments to its parent company (and indirectly to Liberty Global) through loans, advances or dividends, subject to compliance

with applicable covenants.

For information regarding certain financing transactions impacting the Ziggo borrowing group completed subsequent to
December 31, 2014, see note 20.
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Ziggo Notes
At December 31, 2014, the following senior notes of certain Ziggo subsidiaries were outstanding:

*  €743.1 million ($899.2 million) principal amount of 7.125% senior notes due May 15, 2024 (the Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior
Notes); and

e €71.7 million ($86.8 million) principal amount of 3.625% senior secured notes due March 27, 2020 (the Ziggo 2020 Euro
Senior Secured Notes).

The Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes and the Ziggo 2020 Euro Senior Secured Notes are collectively referred to as the “Ziggo
Notes”.

The details of the Ziggo Notes as of December 31, 2014 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding principal
amount
. . Interest  Borrowing US. $ Estimated  Carrying
Ziggo Notes Maturity rate currency  equivalent fair value  value (a)

in millions

Ziggo 2020 Euro Senior Secured

NOES vt March 27, 2020 3.625% € 71.7 $ 86.8 $ 88.7 $ 89.3
Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes ............... May 15, 2024 7.125% €  743.1 899.2 993.6 987.7
TOTAL .ttt § 9860 $ 1,082.3 § 1,077.0

(a)  Amounts include the impact of premiums, where applicable.

The Ziggo 2020 Euro Senior Secured Notes are senior secured obligations of Ziggo B.V. and are guaranteed on a senior secured
basis by various subsidiaries of Ziggo B.V. The Ziggo 2020 Euro Senior Secured Notes are non-callable. At any time prior to
maturity, Ziggo B.V. may redeem some or all of the Ziggo 2020 Euro Senior Secured Notes by paying a “make-whole” premium,
which is the present value at such redemption date using the discount rate (as specified in the applicable indenture) as of the
redemption date plus 50 basis points.

The Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes are senior obligations of Ziggo Bondco and are secured by a pledge of the shares of Ziggo
Bondco. The Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes are non-callable until May 15, 2019. At any time prior to May 15, 2019, Ziggo
Bondco may redeem some or all of the Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes by paying a “make-whole” premium. Ziggo Bondco may
redeem some or all of the Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the
principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional amounts (as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the
redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve-month period commencing on May 15 of the years set forth below:

Redemption
Year price
200ttt e et e e eette e bt e abteeaabeeatbeeabaeeabeeatbteanbteetbeeaabaaentaeetbeeabaeentaeensbeeaabaeentaeensreennnes 103.563%
200201ttt ettt et e et e e tae et e e e —eeeatteeabeaatteetbeeatbaeantaeenbeeatbteantteanbeeansaeantaeesbeeebaeantaeennseeansaeentaeennseennnes 102.375%
202 T ettt et e e e eee—ee e e et taaeeea—taeeaa——eeeeai——eeeeaiatteeeaittaeeeaa—eeeeeabbeaeeatareeeaarreeeeaiarreaean 101.188%
2022 aNA ThETEATLET ....oooeeeeieeeeee e ettt e et e e e e e e eaeeeeteeeenaeeeaeeeeteeeenneeenns 100.000%

The Ziggo 2024 Euro Senior Notes contain certain customary incurrence-based covenants that restrict the ability of Ziggo
Bondco and certain subsidiaries to raise certain additional debt and make certain distributions or loans to other subsidiaries of

Liberty Global.
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If Ziggo B.V. or Ziggo Bondco sell certain assets or experience changes in control (as specified in the applicable indenture)
Ziggo B.V. or Ziggo Bondco must offer to repurchase all of the relevant Ziggo Notes at a redemption price of 101%.

For information regarding certain financing transactions completed subsequent to December 31, 2014 that impact the Ziggo
borrowing group, see note 20.

Telenet Credit Facility

The Telenet Credit Facility, as amended, is the senior secured credit facility of Telenet International. In addition to customary
restrictive covenants, prepayment requirements and events of default, including defaults on other indebtedness of Telenet and its
subsidiaries, the Telenet Credit Facility requires compliance with a net total debt to consolidated annualized EBITDA covenant
and a consolidated EBITDA to total cash interest covenant, each as specified in the Telenet Credit Facility. Under the Telenet
Credit Facility, members of the borrower group are permitted to make certain distributions and restricted payments to its shareholders
subject to compliance with applicable covenants. The Telenet Credit Facility is secured by (i) pledges over the shares of Telenet
NV and certain of its subsidiaries, (ii) pledges over certain intercompany and subordinated shareholder loans and (iii) pledges over
certain receivables, real estate and other assets of Telenet NV, Telenet International and certain other Telenet subsidiaries. The
agreement governing the Telenet Credit Facility contains covenants that limit, among other things, Telenet’s ability to merge with
or into another company, acquire other companies, incur additional debt, dispose of assets, make distributions or pay dividends,
provide loans and guarantees and enter into hedging agreements. In addition to customary default provisions, including defaults
on other indebtedness of Telenet and its subsidiaries, the Telenet Credit Facility provides that any event of default with respect to
indebtedness of €50.0 million ($60.5 million) or more in the aggregate of Telenet and certain of its subsidiaries is an event of
default under the Telenet Credit Facility. If a change of control occurs, as specified in the Telenet Credit Facility, the facility agent
may (if required by the majority lenders) cancel the total commitments and declare all outstanding amounts immediately due and
payable.

The details of our borrowings under the Telenet Credit Facility as of December 31, 2014 are summarized in the following
table:

Facility amount Unused
(in borrowing borrowing Carrying
Facility Maturity Interest rate currency) (a) capacity (b) value

in millions

M ()it November 15, 2020 6.375% € 500.0 $ — $ 6050
(O (<) USRS February 15, 2021 6.625% € 300.0 — 363.0
P ()i June 15,2021 EURIBOR + 3.875% € 400.0 — 484.0
S e December 31,2016  EURIBOR +2.75% € 36.9 44.7 —
U () cevvreieirenieeeesieeese e August 15,2022 6.250% € 450.0 — 544.5
V(C) v August 15,2024 6.750% € 250.0 — 302.5
W (@) oo June 30, 2022 EURIBOR +3.25% € 474.1 — 572.5
D GRS September 30,2020 EURIBOR +2.75% € 286.0 346.1 —
Y (@)oo June 30, 2023 EURIBOR +3.50% € 882.9 — 1,066.1
Elimination of Telenet Facilities M, O, P, U and V in consolidation (C).........cceceververververeeneeneeennen. — (2,299.0)
1] | OSSP PRSP $ 390.8 $ 1,638.6

(a)  Except as described in (c) below, amounts represent total third-party facility amounts at December 31, 2014.
(b)  Telenet Facilities S and X each have a fee on unused commitments of 1.1% per year.

(¢)  Asdescribed below, the amounts outstanding under Telenet Facilities M, O, P, U and V are eliminated in Liberty Global’s
consolidated financial statements.
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(d)  The carrying values of Telenet Facilities W and Y include the impact of discounts.

Refinancing Transactions. In April 2014, Telenet entered into Telenet Facility W and Telenet Facility Y. The net proceeds
from these issuances, along with available cash and cash equivalents, were used to (i) fully redeem the outstanding amounts under
existing Facilities Q, R and T under the Telenet Credit Facility and (ii) fully repay the €100.0 million ($121.0 million) outstanding
principal amount under Telenet Facility N to Telenet Finance Luxembourg I S.A. (Telenet Finance II) and, in turn, Telenet Finance
IT used the proceeds to fully redeem its 5.3% senior secured notes due November 2016 (the Telenet Finance II Notes). Telenet
Finance II was a special purpose financing entity that, prior to the redemption of the Telenet Finance II Notes, was consolidated
by Telenet. In addition, the commitments under Telenet’s then existing revolving credit facility (Telenet Facility S) were reduced
from €158.0 million ($191.2 million) to €36.9 million ($44.7 million) and Telenet entered into Telenet Facility X. In connection
with these transactions, we recognized a loss on debt modification, extinguishment and conversion, net, of $11.9 million, which
includes (a) the write-off of $7.1 million of deferred financing costs, (b) the payment of $3.6 million of redemption premium and
(c) the write-off of $1.2 million of unamortized discount.

Telenet SPE Notes

Telenet Finance Luxembourg S.C.A. (Telenet Finance), Telenet Finance III Luxembourg S.C.A. (Telenet Finance III), Telenet
Finance IV Luxembourg S.C.A. (Telenet Finance IV) and Telenet Finance V Luxembourg S.C.A. (Telenet Finance V and, together
with Telenet Finance, Telenet Finance II, Telenet Finance III and Telenet Finance IV, the Telenet SPEs) are all special purpose
financing entities that are owned 100% by certain third parties. The Telenet SPEs were created for the primary purposes of
facilitating the offerings of €500.0 million ($605.0 million) principal amount of 6.375% senior secured notes (the Telenet Finance
Notes), €300.0 million ($363.0 million) principal amount of 6.625% senior secured notes (the Telenet Finance III Notes), €400.0
million ($484.0 million) principal amount of floating-rate senior secured notes (the Telenet Finance IV Notes), €450.0 million
($544.5 million) principal amount of 6.25% senior secured notes (the 6.25% Telenet Finance V Notes) and €250.0 million ($302.5
million) principal amount of 6.75% senior secured notes (the 6.75% Telenet Finance V Notes and, together with the 6.25% Telenet
Finance V Notes, the Telenet Finance V Notes). We refer to the Telenet Finance Notes, the Telenet Finance III Notes, the Telenet
Finance IV Notes and the Telenet Finance V Notes collectively as the “Telenet SPE Notes.”

On November 3, 2010, February 15, 2011 and June 15, 2011, the applicable Telenet SPE issued the Telenet Finance Notes,
the Telenet Finance III Notes and the Telenet Finance IV Notes and, on August 13, 2012, Telenet Finance V issued the 6.75%
Telenet Finance V Notes and the 6.25% Telenet Finance V Notes, respectively. The proceeds from these Telenet SPE Notes were
used to fund the respective new Facilities M, O, P, U and V of the Telenet Credit Facility, the proceeds of which were in turn
generally applied to repay amounts outstanding under the Telenet Credit Facility.

Each Telenet SPE is dependent on payments from Telenet International under the applicable facility (each, a Telenet SPE
Funded Facility) of the Telenet Credit Facility in order to service its payment obligations under its Telenet SPE Notes. Although
Telenet International has no equity or voting interest in any of the Telenet SPEs, each of the Telenet SPE Funded Facility loans
creates a variable interest in the respective Telenet SPE for which Telenet International is the primary beneficiary, as contemplated
by GAAP. As such, Telenet International and its parent entities, including Telenet and Liberty Global, are required by the provisions
of GAAP to consolidate the Telenet SPEs. Accordingly, the amounts outstanding under Facilities M, O, P, U and V have been
eliminated in Liberty Global’s consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the respective indentures for the Telenet SPE Notes (the Telenet SPE Indentures) and the respective accession
agreements for the Telenet SPE Funded Facilities, the call provisions, maturity and applicable interest rate for each Telenet SPE
Funded Facility are the same as those of the related Telenet SPE Notes. The Telenet SPEs, as lenders under the Telenet Credit
Facility, are treated the same as the other lenders under the Telenet Credit Facility, with benefits, rights and protections similar to
those afforded to the other lenders. Through the covenants in the applicable Telenet SPE Indenture and the applicable security
interests over (i) all of the issued shares of the relevant Telenet SPE and (ii) the relevant Telenet SPE’s rights under the applicable
Telenet SPE Funded Facility granted to secure the obligations of the relevant Telenet SPE under the relevant Telenet SPE Notes,
the holders of the Telenet SPE Notes are provided indirectly with the benefits, rights, protections and covenants, granted to the
Telenet SPEs as lenders under the Telenet Credit Facility.

The Telenet SPEs are prohibited from incurring any additional indebtedness, subject to certain exceptions, under the Telenet
SPE Indentures.
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Subject to the circumstances described below, the Telenet Finance Notes may not be redeemed prior to November 15, 2015,
the Telenet Finance III Notes may not be redeemed prior to February 15,2016, the Telenet Finance IV Notes may not be redeemed
prior to June 15, 2014, the 6.25% Telenet Finance V Notes may not be redeemed prior to August 15, 2017 (except as described
above) and the 6.75% Telenet Finance V Notes may not be redeemed prior to August 15, 2018 (each a Telenet SPE Notes Call
Date). If, however, at any time prior to the applicable Telenet SPE Notes Call Date, a voluntary prepayment of all or a portion of
the loans under the related Telenet SPE Funded Facility occurs, then the applicable Telenet SPE will be required to redeem an
aggregate principal amount of its Telenet SPE Notes equal to the principal amount of the loans so prepaid under the related Telenet
SPE Funded Facility. The redemption price payable will equal the sum of (i) 100% of the principal amount of the applicable
Telenet SPE Notes to be redeemed, (ii) the excess of (a) the present value at such redemption date of (1) the redemption price of
such Telenet SPE Notes on the applicable Telenet SPE Notes Call Date, as determined in accordance with the table below, plus
(2) all required remaining scheduled interest payments thereon due through the applicable Telenet SPE Notes Call Date (excluding
accrued and unpaid interest to such redemption date), computed using the discount rate specified in the applicable Telenet SPE
Indenture, over (b) the principal amount of such Telenet SPE Notes to be redeemed and (iii) accrued and unpaid interest thereon
and additional amounts (as specified in the applicable Telenet SPE Indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date.

On or after (i) the applicable Telenet SPE Notes Call Date, upon the voluntary prepayment of all or a portion of the loans
under the related Telenet SPE Funded Facility, the applicable Telenet SPE will redeem an aggregate principal amount of its Telenet
SPE Notes equal to the principal amount of the loans so prepaid and (ii) in the case of the Telenet SPE Notes, additional amounts
(as specified in the applicable Telenet SPE Indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve-
month period commencing on (a) November 15 for the Telenet Finance Notes, (b) February 15 for the Telenet Finance III Notes,
(c) June 15 for the Telenet Finance IV Notes and (d) August 15 for the Telenet Finance V Notes, of the years set forth below:

Redemption Price

Telenet Telenet Telenet 6.25% Telenet 6.75% Telenet

Finance Finance I11 Finance IV Finance V Finance V
Year Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes
2005 e e 103.188% N.A. 101.000% N.A. N.A.
2000 i 102.125% 103.313% 100.000% N.A. N.A.
2007 et 101.063% 102.209% 100.000% 103.125% N.A.
2018 et 100.000% 101.104% 100.000% 102.083% 103.375%
2009 e 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 101.563% 102.531%
2020 et 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 101.688%
2021 e e N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.844%
2022 and thereafter........c.cocevvverienienvenienene, N.A. N.A. N.A. 100.000% 100.000%

The details of the Telenet SPE Notes as of December 31, 2014 are summarized in the following table:

Outstanding
principal amount

. Borrowing US. $ Estimated  Carrying
Telenet SPEs Notes Maturity Interest rate currency  equivalent fair value value

in millions

Telenet Finance Notes......... November 15, 2020 6.375% € 5000 $ 6050 $ 6398 $ 605.0
Telenet Finance I1I Notes....  February 15, 2021 6.625% € 300.0 363.0 387.0 363.0
Telenet Finance IV

NOES oo, June 15, 2021 EURIBOR +3.875% € 400.0 484.0 487.0 484.0
6.25% Telenet Finance V

NOLES oo, August 15,2022 6.250% € 4500 544.5 595.9 544.5
6.75% Telenet Finance V

NOLES .o August 15, 2024 6.750% € 2500 302.5 340.7 302.5

TOUAL ..o eeeeeeeeee e eee e s e eeeeeeeeeeee e e eee s e eeeesseseeeeeesseeeeeeeees $ 22990 $ 24504 $ 2,299.0
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VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes

On January 24, 2014, VIR Finance B.V. (VTR Finance) issued $1.4 billion principal amount of 6.875% senior secured notes
due January 15,2024 (the VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes) pursuant to an indenture dated January 24,2014 (the VTR Indenture).
The net proceeds from the issuance of the VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes were used, together with existing cash of our
subsidiaries, to repay all of the outstanding indebtedness under Facilities R, S and AE of the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility
in connection with the extraction of VTR Finance and its subsidiaries from the UPC Holding credit pool.

Taking into account the derivative contracts that we entered into in connection with the VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes,
our effective borrowing cost for the VIR Finance Senior Secured Notes is 10.94%.

The VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes are senior obligations of VTR Finance and rank equally with all other existing and
future debt of VTR Finance that is not subordinated in right of payment to the VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes and senior in
right of payment to all existing and future subordinated debt of VIR Finance. The VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes are secured
by a first-ranking pledge over all the shares of VTR Finance and VTR Finance’s subsidiary, United Chile LLC.

At any time prior to January 15, 2019, VTR Finance may redeem some or all of the VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes by
paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments to January 15, 2019
using the discount rate (as specified in the VTR Indenture) as of the applicable redemption date plus 50 basis points.

At any time prior to January 15, 2019, VTR Finance may redeem during each twelve-month period commencing on January
24,2014 up to 10% of the principal amount of the VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes at a redemption price equal to 103% of the
principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest.

VTR Finance may redeem all or part of the VTR Finance Senior Secured Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed
as apercentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional amounts (as specified in the VTR Indenture),
if any, to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve-month period commencing January 15 of the years set
forth below:

Redemption
Year price
2009ttt ettt e et et aeetbe et e aaae et beatbearaearteatbeetbeeabeaabeaateetbeeabeetaeesseeebeesbeenaeeseeetaeanbeensenstesreas 103.438%
20201ttt ettt ettt e et ettt e e teeteebe et e eaeatte ettt et beaaaa et teeebearaeartaasae et beasteenteeseeesbeesbeesaeasaeesbeesaeenaeesaeetaeasaeessensaeneeas 102.292%
2021 ettt ettt ettt e e te bt e be e be et aeeabean b e erbeeabeeateanbeanbeenteanbeanteenbeenteenbeanteenbeenbeenbeanteenseenbeenbeanseensennaennsas 101.146%
2022 ANA TREIEATEET ....eeuvieiiiiii ettt et te et ettt eebeebe st e esbeesbeessessseasseensaessesnseasseansaassesssesnseensennsennses 100.000%

VTR Credit Facility

The VTR Credit Facility is the senior secured credit facility of VTR and certain of its subsidiaries and consists of the VTR
Dollar Credit Facility and the VTR CLP Credit Facility. The VTR Dollar Credit Facility and the VTR CLP Credit Facility have
fees on unused commitments of 1.1% and 1.34% per year, respectively. The interest rate for the VTR Dollar Credit Facility is
LIBOR plus a margin of 2.75%. The interest rate for the VTR CLP Credit Facility is the applicable interbank offered rate for
Chilean pesos in the relevant interbank market plus a margin of 3.35%. Borrowings under the VTR Dollar Credit Facility and the
VTR CLP Credit Facility mature in January 2020 and January 2019, respectively.

Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility

At December 31, 2014, the Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility consists of (i) a $530.0 million first lien term loan that matures
on January 7, 2022 (the LPR Term Loan B), (ii) a $145.0 million second lien term loan that matures on July 7, 2023 (the LPR
Term Loan C) and (iii) a $40.0 million revolving credit facility (the LPR Revolving Loan), which revolving facility was undrawn
at December 31, 2014. The net proceeds from LPR Term Loan B and LPR Term Loan C were used to repay all amounts previously
outstanding under the Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility. The LPR Term Loan B and LPR Term Loan C, each of which were
issued at 99.5% of par, bear interest at LIBOR plus 3.50% and LIBOR plus 6.75%, respectively, and are subject to a LIBOR floor
of 1.0%. The LPR Revolving Loan, which matures on July 7, 2020 and bears interest at LIBOR plus 3.50%, has a fee on unused
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commitments of 0.50% or 0.375% depending on the consolidated total net leverage ratio (as specified in the Liberty Puerto Rico
Bank Facility).

In addition to customary restrictive covenants, prepayment requirements and events of default, including defaults on other
indebtedness of Liberty Puerto Rico and its subsidiaries, the Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility requires compliance with the
following financial covenants: (i) consolidated total net leverage ratio and (ii) consolidated first lien net leverage ratio, each as
specified in the Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility. The Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility permits Liberty Puerto Rico to transfer
funds to its parent company (and indirectly to Liberty Global) through loans, dividends or other distributions provided that Liberty
Puerto Rico maintains compliance with applicable covenants.

The Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility is secured by pledges over (i) the Liberty Puerto Rico shares indirectly owned by our
company and (ii) certain other assets owned by Liberty Puerto Rico.

In December 2014, we entered into additional facilities under the Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility in connection with our
execution of the agreement to acquire Choice. These facilities provide for $257.5 million of aggregate borrowing availability
subject to the completion of the Choice Acquisition. For additional information regarding the Choice Acquisition, see note 4.

Refinancing Transactions. During 2014 and 2012, we completed refinancing transactions that generally resulted in additional
borrowings or extended maturities under the Liberty Puerto Rico Bank Facility. In connection with these transactions, we recognized
losses on debt modification, extinguishment and conversion, net, of $9.8 million and $4.4 million during 2014 and 2012,
respectively. These losses include (i) third-party costs of $7.1 million and $3.8 million, respectively, (ii) the write-offs of deferred
financing costs of $3.6 million and $0.6 million, respectively and (iii) the write-offs of unamortized premiums of $0.9 million and
nil, respectively.

Maturities of Debt and Capital Lease Obligations
Maturities of our debt and capital lease obligations as of December 31, 2014 are presented below for the named entity and its

subsidiaries, unless otherwise noted. Amounts presented below represent U.S. dollar equivalents based on December 31, 2014
exchange rates:

Debt:
Virgin UPC Unitymedia
Media Holding (a) KabelBW Ziggo Telenet (b) Other Total
in millions
Year ending December 31:
2015 i $ 406.5 $ 436.0 $ 4555 $ — 5 9.0 $ 433 $ 13503
2016 ..o — — — — 9.0 351.0 360.0
2017 e — — — — 9.0 908.1 917.1
2018 e — — — — 9.0 239.5 248.5
2019 i 584.3 — — — 20.5 — 604.8
Thereafter ........ccccoeerereennene. 12,262.7 9,595.4 7,402.5 5,755.9 4,040.2 2,074.8 41,131.5
Total debt maturities........... 13,253.5 10,031.4 7,858.0 5,755.9 4,096.7 3,616.7 44,612.2
Unamortized premium
(discount) ......cccceverereennee. 19.8 (15.2) (1.6) 31.9 34 (32.3) 0.8)
Total debt .......cccoererrecenee. $ 13,2733 $ 10,0162 $ 7,8564 §$§ 5,787.8 § 4,093.3 $ 3,584.4 $ 44,6114
Current portion (¢) ... $ 4086 $ 4360 $ 4555 §  — $ 90 $ 433 m
Noncurrent portion............... $ 12,8647 $ 95802 $ 74009 $ 5787.8 § 40843 S 3,541.1 §$ 432590
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(a)  Amounts include the UPCB SPE Notes issued by the UPCB SPEs. As described above, the UPCB SPEs are consolidated

by UPC Holding.

(b)  Amounts include certain senior secured notes issued by special purpose financing entities that are consolidated by Telenet.

(¢)  Includes the $338.8 million principal amount outstanding under the revolving credit facilities of our subsidiaries.

Capital lease obligations:

Unitymedia Virgin
KabelBW Telenet Media Other Total
in millions
Year ending December 31:
2015 e $ 88.7 $ 66.7 $ 1227  $ 223 300.4
2016 e 88.7 65.2 69.5 20.1 243.5
2007 e 88.7 63.4 29.6 13.1 194.8
20L8 .t 88.7 60.0 6.6 5.8 161.1
2009 oot 88.7 49.6 44 2.9 145.6
Thereafter .........oovveieeieeeeeeeeeeeee e 965.9 252.5 222.1 21.8 1,462.3
Total principal and interest payments................. 1,409.4 557.4 454.9 86.0 2,507.7
Amounts representing interest............ceceeererenene (599.3) (144.0) (199.6) (17.2) (960.1)
Present value of net minimum lease payments... $§ 810.1 § 4134 $ 2553 §$ 688 $ 1,547.6
CUurrent POTtioN........ceeviveeieriereieeeereereeeeeereeeeneeeenens $ 271§ 413 $ 1116 $ 185 $ 198.5
Noncurrent Portion...........c.eeeveveereereesreereereeenereenns $ 783.0 $ 3721 $ 1437 $ 503 $  1,349.1

Non-cash Refinancing Transactions

During 2014, 2013 and 2012, certain of our refinancing transactions included non-cash borrowings and repayments of debt
aggregating $5,418.8 million, $5,061.5 million and $3,793.4 million, respectively. During 2013, we also recorded a $3,557.5
million non-cash increase to our debt as a result of certain financing transactions completed in contemplation of the execution of
the Virgin Media Merger Agreement. For additional information, see note 4.
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1) Income Taxes

As a result of the Virgin Media Acquisition, pursuant to which Liberty Global became the publicly-held parent company of
the successors by merger of LGI and Virgin Media, our statutory tax rate changed during 2013 from the U.S. federal income tax
rate of 35.0% to the U.K. statutory income tax rate. The U.K. statutory income tax rate is currently 21.0%. Liberty Global has
filed income tax returns in the U.K. and U.S. for 2014 and 2013, and LGI will continue to file consolidated income tax returns in
the U.S. The income taxes of Liberty Global and its subsidiaries are presented on a separate return basis for each tax-paying entity
or group.

The components of our loss from continuing operations before income taxes are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
in millions

Sttt b ettt ettt ettt § (1,105.6) $ (306.3) § (73.3)
The Netherlands ..........ccceecieriiirieeeeeceee et nes (644.5) 799.9 (152.3)
UK ettt ettt ettt b ettt bea e R b e st ettt et e st se s et en e te b enteseenenens 585.7 (976.0) (11.6)
SWItZETIANA. ...ttt ettt s e eenes 326.1 284.3 274.8
GIETIMANY ...ttt ettt e ettt ae b et s e e bt et e s e st e st esenees e eteaseneeneeseaeeneeseesenseneeseseenens (294.7) (355.8) (498.4)
BEIIUM ...ttt sttt b e et eserb b saeeanessensenas 21.5 89.5 96.9
ORET ..ttt sttt ettt ettt ettt 55.6 (62.1) (145.0)
TOTAL. ettt sttt $ (1,0559) § (526.5) § (508.9)
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Income tax benefit (expense) consists of:

Current Deferred Total
in millions

Year ended December 31, 2014:

Continuing operations:

UK ettt e $ 21 $ 1134 § 111.3
LS. () 1ttt (22.5) 129.6 107.1
BeIIUML. ..ottt e (138.7) 31.7 (107.0)
SWIZETTANA ...ttt e (76.8) 3.1 (73.7)
The Netherlands..........cccoeveiririnienicirecece et 11.1 42.5 53.6
GETIMANY ..ottt ettt ettt et ea e s bt bt ettt ebesbe e e st et b e euesbeneeneenens (22.6) 37.0 14.4
ONCT ..o (24.0) (6.7) (30.7)
Total — continuing OPErations........c..cceeeeuereerierreireniereeeneneeeereseeeenennes § (275.6) § 3506 § 75.0
Discontinued OPErations .........ccceeererieieriinirieietee ettt eieens s — 3 0.1) $ 0.1)

Year ended December 31, 2013:

Continuing operations:

UK ettt $ 24) $ (2452) $ (247.6)
BeIGIUIML .ttt ettt (97.1) (16.2) (113.3)
The Netherlands..........ccoeveiiininiinieieceee et 0.5 97.3 97.8
SWIZEITANA ...t (53.6) (4.4) (58.0)
GOITNAIY ...oveiritinitetetet ettt ettt ettt ettt bttt ettt bttt et bbb e ebens (13.2) (38.1) (51.3)
LS. () oo eeeeee e (106.0) 104.9 (1.1)
ORI .ottt ettt (65.1) 83.1 18.0
Total — cONtiNUING OPETALIONS. .....veveeerveriiereeiriereeereeteteieesteteeseeeeeeeesenees $ (3369 $ (18.6) $ (355.5)
Discontinued OPErations ...........cecuevueruererieiinerenietentenenieerete e seeeneste e sieeenens $—(205) $—(22) $—(227)

Year ended December 31, 2012:

Continuing operations:

GOITNAIY ...eoveiieteiietet et ettt ettt ettt s et b et e st b sttt eneebeseeesens $ 40 $ 119.6 § 123.6
The Netherlands..........ccoeveiririninicicrecncee e (8.2) (67.6) (75.8)
SWIZEITANA ...t 8.7) (63.7) (72.4)
BeIZIUML. ..ottt e (1.5) (54.5) (56.0)
LS. () i 38.2 (44.6) (6.4)
ULK s 0.1) (0.7) (0.8)

OMNET oo eeseeee e (62.7) 75.5 12.8
Total — cONtINUING OPETALIONS. ....c.veveeeeereireeriieteetrieieteie et seereneas $ (39.0) $ (36.0) $ (75.0)
Discontinued OPEIations ..........c.c.ceeveueuerieieireeienirietereeieee et seeneneas $—(148) $—(133) $—(281)

(a) Includes federal and state income taxes. Our U.S. state income taxes were not material during any of the years presented.
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Income tax benefit (expense) attributable to our loss from continuing operations before income taxes differs from the amounts

computed using the applicable income tax rate as a result of the following factors:

Computed “expected” tax benefit (2).........ccceevveviiiiiieieiie e

Change in valuation allowances (b):

DIBCTCASE ...t e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ttraaaeeeaeeeeeeeaarrraaaeeeeeenn

INCTEASE. ... vt e e e e e e e e e e et aa e e e e e e e e eeenrararaaaeaeeeenn

International rate differences (b) (c):

00 (2 TP

) D LTe) (o U

Non-deductible or non-taxable interest and other expenses (b):

DIECTCASE ...t e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e ee e aeeeean
TNICT@ASE. ...ttt e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e ee et raraaaeeeean

Tax effect of intercompany fiNaNCING ........c.cocveevveriieriiiiiieieeie e

Basis and other differences in the treatment of items associated with investments

in subsidiaries and affilIates ...........ocooviviiiiiiiiiiieeee e

Non-deductible or non-taxable foreign currency exchange results (b):

THICTRASE. ...ttt sttt st st
DECIEASE ...ttt ettt ettt
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax benefits..........ccoccevererieieniniiceienne.
Enacted tax law and rate changes (d).......ccccevverierieniienieriesieseesee e
Change in subsidiary tax attributes due to a deemed change in control .....................
(013515 280 <] A U TR SRRSO

Total income tax benefit (EXPENSE)........ccveveruerrererieierieneeeeieiesee e eeeaeeenes

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
in millions

2217 $ 121.1  $ 178.1
(373.1) (112.6) (148.3)
11.9 31.7 25.6
266.4 148.2 60.6
(27.6) (50.8) (81.8)
(236.5) (133.5) (84.7)
58.0 85.2 24
166.9 82.7 —
(135.4) 4.0) (24.6)
71.9 0.5 —
(16.3) (56.1) (10.4)
29.5 — —
23.9 (377.8) 12.3
— (88.0) —
13.7 2.1 4.2)
750 $ (355.5) $ (75.0)

(a)  The statutory or “expected” tax rates are the U.K. rate of 21.0%, the U.K. rate of 23.0% and the U.S. rate of 35.0% for

2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

(b)  Country jurisdictions giving rise to increases are grouped together and shown separately from country jurisdictions giving

rise to decreases.

(c)  Amounts reflect adjustments (either an increase or a decrease) to “expected” tax benefit for statutory rates in jurisdictions
in which we operate outside of the U.K. for 2014 and 2013 and outside of the U.S. for 2012.

(d) InApril 2014, the U.K. corporate income tax rate decreased from 23.0% to 21.0%, with a further decline to 20.0% scheduled
for April 2015. Substantially all of the impact of these rate changes on our deferred tax balances was recorded in the third

quarter of 2013.
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The current and non-current components of our deferred tax assets are as follows:

December 31,
2014 2013
in millions

CUITENE AETEITEA TAX ASSELS.....vvviiiieieiiee it eeietee e ettt e e ettt e e eeeaateeeesateeesesteeeesaseessasseeesssaseeesensseessas $ 2903 $ 226.1
Non-current deferred tax aSSELS (A).....ceeevierrierierieriieriieiieseerte et esteesreesreesreesteesseesseesseesseesssesseeseenses 2,587.0 2,641.8
Current deferred tax Habilities ().........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiicice s (0.6) (1.5)
Non-current deferred tax Habilities (&) ......ccvecererierieiriirieiienececceeeee et (2,369.4) (1,554.2)
NEE AETEITEA TAX ASSEL ...ttt ettt ettt et e et e et e et e e e e e e et e eaeeeaneenes $ 507.3 § 13122

(a)  Our current deferred tax liabilities are included in other accrued and current liabilities, and our non-current deferred tax
assets and liabilities are included in other assets: amounts recoverable in more than one year, and other non-current liabilities,
respectively, in our consolidated balance sheets.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are presented below:

December 31,
2014 2013
in millions

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss and other carryfOrwards .............coccoivreiineiiincinncecrece e $ 6,6379 § 7,286.1
Property and qUIPMENt, NEt..........ccooueuiiiiiiiieiiiieire e 3,469.2 3,470.7
DIEDE ..ttt bttt b b st b ekt b et b ettt aenn 1,189.0 837.7
DETivative INSIIUIMEIIES ......eoveuiiuiriiieiiiieteieit ettt ettt ettt sttt et be et eue b s e ene e 345.9 518.4
INEANGIDIC ASSELS .....eeieiieiitiit ettt ettt s ae et ettt e b e bt ettt eaeeneen 149.6 187.5
Other future deductible AMOUNES ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiice e 265.3 265.0
DEfETTEA tAX ASSEES....vietieiieiieiieie ettt ettt ettt et et ettt e be et e esbeenbeesbe e beenseenseenbeenseenseenseenses 12,056.9 12,565.4
Valuation AllOWANCE ......c.coerueiiiiriiieiiitcriet ettt ettt ettt ettt b bbbttt be bbb e (6,679.4) (7,052.8)
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance.............cocveiecierininiecierese e 5,377.5 5,512.6
Deferred tax liabilities:
INTANGIDIC ASSELS .....eveveneeiititeiieertct ettt ettt ettt ettt eb et s et sa e b nen (2,338.2) (1,471.1)
Property and eqUIPMENt, NET........c.coueiririeieiriiieieenet ettt sttt ve et eb e eae e (1,861.4) (1,945.3)
TIVESTITIEIIES ...ttt ettt bt e s ettt bt e st et et ebeebe et e be et eaeeneen (367.6) (400.7)
DErivative INSEIUMEGIIES ...c..eovirtiiiiiirtirteeteetetent ettt ettt et ettt oot bt et ebe e tesbesbe e bt et enaesbeebeenee (142.7) (129.5)
Other future taxable aMOUNTS ........cc.coiiiiiiiiiiriiet ettt (160.3) (253.8)
Deferred tax HabIlItIES .......cevverieiririeieiieieete ettt sttt sttt st (4,870.2) (4,200.4)
INEE AETEITEA tAX ASSET..e.eveeeereeeeee ettt et e et e et e e e e e et eeeeeeesaeeeeaeeseaeeeeaeeseseeseaneesraeens $ 5073 $ 1,312.2

Our deferred income tax valuation allowance decreased $373.4 million in 2014. This decrease reflects the net effect of (i)
foreign currency translation adjustments, (ii) the net tax expense related to our continuing operations of $361.2 million, (iii)
acquisitions, (iv) expiration of net operating losses and (v) other individually insignificant items.

Virgin Media had property and equipment on which future U.K. tax deductions can be claimed of $21.6 billion and $22.2
billion at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The maximum amount of these “capital allowances” that can be claimed in
any one year is 18% of the remaining balance, after additions, disposals and prior claims. The tax effects of these capital allowances
are included in the 2014 and 2013 deferred tax assets related to property and equipment, net, in the above table.
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At December 31, 2014, our unrecognized excess tax benefits aggregated $141.7 million. These excess tax benefits, which
represent tax deductions in excess of the financial reporting expense for share-based compensation, will not be recognized for
financial reporting purposes until such time as these tax benefits can be realized as a reduction of income taxes payable. The tax
effects of these unrecognized excess tax benefits are not included in the above table.

The significant components of our tax loss carryforwards and related tax assets at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Tax loss Related Expiration
Country carryforward tax asset date

in millions

UK ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e eae e aeerb e st et e e beetaesaenbeeaeereeraens $ 21,1192 $ 4,223.8 Indefinite
The Netherlands...........ccocveieiiriiiiieieieiese et s ens 3,025.8 756.4  2015-2023
GETIMANY ....eeviniiiterteteie ettt ettt ettt sttt b et b e s bt s bt b e e e st et e st et ebe et e be st ebe e 2,670.1 424.8 Indefinite
S et bbbttt ettt st ebe 1,550.3 405.1  2019-2034
Luxembourg 1,030.7 301.2 Indefinite
FTANCE oottt ettt e et e et naaesabeeenee 585.1 201.4 Indefinite
BelGIUIML. ..ttt 506.3 172.1 Indefinite
7S] 1 T BT 466.0 58.2 Indefinite
HUNGATY <.ttt ettt st s ettt eae e 209.8 39.9 2025
ORET 1.ttt ettt sttt 240.7 55.0 Various
TOAL e e e eeeee e ee e ees e ees e eee s eee s eee s eeseeeees e see s eesseeees $ 31,4040 $  6,637.9

Our tax loss carryforwards within each jurisdiction combine all companies’ tax losses (both capital and ordinary losses) in
that jurisdiction, however, certain tax jurisdictions limit the ability to offset taxable income of a separate company or different tax
group with the tax losses associated with another separate company or group. The majority of the tax losses shown in the above
table are not expected to be realized, including certain losses that are limited in use due to change in control or same business tests.

We intend to indefinitely reinvest earnings from certain non-U.S. operations except to the extent the earnings are subject to
current income taxes. At December 31, 2014, income and withholding taxes for which a net deferred tax liability might otherwise
be required have not been provided on an estimated $11.1 billion of cumulative temporary differences (including, for this purpose,
any difference between the aggregate tax basis in stock of a consolidated subsidiary and the corresponding amount of the subsidiary’s
net equity determined for financial reporting purposes) on non-U.S. entities. The determination of the additional withholding tax
that would arise upon a reversal of temporary differences is impractical to estimate as it is subject to offset by available foreign
tax credits and subject to certain limitations.

In general, a U.K. or U.S. corporation may claim a foreign tax credit against its income tax expense for foreign income taxes
paid or accrued. A U.S. corporation may also claim a credit for foreign income taxes paid or accrued on the earnings of a foreign
corporation paid to the U.S. corporation as a dividend.

Our ability to claim a foreign tax credit for dividends received from our foreign subsidiaries or foreign taxes paid or accrued
is subject to various significant limitations under U.S. tax laws including a limited carry back and carry forward period. Some of
our operating companies are located in countries with which the U.K. or U.S. does not have income tax treaties. Because we lack
treaty protection in these countries, we may be subject to high rates of withholding taxes on distributions and other payments from
these operating companies and may be subject to double taxation on our income. Limitations on the ability to claim a foreign tax
credit, lack of treaty protection in some countries, and the inability to offset losses in one jurisdiction against income earned in
another jurisdiction could result in a high effective tax rate on our earnings. Since a significant portion of our revenue is generated
outside of the U.K. and substantially all of our revenue is generated outside the U.S., including in jurisdictions that do not have
tax treaties with the U.K. or U.S., these risks are greater for us than for companies that generate most of their revenue in the U.K.
or U.S. or in jurisdictions that have these treaties.

Through our subsidiaries, we maintain a presence in many countries. Many of these countries maintain highly complex tax
regimes that differ significantly from the system of income taxation used in the U.K. and the U.S. We have accounted for the
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effect of these taxes based on what we believe is reasonably expected to apply to us and our subsidiaries based on tax laws currently
in effect and reasonable interpretations of these laws. Because some jurisdictions do not have systems of taxation that are as well
established as the system of income taxation used in the U.K., U.S. or tax regimes used in other major industrialized countries, it
may be difficult to anticipate how other jurisdictions will tax our and our subsidiaries’ current and future operations.

Although we intend to take reasonable tax planning measures to limit our tax exposures, no assurance can be given that we
will be able to do so.

We and our subsidiaries file consolidated and standalone income tax returns in various jurisdictions. In the normal course of
business, our income tax filings are subject to review by various taxing authorities. In connection with such reviews, disputes
could arise with the taxing authorities over the interpretation or application of certain income tax rules related to our business in
that tax jurisdiction. Such disputes may result in future tax and interest and penalty assessments by these taxing authorities. The
ultimate resolution of tax contingencies will take place upon the earlier of (i) the settlement date with the applicable taxing authorities
in either cash or agreement of income tax positions or (ii) the date when the tax authorities are statutorily prohibited from adjusting
the company’s tax computations.

In general, tax returns filed by our company or our subsidiaries for years prior to 2008 are no longer subject to examination
by tax authorities. Certain of our subsidiaries are currently involved in income tax examinations in various jurisdictions in which
we operate, including Germany (2008 through 2010), the Netherlands (2011 through 2014), Slovakia (2011), Switzerland (2011
through 2012) and the U.S. (2009 through 2014). Except as noted below, any adjustments that might arise from the foregoing
examinations are not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations. In the
U.S., the consolidated income tax returns of LGI for 2009 through 2014 are under examination and, during the fourth quarter of
2013, we received two notifications from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regarding proposed adjustments to the 2010 and
2009 taxable income of LGI. We are in discussions with the IRS with respect to these proposed adjustments. While we believe
that the resolution of these proposed adjustments will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows, no assurance can be given that this will be the case given the amounts involved and the complex nature
of the related issues.

The changes in our unrecognized tax benefits are summarized below:

2014 2013 2012
in millions

Balance at JANUATY 1 ......coooiiiiiiiieeee e $ 4909 $ 3597 $ 400.6
Additions for tax positions Of PIiOT YEALS ......ccceevverueriiririerienienieeeeeeereeee e 64.5 41.5 5.5
Reductions for tax positions of Prior YEars........cccceverereeienenenieiereneneeeeeenee e (50.2) (14.2) (124.2)
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year..........c.ccocecevereeecnnene. 38.2 102.3 89.9
Foreign currency translation ..........c..coeceverieirinienieineniete e (27.0) 7.9 2.9
Lapse of statute of limitations.............. (1.9) (6.3) (15.0)
Settlements with tax authorities (1.0) — —

Balance at DECEMBET 31 ... e e e e e e e e e $ 5135 $ 4909 $ 359.7

No assurance can be given that any of these tax benefits will be recognized or realized.

As of December 31, 2014, our unrecognized tax benefits included $332.9 million of tax benefits that would have a favorable
impact on our effective income tax rate if ultimately recognized, after considering amounts that we would expect to be offset by
valuation allowances and other factors.

During 2015, it is reasonably possible that the resolution of ongoing examinations by tax authorities as well as expiration of
statutes of limitation could result in significant reductions to our unrecognized tax benefits related to tax positions taken as of
December 31,2014. The amount of any such reductions could range up to $230 million. Other than the potential impacts of these
ongoing examinations and the expected expiration of certain statutes of limitation, we do not expect any material changes to our
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unrecognized tax benefits during 2015. No assurance can be given as to the nature or impact of any changes in our unrecognized
tax positions during 2015.

During 2014, 2013 and 2012, the income tax benefit (expense) of our continuing operations includes net income tax expense
of $10.9 million, $14.0 million and $7.7 million, respectively, representing the net accrual of interest and penalties during the
period. Our provisions for liabilities include accrued interest and penalties of $51.7 million at December 31, 2014.

(12) Equity
Capitalization

Our authorized share capital consists of an aggregate nominal amount of $20.0 million, consisting of any of the following:
(i) Liberty Global Class A ordinary shares, Liberty Global Class B ordinary shares and Liberty Global Class C ordinary shares,
each with a nominal value of $0.01 per share, (ii) Liberty Global preferred shares, with a nominal value of $0.01 per share, the
issuance of one or more classes or series of which as may be authorized by the board of directors, and (iii) any other shares of one
or more classes as may be determined by the board of directors or by the shareholders of Liberty Global.

Under Liberty Global’s Articles of Association, holders of Liberty Global Class A ordinary shares are entitled to one vote for
each such share held, and holders of Liberty Global Class B ordinary shares are entitled to 10 votes for each such share held, on
all matters submitted to a vote of Liberty Global shareholders at any general meeting (annual or special). Holders of Liberty
Global Class C ordinary shares are not entitled to any voting powers.

Each Liberty Global Class B ordinary share is convertible into one Liberty Global Class A ordinary share at the option of the
holder. One Liberty Global Class A ordinary share is reserved for issuance for each Liberty Global Class B ordinary share that is
issued (10,139,184 shares issued as of December 31,2014). At December 31,2014, there were (i) 1,726,259 and 3,946,192 Liberty
Global Class A and Class C ordinary shares, respectively, reserved for issuance pursuant to outstanding stock options, (ii) 8,396,737
and 23,055,293 Liberty Global Class A and Class C ordinary shares, respectively, reserved for issuance pursuant to outstanding
SARs and PSARs, and (iii) 2,554,963, 1,000,000 and 3,829,770 Liberty Global Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary shares,
respectively, reserved for issuance pursuant to outstanding PSUs, PGUs and RSUs.

Subject to any preferential rights of any outstanding class of our preferred shares, the holders of Liberty Global Class A, Class
B and Class C ordinary shares will be entitled to such dividends as may be declared from time to time by our board of directors
from funds available therefor. Except with respect to certain share distributions, whenever a dividend is paid to the holder of one
class of our ordinary shares, we shall also pay to the holders of the other classes of our ordinary shares an equal per share dividend.
There are currently no contractual restrictions on our ability to pay dividends in cash or shares.

In the event of our liquidation, dissolution and winding up, after payment or provision for payment of our debts and liabilities
and subject to the prior payment in full of any preferential amounts to which our preferred shareholders may be entitled, the holders
of Liberty Global Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary shares will share equally, on a share for share basis, in our assets remaining
for distribution to the holders of Liberty Global ordinary shares.

Acquisition of Interests in VTR and VTR Wireless

On March 14, 2014, a subsidiary of VTR Finance acquired each of the 20.0% noncontrolling ownership interests in VTR and
VTR Wireless SpA (VTR Wireless) from Inversiones Corp Comm 2 SpA (the VTR NCI Acquisition), formerly known as Corp
Comm S.A. (the VTR NCI Owner). VTR Wireless was an indirect subsidiary of Liberty Global that was merged with a subsidiary
of VTR in December 2014. The consideration for the VTR NCI Acquisition was satisfied by the allotment and issuance of
10,091,178 Liberty Global Class C ordinary shares to the VTR NCI Owner. The VTR NCI Acquisition has been accounted for
as an equity transaction, the net effect of which was to record the issued Liberty Global Class C shares at the $185.4 million
carrying value of the acquired noncontrolling interests.
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Share Repurchases

During 2014, 2013 and 2012, our board of directors authorized various share repurchase programs, the most recent of which
provides for the repurchase of up to $4.5 billion (before direct acquisition costs) of Liberty Global Class A and/or Class C ordinary
shares. Under these plans, we receive authorization to acquire up to the specified amount of Liberty Global Class A and Class C
ordinary shares or other authorized securities from time to time through open market or privately negotiated transactions, which
may include derivative transactions. The timing of the repurchase of shares or other securities pursuant to our equity repurchase
programs, which may be suspended or discontinued at any time, is dependent on a variety of factors, including market conditions.
As of December 31, 2014, the remaining amount authorized for share repurchases was $1,933.7 million. Subsequent to
December 31, 2014, our board of directors authorized an additional $2.0 billion of availability for share repurchases.

As a UK. incorporated company, we may only elect to repurchase shares or pay dividends to the extent of our “Distributable
Reserves.” Distributable Reserves, which are not linked to a GAAP reported amount, may be created through the earnings of the
U.K. parent company and, amongst other methods, through a reduction in share premium approved by the English Companies
Court. Based on the amounts set forth in our 2013 U.K. Companies Act Report that was filed with the U.K. Companies House
on May, 7, 2014, which are our most recent “Relevant Accounts” for the purposes of determining our Distributable Reserves under
U.K. law, our Distributable Reserves are $28.7 billion. This amount does not reflect earnings, share repurchases, dividends or
other activity that occurred in 2014, each of which impacts the amount of our Distributable Reserves.

The following table provides details of our share repurchases during 2014, 2013 and 2012:

Liberty Global Class A Liberty Global Class C
ordinary shares or ordinary shares or
LGI Series A common stock LGI Series C common stock
Average price Average price
Shares paid per Shares paid per
Purchase date purchased share (a) purchased share (a) Total cost (a)
in millions
Shares purchased pursuant to repurchase
programs during:
2014 e 8,062,792 § 42.19 28,401,019 $ 4425 § 1,596.9
2003 e 6,550,197 § 37.70 24,761,397 $ 36.55 $ 1,151.9
2002 e 5,611,380 § 27.30 32,782,838 $ 2524 % 980.7

(a) Includes direct acquisition costs and the effects of derivative instruments, where applicable.
Call Option Contracts

From time to time, we enter into call option contracts pursuant to which we contemporaneously (i) sell call options on shares
of Liberty Global ordinary shares and (ii) purchase call options on an equivalent number of shares of Liberty Global ordinary
shares with an exercise price of zero. These contracts can result in the receipt of cash and shares of Liberty Global ordinary shares.
Shares acquired through the exercise of the call options are included in our share repurchases and the net gain on cash settled
contracts is recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital in our consolidated statements of equity.

Other

Telenet Tender. On December 17,2012, Binan Investments B.V. (Binan), our wholly-owned subsidiary, launched a voluntary
and conditional cash public offer (the Telenet Tender) for (i) all of Telenet’s issued shares that Binan did not already own or that
were not held by Telenet (the Telenet Bid Shares) and (ii) certain outstanding vested and unvested employee warrants (the Telenet
Bid Warrants). The offer price for the Telenet Bid Shares was €35.00 ($42.35) per share. The offer prices for the Telenet Bid
Warrants, which were calculated using the Black Scholes option pricing model and a price of €35.00 for each of the Telenet Bid
Shares, ranged from €13.48 ($16.31) per share to €25.47 ($30.82) per share.
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Pursuant to the Telenet Tender, which was completed on February 1, 2013, we paid aggregate consideration of €332.5 million
($454.6 million at the transaction date) to acquire (i) 9,497,637 of the Telenet Bid Shares, increasing our ownership interest in
Telenet’s issued and outstanding shares at such date to 58.4%, and (ii) 3,000 of the Telenet Bid Warrants. As we owned a controlling
financial interest in Telenet prior to the launch of the Telenet Tender, we accounted for the impact of the acquisition of the additional
Telenet shares as an equity transaction.

Telenet Share Repurchases. From time to time, Telenet’s shareholders approve share repurchase programs. Under these
programs, Telenet is able to acquire outstanding shares of up to a certain maximum threshold within a given period of time following
the approval date.

Subsidiary Distributions. During 2013 and 2012, Telenet and VTR made certain cash distributions to their respective
shareholders. Our share of these distributions was eliminated in consolidation and the noncontrolling interest owners’ share of
these distributions was reflected as a charge against noncontrolling interests in our consolidated statements of equity.

Restricted Net Assets

The ability of certain of our subsidiaries to distribute or loan all or a portion of their net assets to our company is limited by
the terms of applicable debt facilities. At December 31, 2014, substantially all of our net assets represented net assets of our
subsidiaries that were subject to such limitations.

a3) Share-based Compensation

Our share-based compensation expense is based on the share-based incentive awards held by our and our subsidiaries’
employees, including share-based incentive awards related to Liberty Global shares and the shares of certain of our subsidiaries.
The following table summarizes our share-based compensation expense:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
in millions

Liberty Global shares:
Performance-based incentive aWards (2) ........cecvverierieriesieniesiesieseesee e seesreene $ 1299 $ 586 §$ 33.0
Other share-based INCENtIVE AWATdS ........cceeueeiieriiriirieieere e 99.7 182.9 46.0
Total Liberty Global Shares (b)........ccceveieirerieieeieieieeieeeeese e 229.6 241.5 79.0
Telenet share-based incentive awards (C).......ecvevverviieeierieniieeieieie e 14.6 56.5 31.2
ORET ...ttt b bt b et b bttt b b nee 13.0 4.5 2.2
TOAL ettt sttt $ 2572 % 3025 § 112.4

Included in:
Continuing operations:

OPETAtING EXPENSC.c..nveverinreurereriertentetteteteutetestetenestessentetessesesessesseseeuessenseseeuenaens $ 76 $ 121 % 8.5
SGEA CXPEINSC ...ttt sttt ettt sttt ettt s be sttt nene 249.6 288.6 101.6

Total - cONtiNUING OPEIatioNS. .....c.cevuiruireieieierterteeiieee et 257.2 300.7 110.1
Discontinued operations () .......c..ceceerereririeninenenieene e — 1.8 2.3
TOLAL . et $ 2572 $ 302.5 $ 112.4

(a) Includes share-based compensation expense related to (i) Liberty Global PSUs for all periods presented, (ii) a challenge
performance award plan issued on June 24, 2013 for certain executive officers and key employees (the Challenge
Performance Awards) and (iii) for 2014, the Performance Grant Units (PGUs), as described below. The Challenge
Performance Awards include performance-based share appreciation rights (PSARs) and PSUs.

(b)  In connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition, we issued Liberty Global share-based incentive awards (Virgin Media
Replacement Awards) to employees and former directors of Virgin Media in exchange for corresponding Virgin Media
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awards. Virgin Media recorded share-based compensation expense of $55.8 million during 2014, including compensation
expense related to the Virgin Media Replacement Awards and new awards that were granted after the Virgin Media
Replacement Awards were issued. During 2013, Virgin Media recorded share-based compensation expense of $134.3
million, primarily related to the Virgin Media Replacement Awards, including $80.1 million that was charged to expense
in recognition of the Virgin Media Replacement Awards that were fully vested on June 7, 2013 or for which vesting was
accelerated pursuant to the terms of the Virgin Media Merger Agreement on or prior to December 31, 2013.

Represents the share-based compensation expense associated with Telenet’s share-based incentive awards, including (i)
warrants and employee stock options with 1,082,322 awards outstanding as of December 31, 2014 at a weighted average
exercise price of €27.17 ($32.88), (ii) an employee share purchase plan, (iii) performance-based specific stock option plans
for the Chief Executive Officer with 565,000 awards outstanding as of December 31, 2014 at a weighted average exercise
price of €37.43 ($45.29) and (iv) performance-based stock options with 87,529 awards outstanding as of December 31,
2014. During 2013 and 2012, Telenet modified the terms of certain of its share-based incentive plans to provide for anti-
dilution adjustments in connection with its shareholder returns. In connection with these anti-dilution adjustments, Telenet
recognized share-based compensation expense of $32.7 million and $12.6 million, respectively, and continues to recognize
additional share-based compensation expense as the underlying options vest. In addition, during 2013, Telenet recognized
expense of $6.2 million related to the accelerated vesting of certain options.

Amounts relate to the share-based compensation expense associated with the Liberty Global share-based incentive awards
held by certain employees of the Chellomedia Disposal Group.

The following table provides certain information related to share-based compensation not yet recognized for share-based

incentive awards related to Liberty Global ordinary shares as of December 31, 2014:

Liberty Liberty
Global Global
ordinary performance-

shares (a)  based awards (b)

Total compensation expense not yet recognized (in millions).........cccceeeevvereneineniecninenencnnennee $ 1327 § 162.5
Weighted average period remaining for expense recognition (in Years).........cceeerereeeereenerennens 2.6 1.3
(a)  Amounts relate to awards granted or assumed by Liberty Global under (i) the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan, (ii) the

(b)

Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan, (iii) the Liberty Global, Inc. 2005 Incentive Plan (as amended
and restated effective June 7,2013) (the Liberty Global 2005 Incentive Plan), (iv) the Liberty Global, Inc. 2005 Nonemployee
Director Incentive Plan (as amended and restated effective June 7, 2013) (the Liberty Global 2005 Director Incentive Plan)
and (v) certain other incentive plans of Virgin Media, including Virgin Media’s 2010 stock incentive plan (the VM Incentive
Plan). All new awards are granted under the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan or the Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee
Director Incentive Plan. The Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan, the Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive
Plan, the Liberty Global 2005 Incentive Plan, the Liberty Global 2005 Director Incentive Plan and the VM Incentive Plan
are described below.

Amounts relate to (i) the Challenge Performance Awards, (ii) PSUs and (iii) the PGUs, as defined and described below.
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The following table summarizes certain information related to the incentive awards granted and exercised with respect to
Liberty Global ordinary shares:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Assumptions used to estimate fair value of options, SARs and PSARs

granted:

RiSK-free INtEIESt TALC ... ..eetieeiieiieieee et 0.81-177% 036-127%  0.37-1.68%

EXPEcted e (2)..cuviiiieiieiieii ettt ens 3.1-5.1years 3.2-7.1years 3.3-7.9years

Expected VOIatility (@)......coerererieiiniinierieeieiese et 25.1-28.7%  26.5-358%  28.0-40.4%

Expected dividend yield.........ocoooieiininiiiiiiiiiitccee e none none none
Weighted average grant-date fair value per share of awards granted:

OPHIOMNS c.ceteiete ettt ettt ettt ettt bbb e st b st anesenes $ 1140 $ 11.09 § 10.00

SA RS ettt e et e et b e e e ba e e tbaeeabeeetaeenaeesnbeean $ 893 § 836 $ 7.18

PSARS .o $ 815 $ 831 §$ —

RISUS ettt e st e et e et e e st e et e e nteesnnee s $ 40.68 $ 3574 $ 24.57

PSUS @GN PGUS ....o.vovieiieiiieieiiieteieiete ettt $ 4247 3 3494 § 25.09
Total intrinsic value of awards exercised (in millions):

OPLIONS ...ttt ettt ettt sese et s bbbt s sse et s s esesesesesessesesesenas $ 1266 $ 1750 § 439

SARS ettt $ 487 % 732§ 52.0

PSARS ..o $ 04 3 — 3 —
Cash received from exercise of options (in millions) ......c..cceeevereveecncnncennne, $ 548 $ 810 $ 25.6
Income tax benefit related to share-based compensation (in millions)............ $ 546 $ 48.0 §$ 16.1

(@)  The 2013 ranges shown for these assumptions exclude the awards for certain former employees of Virgin Media who were
expected to exercise their awards immediately or soon after the Virgin Media Acquisition. For these awards, the assumptions
used for expected life and volatility were essentially nil.

Share Incentive Plans — Liberty Global Ordinary Shares
Incentive Plans

As of December 31, 2014, we are authorized to grant incentive awards under the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan and the
Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan. Generally, we may grant non-qualified share options, SARs, restricted
shares, RSUs, cash awards, performance awards or any combination of the foregoing under any of these incentive plans (collectively,
awards). Ordinary shares issuable pursuant to awards made under these incentive plans will be made available from either
authorized but unissued shares or shares that have been issued but reacquired by our company. Awards may be granted at or above
fair value in any class of ordinary shares. The maximum number of Liberty Global shares with respect to which awards may be
issued under the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan and the Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan is 100
million (of which no more than 50 million shares may consist of Class B ordinary shares) and 10 million, respectively, in each
case, subject to anti-dilution and other adjustment provisions in the respective plan. As of December 31, 2014, the Liberty Global
2014 Incentive Plan and the Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan had 89,582,279 and 9,745,984 ordinary
shares available for grant, respectively.

Awards under the Liberty Global 2005 Incentive Plan and the Liberty Global 2005 Director Incentive Plan issued prior to
June 2005 are fully vested and expire 10 years after the grant date. In connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition, we assumed
the VM Incentive Plan. Awards under the VM Incentive Plan issued prior to June 7, 2013 have a 10-year term and become fully
exercisable within five years of continued employment. Certain performance-based awards that were granted during the first
quarter of 2013 were canceled upon completion of the Virgin Media Acquisition. These canceled awards were subsequently
replaced by PSUs that were granted under the VM Incentive Plan on June 24, 2013. For the remaining performance-based awards
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that were outstanding prior to June 7, 2013, the performance objectives lapsed upon the completion of the Virgin Media Acquisition
and such awards vest on the third anniversary of the grant date. No further awards will be granted under the Liberty Global 2005
Incentive Plan, the Liberty Global 2005 Director Incentive Plan or the VM Incentive Plan.

Awards (other than performance-based awards) under the Liberty Global 2005 Incentive Plan issued after June 2005 and
under the VM Incentive Plan after June 7, 2013 generally (i) vest 12.5% on the six month anniversary of the grant date and then
vest at a rate of 6.25% each quarter thereafter and (ii) expire seven years after the grant date. Awards (other than RSUs) issued
after June 2005 under the Liberty Global 2005 Director Incentive Plan generally vest in three equal annual installments, provided
the director continues to serve as director immediately prior to the vesting date, and expire 10 years after the grant date. RSUs
vest on the date of the first annual general meeting of shareholders following the grant date. These awards may be granted at or
above fair value in any class of ordinary shares.

Awards (other than performance-based awards) under the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan generally (i) vest 12.5% on the
six month anniversary of the grant date and then vest at a rate of 6.25% each quarter thereafter and (ii) expire seven years after
the grant date. Awards (other than RSUs) issued under the Liberty Global 2014 Nonemployee Director Incentive Plan generally
vest in three equal annual installments, provided the director continues to serve as director immediately prior to the vesting date,
and expire seven years after the grant date. RSUs vest on the date of the first annual general meeting of shareholders following
the grant date. These awards may be granted at or above fair value in any class of ordinary shares.

Performance Awards

The following is a summary of the material terms and conditions with respect to our performance-based awards for certain
executive officers and key employees. These awards were granted under the Liberty Global 2014 Incentive Plan, the Liberty
Global 2005 Incentive Plan and the VM Incentive Plan.

Liberty Global PSUs. PSUs are granted to executive officers and key employees annually based on a target annual equity
value for each executive and key employee, of which approximately two-thirds would be delivered in the form of an annual award
of PSUs and approximately one-third in the form of an annual award of SARs. Each PSU represents the right to receive one Class
A or Class C ordinary share, as applicable, subject to performance and vesting. Generally, the performance period for the PSUs
covers a two-year period and the performance target is based on the achievement of a specified compound annual growth rate
(CAGR) in a consolidated operating cash flow metric (as defined in the applicable underlying agreement), adjusted for events
such as acquisitions, dispositions and changes in foreign currency exchange rates that affect comparability (OCF CAGR), and the
participant’s annual performance ratings during the two-year performance period. A performance range of 75% to 125% of the
target OCF CAGR generally results in award recipients earning 50% to 150% of their respective PSUs, subject to reduction or
forfeiture based on individual performance. The PSUs generally vest 50% on each of March 31 and September 30 of the year
following the end of the performance period.

Liberty Global Challenge Performance Awards. Effective June 24,2013, our compensation committee approved the Challenge
Performance Awards, which consisted solely of PSARs for our senior executive officers and a combination of PSARs and PSUs
for our other executive officers and key employees. Each PSU represents the right to receive one Class A ordinary share or one
Class C ordinary share, as applicable, subject to performance and vesting. The performance criteria for the Challenge Performance
Awards will be based on the participant’s performance and achievement of individual goals in each of the years 2013, 2014 and
2015. Subject to forfeitures and the satisfaction of performance conditions, 100% of each participant’s Challenge Performance
Awards will vest on June 24, 2016. The PSARs have a term of seven years and base prices equal to the respective market closing
prices of the applicable class on the grant date.

Liberty Global Performance Grant Award. Effective May 1, 2014, our compensation committee authorized the grant of PGUs
to our Chief Executive Officer, comprising a total of one million Class A PSUs and one million Class B PSUs. The PGUs, which
were subject to a performance condition that was achieved in 2014, will vest in three equal annual installments commencing on
March 15, 2015.
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Share-based Award Activity - Liberty Global Ordinary Shares

The following tables summarize the share-based award activity during 2014 with respect to Liberty Global ordinary shares:

Options — Class A ordinary shares

Outstanding at January 1, 2014 .........ccoveverieiieieneceeeeeee e
GIanted.........coeecvieiieiieieeie ettt ettt v et e b b e e re e aeereennes
CancCelled.......ooovieiieiicieee et
EXEICISEA....ccuvieiiieiieii ettt ettt ettt

Outstanding at December 31, 2014 ........ccocoiiiiiiinininieeeeeeee

Exercisable at December 31, 2014 ......cccuvviiiieieeiieeeieeeeeee e

Options — Class C ordinary shares

Outstanding at January 1, 2014 .......coovvviiiriiiiieeeeceee e
GIANLE.......ecuieiiiiieieetetee ettt tesae e sseseeseeneas
CanCelled.......ccoevuiiiiieieiee e
EXEICISEA....ccuvieiiieiieii ettt et

Outstanding at December 31, 2014 .........occoiirieiiiiiiieeeeeeeee

Exercisable at December 31, 2014 ......cccuvvveiioiieiieieieeeeee e

SARs — Class A ordinary shares

FOTfeited ... oot
EXEICISEA. ....ueiuiiiiiieiieieteeie ettt sttt enean
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 .......cccoceveoininenininincenenccecnes
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 ........ooiomiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee
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Weighted
average
Weighted remaining Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
shares exercise price term value
in years in millions
2,708,445 § 16.12
78,677 $ 42.54
(51,826) $ 22.49
(1,009,037) $ 14.61
1,726,259 $ 18.01 54 $ 55.6
1,125,619 $ 13.84 4.5 $ 40.9
Weighted
average
Weighted remaining Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
shares exercise price term value
in years in millions
7,031,369 $ 14.95
157,346 $ 40.86
(128,419) $ 21.13
(3,114,104) $ 12.54
3,946,192 § 17.67 5.7 $ 120.9
2,452,721 § 13.72 4.8 $ 84.8
Weighted
average
Weighted remaining Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
shares base price term value
in years in millions
4,168,758 $ 24.78
2,192,672 $ 40.90
(203,409) $ 32.22
(550,033) $ 21.97
5,607,988 $ 31.07 4.8 $ 107.3
2,527,237 $ 23.25 3.6 $ 68.1
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Weighted
average
Weighted remaining Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
SARs — Class C ordinary shares shares base price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 .......ccccooevninininiiineeeesececnen 12,437,530 $ 23.87
GIANLEA. ...ttt 4,408,368 $ 39.07
FOrfeited.....oouiieiiieee e (566,688) $ 22.52
EXEICISEA. ...t (1,590,165) $ 20.92
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 ........ccocoiiiiiiininiinieeeeeee 14,689,045 $ 28.49 4.5 $ 291.2
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 .......ccccoeniniiniinininineeneneeeee 7,308,864 $ 21.95 3.5 $ 192.7
Weighted
average
Weighted remaining Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
PSARs — Class A ordinary shares shares base price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 .......ccccevininiiinineneneeeeeceeeen 2,817,498 § 35.07
(€ 11111« SRS 10,000 $ 43.58
FOrfeited.... ..o (29,376) $ 35.03
EXEICISE.....oviiiiiiicc e (9,373) $ 35.03
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 ........cooooieiriieieieeeeeeeee 2,788,749 § 35.10 5.5 $ 42.1
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 .......ccooiiiiiiiiininieceeeee 7,499 $ 35.03 1.8 $ 0.1
Weighted
average
Weighted remaining Aggregate
Number of average contractual intrinsic
PSARs — Class C ordinary shares shares base price term value
in years in millions
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 .......ccooveininiinineeeneeeereceeeen 8,452,494 § 33.44
GIANLEA. ...ttt et 30,000 $ 43.03
FOrfeited.... ..o e (88,127) $ 33.41
EXETCISE.....vieiiiiiiciii e (28,119) $ 33.41
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 ........ccccoiiririiieiinieeeeeeee 8,366,248 $ 33.48 5.5 $ 124.1
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 ......ocuovioiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 22,498 $ 33.41 1.8 $ 0.3
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Weighted Weighted
average average
grant-date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
RSUs — Class A ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 ......c.ccovioiriiiiniririeieenerceeeeees et 725,676 $ 35.48
GIANLEA ..ottt sttt ettt st ettt eaen 226,069 $ 41.77
FOITEItE. ..o (44,428) $ 33.32
Released from IeStriCtions ...........cccvvueuiriiiiiiieiiiieieiceec s (342,047) $ 35.07
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 .......cccooiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeee e 565,270 $ 38.27 4.6
Weighted Weighted
average average
grant-date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
RSUs — Class C ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 .....c..cocooiiiiiininiiiiieecceceeeeeetee e 1,944,468 $ 32.79
GIANLEA ...ttt sttt et st et e st e s e s sesseesaensesaesseessensesessessnensenes 460,866 $ 40.14
FOITEIEA ...ttt (122,418) $ 30.93
Released from IeStIICHIONS ........c.cueuivieuiirieuiirieiceetee et (895,913) $ 32.36
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 .........ccoiiiiriiieeeeeee e 1,387,003 $ 35.59 4.5
Weighted Weighted
average average
grant-date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
PSUs and PGUs — Class A ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 .........coooiriminieiiinicinceeneeeee e 924,648 $ 32.05
GIANTEA ..ottt sttt sttt 1,518,276 $ 42.74
Performance adjustment (2)..........ccecevuevieirinieinineieireceeee e (138,668) $ 26.17
FOITRILEA ..ottt (40,627) $ 35.77
Released from IESIIICHIONS ....c.coveuiveueirieieirieieieteeneetee ettt (273,936) $ 26.24
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 .........ccvoiiririeieieeeeeeeesie et 1,989,693 $ 41.34 1.8
Weighted Weighted
average average
grant-date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
PGUs — Class B ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 .......cccooiiiiirieeeee e e — 3 —
L 51111« A USSR 1,000,000 $ 44.55
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 .......cccooiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 1,000,000 $ 44.55 2.2
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Weighted Weighted
average average
grant-date remaining
Number of fair value contractual
PSUs — Class C ordinary shares shares per share term
in years
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 ......c.ccovioiriiiiniririeieenerceeeeees et 2,744,452 $ 29.99
GIANLEA ...ttt ettt ettt sttt neeren 1,048,614 $ 39.83
Performance adjustment () ........eoevueeuieienieneseei e e (416,004) $ 24.73
FOTTRIEEA. ...ttt (112,487) $ 33.15
Released from restrictions ...........cccoceueiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiicicie s (821,808) $ 24.79
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 .......coccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiieneeee et 2,442,767 $ 36.71 1.3

(a)  Represents the reduction in PSUs associated with the first quarter 2014 determination that 66.3% of the PSUs that were
granted in 2012 (the 2012 PSUs) had been earned. As of December 31, 2014, all of the earned 2012 PSUs have been
released from restrictions.

14) Restructuring Liabilities

A summary of changes in our restructuring liabilities during 2014 is set forth in the table below:

Employee
severance Contract
and Office termination
termination closures and other Total
in millions
Restructuring liability as of January 1, 2014 .......c.ccocevvieninincncene. $ 266 $ 149 § 72.0 $ 113.5
Restructuring charges .........cocooeveeieneneninienieneneeeetene e 60.4 9.5 97.0 166.9
Cash Paid ....covevieiiiiece e (66.3) (10.8) (34.4) (111.5)
Ziggo liability at acquisition date..........ccceevererieerienenreicnienencenens 8.2 — — 8.2
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other...................... (1.3) (1.1) (18.6) (21.0)
Restructuring liability as of December 31,2014 .........coccecvvrvienenee $ 276 % 125 §$ 116.0 $ 156.1
CUITENE POTLION ...eeuvieeiieiieieeteeieesieesteesteesteesteeseeesseesseesseessaesseenseenens $ 275 $ 44 $ 204 $ 52.3
NONCUITENE POTTION...c.vetiiieniiieitietieee ettt 0.1 8.1 95.6 103.8
TOtAL .o $ 276 $ 125 $ 116.0 $ 156.1

Prior to March 31, 2014, Telenet operated a digital terrestrial television (DTT) business that served a limited number of
subscribers. The DTT network was accessed by Telenet pursuant to third-party capacity contracts that were accounted for as
operating agreements. On March 31, 2014, Telenet discontinued the provision of DTT services and, accordingly, recorded an
$86.1 million restructuring charge during the three months ended March 31, 2014. This charge was equal to the then fair value
of the remaining payments due under the DTT capacity contracts.

Our restructuring charges during 2014 include $17.5 million, $11.2 million, $10.7 million, $10.1 million and $9.8 million of

employee severance and termination costs related to reorganization and integration activities, primarily in the U.K., the Netherlands,
Germany, Chile and the European Operations Division’s central operations, respectively.
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A summary of changes in our restructuring liabilities during 2013 is set forth in the table below:

Employee
severance
and Office Contract
termination closures termination Total
in millions
Restructuring liability as of January 1, 2013 ........cccocoviiicninicnnens $ 397 $ 40 $ 131§ 56.8
ReStructuring Charges ........c..cceevveeeeirienieincnenieeeeseree s 77.9 (0.1) 100.9 178.7
Cash Paid ....co.ooveiiiiiicccc e (91.5) (14.1) (17.6) (123.2)
Virgin Media liability at acquisition date............ccceververeerrerennnnen. 0.1 233 — 234
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other...................... 1.2 1.8 (11.4) 84
Reclassification of Chellomedia Disposal Group to discontinued
OPETALIONS. ......vovecerveseeeceeseeeetessaetesesae e esae st ens et ene st senesaesenee s (0.8) — (13.0) (13.8)
Restructuring liability as of December 31,2013 .......ccccoeoeienienene $ 266 $ 149 $ 720 $ 113.5
CUITENT POTLION. ...ttt sens $ 265 $ 132§ 258 § 65.5
NONCUITENE POTTION.......eeiirieiectiiicieeeeteeree et 0.1 1.7 46.2 48.0
o] | EO T U U U U U PUUPURPUROURPNt $ 266 $ 149 $ 720 $ 113.5

As further described in note 9, we recorded restructuring charges totaling $84.9 million during the third and fourth quarters
0f 2013 as a result of VTR’s decision to cease commercial use of its mobile network. These restructuring charges include the fair
value of (i) the then remaining payments due under VTR’s tower and real estate operating leases of $71.5 million and (ii) certain
other required payments associated with VTR’s mobile network. In addition, our restructuring charges during 2013 include $46.1
million, $14.1 million and $8.1 million of employee severance and termination costs related to reorganization and integration
activities in the U.K., Germany and Chile, respectively.

as) Defined Benefit Plans

Certain of our subsidiaries in Europe maintain various funded and unfunded defined benefit plans for their employees. Annual
service cost for these employee benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial method. The subsidiaries that
maintain funded plans have established investment policies for plan assets. The investment strategies are long-term in nature and
designed to meet the following objectives:

*  Ensure that funds are available to pay benefits as they become due;
*  Maximize the total returns on plan assets subject to prudent risk taking; and
*  Preserve or improve the funded status of the trusts over time.

Our subsidiaries review the asset allocation within their respective portfolios on a regular basis. Generally, the portfolios will
be rebalanced to a target allocation when an individual asset class approaches its minimum or maximum targeted level. Allocations
to real estate occur over multiple time periods. Assets targeted to real estate, but not yet allocated, are invested in fixed income
securities with corresponding adjustments to fixed income rebalancing guidelines.
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The following is a summary of the funded status of our defined benefit plans:

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013

in millions

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of PEriod...........cccevieviiiiieriienieiece e $ 1,163.0 $ 384.6
ACQUISTEION () 1+evteutenterteetiet ettt sttt b ettt sttt e e et e e et s bees e e st e be s bt sbeessenteneesbeeseeneetesaesneeneans — 687.1
SEIVICE COSL ..ttt ettt ettt ettt e b et et be et s et ebesae e st euens 22.3 25.8
PIIOT SEIVICE COSL ...ttt ittt ettt ettt ettt sttt et naesbe bt es et e sbesbeennens 0.8 —
INEETEST COST .t 429 26.8
ACtUATTAl 1OSS (ZAIMN) 1.ttt ettt eb ettt b ettt bbb a et beeben 149.7 (4.8)
Participants’ CONIITDULIONS. .......c.eoveuiirieiiieicirietctreee ettt 11.9 11.8
Benefits PAI.....coueeieiiiieeeeee ettt ettt aesne st eeeeaeeneeneens (38.7) (28.1)
Effect of changes in eXChange Tates ...........ooeeieiiereiirieiee ettt (104.3) 59.8

Projected benefit obligation at end of Period..........ccevireeiiiniiiciinirieeeceereeeeeee e $§ 1,2476 § 1,163.0

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of Period.........c.ccoceiiriiriniiinieii e $ 12261 $ 1,1447

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of Period...........coceoeiririeiiiiiineeee e $ 10570 $ 310.9
ACQUISTEION () 1.ntvetentetietetet ettt ettt ettt ettt eb ettt b e bbbttt eb e b et et ebe e et ebeeben — 626.0
Actual earnings Of PlAn ASSELS .......c.ccvvueuiririiirieiiireiee ettt 114.6 37.0
GIOUDP CONIIIDULIONS. .....eeueetetietieiieie sttt eeie e sttt ee e s te st es e e e e saesbeeseeseesesaesseenseneessesseeneensensesneeneans 68.2 44.6
Participants’ CONTIIDULIONS. ......c..coueiiuiriiieirentceetetcet ettt ettt et nes 11.9 11.8
Benefits PaId....c.couiriiieiiiiiicieeee ettt (37.9) (27.6)
Effect of changes in eXchange rates .............cocoiiiiiiiiiiiii e (91.1) 54.3

Fair value of plan assets at end of Period.........cccooiiiiiiriiniiiiiieeeeee e $ 1,1227 $ 1,057.0

NEE LHADIIEY (D) 1.venveveviietiirieierieieere ettt sttt sb ettt $ 1249 $ 106.0

(a)  The 2013 amount relates to the Virgin Media Acquisition.

(b)  The net liability related to our defined benefit plans is included in provisions for liabilities in our consolidated balance
sheets.
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The change in the amount of net actuarial gain (loss) not yet recognized as a component of net periodic pension costs in our
consolidated statements of operations is as follows:

Pre-tax Tax benefit Net-of-tax
amount (expense) amount

in millions

Balance of net actuarial loss at January 1, 2013 .....c.cccooeoininineinineinenenceec e $ 5.2) $ 1.6 $ (3.6)
INEt ACtUATTAL ZAIN ..ottt 12.7 (1.4) 11.3
Amount recognized as a component of net loss attributable to Liberty Global

SRATEROLAETS ...ttt (0.8) 0.1 0.7)
Changes in ownership and other ..........coecivinerieinineieinceeecre e (0.6) 0.2 (0.4)

Balance of net actuarial gain at December 31, 2013 .......cccooiiiiiiiiiieeee e 6.1 0.5 6.6
Net aCtUArIAl LOSS ....couirveieiiiiiiciieiic ettt s (87.6) 16.7 (70.9)
Amount recognized as a component of net loss attributable to Liberty Global

SRATENOLAETS .........oooeovee s (1.7) 0.3 (1.4)
Changes in ownership and Other .........c.ooeiiirerieiininee e 0.2 — 0.2
Balance of net actuarial loss at December 31, 2014.........cccccoveeiineinneinecnieee, $ (83.0) $ 175 § (65.5)

We expect that the amount of net actuarial gain or loss to be recognized in our 2015 consolidated statement of operations will
not be significant.

The measurement dates used to determine our defined benefit plan assumptions were December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013. The actuarial assumptions used to compute the net periodic pension cost are based on information available as of the
beginning of the period, specifically market interest rates, past experience and management’s best estimate of future economic
conditions. Changes in these assumptions may impact future benefit costs and obligations. In computing future costs and
obligations, the subsidiaries must make assumptions about such items as employee mortality and turnover, expected salary and
wage increases, discount rate, expected long-term rate of return on plan assets and expected future cost increases.

The expected rates of return on the assets of the funded plans are the long-term rates of return the subsidiaries expect to earn
on their trust assets. The rates of return are determined by the investment composition of the plan assets and the long-term risk
and return forecast for each asset category. The forecasts for each asset class are generated using historical information as well
as an analysis of current and expected market conditions. The expected risk and return characteristics for each asset class are
reviewed annually and revised, as necessary, to reflect changes in the financial markets. To compute the expected return on plan
assets, the subsidiaries apply an expected rate of return to the fair value of the plan assets.

The weighted average assumptions used in determining benefit obligations and net periodic pension cost are as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Expected rate of Salary INCIEASE .......cccoveuirieueirieiiiriciiietcer ettt 2.6% 3.1%
DISCOUNE TALE ..ot 2.6% 3.8%
Expected rate of return on plan @sSets..........ccooeiirciririiineiineircee s 4.0% 5.1%
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The components of net periodic pension cost recorded in our consolidated statements of operations are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013
in millions
SEIVICE COSE ...vuvuttteieiiaiite et ettt ettt sttt et e et s e s s e s et e e ea et e e e e s e s eaeseeesea e e s es et eaeseseneaees s sesesesenens $ 223§ 25.8
INEETESE COSE ..invinriiiitiietettet ettt ettt ettt st b ettt e ettt e et saesneneeneas 429 26.8
Expected return 0N Plan @SSELS .......c..ccivirieieirenieieirieetetesteree ettt sttt (53.7) (30.0)
ORI ...ttt ettt b ettt b e s bbb a e s bbbt be bt e aeebeennenn (1.9) (1.1)
Net periodic PENSION COSt .......cuiviiiiiiiieiiiiiiceeieere ettt s e $ 96 $ 21.5

The asset allocation by asset category and by fair value hierarchy level (as further described in note 8) of our plan assets is
as follows:

December 31, 2014
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
in millions

BQUILY SECUTITIES ..vvvrvevevevieieiieceeieiereteieisssie et es et s s $ 353.8 § 353.8 $ — 3 —
DEDt SECUITHIES. ..uveveeeieiietieeeeiteteie ettt ete ettt eee st ste et e e sesteeseeneenens 318.8 318.8 — —
INSUrance CoNract (2).....c.cceoverrerienieiienieneenee sttt 158.0 — — 158.0
Hedge fUNAS ..ot 136.5 120.1 16.4 —
Guarantee INVeStMENt CONEIACTS .....evvveiverrerieriierreeeeneeneeeseeseeenseeneees 86.0 86.0 — —
REAL ESALE ..c.vveeeiieiie et 39.9 32.9 — 7.0
(011115, USRS 29.7 29.7 — —

TOtAL ettt en $ 11,1227 $ 9413 $ 164 $ 165.0

December 31, 2013
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

in millions

EQUILY SECUTTEIES . ...cviuieveeiietiiieiiieieit et $ 3443 § 3443 § — 3 —
DEDt SECUITHIES. ..ttt 275.5 275.5 — —
INSUrance CONIACE (A)......eoveueererueieuirierieeeteeteeeeeie ettt 153.4 — — 153.4
Hedge funds .....oouoveeieienieicccccce e 133.1 117.8 15.3 —
Guarantee iNVestMent CONLIACES .........eoveerrerrerreireriereeenieneeeeeseneenene 83.0 83.0 — —
REAl @SLALE ...ttt 36.7 28.9 — 7.8
(731 T<) RS PRSUO 31.0 31.0 — —

TOtAL ettt ettt et e ebeebeenraens $ 11,0570 $ 880.5 §$ 153 §$ 161.2

(a)  Relates to the purchase of an insurance contract authorized by the trustee of one of our defined benefit plans. The insurance
contract will pay an income stream to the plan that is expected to match all future cash outflows with respect to certain
liabilities. The fair value of this insurance contract is presented as an asset of the plan and is measured based on the future
cash flows to be received under the contract discounted using the same discount rate used to measure the associated liabilities.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of our plan assets measured at fair value using Level 3 inputs is as
follows (in millions):

Balance at JANUATY 1, 2014 ......ccvooiieieieieciieieieeie ettt ettt et e st e e et et e sesseeseesaessessesseessessesessesssensansessesneessensensas $ 161.2
Actual return on plan assets:

Gains relating to assets still held at Year-end...........occooieieiiiiiieieee et 14.6
Purchases, sales and settlements Of INVESTMENTS, N ...........oiiiiuiiiiiiiiieeiieee e e eeareeeeeeareeesenaeeeeesaeeeesenneees (1.2)
Foreign currency translation adjuStMENtS .........c..ccverierieeiiieiiiesieesieeie et eieeteereebeeaeesaessbessseesseessesssessseessesssessseenns (9.6)

Balance at DeCemMDET 31, 2014 ...t e et e et e e e ee et e e ettt e e eear e e e eateeeeenaaeeean m

The trustees of the defined benefit pension plans have in place weighted average target asset allocations of 27% equities, 26%
bonds, 20% insurance contracts, 11% hedge funds, 8% guarantee investment contracts, 5% real estate and 3% other at December 31,
2014. As markets move relative to each other, the asset allocation may move away from the target investment strategy. Rebalancing
of the assets may be carried out from time to time by the trustees.

Based on December 31, 2014 exchange rates and information available as of that date, our subsidiaries’ contributions to their
respective defined benefit plans in 2015 are expected to aggregate $58.5 million.

As of December 31, 2014, the benefits that we currently expect to pay during the next ten years with respect to our defined
benefit plans are as follows (in millions):

2015 etttk bttt tene $ 33.2
2016 etttk t ettt tene $ 31.2
2017 ettt $ 325
2018 .ottt aene $ 31.9
2019 1kttt ene $ 322
2020 through 2024 ........cooiiiiiieieee ettt ettt sttt b ettt e et $ 176.5

16) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive earnings included in our consolidated balance sheets and statements of equity reflect the
aggregate impact of foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on cash flow hedges and pension-related
adjustments. The changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive earnings, net of taxes, are summarized as
follows:

Liberty Global shareholders

Unrealized Total
Foreign gains Accumulated accumulated
currency (losses) on Pension- other Non- other
translation cash flow related comprehensive  controlling comprehensive
adjustments hedges adjustments earnings interests earnings

in millions

Balance at January 1, 2012 ............. $ 1,5297 $ (10.5) $ 07 $ 1,509.5 $ (23.1) $ 1,486.4
Sale of Austar.........cccceevevveeveennene — — — — 60.1 60.1
Other comprehensive earnings..... 74.4 10.5 6.1 91.0 0.3 91.3

Balance at December 31, 2012 ....... 1,604.1 — (3.6) 1,600.5 37.3 1,637.8
Other comprehensive earnings..... 918.1 — 10.2 928.3 (16.9) 911.4

Balance at December 31, 2013 ....... 2,522.2 — 6.6 2,528.8 20.4 2,549.2
Other comprehensive loss ............ (810.1) — (72.1) (882.2) 0.5) (882.7)

Balance at December 31, 2014........ $ 17121 $ — 3 (65.5) $ 1,646.6 $ 199 § 1,666.5
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The components of other comprehensive earnings, net of taxes, are reflected in our consolidated statements of comprehensive
earnings (loss). The following table summarizes the tax effects related to each component of other comprehensive earnings, net
of amounts reclassified to our consolidated statements of operations:

Pre-tax Tax benefit Net-of-tax
amount (expense) amount

in millions

Year ended December 31, 2014:

Foreign currency translation adjustments ...........c.cocceeeeeenenieinenencncneneeennes $ (816.4) $ 63 § (810.1)

Pension-related adjustments ..........cc.ccevereeerineieineneeeineeeenesee e (89.9) 17.3 (72.6)
Other comprehensive 10SS......co.eveirerieirinieieineneeeesteeeneeee e (906.3) 23.6 (882.7)

Other comprehensive earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests (a) ..... 0.8 (0.3) 0.5
Other comprehensive loss attributable to Liberty Global shareholders ...... $ (905.5) $ 233§ (882.2)

Year ended December 31, 2013:

Foreign currency translation adjustments ..........c.ccoceeeeeveneinienenenencneeeenen $ 8964 $ 44 3 900.8
Pension-related adjustments ..........cc.ccevereeirinieieineneeeesee e 12.1 (1.5) 10.6

Other comprehensive Carnings ..........cccceeveeeereerierieeeeieesieeeeeeeseeseseeeeenees 908.5 29 911.4
Other comprehensive earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests (b)..... 17.3 (0.4) 16.9

Other comprehensive earnings attributable to Liberty Global
ShArEROLACTS ...t $ 9258 $ 25§ 928.3

Year ended December 31, 2012:

Foreign currency translation adjustments ...........ccoeeveveerieneneneneeneneneneene $ 76.0 $ 0.6) $ 75.4
Cash flow hedges .......ooveviiiiiiiiiic e 15.1 (4.6) 10.5
Pension-related adjustments ..........cc.ecevereerereieineneeeeee e 6.0 (0.6) 5.4
Other comprehensive Carnings .........coeeeeuerveeerereriererrerteneeesenseeeseseeseenennes 97.1 (5.8) 91.3
Other comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (b) ............ 0.1 0.4) 0.3)

Other comprehensive earnings attributable to Liberty Global
SHATEROLACTS ... $ 972 § 62) $ 91.0

(a)  Amounts represent the noncontrolling interest owners’ share of our pension-related adjustments.

(b)  Amounts represent the noncontrolling interest owners’ share of our foreign currency translation adjustments and pension-
related adjustments.
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an Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

In the normal course of business, we have entered into agreements that commit our company to make cash payments in future
periods with respect to programming contracts, network and connectivity commitments, purchases of customer premises and other
equipment, non-cancelable operating leases and other items. The U.S. dollar equivalents of such commitments as of December 31,
2014 are presented below:

Payments due during:
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
in millions

Continuing operations:

Programming commitments........... $ 8639 $ 7854 § 6127 $ 5280 $ 2314 $ 20 $ 3,0234
Network and connectivity
COMMItMENLS ..o 359.9 261.5 240.2 127.1 90.2 1,048.5 2,1274
Purchase commitments .................. 827.8 119.4 62.9 10.1 4.0 — 1,024.2
Operating 1€ases........c.c.covvveernenne 174.0 141.5 117.3 98.1 75.4 279.3 885.6
Other commitments..............c......... 350.2 198.7 150.1 90.0 39.2 48.2 876.4
Total (2)..oveereeveereereirieenieieenes $ 25758 $ 1,506.5 $ 1,1832 $§ 8533 $§ 4402 § 1,378.0 $ 7,937.0

(a) The commitments reflected in this table do not reflect any liabilities that are included in our December 31, 2014 consolidated
balance sheet.

Programming commitments consist of obligations associated with certain of our programming, studio output and sports rights
contracts that are enforceable and legally binding on us in that we have agreed to pay minimum fees without regard to (i) the actual
number of subscribers to the programming services, (ii) whether we terminate service to a portion of our subscribers or dispose
ofaportion of our distribution systems or (iii) whether we discontinue our premium film or sports services. In addition, programming
commitments do not include increases in future periods associated with contractual inflation or other price adjustments that are
not fixed. Accordingly, the amounts reflected in the above table with respect to these contracts are significantly less than the
amounts we expect to pay in these periods under these contracts. Payments to programming vendors have in the past represented,
and are expected to continue to represent in the future, a significant portion of our operating costs. In this regard, during 2014,
2013 and 2012, the third-party programming and copyright costs incurred by our broadband communications and DTH operations
aggregated $2,145.0 million, $1,612.5 million and $978.4 million, respectively. The ultimate amount payable in excess of the
contractual minimums of our studio output contracts, which expire at various dates through 2019, is dependent upon the number
of subscribers to our premium movie service and the theatrical success of the films that we exhibit.

Network and connectivity commitments include (i) Telenet’s commitments for certain operating costs associated with its
leased network, (ii) commitments associated with our MVNO agreements and (iii) certain repair and maintenance, fiber capacity
and energy commitments of Unitymedia KabelBW. Subsequent to October 1, 2015, Telenet’s commitments for certain operating
costs will be subject to adjustment based on changes in the network operating costs incurred by Telenet with respect to its own
networks. These potential adjustments are not subject to reasonable estimation and, therefore, are not included in the above table.
The amounts reflected in the table with respect to certain of our MVNO commitments represent fixed minimum amounts payable
under these agreements and, therefore, may be significantly less than the actual amounts we ultimately pay in these periods.

Purchase commitments include unconditional purchase obligations associated with commitments to purchase customer
premises and other equipment that are enforceable and legally binding on us.

Commitments arising from acquisition agreements are not reflected in the above table. In addition, the table does not include

our commitments with respect to the amounts we will pay during the second quarter of 2015 to settle the FCO Appeals, as defined
and described below.
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In addition to the commitments set forth in the table above, we have significant commitments under (i) derivative instruments
and (ii) defined benefit plans and similar agreements, pursuant to which we expect to make payments in future periods. For
information regarding our derivative instruments, including the net cash paid or received in connection with these instruments
during 2014, 2013 and 2012, see note 7. For information regarding our defined benefit plans, see note 15.

We also have commitments pursuant to agreements with, and obligations imposed by, franchise authorities and municipalities,
which may include obligations in certain markets to move aerial cable to underground ducts or to upgrade, rebuild or extend
portions of our broadband communication systems. Such amounts are not included in the above table because they are not fixed
or determinable.

Rental expense of our continuing operations under non-cancelable operating lease arrangements amounted to $268.3 million,
$238.6 million and $197.4 million during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. It is expected that in the normal course of business,
operating leases that expire generally will be renewed or replaced by similar leases.

We have established various defined contribution benefit plans for our and our subsidiaries’ employees. The aggregate expense
of our continuing operations for matching contributions under the various defined contribution employee benefit plans was $63.2
million, $48.2 million and $26.4 million during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Guarantees and Other Credit Enhancements

In the ordinary course of business, we may provide indemnifications to our lenders, our vendors and certain other parties and
performance and/or financial guarantees to local municipalities, our customers and vendors. Historically, these arrangements have
not resulted in our company making any material payments and we do not believe that they will result in material payments in the
future.

Legal and Regulatory Proceedings and Other Contingencies

Interkabel Acquisition. On November 26, 2007, Telenet and the PICs announced a non-binding agreement-in-principle to
transfer the analog and digital television activities of the PICs, including all existing subscribers to Telenet. Subsequently, Telenet
and the PICs entered into a binding agreement (the 2008 PICs Agreement), which closed effective October 1, 2008. Beginning
in December 2007, Belgacom NV/SA (Belgacom), the incumbent telecommunications operator in Belgium, instituted several
proceedings seeking to block implementation of these agreements. It lodged summary proceedings with the President of the Court
of First Instance of Antwerp to obtain a provisional injunction preventing the PICs from effecting the agreement-in-principle and
initiated a civil procedure on the merits claiming the annulment of the agreement-in-principle. In March 2008, the President of
the Court of First Instance of Antwerp ruled in favor of Belgacom in the summary proceedings, which ruling was overturned by
the Court of Appeal of Antwerp in June 2008. Belgacom brought this appeal judgment before the Cour de Cassation (the Belgian
Supreme Court), which confirmed the appeal judgment in September 2010. On April 6, 2009, the Court of First Instance of
Antwerp ruled in favor of the PICs and Telenet in the civil procedure on the merits, dismissing Belgacom’s request for the rescission
of the agreement-in-principle and the 2008 PICs Agreement. On June 12, 2009, Belgacom appealed this judgment with the Court
of Appeal of Antwerp. In this appeal, Belgacom is now also seeking compensation for damages should the 2008 PICs Agreement
not be rescinded. However, the claim for compensation has not yet been quantified. At the introductory hearing, which was held
on September 8, 2009, the proceedings on appeal were postponed indefinitely at the request of Belgacom.

In parallel with the above proceedings, Belgacom filed a complaint with the Government Commissioner seeking suspension
of the approval by the PICs’ board of directors of the agreement-in-principle and initiated suspension and annulment procedures
before the Belgian Council of State against these approvals and subsequently against the board resolutions of the PICs approving the
2008 PICs Agreement. In this complaint, Belgacom’s primary argument was that the PICs should have organized a public market
consultation before entering into the agreement-in-principal and the 2008 PICs Agreement. Belgacom’s efforts to suspend approval
of these agreements were unsuccessful. In the annulment cases, the Belgian Council of State decided on May 2, 2012 to refer a
number of questions of interpretation of European Union (EU) law for preliminary ruling to the European Court of Justice. On
November 14, 2013, the European Court of Justice ruled that a majority of the reasons invoked by the PICs not to organize a
market consultation were not overriding reasons of public interest to justify abolishing the PICs’ duty to organize such consultation.
The annulment case was subsequently resumed with the Belgian Council of State, which was required to follow the interpretation
given by the European Court of Justice with respect to the points of EU law. On January 16, 2014, the Advocate General with the
Council of State recommended that the decisions of the board of the PICs not to organize a public market consultation be annulled,
and on May 27, 2014, the Belgian Council of State ruled in favor of Belgacom and annulled (i) the decision of the PICs not to
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organize a public market consultation and (ii) the decision from the PICs’ board of directors to approve the 2008 PICs Agreement.
The Belgian Council of State ruling did not annul the 2008 PICs Agreement itself. Belgacom may now resume the civil proceedings
that are still pending with the Court of Appeal of Antwerp in order to have the 2008 PICs Agreement annulled and claim damages.

It is possible that Belgacom or another third party or public authority will initiate further legal proceedings in an attempt to
annul the 2008 PICs Agreement. No assurance can be given as to the outcome of these or other proceedings. However, an
unfavorable outcome of existing or future proceedings could potentially lead to the annulment of the 2008 PICs Agreement and/
or to an obligation of Telenet to pay compensation for damages, subject to the relevant provisions of the 2008 PICs Agreement,
which stipulate that Telenet is only responsible for damages in excess of €20.0 million ($24.2 million). In light of the fact that
Belgacom has not quantified the amount of damages that it is seeking and we have no basis for assessing the amount of losses we
would incur in the unlikely event that the 2008 PICs Agreement were to be annulled, we cannot provide a reasonable estimate of
the range of loss that would be incurred in the event the ultimate resolution of this matter were to be unfavorable to Telenet.
However, we do not expect the ultimate resolution of this matter to have a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows
or financial position.

Deutsche Telekom Litigation. On December 28, 2012, Unitymedia KabelBW filed a lawsuit against Deutsche Telekom in
which Unitymedia KabelBW asserts that it pays excessive prices for the co-use of Deutsche Telekom’s cable ducts in Unitymedia
KabelBW’s footprint. The Federal Network Agency approved rates for the co-use of certain ducts of Deutsche Telekom in March
2011. Based in part on these approved rates, Unitymedia KabelBW is seeking a reduction of the annual lease fees (approximately
€76 million ($92 million) for 2012) by approximately two-thirds and the return of similarly calculated overpayments from 2009
through the ultimate settlement date, plus accrued interest. While we expect a decision by the court of first instance during the
first half of 2015, the resolution of this matter may take several years and no assurance can be given that Unitymedia KabelBW’s
claims will be successful. Any recovery by Unitymedia KabelBW will not be reflected in our consolidated financial statements
until such time as the final disposition of this matter has been reached.

Vivendi Litigation. A wholly-owned subsidiary of our company is a plaintiff in certain litigation titled Liberty Media
Corporation, et. al. v. Vivendi S.A. and Universal Studio. A predecessor of Liberty Global was a subsidiary of Liberty Media
Corporation (Liberty Media) through June 6, 2004. In connection with Liberty Media’s prosecution of the action, our subsidiary
assigned its rights to Liberty Media in exchange for a contingent payout in the event Liberty Media recovered any amounts as a
result of the action. Our subsidiary’s interest in any such recovery will be equal to 10% of the recovery amount, including any
interest awarded, less the amount to be retained by Liberty Media for (i) all fees and expenses incurred by Liberty Media in
connection with the action (including expenses to be incurred in connection with any appeals and the payment of certain deferred
legal fees) and (ii) agreed upon interest on such fees and expenses. On January 17, 2013, following a jury trial, the court entered
a final judgment in favor of the plaintiffs in the amount of €944 million ($1,142 million), including prejudgment interest. Vivendi
S.A. and Universal Studios have filed a notice of appeal of the court’s final judgment to the Second Circuit Court of Appeals. As
a result, the amount that our subsidiary may ultimately recover in connection with the final resolution of the action, if any, is
uncertain. Any recovery by our company will not be reflected in our consolidated financial statements until such time as the final
disposition of this matter has been reached.

Liberty Puerto Rico Matter. Liberty Puerto Rico, as the surviving entity in the Puerto Rico Transaction, is a party to certain
claims previously asserted by the incumbent telephone operator against OneLink based on alleged conduct of OneLink that occurred
prior to the acquisition of OneLink (the PRTC Claim). This claim included an allegation that OneLink acted in an anticompetitive
manner in connection with a series of legal and regulatory proceedings it initiated against the incumbent telephone operator in
Puerto Rico beginning in 2009. In March 2014, a separate class action claim was filed in Puerto Rico (the Class Action Claim)
containing allegations substantially similar to those asserted in the PRTC Claim, but alleging ongoing injury on behalf of a consumer
class (as opposed to harm to a competitor). The former owners of OneLink have partially indemnified us for any losses we may
incur in connection with the PRTC Claim up to a specified maximum amount. However, the indemnity does not cover any potential
losses resulting from the Class Action Claim. Liberty Puerto Rico has recorded a provision and a related indemnification asset
representing its best estimate of the net loss that it may incur upon the ultimate resolution of the PRTC Claim. While Liberty
Puerto Rico expects that the net amount required to satisfy these contingencies will not materially differ from the estimated amount
it has accrued, no assurance can be given that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have an adverse impact on our results
of operations, cash flows or financial position in any given period.

Netherlands Regulatory Developments. In December 2011, the Autoriteit Consument & Markt (ACM) completed a market
assessment of the television market in the Netherlands, concluding that there were no grounds for regulation of that market. On
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December 22, 2011, referring to its final assessment of the television market, ACM rejected previously filed requests from a
number of providers to perform a new market analysis of the television market. This decision by ACM was appealed by such
providers to the Dutch Supreme Administrative Court. On November 5, 2012, the Dutch Supreme Administrative Court rejected
the appeals against ACM’s decision.

In May 2012, the Dutch Parliament adopted laws that provide, among other matters, the power to ACM to impose an obligation
for the mandatory resale of television services and to the Commissariaat voor de Media to supervise such resale obligation. These
laws became effective on January 1, 2013, notwithstanding the above-described November 5, 2012 decision of the Dutch Supreme
Administrative Court. On January 29, 2014, a Dutch civil court, in a proceeding initiated by UPC Nederland, declared the resale
obligation laws non-binding because they infringe EU law. The Dutch Government did not appeal the January 2014 decision, and
the resale obligation laws were formally withdrawn on November 26, 2014. We consider the withdrawal of the resale obligation
laws to be the final resolution of this matter.

Belgium Regulatory Developments. In December 2010, the Belgisch Instituut voor Post en Telecommunicatie and the regional
regulators for the media sectors (together, the Belgium Regulatory Authorities) published their respective draft decisions reflecting
the results of their joint analysis of the broadcasting market in Belgium.

After a public consultation, the draft decisions were submitted to the European Commission. The European Commission
issued a notice on the draft decision that criticized the analysis of the broadcasting markets on several grounds, including the fact
that the Belgium Regulatory Authorities failed to analyze upstream wholesale markets. It also expressed doubts as to the necessity
and proportionality of the various remedies.

The Belgium Regulatory Authorities adopted a final decision on July 1, 2011 (the July 2011 Decision) with some minor
revisions. The regulatory obligations imposed by the July 2011 Decision include (i) an obligation to make a resale offer at “retail
minus” of the cable analog package available to third party operators (including Belgacom), (ii) an obligation to grant third-party
operators (except Belgacom) access to digital television platforms (including the basic digital video package) at “retail minus,”
and (iii) an obligation to make a resale offer at “retail minus” of broadband internet access available to beneficiaries of the digital
television access obligation that wish to offer bundles of digital video and broadband internet services to their customers (except
Belgacom).

Telenet submitted draft reference offers regarding the obligations described above in February 2012, in response to which the
Belgium Regulatory Authorities subsequently made their observations, launched a national consultation process and consulted
with the European Commission. Although the European Commission expressed doubts regarding the analog resale offers on
August 8, 2013, the European Commission did not object to the reference offers. The Belgium Regulatory Authorities published
the final decision on September 9, 2013. The regulated wholesale services had to be available approximately six months after a
third-party operator filed a letter of intent and paid an advance payment to Telenet. On December 27, 2013, wireless operator
Mobistar SA (Mobistar) submitted a letter of intent and paid the advance payment on January 10, 2014. Telenet has implemented
the access obligations as described in its reference offers and, as of June 23, 2014, access to the Telenet network had become
operational and can be applied by Mobistar. In addition, as a result of the November 2014 decision by the Brussels Court of
Appeal described below, on November 14, 2014, Belgacom submitted a request to Telenet to commence access negotiations.

On April 2, 2013, the Belgium Regulatory Authorities issued a draft decision regarding the “retail-minus” tariffs of minus
35% for basic television (basic analog and digital video package) and minus 30% for the bundle of basic television and broadband
internet services. A “retail-minus” method of pricing involves a wholesale tariff calculated as the retail price for the offered service
by Telenet, excluding VAT and copyrights, and further deducting the retail costs avoided by offering the wholesale service (such
as costs for billing, franchise, consumer service, marketing and sales). On October 4, 2013, the Belgium Regulatory Authorities
notified a draft quantitative decision to the European Commission in which they changed the “retail-minus” tariffs to minus 30%
for basic television (basic analog and digital video package) and to minus 23% for the bundle of basic television and broadband
internet services. Even though the European Commission made a number of comments regarding the appropriateness of certain
assumptions in the proposed costing methodology, the Belgium Regulatory Authorities adopted such “retail-minus” tariffs on
December 11, 2013.

Telenet filed an appeal against the July 2011 Decision with the Brussels Court of Appeal. On November 12,2014, the Brussels
Court of Appeal rejected Telenet’s appeal of the July 2011 Decision and accepted Belgacom’s claim that Belgacom should be

allowed access to Telenet’s, among other operators, digital television platform. Telenet is currently considering the possibility to
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file an appeal against this decision with the Belgian Supreme Court. Telenet also filed an appeal with the Brussels Court of Appeal
against the decision regarding the qualitative and the quantitative aspects of the reference offers. Wireless operator Mobistar also
filed an appeal against the decision regarding the quantitative aspects of the reference offers. A decision with respect to these
appeals is not expected before the end of 2015. There can be no certainty that Telenet’s appeals will be successful.

The July 2011 Decision aims to, and in its application may, strengthen Telenet’s competitors by granting them resale access
to Telenet’s network to offer competing products and services notwithstanding Telenet’s substantial historical financial outlays in
developing the infrastructure. In addition, any resale access granted to competitors could (i) limit the bandwidth available to
Telenet to provide new or expanded products and services to the customers served by its network and (ii) adversely impact Telenet’s
ability to maintain or increase its revenue and cash flows. The extent of any such adverse impacts ultimately will be dependent
on the extent that competitors take advantage of the resale access ultimately afforded to Telenet’s network and other competitive
factors or market developments.

FCO Regulatory Issues. Our 2011 acquisition of the German cable network KBW (the KBW Acquisition) was subject to the
approval of The Federal Cartel Office (the FCO) in Germany, which approval was received in December 2011. In January 2012,
two of our competitors (collectively, the Appellants), including the incumbent telecommunications operator, each filed an appeal
(collectively, the FCO Appeals) against the FCO regarding its decision to approve our KBW Acquisition. On August 14, 2013,
the Diisseldorf Court of Appeal issued a ruling that set aside the FCO’s clearance decision. Although the Diisseldorf Court of
Appeal did not grant the right to appeal against its ruling to the Federal Court of Justice, on September 16, 2013, we filed a formal
request to appeal to the Federal Court of Justice seeking permission to appeal the Diisseldorf Court of Appeal’s decision and our
reasoned submission was filed on December 16, 2013. During the first quarter of 2014, interested third parties commented on
our submission. The Diisseldorf Court of Appeal’s ruling is not legally binding until all appeals have been rejected.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we, together with our German subsidiaries, entered into agreements with the Appellants
pursuant to which the Appellants withdrew the FCO Appeals and, on January 21, 2015, the FCO consented to the withdrawal. On
March 15, 2015, the Federal Court of Justice terminated the proceedings, as a result of which the FCO’s clearance decision with
respect to our KBW Acquisition became final (without any additional review or conditions). During the second quarter of 2015,
we will pay the Appellants an aggregate amount of €183.5 million ($222.0 million). This amount, which was recorded during the
fourth quarter of 2014, is included in impairment, restructuring and other operating items, net, in our consolidated statement of
operations. We will consider this matter to be closed once we have made the aforementioned payments to the Appellants.

Financial Transactions Tax. Eleven countries in the EU, including Belgium, Germany, Austria and Slovakia, are participating
inan enhanced cooperation procedure to introduce a financial transactions tax (FTT). Under the draft language ofthe FTT proposal,
a wide range of financial transactions could be taxed at rates of at least 0.01% for derivative transactions based on the notional
amount and 0.1% for other covered financial transactions based on the underlying transaction price. Each ofthe individual countries
would be permitted to determine an exact rate, which could be higher than the proposed rates of 0.01% and 0.1%. Any
implementation of the FTT could have a global impact because it would apply to all financial transactions where a financial
institution is involved (including unregulated entities that engage in certain types of covered activity) and either of the parties
(whether the financial institution or its counterparty) is in one of the eleven participating countries. Although ongoing debate in
the relevant countries demonstrates continued momentum around the FTT, uncertainty remains as to when the FTT would be
implemented and the breadth of its application. Based on our understanding of the current status of the potential FTT, we do not
expect that any implementation of the FTT would occur before 2016. Any imposition of the FTT could increase banking fees and
introduce taxes on internal transactions that we currently perform. Due to the uncertainty regarding the FTT, we are currently
unable to estimate the financial impact that the FTT could have on our results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

Virgin Media VAT Matters. Virgin Media’s application of the VAT with respect to certain revenue generating activities has
been challenged by the U.K. tax authorities. Virgin Media has estimated its maximum exposure in the event of an unfavorable
outcome to be £40.3 million ($62.8 million) as of December 31, 2014. No portion of this exposure has been accrued by Virgin
Media as the likelihood of loss is not considered to be probable. A court hearing was held at the end of September 2014 in relation
to the U.K. tax authorities’ challenge and the court’s decision is expected prior to September 30, 2015.

On March 19, 2014, the U.K. government announced a change in legislation with respect to the charging of VAT in connection
with prompt payment discounts such as those that Virgin Media offers to its fixed-line telephony customers. The changes, which
took effect on May 1, 2014, impacted Virgin Media and as a result of this legislation, Virgin Media’s revenue was £28.9 million
($45.0 million) lower during 2014, as compared to 2013. Recent correspondence from the U.K. government indicates that it may
seek to challenge Virgin Media’s application of the prompt payment discount rules prior to the May 1, 2014 change in legislation.
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If such a challenge were to be issued by the U.K. government, Virgin Media could be required to make a payment of the challenged
amount in order to make an appeal. Virgin Media currently estimates that the challenged amount could be up to approximately
£65 million ($101 million) before any penalties or interest. Any challenge and subsequent appeal would likely be subject to court
proceedings that could delay the ultimate resolution of this matter for an extended period of time. No portion of this potential
exposure has been accrued by Virgin Media as no claim has been asserted or assessed and the likelihood of loss is not considered
to be probable.

Cignal. On April 26, 2002, Liberty Global Europe received a notice that certain former shareholders of Cignal Global
Communications (Cignal) filed a lawsuit (the 2002 Cignal Action) against Liberty Global Europe. On June 13, 2006, Liberty
Global Europe, Priority Telecom NV, Euronext NV and Euronext Amsterdam NV were each served with a summons for a new
action (the 2006 Cignal Action) purportedly on behalf of all other former Cignal shareholders and provisionally for the nine
plaintiffs in the 2002 Cignal Action. During the third quarter of 2007, we recorded a litigation provision of $146.0 million based
on our assessment at the time of our loss exposure with respect to the 2002 Cignal Action and the 2006 Cignal Action. On October
25,2013, we received what we consider to be the final resolution of the 2006 Cignal Action and the effective resolution of the
2002 Cignal Action. Accordingly, we released the entire $146.0 million provision related to this matter during the third quarter
of 2013.

Other Regulatory Issues. Video distribution, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony, mobile and content businesses are
regulated in each of the countries in which we operate. The scope of regulation varies from country to country, although in some
significant respects regulation in European markets is harmonized under the regulatory structure of the EU. Adverse regulatory
developments could subject our businesses to a number of risks. Regulation, including conditions imposed on us by competition
or other authorities as a requirement to close acquisitions or dispositions, could limit growth, revenue and the number and types
of services offered and could lead to increased operating costs and property and equipment additions. In addition, regulation may
restrict our operations and subject them to further competitive pressure, including pricing restrictions, interconnect and other
access obligations, and restrictions or controls on content, including content provided by third parties. Failure to comply with
current or future regulation could expose our businesses to various penalties. In this regard, during September 2014, VTR received
a tariff proposal from the Chilean regulatory authority that would have retroactive effect to June 2012. The tariff proposal
represented a significant reduction in the fixed-line interconnection rates currently charged by VTR, and VTR continued to
recognize fixed-line interconnect revenue at the currently enacted rates. In February 2015, the Chilean regulatory authority revised
its tariff proposal and, as this revised proposal was more in line with market rates, VTR recorded a $3.5 million reduction to its
revenue during the first quarter of 2015, representing the impact of the revised tariff proposal from June 2012 through January
2015. Final resolution of the tariff-setting process in Chile is expected to occur during the first half of 2015. VTR believes that
any difference between the revised tariff proposal and the final resolution will not be material.

We have security accreditations across a range of B2B products and services in order to increase our offerings to public sector
organizations in the U.K. These accreditations are granted subject to periodic reviews of our policies and procedures by U.K.
governmental authorities. If we were to fail to maintain these accreditations or obtain new accreditations when required, it could
impact our ability to provide certain offerings to the public sector.

Other. In addition to the foregoing items, we have contingent liabilities related to matters arising in the ordinary course of
business including (i) legal proceedings, (ii) issues involving VAT and wage, property and other tax issues and (iii) disputes over
interconnection, programming, copyright and carriage fees. While we generally expect that the amounts required to satisfy these
contingencies will not materially differ from any estimated amounts we have accrued, no assurance can be given that the resolution
of one or more of these contingencies will not result in a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows or financial
position in any given period. Due, in general, to the complexity of the issues involved and, in certain cases, the lack of a clear
basis for predicting outcomes, we cannot provide a meaningful range of potential losses or cash outflows that might result from
any unfavorable outcomes.

as) Segment Reporting

We generally identify our reportable segments as those consolidated subsidiaries that represent 10% or more of our revenue,
operating cash flow (as defined below) or total assets. In certain cases, we may elect to include an operating segment in our
segment disclosure that does not meet the above-described criteria for a reportable segment. We evaluate performance and make
decisions about allocating resources to our operating segments based on financial measures such as revenue and operating cash
flow. In addition, we review non-financial measures such as subscriber growth, as appropriate.
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Operating cash flow is the primary measure used by our chief operating decision maker to evaluate segment operating
performance. Operating cash flow is also a key factor that is used by our internal decision makers to (i) determine how to allocate
resources to segments and (ii) evaluate the effectiveness of our management for purposes of annual and other incentive compensation
plans. As we use the term, operating cash flow is defined as revenue less operating and SG&A expenses (excluding share-based
compensation, depreciation and amortization, provisions and provision releases related to significant litigation and impairment,
restructuring and other operating items). Other operating items include (a) gains and losses on the disposition of long-lived assets,
(b) third-party costs directly associated with successful and unsuccessful acquisitions and dispositions, including legal, advisory
and due diligence fees, as applicable, and (c) other acquisition-related items, such as gains and losses on the settlement of contingent
consideration. Our internal decision makers believe operating cash flow is a meaningful measure and is superior to available
GAAP measures because it represents a transparent view of our recurring operating performance that is unaffected by our capital
structure and allows management to (1) readily view operating trends, (2) perform analytical comparisons and benchmarking
between segments and (3) identify strategies to improve operating performance in the different countries in which we operate.
We believe our operating cash flow measure is useful to investors because it is one of the bases for comparing our performance
with the performance of other companies in the same or similar industries, although our measure may not be directly comparable
to similar measures used by other public companies. Operating cash flow should be viewed as a measure of operating performance
that is a supplement to, and not a substitute for, operating income, net earnings or loss, cash flow from operating activities and
other GAAP measures of income or cash flows. A reconciliation of total segment operating cash flow to our loss from continuing
operations before income taxes is presented below.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we began presenting (i) our operating segments in the U.K. and Ireland as one combined
reportable segment, (ii) our operating segments in Switzerland and Austria as one combined reportable segment and (iii) our UPC
DTH operating segment, as described below, as part of our Central and Eastern Europe reportable segment. These changes were
made as a result of internal changes in organizational structures, changes in how these segments are evaluated and monitored by
the chief operating decision maker and the integration of certain functions within these reportable segments. Previously, (a) our
operating segments in the U.K. and Switzerland were each separate reportable segments, (b) our operating segments in Ireland
and Austria were combined into one reportable segment, “Other Western Europe,” and (¢) our UPC DTH operating segment was
included in the European Operations Division’s central and other category. Segment information for all periods presented has
been revised to reflect the above-described changes. We present only the reportable segments of our continuing operations in the
tables below.

As of December 31, 2014, our reportable segments are as follows:

*  European Operations Division:

* U.K./Ireland

e The Netherlands

*  Germany

*  Belgium

*  Switzerland/Austria

e Central and Eastern Europe

*  Chile

All of the reportable segments set forth above derive their revenue primarily from broadband communications services,
including video, broadband internet and fixed-line telephony services. Most of our reportable segments also provide B2B services
and certain of our reportable segments provide mobile services. At December 31, 2014, our operating segments in the European
Operations Division provided broadband communications services in 12 European countries and DTH services to customers in
the Czech Republic, Hungary, Romania and Slovakia through a Luxembourg-based organization that we refer to as “UPC DTH.”
Our Central and Eastern Europe segment includes (i) our broadband communications operating segments in the Czech Republic,
Hungary, Poland, Romania and Slovakia and (ii) our UPC DTH operating segment. The European Operations Division’s central
and other category includes (a) costs associated with certain centralized functions, including billing systems, network operations,
technology, marketing, facilities, finance and other administrative functions, and (b) intersegment eliminations within the European
Operations Division. In Chile, we provide video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services. Our corporate
and other category includes (A) less significant consolidated operating segments that provide (I) broadband communications
services in Puerto Rico and (II) programming and other services and (B) our corporate category. Intersegment eliminations
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primarily represent the elimination of intercompany transactions between our broadband communications and programming
operations.

Performance Measures of Our Reportable Segments

The amounts presented below represent 100% of each of our reportable segment’s revenue and operating cash flow. As we
have the ability to control Telenet and Liberty Puerto Rico, we consolidate 100% of the revenue and expenses of these entities in
our consolidated statements of operations despite the fact that third parties own significant interests in these entities. The
noncontrolling owners’ interests in the operating results of Telenet, Liberty Puerto Rico and other less significant majority-owned
subsidiaries are reflected in net earnings or loss attributable to noncontrolling interests in our consolidated statements of operations.

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Operating Operating Operating
Revenue cash flow Revenue cash flow Revenue cash flow

in millions

European Operations Division:

U.K./Treland (2) ..cocveeveevieeeeieieieeeceeieieee e $ 7,4099 $ 32357 $ 41174 $1,7428 $ 4264 $ 189.1
The Netherlands (b) .....c.cocoveveenenercnineieeneeenn 1,498.5 857.9 1,242.4 721.7 1,229.1 737.1
GEIMANY ...eevvieniieiieiteieeieeiee sttt ettt aeenaeeaees 2,711.5 1,678.2 2,559.2 1,541.1 2,311.0 1,364.3
BelIUm ...coveviiiiiniiiciiiniecceeeeeee e 2,279.4 1,125.0 2,185.9 1,049.4 1,918.0 940.7
Switzerland/Austria .......c.cccveeveeveevieenieieecieeie e, 1,846.1 1,056.4 1,767.1 1,005.7 1,681.8 936.5
Total Western Europe........cccoeevveeoeeiiniicneenne 15,745.4 7,953.2 11,872.0 6,060.7 7,566.3 4,167.7
Central and Eastern Europe.........ccccccevenineneennne. 1,259.5 583.0 1,272.0 584.5 1,231.2 589.2
Central and other ..........ccocoveiiiiiniiiieeeee (7.1) (282.7) (0.4) (239.1) 1.5 (195.7)
Total European Operations Division .................. 16,997.8 8,253.5 13,143.6 6,406.1 8,799.0 4,561.2
Chile .. 898.5 351.0 991.6 353.6 940.6 314.2
Corporate and Other...........cocceeeevenereiineneineneeeaens 376.9 (86.2) 3743 (63.8) 224.1 (83.1)
Intersegment eliminations (C) ........ccoevererrererereneencns (24.9) 4.0 (35.3) 448 (32.9) 38.6
TOtal .o $18,2483 §$ 8,522.3 $14,4742 $ 6,740.7 $ 9,930.8 $ 4,830.9

(@)  The amounts presented for 2013 include the post-acquisition revenue and operating cash flow of Virgin Media from June
8, 2013 through December 31, 2013.

(b)  The amounts presented for 2014 include the post-acquisition revenue and operating cash flow of Ziggo from November
12, 2014 through December 31, 2014.

(c)  The intersegment eliminations that are applicable to revenue are primarily related to transactions between our European
Operations Division and our continuing programming operations. The intersegment eliminations that are applicable to
operating cash flow are related to transactions between our European Operations Division and the Chellomedia Disposal
Group, which eliminations are no longer recorded following the completion of the Chellomedia Transaction on January 31,
2014.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of total segment operating cash flow from continuing operations to loss from

continuing operations before income taxes:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
in millions

Total segment operating cash flow from continuing operations...........c.cceceecueruerenene $ 85223 $ 6,740.7 $ 4,830.9
Share-based cOMPENSALION EXPEISE ......couerverreuiruiieieiirienientetteteeeeeeie et seeeeresnene (257.2) (300.7) (110.1)
Depreciation and amortiZation ...........cocooereeieiinenenenieene ettt (5,500.1) (4,276.4) (2,661.5)
Release of 1itigation PrOVISION .......c.ceirieireririeiriinieieiestereee ettt — 146.0 —
Impairment, restructuring and other operating items, Net...........cceceverecrenereeennenn (536.8) (297.5) (76.2)

OPErating IMNCOMIE. ......cvcuiiriiiietiirieiere ettt 2,228.2 2,012.1 1,983.1
INEETESE EXPEIISE.c.eveeervriniteiiteteirtet ettt ettt ettt ettt bttt b et ne (2,544.7) (2,286.9) (1,673.6)
Interest and dividend INCOME .........c.coivveiririnieiiniicieereet e 31.7 113.1 42.1
Gains (losses) on derivative inStruments, NEt..........coeeeeererererieienene e 88.8 (1,020.4) (1,070.3)
Foreign currency transaction gains (108S€s), Net......ccceevvevierireririienininerieecseeee (836.5) 3493 438.4
Gains (losses) due to changes in fair values of certain investments, net .................... 205.2 524.1 (10.2)
Losses on debt modification, extinguishment and conversion, net...........c..coceeeeuenee. (186.2) (212.2) (213.8)
Other EXPENSE, NEL.....c.ceuertiieiietirieieicetestet ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt st ebe b nee (42.4) (5.6) (4.6)

Loss from continuing operations before inCome taxes............ocoeeevuerreeruererercennenns $ (1,0559) § (526.5) $  (508.9)
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Balance Sheet Data of our Reportable Segments

Selected balance sheet data of our reportable segments is set forth below:

Long-lived assets Total assets
December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013

in millions

European Operations Division:

U KUIERLANM <o er e $ 21,7542 $ 243221 $ 254872 $ 30,598.8
The Netherlands .........ccoocviivieiieiicie e 17,092.7 2,496.5 17,387.0 2,845.3
(€153 410 E: 1 USSR 9,117.9 10,754.7 9,512.8 11,968.2
BEI@IUM ...ttt 4,149.5 4,737.4 4,828.8 5,909.2
SWitzerland/AUSLia. .......cocververierieiieeeeeereeee e 5,300.9 5,961.8 5,643.9 6,484.8
Total Western EUTOPe......cccceveeiierierieniecieceescecce e 57,415.2 48272.5 62,859.7 57,806.3
Central and Eastern EUrope...........ccocvevvevieeieierienienieieieseseeeeeenes 2,459.9 2,898.7 2,566.4 3,127.4
Central and Other..........cccuiiiiiiieiiiie e 499 .4 463.5 2,613.2 1,639.1
Total European Operations DivisSion..........c.cceeeeeerinieencncneencnn 60,374.5 51,634.7 68,039.3 62,572.8
CRILE ..ttt ettt b ettt ene e 1,017.3 1,139.7 1,513.2 1,628.9
Corporate and Other ..........ccooerieiriieeeeeee e 1,197.2 1,214.9 3,289.4 2,760.3
Total - continuing OPErations..........ecuerueruerreereererereeieneneeseeeeeenes 62,589.0 53,989.3 72,841.9 66,962.0
Discontinued operation (@) ..........ceceeeuererererierieneneneeeenenee e — 513.6 — 752.3
TOAL e $ 62,580.0 $ 54,5029 $ 72,8419 $ 67,7143

(a)  AtDecember 31,2013, the long-lived assets and total assets of the Chellomedia Disposal Group are presented in long-term
assets of discontinued operation in our consolidated balance sheet.
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Property and Equipment Additions of our Reportable Segments

The property and equipment additions of our reportable segments (including capital additions financed under vendor financing
or capital lease arrangements) are presented below and reconciled to the capital expenditure amounts included in our consolidated
statements of cash flows. For additional information concerning capital additions financed under vendor financing and capital

lease arrangements, see note 9.

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
in millions
European Operations Division:
UKU/IFEIANA (@) 10nvievieiieiieiieieeeieesie ettt ettt et ae v e beebeesseesseesbeesseesseenseenns $ 1,506.7 $ 8275 $ 74.5
The Netherlands (D) .....c.ooeeieieieee e 268.0 242 .4 221.8
GETIMANY ....eeeietieteteeteie ettt ettt et et et e e et e st et e ae st e seese s eneeseesenseseebeeseneeneesesentesesseneenis 574.5 543.4 559.5
BEIGIUIM. ¢ttt ettt ettt st b et ns 448.9 453.7 440.0
SWItZETIANA/AUSLIIA ...t 327.2 306.4 292.8
Total Western EUTOPE.........c.everieiiiriiieiieierieee ettt 3,125.3 2,373.4 1,588.6
Central and Eastern EUTOPE ........cc.cceiireieininiiiiereneceeeetseeeee s 264.8 271.6 248.7
Central and OtheT... ..ot 257.9 256.0 144.3
Total European Operations DiVISION..........cocceveciririeerinenieeneneeeeneeeeee e 3,648.0 2,901.0 1,981.6
CRILE -ttt 195.8 188.5 2434
Corporate and OthET.........cccoiiiuiiieieerec e 65.4 72.1 33.6
Property and equipment additions ..........c.cccceeeevieneninienenenneeeeeee 3,909.2 3,161.6 2,258.6
Assets acquired under capital-related vendor financing arrangements....................... (975.3) (573.5) (246.5)
Assets acquired under capital 188Ses .........ooveieirerieiiiinieieree e (127.2) (143.0) (63.1)
Changes in current liabilities related to capital expenditures............coccceveeerrenennnnee (122.3) 36.4 (80.7)
Total capital eXPEndItUIES.......c..ccveviruirieiiririeieereteeeese ettt $ 26844 $§ 24815 $ 11,8683

(@)  The amount presented for 2013 includes the post-acquisition property and equipment additions of Virgin Media from June

8, 2013 through December 31, 2013.

(b)  The amount presented for 2014 includes the post-acquisition property and equipment additions of Ziggo from November

12, 2014 through December 31, 2014.
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Revenue by Major Category

Our revenue by major category is set forth below:

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
in millions

Subscription revenue (a):

VEACO et $ 65440 $ 57241 S  4,637.6
Broadband INTETNET...........ooeeriiiiienieiieeeieetteeee ettt ettt se e 4,724.6 3,538.7 2,407.0
Fixed-1ine telePhOnY .......ccieieierieciieiieieie ettt esesneas 3,261.4 2,508.5 1,518.9
Cable SUDSCIIPLION TEVEIUE .......eeuvenieeeiieeeieiieiesieeeeeeeeeesee e seeeseesessesseeseensesessesneas 14,530.0 11,771.3 8,563.5
Mobile subscription reVenue (D) ........cecerererirriereneeieieie e 1,085.6 669.9 131.5
Total SUDSCIIPHION TEVEIUE. ... .c..eeeieiiee ittt sttt 15,615.6 12,441.2 8,695.0
B2B TEVEIUE (C) w.vveutetetieuieiieie sttt sttt sttt be st e et besbe st eeesbesbeeseeneeneesaeeneas 1,517.9 986.9 467.9
Other reVenue (B) (). .eoerueeeereieieeeee ettt 1,114.8 1,046.1 767.9
TOLAl TEVEIUE ......c.veviviiieeietietieieeeete ettt ettt ettt et sseas et sbessetessesseasesens $ 182483 § 144742 $ 9,930.8

(a)  Subscription revenue includes amounts received from subscribers for ongoing services, excluding installation fees and late

(b)

(©)

(d)

fees. Subscription revenue from subscribers who purchase bundled services at a discounted rate is generally allocated
proportionally to each service based on the standalone price for each individual service. As aresult, changes in the standalone
pricing of our cable and mobile products or the composition of bundles can contribute to changes in our product revenue
categories from period to period.

Mobile subscription revenue excludes mobile interconnect revenue of $245.0 million, $175.2 million and $35.1 million
during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Mobile interconnect revenue and revenue from mobile handset sales are included
in other revenue.

B2B revenue includes revenue from business broadband internet, video, voice, wireless and data services offered to medium
to large enterprises and, on a wholesale basis, to other operators. We also provide services to certain small office and home
office (SOHO) subscribers. SOHO subscribers pay a premium price to receive enhanced service levels along with video,
broadband internet, fixed-line telephony or mobile services that are the same or similar to the mass marketed products
offered to our residential subscribers. Revenue from SOHO subscribers, which aggregated $204.1 million, $152.5 million
and $59.7 million during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, is included in cable subscription revenue.

Other revenue includes, among other items, interconnect, installation and carriage fee revenue.
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Geographic Segments

The revenue of our geographic segments is set forth below:

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
in millions

European Operations Division:

LKL (@) ettt $§ 69411 $§ 36537 § —
GEITNAILY ...ttt ettt ettt e sttt e st e s tae s et e st tesbeesbeessaesseesseenseesseenseenseenseensaenseense 2,711.5 2,559.2 2,311.0
2751 T 1173 o SRS 2,279.4 2,185.9 1,918.0
SWILZEIIANA.......c.viiiieiecie ettt et et eve e be e raeereere e 1,414.4 1,332.1 1,259.8
The Netherlands (D)......c.cccveeiiiiiiieeiece ettt reesaa e 1,498.5 1,242.4 1,229.1
TTEIANM. ...ttt n ettt eneenens 468.8 463.7 426.4
POLANG. ...ttt st ne e aan 469.9 460.4 450.0
ALUSETIA 1otttk 431.7 435.0 422.0
HUINZATY .ttt st a ettt st se b nan 310.2 313.8 298.9
The Czech REPUDIIC ..c..cueuiiiieiiiiieiccee e 221.0 248.9 253.4
ROMANIA ...ttt ettt st 173.3 163.8 149.4
STOVAKIA ...ttt 74.5 74.6 70.5

L 14 1<) ST 3.5 10.1 10.5
Total European Operations DiViSION .........cccceverererininenieineneneecneeeeennenne 16,997.8 13,143.6 8,799.0
CRILE et bbb 898.5 991.6 940.6
PUCTEO RICO.c..iuiiiiiiiiciiiice et 306.1 297.2 145.5
Other, including intersegment eliminations ..........c..coceeceeverereneeienenenenieeeneeee 459 41.8 45.7
TOAL -ttt bbbt $ 182483 § 144742 $ 9,930.8

(a)  The amount presented for 2013 reflects the post-acquisition revenue of Virgin Media from June 8, 2013 through
December 31, 2013.

(b)  The amount presented for 2014 reflects the post-acquisition revenue of Ziggo from November 12, 2014 through December
31,2014.
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The long-lived assets of our geographic segments are set forth below:

December 31,
2014 2013

in millions

European Operations Division:

UK ettt et e ettt et ee e ee e $ 21,0983 $ 23,570.6
The NEtherlands .........ccveeieiieiieiieceeeee ettt e e et a e st e s teestaeesaeesaessaessaessaesssessaenes 17,092.7 2,496.5

L€ 1S 4001 )OSR 9,117.9 10,754.7
SWILZETIANA ..ottt ettt e et e e teesae e bt e beesseenseenseenseeseenseenseenses 4,218.9 4,745.7
BEIGIUM ...ttt sttt 4,149.5 4,737.4
AAUSETIA .ottt ettt et e et ettt et e e ate st e e a b e ea b e e abeeat e e at e et e enbeenbeeabe e beenbeeabeeate s 1,082.0 1,216.1
POLANA ..ottt e ettt e b e b e eab e b e et e e beeabeeabeebeebeereeare s 983.5 1,178.5
TT@IAIA ...ttt ettt et b ettt bttt bbbt b et eae 655.9 751.5
The CzZech REPUDIIC ......couiriiiiiiiitiicietinectsec ettt sttt enen 580.4 679.7
HUIZATY ..ottt sttt sttt e et ebeen et enes 535.7 640.6
ROMANIA ...ttt ettt st b ettt eaeea et eaes 209.1 226.0
SIOVAKIA. ...ttt 110.5 131.0
ONET () 1ttt ettt sttt ea et e h et e e b e bt bt e bt et st bt ettt e et bt st eaeenee 540.1 506.4
Total European Operations DIVISION.........cc.ecirererieiriinieinenieneeeet ettt 60,374.5 51,634.7
PUCTEO RICO ..ttt b e et e et e et e e b e easeeabeenbeeabeenseenseenreenbeenseenseenrenn 1,128.3 1,131.9
CRILE ...ttt ekttt bkttt s b st h et bkttt n et bbbt n et nenes 1,017.3 1,139.7
L8 AT ¥ Ua o i 4 3 o (o) TSRS 68.9 83.0
Total - CONtINUING OPEIALIONS ....c.veuveuiuitiireiintentet ettt ettt sttt ettt sae e e bt benesesaesaeneeneas 62,589.0 53,989.3
DiscontinUed OPEIAtION (€) «..eoverveeuieriertiiteetieiente et et e ettt ettt ettt et es et e et sbeeseeneenbesbeeseesteseseeeneeneans — 513.6
TOTAL et e e et e e et e et e e e et ee e ss e $ 62,589.0 $ 54,502.9

(a)  Primarily represents long-lived assets of the European Operations Division’s central operations, which are located in the
Netherlands.

(b)  Primarily represents the assets of our corporate offices.

(c) At December 31, 2013, the long-lived assets of the Chellomedia Disposal Group are presented in long-term assets of
discontinued operation in our consolidated balance sheet.
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a9) Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

REVENUE......ooiiiiiiiiiiciccccececeeeeeeee
Operating iNCOME.......eccuerererrerierienieeseenrenieeseeseeeneeenseenes

Net earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty Global
Shareholders. .......cccueoveririiieiieeee e

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty
Global shareholders per share (note 3)........ccceeevevvennnnne

REVENUE. ..ot
Operating iNCOME. ......c..eoueruireeieienieeieeeee et
Net loss attributable to Liberty Global shareholders .........

Basic and diluted loss attributable to Liberty Global
shareholders per share (N0t€ 3) ......cccccveveerienienienienienne

20) Subsequent Events

Ziggo Acquisition

2014

1% quarter 2" quarter 3" quarter 4™ quarter

in millions, except per share amounts

$ 4,533.7 $ 4,602.2 § 44972 § 4,615.2

$ 581.7 % 669.5 $ 703.7 % 273.3
$ (78.8) $ (249.9) $ 1571 § (523.4)
$ (0.10) $ 032) $ 020 $ (0.62)
2013
1% quarter 2" quarter 3" quarter 4™ quarter

in millions, except per share amounts

$ 2,6719 § 3,057.8 § 4,276.5 § 4,468.0

$ 5282 § 4451 § 5212 8§ 517.6
$ (1.0) $ (11.6) $ (830.1) $ (121.2)
$ — 5 0.02) $ (1.04) $ (0.16)

As discussed in note 4, in December 2014, we initiated the Statutory Squeeze-out in order to acquire the remaining 3,162,605
Ziggo shares not tendered through November 19, 2014. Under the Statutory Squeeze-out, Ziggo shareholders other than Liberty
Global will receive cash consideration of €39.78 ($48.14) per share, which amount was approved in April 2015 by the Enterprise
Court in the Netherlands. The Statutory Squeeze-out is expected to be completed during the second quarter of 2015.

Internal Financing Transactions

During the first quarter of 2015, we undertook the financing transactions described below in connection with certain internal
reorganizations of our broadband and wireless communications businesses in Europe. These internal reorganizations include:

* the transfer on February 12, 2015 of a controlling interest in UPC Broadband Ireland Ltd. and its subsidiaries from a
subsidiary of UPC Holding to a subsidiary of Virgin Media (the UPC Ireland Transfer), with the remaining noncontrolling
interest transferred to another subsidiary of Liberty Global outside the UPC Holding borrowing group; and

» the first quarter 2015 internal reorganization of our broadband and wireless communications businesses in the Netherlands
(the NL Reorganization), pursuant to which UPC Nederland and Ziggo and/or their successor companies and their
subsidiaries became indirect subsidiaries of Ziggo Group Holding B. V. (Ziggo Group Holding), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Liberty Global that was formed subsequent to December 31, 2014. At December 31, 2014, UPC Nederland was a

wholly-owned subsidiary of UPC Holding.

UPC Ireland Transfer. In contemplation of the UPC Ireland Transfer, certain subsidiaries of Virgin Media issued the

following senior notes on January 28, 2015:

*  Virgin Media Secured Finance issued £300.0 million ($467.4 million) principal amount of 5.125% senior secured notes
due January 15, 2025 (the 2025 VM 5.125% Senior Secured Notes); and
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*  Virgin Media Finance issued (i) $400.0 million principal amount of 5.75% senior notes (the 2025 VM Dollar Senior
Notes) and (ii) €460.0 million ($556.6 million) principal amount of 4.50% senior notes (the 2025 VM Euro Senior Notes
and, together with the 2025 VM Dollar Senior Notes, the 2025 VM Senior Notes), each of which are due January 15,
2025.

A portion of the proceeds from the 2025 VM 5.125% Senior Secured Notes and the 2025 VM Senior Notes, along with a
portion of the Proceeds Loans (as defined and described below) were used to redeem (a) the full principal amount of the UPC
Holding 8.375% Senior Notes, (b) the full principal amount of the UPCB Finance I Notes and (c) €560.0 million ($677.6 million)
principal amount of the UPCB Finance I Notes, including the related redemption premiums. In connection with these transactions,
we recognized a loss on debt modification and extinguishment, net, of $144.0 million. This loss includes (1) the payment of $112.7
million of redemption premium, (2) the write-off of $26.6 million of deferred financing costs and (3) the write-off of $4.7 million
of unamortized discount.

The 2025 VM 5.125% Senior Secured Notes contain terms that are similar to the VM Senior Secured Notes with respect to
ranking and covenant requirements and are guaranteed on the same basis as the VM Senior Secured Notes. The 2025 VM Senior
Notes contain terms that are similar to the VM Senior Notes with respect to ranking and covenant requirements and are guaranteed
on the same basis as the VM Senior Notes. For more information, see note 10.

Subject to the circumstances described below, the 2025 VM 5.125% Senior Secured Notes and the 2025 VM Senior Notes
are non-callable until January 15, 2020. At any time prior to January 15, 2020, Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin Media
Finance (as applicable) may redeem some or all of the 2025 VM 5.125% Senior Secured Notes and 2025 VM Senior Notes by
paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments to the first call date
using the discount rate (as specified in the indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.

Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin Media Finance (as applicable) may redeem some or all of the 2025 VM 5.125%
Senior Secured Notes or the 2025 VM Senior Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal
amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional amounts (as specified in the indenture), if any, to the redemption date, if
redeemed during the twelve-month period commencing on January 15 of the years set forth below:

Redemption price

2025 VM 2025 VM 2025 VM
5.125% Senior Dollar Senior Euro Senior
Year Secured Notes Notes Notes
2020 et e et e e e e e eenaa e e e enareeeeeraes 102.563% 102.875% 102.250%
2021 et e e e e e e et a e e eearaeeeeraes 101.708% 101.917% 101.500%
2022 et e e e e e et e e e e e s e e et —reteaaeeeeanaaaas 100.854% 100.958% 100.750%
2023 aNd thETEATIET ... ...eeiieeiiiiieeieeeeeeee et 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%

Prior to January 15, 2020, during each 12-month period commencing on the date on which the 2025 VM 5.125% Senior
Secured Notes and the 2025 VM Senior Notes are issued, each of Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin Media Finance may
redeem up to 10% of the principal amount of the 2025 VM 5.125% Senior Secured Notes and the 2025 VM Senior Notes,
respectively, at a redemption price equal to 103% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest up to (but
excluding) the redemption date.

In addition, for a period of six months from the date on which the 2025 VM 5.125% Senior Secured Notes and the 2025 VM
Senior Notes are issued, Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin Media Finance may redeem the 2025 VM 5.125% Senior Secured
Notes and the 2025 VM Senior Notes, respectively, at par.

If Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin Media Finance (as applicable) or the restricted subsidiaries (as specified in the
indenture) sell certain assets, Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin Media Finance must offer to repurchase the 2025 VM 5.125%
Senior Secured Notes or the 2025 VM Senior Notes, as applicable, at par, or if Virgin Media Communications or certain of its
subsidiaries experience changes in control (as specified in the indenture) Virgin Media Secured Finance or Virgin Media Finance
(as applicable) must offer to repurchase the 2025 VM 5.125% Senior Secured Notes and the 2025 VM Senior Notes at a redemption
price of 101%.
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NL Reorganization. In contemplation of the NL Reorganization, we formed two special purpose financing entities, Ziggo
Bond Finance B.V. (Ziggo Bond Finance) and its subsidiary, Ziggo Secured Finance B.V. (Ziggo Secured Finance and, together
with Ziggo Bond Finance, the Ziggo SPEs) for the primary purpose of facilitating (i) the issuance of the Ziggo SPE Notes and
(i) the creation of the New Ziggo Credit Facility (each as defined and described below). The Ziggo SPEs are wholly-owned by
a Dutch foundation.

Ziggo SPE Notes. On January 29, 2015, Ziggo Bond Finance issued (i) $400.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.875%
senior notes (the Ziggo 2025 Dollar Senior Notes) and (ii) €400.0 million ($484.0 million) aggregate principal amount of 4.625%
senior notes (the Ziggo 2025 Euro Senior Notes and, together with the Ziggo 2025 Dollar Senior Notes, the Ziggo 2025 Senior
Notes), in each case due January 15, 2025.

On February 4, 2015, Ziggo Secured Finance issued €800.0 million ($968.1 million) aggregate principal amount of 3.750%
senior secured notes (the Ziggo 2025 Senior Secured Notes and, together with the Ziggo 2025 Senior Notes, the Ziggo SPE Notes)
due January 15, 2025.

Pending consummation of the NL Reorganization, the net proceeds of the Ziggo SPE Notes (the Escrowed Proceeds) were
placed into certain escrow accounts. On March 5, 2015, the Escrowed Proceeds were released and the NL Reorganization was
consummated.

Upon release of the Escrowed Proceeds (i) Ziggo Secured Finance used the proceeds of the Ziggo 2025 Senior Secured Notes
to fund a proceeds loan denominated in euro, in an aggregate amount equal to the principal amount of the Ziggo 2025 Senior
Secured Notes (the Senior Secured Proceeds Loan) to UPC Nederland Holding I11 B. V., a subsidiary of Ziggo Group Holding (the
Senior Secured Proceeds Loan Borrower), subject to the terms of a senior secured proceeds loan facility (the Senior Secured
Proceeds Loan Facility) and (ii) Ziggo Bond Finance used the proceeds of the Ziggo 2025 Senior Notes to fund a proceeds loan
denominated in U.S. dollars, in an amount equal to the principal amount of the Ziggo 2025 Dollar Senior Notes, and a proceeds
loan denominated in euro, in an amount equal to the principal amount of the Ziggo 2025 Euro Senior Notes (together, the Senior
Proceeds Loans, and along with the Senior Secured Proceeds Loan, the Proceeds Loans) to UPC Nederland Holding I B.V., a
subsidiary of Ziggo Group Holding (the Senior Proceeds Loan Borrower, and together with the Senior Secured Proceeds Loan
Borrower, the Proceeds Loan Borrowers), subject to the terms of a senior proceeds loan facility. A portion of the proceeds from
the Proceeds Loans, along with a portion of the 2025 VM 5.125% Senior Secured Notes and the 2025 VM Senior Notes, was
ultimately used to redeem (a) the full principal amount of the UPC Holding 8.375% Senior Notes, (b) the full principal amount of
the UPCB Finance I Notes and (c¢) €560.0 million ($677.6 million) principal amount of the UPCB Finance II Notes, including the
related redemption premiums.

Each of the Ziggo SPEs is dependent on payments from the applicable Proceeds Loan Borrowers in order to service its payment
obligations under the applicable Ziggo SPE Notes. None of the Proceeds Loan Borrowers or any of their respective subsidiaries
guarantee or provide any credit support for the Ziggo SPEs’ obligations under the Ziggo SPE Notes, however certain subsidiaries
of Ziggo Group Holding have agreed to be bound by the covenants in the indentures governing the Ziggo SPE Notes. Although
the Proceeds Loan Borrowers have no equity or voting interest in any of the Ziggo SPEs, each of the Proceeds Loans creates a
variable interest in the respective Ziggo SPE for which the applicable Proceeds Loan Borrower is the primary beneficiary, as
contemplated by GAAP. As such, the Proceeds Loan Borrowers and their parent entities, including Ziggo Group Holding and
Liberty Global, are required by the provisions of GAAP to consolidate the Ziggo SPEs. Accordingly, the amounts outstanding
under the Proceeds Loans will be eliminated in Liberty Global’s consolidated financial statements.

The Ziggo SPE Notes are non-callable until January 15, 2020. At any time prior to January 15, 2020, Ziggo Secured Finance
or Ziggo Bond Finance may redeem some or all of the Ziggo SPE Notes (as applicable) by paying a “make-whole” premium,
which is the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments to the first call date using the discount rate (as specified
in the applicable indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.
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Ziggo Secured Finance or Ziggo Bond Finance may redeem some or all of the Ziggo SPE Notes (as applicable) at the following
redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and additional amounts
(as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve-month period commencing
on January 15 of the years set forth below:

Redemption price
Ziggo 2025 Ziggo 2025 Ziggo 2025

Dollar Senior  Euro Senior Senior
Year Notes Notes Secured Notes
2020 ettt et e et e e tbe e bea e tbeeatbee e bt e atbeeatbaeabaeatbeeanseeesaeesreans 102.938% 102.313% 101.875%
202 ettt e et e et e e bt e e ta e e tbee e b e e e taeeanbeeenaeetreeanseeenaeeanreann 101.958% 101.542% 101.250%
20022 ettt ettt e bt e ettt e atee e b e e e taeeanteeebeeenteeantaeenaeeanseenn 100.979% 100.771% 100.625%
2023 and therCafter.......c.eecuieiieiieiieie ettt et e e e eraeeaae e 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%

Prior to January 15, 2020, the Senior Secured Proceeds Loan Borrower may instruct Ziggo Secured Finance during each 12-
month period commencing on the date on which the Ziggo 2025 Senior Secured Notes are issued, to redeem up to 10% of the
principal amount of the Ziggo 2025 Senior Secured Notes at a redemption price equal to 103% of the principal amount thereof
plus accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excluding) the redemption date.

If Ziggo Secured Finance or Ziggo Bond Finance or the restricted subsidiaries experience changes in control (as specified in
the applicable indenture) Ziggo Secured Finance or Ziggo Bond Finance (as applicable) must offer to repurchase the applicable
Ziggo SPE Notes at a redemption price of 101%.

The call provisions, maturity and applicable interest rate for each of the Proceeds Loans will be substantially the same as those
of the applicable series of the Ziggo SPE Notes described above.

The Ziggo 2025 Senior Notes are senior obligations of Ziggo Bond Finance that rank equally in right of payment with all
existing and future senior debt of Ziggo Bond Finance and senior to all existing and future subordinated debt of Ziggo Bond
Finance that is not subordinated to the Ziggo 2025 Senior Notes. The Ziggo 2025 Senior Secured Notes are senior obligations of
Ziggo Secured Finance that rank equally in right of payment with all existing and future senior debt of Ziggo Secured Finance
and are senior to all existing and future subordinated debt of Ziggo Secured Finance that is not subordinated to the Ziggo 2025
Senior Secured Notes. Following the release of the Escrowed Proceeds, the Ziggo SPE Notes are secured by a first-ranking security
interest over (i) all of the issued shares of the applicable Ziggo SPE and bank accounts of the Ziggo SPEs and (ii) the applicable
Ziggo SPE’s rights to and benefits from the applicable Proceeds Loans.

The Senior Secured Proceeds Loan is a senior obligation of the Senior Secured Proceeds Loan Borrower. The Senior Secured
Proceeds Loan ranks equally with all existing and future senior debt of the Senior Secured Proceeds Loan Borrower and senior to
all future subordinated debt of the Senior Secured Proceeds Loan Borrower. The obligations of the Senior Secured Proceeds Loan
Borrower under the Senior Secured Proceeds Loan are guaranteed on a senior secured basis by certain subsidiaries of Ziggo Group
Holding.

The Senior Proceeds Loans are senior obligations of the Senior Proceeds Loan Borrower. The Senior Proceeds Loans rank
equally with all existing and future senior debt of the Senior Proceeds Loan Borrower and senior to all future subordinated debt
of the Senior Proceeds Loan Borrower. The obligations of the Senior Proceeds Loan Borrower under a Senior Proceeds Loan are
guaranteed on a senior basis by Ziggo Bond Company B.V., a subsidiary of Ziggo Group Holding.

New Ziggo Credit Facility. In connection with the NL Reorganization, lenders under the existing Facility AG under the UPC
Broadband Holding Bank Facility agreed to roll €689.2 million ($834.0 million) into a new euro denominated term loan (Facility
AlJ) under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility. The terms of Facility AJ are substantially the same as the terms of Facility
AG, except that the terms of Facility AJ provided for the rollover of Facility AJ, upon completion of the NL Reorganization, into
new term loans (the SPV Term Loans) under a new senior secured credit facility with Ziggo Secured Finance as the borrower (the
New Ziggo Credit Facility). Facility AJ rolled into the SPV Term Loans on a cashless basis (the SPV Credit Facility Rollover).

As aresult of the SPV Credit Facility Rollover, a receivable was created owing from UPC Nederland to Ziggo Secured Finance.
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This receivable is funded on a cashless basis as one facility (the Rollover Loan) subject to the terms of the Senior Secured Proceeds
Loan Facility. The New Ziggo Credit Facility ranks equally with the Ziggo 2025 Senior Secured Notes, including with respect to
the proceeds of enforcement of the Notes Collateral, as defined in the loan agreement, and the Rollover Loan ranks equally with
the Senior Secured Proceeds Loan.

VM Notes

On March 30, 2015, Virgin Media Secured Finance, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Virgin Media, issued (i) $500.0 million
principal amount of 5.25% senior secured notes due January 15, 2026 (the Original 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes) and (ii) £525.0
million ($818.0 million) principal amount of 4.875% senior secured notes due January 15, 2027 (the 2027 VM Senior Secured
Notes). The net proceeds from the Original 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes and the 2027 VM Senior Secured Notes were used to
(a) redeem 10% of the principal amount of each of the following series of notes issued by Virgin Media Secured Finance: (1) the
£1,100.0 million ($1,713.9 million) principal amount of the April 2021 VM Sterling Senior Secured Notes, (2) the $1.0 billion
principal amount of the April 2021 VM Dollar Senior Secured Notes and (3) the £430.0 million ($670.0 million) principal amount
0f 2025 VM 5.5% Sterling Senior Secured Notes, each at a redemption price equal to 103% of the applicable redeemed principal
amount in accordance with the indentures governing each of the notes, and (b) prepay in full the existing £375.0 million ($584.3
million) outstanding principal amount of VM Facility A and $400.0 million of the existing $2,755.0 million outstanding principal
amount of VM Facility B, each under the VM Credit Facility. In connection with these transactions, we recognized a loss on debt
modification and extinguishment, net, of $30.1 million. This loss includes (I) the write-off of $17.9 million of deferred financing
costs, (IT) the payment of $10.7 million of redemption premium and (IIT) the write-off of $1.5 million of unamortized discount.

On April 23, 2015, Virgin Media Secured Finance agreed to issue $500.0 million principal amount of 5.250% senior secured
notes due January 15, 2026 (the Additional 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes and, together with the Original 2026 VM Senior
Secured Notes, the 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes). The Additional 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes will be issued at 101% of
par. The net proceeds from the Additional 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes are expected to be used to prepay $500.0 million of
the outstanding principal amount of VM Facility B under the VM Credit Facility.

The 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes and the 2027 VM Senior Secured Notes are senior obligations of Virgin Media Secured
Finance that rank equally with all of the existing and future senior debt of Virgin Media Secured Finance and are senior to all
existing and future subordinated debt of Virgin Media Secured Finance. The 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes and the 2027 VM
Senior Secured Notes are guaranteed on a senior basis by the VM Senior Secured Guarantors and are secured by liens on substantially
all of the assets of Virgin Media Secured Finance and the VM Senior Secured Guarantors (except for Virgin Media).

The 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes and the 2027 VM Senior Secured Notes contain certain customary incurrence-based
covenants. For example, the ability to raise certain additional debt and make certain distributions or loans to other subsidiaries of
Liberty Global is subject to a consolidated net leverage ratio test, as specified in the indenture. In addition, the 2026 VM Senior
Secured Notes and the 2027 VM Senior Secured Notes provide that any failure to pay principal prior to expiration of any applicable
grace period, or any acceleration with respect to other indebtedness of £75.0 million ($116.9 million) or more in the aggregate of
VMIH or the restricted subsidiaries (as specified in the indenture) is an event of default under the 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes
and the 2027 VM Senior Secured Notes.

Subject to the circumstances described below, the 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes are non-callable until January 15, 2020
and the 2027 VM Senior Secured Notes are non-callable until January 15,2021 (the Call Dates). At any time prior to the applicable
Call Date, Virgin Media Secured Finance may redeem some or all of the 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes or the 2027 VM Senior
Secured Notes (as applicable) by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining scheduled interest
payments to the applicable Call Date using the discount rate (as specified in the indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis
points.
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Virgin Media Secured Finance may redeem some or all of the 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes or the 2027 VM Senior Secured
Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and
additional amounts (as specified in the indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve-month
period commencing on January 15 of the years set forth below:

Redemption price

2026 VM 2027 VM
Senior Secured Senior Secured

Year Notes Notes
2020 e ettt e e — e e ee——— e e e e e e e ear——tee e —ateeaa——eeeeatateeeatreeeeaarreeean 102.625% N.A.
2021 e e ee—— e e e et e e eaa——t e e e —ateeeaabeeeeatrteeeatreeeeanrrraeean 101.313% 102.438%
2022 e e e e ee———eeeae——aeeaa——teeaa—ateeea——eeeeatrtaeeatraeeennaraaeenn 100.656% 101.219%
202 et ——————eee et e e e —————————teeteeaea——————————teeeeeeeaa——————teeaeeeeaaa———raaees 100.000% 100.609%
2024 AN ThETEATIET ... ..vveeiieeiieeeeeeee ettt e et e e et e e e s saaa e e e seaaaeeessnaeeessnaeeeeas 100.000% 100.000%

Prior to the applicable Call Date, during each 12-month period commencing on the date on which the 2026 VM Senior Secured
Notes and the 2027 VM Senior Secured Notes were issued, respectively, Virgin Media Secured Finance may redeem up to 10%
of'the principal amount of the 2026 VM Senior Secured Notes and the 2027 VM Senior Secured Notes, respectively, at a redemption
price equal to 103% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excluding) the redemption date.

If VMIH or the restricted subsidiaries (as specified in the indenture) sell certain assets or if Virgin Media Communications
Limited or certain of its subsidiaries experience specific changes in control, Virgin Media Secured Finance must offer to repurchase
the relevant notes at a redemption price of 101%.

UPC Broadband Holding Refinancing Transactions

UPCB Finance IV Limited (UPCB Finance V), a special purpose financing entity that is owned 100% by a charitable trust,
was created for the primary purpose of facilitating the April 15, 2015 offering of (i) $800.0 million aggregate principal amount of
5.375% senior secured notes due January 15, 2025 (the UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes) and (ii) €600.0 million ($726.0 million)
aggregate principal amount of 4.0% senior secured notes due January 15, 2027 (the UPCB Finance IV Euro Notes and, together
with the UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes, the UPCB Finance IV Notes).

UPCB Finance IV, which has no material business operations, used the proceeds from (i) the UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes
to fund a new additional facility (Facility AL) and (ii) the UPCB Finance IV Euro Notes to fund a new additional facility (Facility
AK and, together with Facility AL, the New Facilities), each under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility, with UPC Financing
as the borrower. The call provisions, maturity and applicable interest rate for Facility AL and Facility AK are the same as those of
the UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes and the UPCB Finance IV Euro Notes, respectively.

The proceeds of the New Facilities were used to (i) prepay the remaining €190.0 million ($229.9 million) outstanding principal
amount of Facility Y under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility, together with accrued and unpaid interest and the related
prepayment premium, to UPCB Finance II and, in turn UPCB Finance II used such proceeds to fully redeem the remaining
outstanding amount of its UPCB Finance II Notes, (ii) prepay the outstanding principal amount of Facility Z under the UPC
Broadband Holding Bank Facility, together with accrued and unpaid interest and the related prepayment premium, to UPCB
Finance III and, in turn UPCB Finance III used such proceeds to fully redeem the UPCB Finance III Notes, (iii) redeem 10% of
the outstanding principal amount of each of the following: (a) Facility AC under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility,
together with accrued and unpaid interest and the related prepayment premium, to UPCB Finance V and, in turn UPCB Finance
V used such proceeds to redeem 10% of the outstanding principal amount of the UPCB Finance V Notes and (b) Facility AD under
the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility, together with accrued and unpaid interest and the related prepayment premium, to
UPCB Finance VI and, in turn UPCB Finance VI used such proceeds to redeem 10% of the outstanding principal amount of the
UPCB Finance VI Notes, each at a redemption price equal to 103% of the applicable redeemed principal amount in accordance
with the indentures governing each of the notes, and (iv) repay the €200.0 million ($242.0 million) amount outstanding under
Facility Al of the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility.
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Subject to the circumstances described below, the UPCB Finance IV Dollar Notes are non-callable until January 15,2020 and
the UPCB Finance IV Euro Notes are non-callable until January 15,2021 (each a UPCB Finance IV Notes Call Date). If, however,
at any time prior to the applicable UPCB Finance IV Notes Call Date, all or a portion of the loans under the New Facilities are
voluntarily prepaid (an UPCB Finance IV Notes Early Redemption Event), then UPCB Finance IV will be required to redeem an
aggregate principal amount of the applicable UPCB Finance IV Notes equal to the aggregate principal amount of the loans so
prepaid under the relevant New Facility. In general, the redemption price payable will equal 100% of the principal amount of the
applicable UPCB Finance IV Notes to be redeemed and a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining
scheduled interest payments to the applicable UPCB Finance IV Notes Call Date using the discount rate (as specified in the
indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.

Upon the occurrence of an UPCB Finance IV Notes Early Redemption Event on or after the applicable UPCB Finance IV
Notes Call Date, UPCB Finance IV will redeem an aggregate principal amount of the UPCB Finance IV Notes equal to the principal
amount of the related facility prepaid at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount), plus
accrued and unpaid interest and additional amounts, (as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption
date, if redeemed during the twelve-month period commencing on January 15 of the years set forth below:

Redemption price
UPCB Finance IV UPCB Finance IV

Year Dollar Notes Euro Notes
2020 ettt et e e bt e e ate e et e e e bt e e nteeentee e tteeanteeeaeeeteeeanteeenteeeneaens 102.688% N.A.

202 ettt e b e e at e et e e e bt e e at e e sabee e bt e e ateeeabte e bt e ennteesteeebaeens 101.792% 102.000%
2022 ettt ettt et e e bttt e bt e bt e bt et e et e e be e bt enbe e bt enbeenbeenteenbeenteenbeentes 100.896% 101.000%
20023 ettt ettt e bttt et e e bt e bt et e et e e bt e b e e bt e bt e bt e b e enbeen bt e beenbeenbeentes 100.000% 100.500%
2024 and therafter........c.eeierieeiicieeece ettt eneeneen 100.000% 100.000%

If there is a change in control (as specified in the indenture) under the UPC Broadband Holding Bank Facility, UPCB Finance
IV must offer to repurchase the UPCB Finance IV Notes at a redemption price of 101%.

Prior to the applicable UPCB Finance IV Notes Call Date, during each 12-month period commencing on the date on which
the UPCB Finance IV Notes were issued, UPCB Finance IV may redeem up to 10% of the principal amount of the UPCB Finance
IV Notes at a redemption price of 103% of the principal amount of the relevant UPCB Finance IV Notes plus accrued and unpaid
interest up to (but excluding) the redemption date.

Unitymedia KabelBW Notes

On March 11, 2015, the UM Senior Secured Note Issuers issued €500.0 million ($605.0 million) principal amount of 3.5%
senior secured notes due January 15, 2027 (the 2015 UM Senior Secured Notes). The net proceeds from the 2015 UM Senior
Secured Notes were used to (i) redeem 10% of the principal amount of each of the following series of notes issued by the UM
Senior Secured Note Issuers: (a) the €650.0 million ($786.5 million) principal amount of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured
Notes, (b) the €500.0 million ($605.0 million) principal amount of the December 2012 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes, (c) the
€500.0 million ($605.0 million) principal amount of the January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes and (d) the €350.0 million ($423.5
million) principal amount of the April 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes, each at a redemption price equal to 103% of the applicable
redeemed principal amount in accordance with the indentures governing each of the notes and (ii) prepay the outstanding balance
under the UM Senior Secured Facility. In connection with these transactions, we recognized a loss on debt modification and
extinguishment, net, of $8.1 million. This loss includes (1) the payment of $6.4 million of redemption premium and (2) the write-
off of $1.7 million of deferred financing costs.

On March 16, 2015, Unitymedia KabelBW issued €700.0 million ($847.0 million) principal amount of 3.75% senior notes
due January 15, 2027 (the 2015 UM Senior Notes). The net proceeds from the 2015 UM Senior Notes were used to fully redeem
the €618.0 million ($747.8 million) principal amount of the UM Senior Exchange Notes. In connection with this transaction, we
recognized a loss on debt modification and extinguishment, net, of $91.2 million, including (i) the payment of $89.8 million of
redemption premium and (ii) the write-off of $1.4 million of unamortized discount.
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The 2015 UM Senior Secured Notes are (i) senior obligations of the UM Senior Secured Note Issuers that rank equally with
all of the existing and future senior debt of each UM Senior Secured Note Issuer and are senior to all existing and future subordinated
debt of each of the UM Senior Secured Note Issuers, (ii) are guaranteed on a senior basis by Unitymedia KabelBW and certain of
its subsidiaries and (iii) are secured by a first-ranking pledge over the shares of the UM Senior Secured Note Issuers and certain
other share and/or asset security of Unitymedia KabelBW and certain of its subsidiaries.

The 2015 UM Senior Notes are senior obligations of Unitymedia KabelBW that rank equally with all of the existing and future
senior debt of Unitymedia KabelBW and are senior to all existing and future subordinated debt of Unitymedia KabelBW. The
2015 UM Senior Notes are guaranteed on a senior subordinated basis by various subsidiaries of Unitymedia KabelBW and are
secured by a first-ranking pledge over the shares of Unitymedia KabelBW and junior-priority share pledges and other asset security
of certain subsidiaries of Unitymedia KabelBW.

We refer to the 2015 UM Senior Secured Notes and the 2015 UM Senior Notes as the “2015 UM Notes”.

The 2015 UM Notes contain certain customary incurrence-based covenants. For example, the ability to raise certain additional
debt and make certain distributions or loans to other subsidiaries of Liberty Global is subject to a consolidated net leverage ratio
test, as specified in the applicable indenture. The 2015 UM Notes provide that any failure to pay principal prior to expiration of
any applicable grace period, or any acceleration with respect to other indebtedness of €75.0 million ($90.8 million) or more in the
aggregate of Unitymedia KabelBW or a UM Senior Secured Note Issuer or any of the restricted subsidiaries (as specified in the
applicable indenture) is an event of default under the 2015 UM Notes.

Subject to the circumstances described below, the 2015 UM Notes are non-callable until January 15, 2021. At any time prior
to January 15,2021, the UM Senior Secured Note Issuers or Unitymedia KabelBW may redeem some or all of the 2015 UM Notes
(as applicable) by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments to
the redemption date using the discount rate (as specified in the applicable indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.

The UM Senior Secured Note Issuers or Unitymedia KabelBW (as applicable) may redeem some or all of the 2015 UM Notes
at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and
additional amounts (as specified in the applicable indenture), if any, to the redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve-month
period commencing on January 15 of the years set forth below:

Year Redemption price

2015 UM Senior 2015 UM Senior

Secured Notes Notes
1 0 PSSP 101.750% 101.875%
20022ttt e et et e e b e e et ae et be e tbte e tteanteeatbte e tteeanbeeabeeantteeanbeeanbaeentaeeanseennnes 100.875% 100.938%
B 0 TSRS 100.438% 100.469%
2024 aNd thETCATLET .....c.eieiieeiicie ettt st e e sta e stbesaeesseessaessaeeseesseesenas 100.000% 100.000%

If Unitymedia KabelBW or certain of its subsidiaries sell certain assets or experience specific changes in control, Unitymedia
KabelBW must offer to repurchase the 2015 UM Notes at a redemption price of 101%.

Prior to January 15, 2021, during each 12-month period commencing on the date on which the 2015 UM Senior Secured Notes
were issued, the UM Senior Secured Note Issuers may redeem up to 10% of the principal amount of the 2015 UM Senior Secured
Notes at a redemption price equal to 103% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excluding)
the redemption date.
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Pending Acquisition of BASE

On April 18,2015, Telenet entered into a definitive agreement the (BASE Agreement) to acquire BASE Company NV (BASE)
for a purchase price €1,324.4 million ($1,602.6 million). BASE is the third-largest mobile network operator in Belgium. We expect
that this acquisition will provide Telenet with cost-effective long-term mobile access to effectively compete for future growth
opportunities in the Belgium mobile market. Telenet intends to finance the acquisition of BASE through a combination of €1.0
billion ($1,210.1 million) of new debt facilities and existing liquidity. The acquisition of BASE is subject to customary closing
conditions, including merger approval from the relevant competition authorities, and is expected to close by the end of March
2016. The BASE Agreement provides that in the event the relevant competition authorities fail to approve the transaction, Telenet
would be required to pay the seller a termination fee of €100.0 million ($121.0 million).

21 Supplemental Companies Act Disclosures

Subsidiaries

At December 31, 2014, our principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Proportion
of voting
Country of rights and
Name of subsidiary incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business
. ) Intermediate
Liberty Global, InC.........c.ccoovveieviiiicieieieeee e, United States Common stock 100.0% holding company
. . Intermediate
Telenet Group Holding NV.......cocoooiiininiiiinie Belgium Common stock 56.6% holding company
Intermediate
Unitymedia KabelBW Gmbh...........cccocevevrininnnne. Germany Shares 100.0% holding company
Intermediate
UPC Holding BV ....cccoiiiiiiiiiiicincnccceeee, The Netherlands ~ Ordinary shares 100.0% holding company
Intermediate
Virgin Media Inc........ccoooveiniiiniinnceceee United States Common stock 100.0% holding company
Intermediate
VTR Finance BV .......cccccviniinininiinncccnccee, The Netherlands ~ Ordinary shares 100.0% holding company
Intermediate
Ziggo Holding BV .....ccccvviniiininiicincnccieeeeen The Netherlands ~ Ordinary shares 98.4% holding company
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Fair Value of Acquisitions

Ziggo

The details of Ziggo's book value compared to fair value on the Ziggo Acquisition Date are set forth below:

Opening

Valuation balance sheet

Book value adjustments fair value
in millions

Cash and cash eqUIVALENLS .........ccccviiiiieriiiicii ettt $ 1,889.7 $ — 3 1,889.7
Other CUITENT ASSCLS.......ccviiviieieeieietieteeetet et ete et et et e ere e e esbe b e ereeseessessesseeseessessenns 69.6 — 69.6
Property and equipment, NEt ...........cecceeierierierieeieieiesieeeeeesee e eee e ereeseesae e 1,938.9 776.0 2,714.9
GOOAWILL .ttt sttt 2,235.7 5,488.6 7,724.3
Intangible assets subject t0 AMOTTIZAtION .........cccveverieeeieeieieieeeee e 1,955.5 3,045.4 5,000.9
(01 1 1o W G £ 1 L] AR 3473 47.3 394.6
Current portion of debt and capital lease obligations ..............cceeceeeeerienieneenenennen. (580.8) (23.2) (604.0)
Other accrued and current lHabilities........c.cccueevieriiiiieieeiecie e (452.5) 9.0 (443.5)
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations .............ccccceeveevvevrieieeerieniieeceeeennean, (5,317.6) (33.9) (5,351.5)
Other long-term Habilities...........ccociiieieriiirieiicecieieere et (565.2) (955.1) (1,520.3)
NONCONLIOIING INLETESE ....e.vivreeieiiirieiieieiete ettt eee et et re e esae b eaeeseessessenns (1,080.6) — (1,080.6)

TOAL ettt $ 4400 $ 83541 $ 8,794.1

Virgin Media

The details of Virgin Media's book value compared to fair value on the June 7, 2013 acquisition date are set forth below:

Opening

Valuation balance sheet

Book value adjustments fair value
in millions

Cash and cash €qUIVAIENLS ..........ccoueceeiriirieinenicecerccrereeee et $ 694.6 $ — 3 694.6
Oher CUITENE ASSEES...c..cueevirinieiiiierieeetirtetee ettt ettt sre ettt ene e nenees 929.5 2.7 932.2
Property and equipment, NEt.........ccoevirieiireninieeeseeceee e 6,948.4 2,914.7 9,863.1
GOOAWILL ..o 9,000.8 — 9,000.8
Intangible assets subject t0 AMOTHZALION ........cc.erveuerierieirereieesieee et — 3,925.8 3,925.8
OthET @SSELS, TMET ....viiuiieeiieiieceie et eee ettt et et e et e eteeeaeeeteeeteeeaaeeaeesteesrsesasesanesanesenas 6,034.5 (1,775.1) 4,259.4
Current portion of debt and capital lease 0bligations ............cccoeeevrcineicerecnnnes (127.7) (1,056.8) (1,184.5)
Other accrued and current lHabilities ..........cceverereeiriinieinienenenccencneeeceeeeaees (1,861.8) (30.4) (1,892.2)
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations ............ccccvvverereerininieenienenieineneans (9,263.3) 785.9 (8,477.4)
Other long-term Habilities. ......c.cocerueieiririeininiecirecrereeteeeee et (1,330.3) 4.0 (1,326.3)
Additional paid-in capital .........cccoeiiiiiiiini e — (1,660.0) (1,660.0)

TOtal.coiiii s $ 11,0247 § 3,1108 § 14,1355
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Puerto Rico

The details of OneLink’s book value compared to fair value on the November 8, 2012 acquisition date are set forth below:

Opening

Valuation balance sheet

Book value adjustments fair value
in millions
Cash and cash eqUIVALENLS .........cceviiiiieieiiee ettt $ 44 $ — 3 4.4
OheT CUITENE SSEES ......eueevitenreiiiterieteteeteteie st sttt ettt sttt st et st e ebe st neeneas 15.0 4.2 19.2
Property and eqUIPMENt, NEE .......c.coveererierieiriiieineneeere ettt 114.9 353 150.2
Intangible assets subject t0 AMOItIZALION ........c..ecveuirririeirienienieineeeeeneeec e 34 87.1 90.5
Intangible assets not subject to amortization — cable television franchise rights .... 375.2 (90.2) 285.0
GOOAWILL .ttt 214.6 11.5 226.1
Other @SSEts, NET.....couiiiiieiiiiiiciie et 20.1 (18.9) 1.2
Current portion of debt and capital lease 0bligations ........c..cccecevvevieeverenecrennenns (3.5) — (3.5)
Other current Habilities ........eoveerereieirieieen ettt (33.6) (20.5) (54.1)
Long-term debt and capital lease Obligations ...........c.ccceeereueireirincenieeeneieees (490.4) 6.5) (496.9)
Deferred tax Habilities........c.ccceeiiriririeieieieiiiirnee et (131.5) 5.9 (125.6)
1] | ORI $ 88.6 $ 79 % 96.5
For further information regarding our acquisitions, see note 4.
Investments
Fair Value
Further details of our fair value investments at December 31, 2014 are set forth below:
Country of Parent Group
incorporation ownership %  ownership % Holdings
SUMITOIMO ...t Japan —% 3.6% Ordinary shares
ITI NEOVISION. c..eeveienieiiriireiieienieeeenteeeeeie e seeeee Poland —% 17.0% Shares
ITV e UK. —% 6.4% Ordinary shares
Other ..o Various —% Various Various
Equity Method
Further details of our equity method investments at December 31, 2014 are set forth below:
Country of Parent Group
incorporation ownership %  ownership % Holdings
All3Media Holdings Limited ........c.cccoooeviiienennnnnene UK. —% 50.0% Shares
Other ..o Various —% Various Various

For further information regarding our investments, see note 6.
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As further discussed in note 1, in order to comply with the Companies Act, our accounting and the presentation of our
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,2014 and 2013 and our statements of operations for the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013 have been adjusted to use the equity method to account for our investment in Ziggo prior to the Ziggo Acquisition.

Changes in our proportionate share of the underlying share capital of an equity method investee, including those which result
from the issuance of additional equity securities by such equity investee, are recognized as gains or losses in our consolidated
statements of operations.

We continually review our equity method investments to determine whether a decline in fair value below the cost basis is
other than temporary. The primary factors we consider in our determination are the extent and length of time that the fair value
ofthe investment is below our company’s carrying value and the financial condition, operating performance and near-term prospects
of the investee, changes in the stock price or valuation subsequent to the balance sheet date, and the impacts of exchange rates, if
applicable. In addition, we consider the reason for the decline in fair value, such as (i) general market conditions and (ii) industry
specific or investee specific factors, as well as our intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow
for arecovery in fair value. If the decline in fair value of an equity or cost method investment is deemed to be other than temporary,
the cost basis of the security is written down to fair value.

Changes in our investment in Ziggo as accounted for under the equity method of accounting, are set forth below (in millions):

Balance at JANUATY 1, 2013 .. ...cuioiiiiiieieieeiieteiete ettt ettt ettt et e b e st e esee st e se b e eseeseensesseeseeseensensessesseensensensensenseenes $ —
PULCHASES. ...ttt ettt e et et e et e st et e e st e st e st es s e s e ese e st ensensasseeseeneen s et e eseententensenseeneentensenteeseeneennen 2,026.2
SHATE OF CAIMINES () +.-veuveveerieuieierte et ie ettt et et et e st et et e e see s st et e eneessesseeseeneanseesesseessensesseseeeseensensesseaneensensensesneennans 46.4
DiIVIAENAS TECEIVE. ...ttt ettt ettt sttt et st b e st a et benae st enteae b e e eaesbenneneenens (78.7)
Cumulative translation adjUSTMENT ..........c.cccverciiriiiiieieeieete et eeteeee st e sttesteestteseaesstesseesssesssesssesseesseesssesssessaesseenes (3.3)

Balance at December 31, 2013 (D) ...oo.eiiiiiiiiiieeeet ettt sttt sttt sb et nee W
SRATE OF 0SS (B) +euveveemteniententeetet ettt sttt ettt bt b e ea et s bt s bbb et e sae s bt eb e e st et e sbesbeee b et e nbesbeebnens (68.8)
Use of shares to settle collar arrangement (C).......c.eoueeririerieirierieirie ettt ettt ettt ettt et ese bt e e ebesbeseeneenens (496.4)
Increase in investment resulting from gains due to changes in OWNEIShIP.........coevveeririerieininenerecerereeeae 671.7
Cumulative translation adJUSTMENL ..........ccoeiiiiiiiiiiiceee ettt st (81.7)
Acquisition of cONtrolling IMNEEIESt (A)........eeeeieriirieieieee ettt ettt ettt e et e te st eneenseteeseeneenean (2,015.4)

Balance at December 31, 2014 ... ..o et e ettt e et e e e et e e eteeeeraeeeraeeeaeeanns $ —

(a) Share of earnings (loss) is included in other income (expense), net in our consolidated statements of operations.

(b) At December 31, 2013, the aggregate carrying value of our investment in Ziggo exceeded our proportionate share of Ziggo's
net assets by $1,498.5 million. Most of this excess basis was associated with goodwill and was therefore not amortized. At
December 31, 2013, our investment in Ziggo was included in the investments line of our consolidated balance sheet along

with our other fair value and equity method investments.

(c) During 2014, we used 15.7 million Ziggo shares with a basis of $496.4 million and a market value of $754.8 million to settle
the Ziggo Collar, resulting in a gain of $258.4 million. For further information, see note 7.

(d) For further information regarding the Ziggo Acquisition, see note 4.
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Property and Equipment, Net

Changes in our property and equipment and the related accumulated depreciation are set forth below:

Cost:

January 1, 2014 ......
Additions..............
Acquisitions .........

Discontinued OPETatioN ........cueeveeierierieeieeieete st eteete e e sreeeeseeeeee

Retirements and diSpoSals.........c.cecveriiriinieriienienieeieee e

Foreign currency translation adjustments and other ...........c.cccceccvennennne.

December 31, 2014

Accumulated depreciation:

January 1, 2014 ......
Depreciation.........

Discontinued OPETAtiON .......coveeieeieeieiieete et sre et eee e sre e eaeseee e

Retirements and diSpoSals..........cccueveerieriinieniienieniereeeree e

Foreign currency translation adjustments and other...........c.ccccecceennennne.

December 31, 2014

Property and equipment, net:

December 31, 2014

II-125

Support
Cable Customer  equipment,
distribution premises buildings
systems equipment and land Total

in millions

25,1932 § 6,126.0 $ 3,581.9 § 34,901.1

1,763.2 1,266.2 879.8 3,909.2
2,224.8 155.0 394.1 2,773.9
— — 1.1 1.1

(204.0) (607.5) (292.5)  (1,104.0)
(2,690.7) (725.8) (540.0)  (3,956.5)

26,286.5 § 6,213.9 § 4,0244 § 36,524.8

(6.835.5) $ (2,554.2) $ (1,536.5) $(10,926.2)
(2,6152)  (1,065.1) (721.3)  (4,401.6)

— — (0.5) (0.5)
204.0 607.5 2925 1,104.0
965.2 355.1 219.8 1,540.1

(8,281.5) § (2,656.7) $ (1,746.0) $(12,684.2)

18,005.0 § 3,557.2 $§ 22784 § 23,840.6
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Support
Cable Customer  equipment,
distribution premises buildings
systems equipment and land Total
in millions

Cost:

January 1, 2013 .o $ 153723 $§ 4,1626 § 2,282.1 §$ 21,817.0
N 14 118 ) T USSR 1,344.2 1,155.8 661.6 3,161.6
ACQUISIEIONS ...ttt ettt et ettt et be e eae et nnen 7,795.7 1,103.9 974.9 9,874.5
Discontinued OPEration .........c..ccceerereereerenieenenreneeenenseeeeseeseeneerennes — — (88.1) (88.1)
Retirements and diSpPoSals ........ccceceveveeirinerieinineieineeeee e (350.5) (601.8) (182.7) (1,135.0)
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other ...........c.ccccceeenenee. 1,031.5 305.5 (65.9) 1,271.1

December 31, 2013 ... $ 25,1932 § 6,126.0 $ 3,581.9 § 34,901.1

Accumulated depreciation:

January 1, 2013 .o $ (4966.1) § (2,256.0) $ (1,157.3) § (8,379.4)
DIEPIECIATION ..ottt ettt ettt sttt (2,044.7) (867.1) (587.8) (3,499.6)
Discontinued OPEration .........c..ccceeeueeeerenenretneneeneeenrenreeeeseeneeneerennes — — 48.3 483
Retirements and diSPoSals ........cceecueecieeiieiieeiieeie e 350.5 601.8 182.7 1,135.0
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other ..............cocceeeennne. (175.2) (32.9) (22.4) (230.5)

December 31, 2013 ... $ (6,8355) § (2,554.2) $ (1,536.5) $(10,926.2)

Property and equipment, net:
December 31, 2013 .....c.ciiiiiiiiicireceeeeeee e $ 18,3577 $§ 3,571.8 § 2,0454 $ 23,9749

The details of our land and buildings are set forth below:

December 31,
2014 2013

in millions

FIEEROLA . et e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ————eeeeeeeaa e ——————_s $ 3750 $ 3992
ShOTt 1€ASEROLA () ..e.veeveenieiet ettt sttt et s b e b et e st bt ese et sae b 60.4 63.7
Long 18aSEHOLA (D) .ottt sttt 71.9 49.5

TOTAL ..ttt ettt $ 5073 $ 5124

(a) Represents property and equipment subject to leases with an initial term of less than 50 years.
(b) Represents property and equipment subject to leases with an initial term of 50 years or more.

For further information regarding our property and equipment, see note 9.
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Intangible Assets Subject to Amortization, Net

Changes in our intangible assets and the related accumulated amortization are set forth below:

Customer
relationships Licenses Trademarks Other Total
in millions

Cost:

January 1, 2014 ..o $ 81167 $ 86.1 $ 1470 $ 55.0 $ 8,404.8
ACQUISIEIONS .....envenreiiriieeiieiinenteteie sttt 5,035.0 — — — 5,035.0
Discontinued OPeration ............cceeveeeereerieerieesueeereeieeeeeaeeveenns 3.1 — 0.1 — 3.2
Retirements and disposals ..........cccceeveverininiinienenieiceceen, (152.3) — (21.2) — (173.5)
IMPAITMENT ...ttt — — — — —
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other ................ (860.0) (8.7) (15.7) (7.2) (891.6)

December 31, 2014 .....coouiiiiiiieiieeieeeeeeeee e $ 12,1425 § 774 $ 1102 $ 478 $12,377.9

Accumulated amortization:

January 1, 2014 ..o § (24584) $ (11.8) § (114.1) $ (25.1) $(2,609.4)
AMOTHIZAION. ...ttt (1,078.6) (1.9) (16.4) (1.6)  (1,098.5)
Discontinued Operation ............coecceerveeeenenienerereneesenennenes (1.4) — — — 1.4
Retirements and disposals ..........ccceeeeeverenirieieeseee e 152.3 — 21.2 — 173.5
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other ................ 329.8 1.6 13.1 3.2 347.7

December 31, 2014 .....coviiiiiniicieiceeteeeee e $§ (3,0563) § (12.1) $ 96.2) $§ (23.5) $ (3,188.1)

Intangible assets subject to amortization, net:

December 31, 2014 ..o $ 9,082 $ 653 § 140 $ 243 $ 9,189.8
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Customer
relationships Licenses Trademarks  Other Total
in millions

Cost:

January 1, 2013 oo $§ 41175 § 1768 $ 1494 § 53.1 $ 44968
ACQUISTEIONS ..ottt ettt 3,892.3 — (1.0) — 3,891.3
Discontinued Operation ............coecceerveeeenrenienenereneesenennenes (248.6) — (7.7) — (256.3)
Retirements and disposals ...........cceeeverinirieneneeeceeee (66.9) (25.0) — (0.1) (92.0)
IMPAITMENL ...ttt — (73.0) — — (73.0)
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other ................ 422.4 7.3 6.3 2.0 438.0

December 31, 2013 ....oeiiieiiieeieeeeeeeee e § 81167 § 861 § 147.0 $§ 550 $ 8,404.8

Accumulated amortization:

January 1, 2013 oo $§ (1,780.0) $ (23.9) $ (90.1) $§ (21.5) $(1,915.5)
AMOTtIZAtION. ...ttt (739.9) (11.9) (22.4) (2.6) (776.8)
Discontinued Operation ...........cecceceeveererenereenieneneneeeeeneenne 95.3 — 33 — 98.6
Retirements and diSposals .........ccceceeeiieviierieerieniiiiieeieeieeeeen 66.9 25.0 — 0.1 92.0
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other ................ (100.7) (1.0) 4.9 (1.1) (107.7)

December 31, 2013 ... $ (24584) § (11.8) § (114.1) § (25.1) $(2,609.4)

Intangible assets subject to amortization, net:

December 31, 2013 ...t $ 56583 $ 743 $ 329 § 299 $ 5,795.4

For further information regarding our intangible assets subject to amortization, see note 9.
Provisions

Changes in our provisions are set forth below:

Post- Asset
Tax retirement Restructuring retirement
liabilities  liabilities liabilities obligations Other Total

in millions

January 1, 2014 .o $ 4101 $ 1240 $ 1135 § 793 $§ 598 $ 786.7
ACQUISTHONS ...eevienieeieete e eie et ieesaeeve s — 0.1 8.2 3.0 11.9 23.2
Charges (credits) to consolidated statement of

OPETAtIONS () «.voveververererverceereeeeesereeaeseneseesenes 23.8 (11.5) 166.9 (10.1)  261.2 430.3
Payments........cccoueueeereuinniecinieniineceecneeeenes — (49.1) (111.5) (2.6) 0.3)  (163.5)
Discontinued operation..........cc.ceeeeerveerieerueenueenne — — — — 1.7 1.7
Other comprehensive €arnings ............c.cceeeecevenne. — 91.1 — — — 91.1
Foreign currency translation adjustments and

OLNET oo (3.9) (14.0) (21.0) (4.5) 21.2 (22.2)

December 31, 2014 ......ooomeiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 4300 $ 1406 $ 156.1 $ 65.1 $ 3555 $1,147.3

(a) Amount in Other contains €183.5 million ($222.0 million) related to an agreed payment regarding the FCO Regulatory Issues.
For further information, see note 17.
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For further information regarding our tax liabilities and restructuring liabilities, see notes 11 and 14, respectively.
Employees

The details of our full-time equivalent employees are as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
COUNLTY OPCTALIONS ....euintiieententeteeteettetenteeteettete st e et eebtentestesbeete et e tesbe et e est e aesheebeestentesbesbeententenbesbeessensenaenueas 36,700 33,600
COTPOTALE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et et h e bttt e st e s bt s bt e et et et e e bt ea e est e bt s bt eat e st et e sbeeueeesemtenaesueensennenaenueas 1,300 1,400
TOTAL .ottt ettt ettt sttt ettt s sttt 38,000 35,000

The details of our personnel costs, including share-based compensation expense, are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013

in millions

Continuing operations:

WAZES ANA SALATIES ... .cueeeeeteieieie ettt ettt te et ettt e s e st ebesbe e ene et e s eneeseeseeseneeneesenseneenas $§ 2,1359 § 1,602.4
Share-based COMPENSALION EXPEISE......eeueereeruerrerrienieriertenteettertertesteettetestestesteestestestesbesseeseeneesaesneeneenes 257.2 300.7
SOCIAL SECUITEY COSTS ...vturimtitirtiiiieiententtettet ettt ettt ettt sttt et et st b e eb et e et s be e bt e st eaesaesbeeeeenee 275.0 227.1
Pension and other pOSt-TEtIrEMENt EXPEIISE......c..eueererterieririerierieieetistestetestesteterestetestebesseseesesbesseeeneenes 66.8 61.9
Employee benefits and Other...........cooveiriiiineiiiicieecceeeee et 2254 251.4
Total — CONLINUING OPETALIONS. .. .c.vevieeeeiieteteettetestesteeeeeeeeaetesteeseesessesseeseeseesesseeseeneesessesseeneenss $ 29603 $ 24435
DiSCONTINUET OPEIALION ....e.veeiieiitieiieiesteete et ete ettt et e reeste e st e st e e e s te st e eseeneessesseeseensesesseeseeneesessesneeneenes $—66 W

Directors’ Remuneration
A discussion of our directors’ renumeration appears in the Directors’ Renumeration Report included in this report.
Audit Fees and All Other Fees
The following table presents fees for professional audit services rendered by KPMG LLP and its international affiliates
(including KPMG LLP (U.K.)) during 2014 for the audit of our consolidated financial statements and the separate financial

statements of certain of our subsidiaries and for other services rendered by KPMG LLP and its international affiliates.

Fees billed in currencies other than U.S. dollars were translated into U.S. dollars at the average exchange rate in effect during
2014 (in millions).

Audit fees for these financial StALEMENTS (2) ..eoveerveerierierierieiierieseere ettt ettt esteesseesse e baesseesseeseeseesseeseenseenses $ 14.5
Audit fees for financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation ............ccoecuercvercieriienieniienie e 3.0
TOLAL AUAIE TS ...ttt ettt ettt s b ettt e beeat et et et eaeeste b et ebeeneen 17.5
All other NON-AUAIE TEES (D) 1..euviuiiuiitiieiicieitee ettt ettt b ettt st b bbbttt st et eb et s et ebe e 0.9
TOLAL AL SEIVICES ...euveutitieeieiieteete et ete ettt et este et e ese e st e aesse et e eseens et et e eseeneens e s eeseeneensenseeseaseensensesseeseaneansensensenseanes $ 18.4

(a)  Represents audit fees for our consolidated financial statements, including inseparable internal control and other audit
procedures performed during interim reviews.
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(b)  Primarily relates to accounting consultation services associated with (i) the application of International Financial Reporting
Standards, (ii) the application of the new revenue recognition standard and (iii) observations and recommendations related
to our network security services and enterprise risk.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Liberty Global plc for the year ended December 31, 2014 set out on
pages III-3 to III-13. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 1I-1, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit,
and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the parent company financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at December 31, 2014;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
»  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion:

» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006; and

+ the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the parent company financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our
opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

»  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Other matter

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Liberty Global plc for the year ended December 31, 2014.

/s/ JOHN CAIN
John Cain (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square, London, E14 5GL
April 27,2015
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Parent Company Only)

December 31,

2014 2013
in millions
Fixed assets:
Investments — group undertakings (NOLE 3)......c.ccueririerierieiiiinineriest ettt 20,8392 § 19,160.0
Intangible assets not subject to amortization (NOTE€ 9)......ccueveeririririerieieieieiee ettt ee e saeaenees 3.0 3.0
TOtAl fIXEA ASSELS. ... vviirieeieieetee ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e et e e et e e e e e e aeeeaeeeaaeeeteeeaaeeeateeeteeenseeeaeeenreeeaeeeneas 20,842.2 19,163.0
Current assets:
Notes receivable — group undertakings (including $9,657.0 million and $9,557.6 million, respectively,
due after More than 0NE YEAr) (NNOTE 4) ..........ceveveveveereeeeeeeereeeseseseeseeeesesssesesessesessssesssesesessessessesssessenens 15,323.8 9,557.6
Accrued interest receivable — group undertakings (note 4) ... 448.7 247.1
Other receivables — group undertakings (NOTE 4) ........ecvevveieieiiririsrerieieieieeeee e et eseeeeseesessessessessesseseas 11.9 923
Other assets: amounts recoverable in 1ess than 0N YEar .........c.cccovveirieierieiiniiernieireeneee et 48.3 1.0
Total debtors and other assets 15,832.7 9,898.0
Cash and Cash EQUIVALEIES. .......c.coiiiiirieieieee ettt bbbttt ettt b et sbe s b et e beneenean 36.7 290.7
Restricted cash (held by JSOP — note 6) 6.7 8.6
Total current assets (including $9,657.0 million and $9,557.6 million, respectively, due after more
thaAN OIIE YEAT) ...t 15,876.1 10,197.3
TOTAL @SSELS ....viivieeeiieetie ettt ettt ettt et e et e et e e e taeete e eabe e teeeabeeeabeeteaeaaeeetaeeteeeaaeeteeereeetaeenreas 36,718.3 29,360.3
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year:
Note payable — group undertakings (NOLE 4)........coueruerieieiririetiniesieeeeeeee ettt st see ettt eseebe b besaeeeneene 679.2 —
TTAAE CIEAILOTS ...ttt ettt et b bbbttt b e bbbt e st e st ebe e bt sbesbe b eteneenean 23.6 11.4
Other accrued and current liabilities:
Group UNAertakings (NMOTE 4).......cueueruirirerieieieitee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt st b et ettt e bt bt be st nbenteneene 1,479.8 54.2
TRITA-PATLY ..ottt ettt ettt ettt teste s s e b e aesseseesa et e ebessessensesseseeseesessessensensessesaeseasesensensaneas 14.7 6.7
Total creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2,197.3 72.3
Net current assets (including $9,657.0 million and $9,557.6 million, respectively, due after more than one
VALY 1. ovveoeevvesesesese s essse s 13,678.8 10,125.0
Total assets 1€SS CUITENE LHADILILIES. ........ccviieuiiirieeieeetee et ettt ettt et ee e et e eeae e e e eeaeeeaeeeaneeeseeeneeeaneeneeenns 34,521.0 29,288.0
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year:
JSOP Note — group undertakings (NO€ 4)........ccveerrirrerierieieieeeesieriesiesteeeeesessessessessesseseessesessessessessenseses 18.9 18.6
Other NON-CUITENT HADIIILIES .....c.eevirtirtirieieieieetteteet ettt ettt ettt st sttt et e st e st ebesbesbeseneenean 1.9 1.6
Total creditors: amounts falling due after one year.... 20.8 20.2
TOtAl LHADIIITIES .....cceveeeeeeeeee ettt et e ettt e e e e e eae e eeaeeenaeeeneeeseeenseesesenseeeneeenens 2,218.1 92.5
INEE ASSEES ...ttt ettt ettt et e et e e e et e e ee e et e eee e e e eae e s e eaeeaeeeseeaseeeeeseeneeeaeeneeeseenteeaeenteeaeenneeaeentesaeennens 34,5002 $ 29.267.8
Capital and reserves (note 6):
Called up share capital (INOTE 5) ....c.eoueuirieirieiiieie ettt 89 § 39
SNATE PrOMIUIM TESEIVE ...vveueeuietietititeieteseettereetestestestestestesteseeseesesessenseseeseesessessensensensesseseesessessensenseneens 6,496.8 449.0
Capital TEAEMPLION TESETVE ......eruititeienieiietietieteetest et est ettt steste st et et eateueebe e bt e besbessentesteseesesbesbesbenseneeneas 0.4 0.1
OhET TESEIVES ...ttt sttt ettt ettt ettt b ettt b bbbt e bt e bt e bt b et et e st e st e bt ebesbesbenbenaeneenees 131.7 131.7
Profit and loss account.... 27,866.6 28,690.8
TTEASUTY SRATES, AL COST....eutiuiriiriirtirtiieieiet ettt ettt ettt b bbbttt e st et ebesb e s b e b eteneeneas 4.2) 7.7
ShareNOLAErS” TUIAS ......ocvviieiiiii ettt eae e et e et e eraeeeteeeteeeaaesseeenseeereeennees 34,5002 $ 29,267.8

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on April 27, 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:

/s/ MICHAEL T. FRIES
Michael T. Fries

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

Company registered number: 8379990

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets
December 31, 2014 and 2013

a) Basis of Presentation

Liberty Global plc (Liberty Global) was formed on January 29, 2013 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Liberty Global, Inc
(LGI). Liberty Global is an international provider of video, broadband internet, fixed-line telephony and mobile services, with
consolidated operations at December 31, 2014 in 14 countries.

The balance sheets and related notes of Liberty Global have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
(U.K.) Accounting Standards and under the historical cost accounting rules.

These accounts present information about Liberty Global as an individual undertaking and not about its consolidated group.
Under section 408 of the U.K. Companies Act 2006, we are exempt from the requirement to present our own profit and loss account.
Under Financial Reporting Standard 1, we are exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statement as we are included
in our own published consolidated financial statements. We have taken advantage of the exemption granted by Financial Reporting
Standard 8 from disclosing related-party transactions with wholly-owned entities within the Liberty Global consolidated group.

On January 26, 2014, our board of directors approved a share split in the form of a share dividend (the 2014 Share Dividend),
which constitutes a bonus issue under our articles of association and English law, of one Liberty Global Class C ordinary share
on each outstanding Liberty Global Class A, Class B and Class C ordinary share as of the February 14, 2014 record date. The
distribution date for the 2014 Share Dividend was March 3, 2014. Unless otherwise noted, all Liberty Global share and per share
amounts presented herein have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to the 2014 Share Dividend.

Unless otherwise indicated, convenience translations into United States (U.S.) dollars are calculated as of December 31, 2014.

LR

In these notes, the terms “we,” “our,” “our company” and “us” refer to Liberty Global.

2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items that are considered material in relation
to our accounts.

Foreign Currency
Our presentation and functional currency is the U.S. dollar.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.K. Accounting Standards requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and assumptions are used in accounting for, among other
things, loss contingencies, fair value measurements, impairment assessments and share-based payments. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements are prepared under the assumption that we will continue to operate as a going concern,
which contemplates the realization of assets and the liquidation of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. Our ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to generate sufficient cash flows and earnings from our group undertakings’
operations. We have evaluated and consider our business to be a going concern based on our capital resources, the historical
operating profitability of our group undertakings, the long-term nature of our commitments and the prospects of our group
undertakings.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets — (Continued)
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Share Issues
Share issues are recorded at fair value of the net proceeds.
Investments
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost. Where investments are acquired in exchange for a share issue we
record the investment at fair value of the underlying share capital on the transaction date. For further information regarding our
investments, see note 3.
Derivative Instruments
Derivative instruments are recorded at historical cost and are tested periodically for impairment.

Interest-bearing Borrowings

Debt is stated at the fair value of the consideration received on the issue of the capital instrument after deduction of issue
costs. The finance cost of the debt is amortized over the term of the debt at a constant rate on the carrying amount.

Share-Based Compensation

We recognize all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee share incentive awards based on their
grant-date fair values and our estimates of forfeitures. We recognize the fair value of outstanding awards as a charge to operations
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity.

We have calculated the expected life of options and share appreciation rights (SARs) granted by Liberty Global to employees
based on historical exercise trends. The expected volatility for Liberty Global options and SARs is generally based on a combination
of (i) historical volatilities of Liberty Global ordinary shares for a period equal to the expected average life of the Liberty Global
awards and (i) volatilities implied from publicly traded Liberty Global options.

Where we grant options over our own shares to the employees of our subsidiaries we recognize an increase in the cost of
investment in our subsidiaries equivalent to the equity-settled share-based payment charge recognized in our subsidiary’s financial
statements with the corresponding credit being recognized directly in equity. Amounts recharged to and reimbursed by the
subsidiary are recognized as a reduction in the cost of investment in subsidiary. Ifthe cumulative amount recharged and reimbursed
exceeds the increase in the cost of investment the excess is recognized as a dividend.

Under U.K. corporate law, we are required to issue new shares of Liberty Global ordinary shares when Liberty Global options
or SARs are exercised and when restricted share units (RSUs) and performance-based restricted share units (PSUs) vest. Although
we repurchase Liberty Global ordinary shares from time to time, the parameters of our share purchase and redemption activities
are not established solely with reference to the dilutive impact of our share-based compensation plans.

For additional information regarding our share-based compensation, see note 10.

Income Taxes

The charge for taxation is based on the earnings or loss for the period and takes into account deferred taxation related to timing
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which differences
reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that the directors consider it more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets — (Continued)
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in currencies other than our functional currency are recorded based on exchange rates at the time
such transactions arise. Changes in exchange rates with respect to amounts recorded in our balance sheets related to these non-
functional currency transactions result in transaction gains or losses that are reflected in our profit and loss accounts as unrealized
(based on the applicable period end exchange rates) or realized upon settlement of the transactions.

Own Shares Held by JSOP Trust
In accordance with UITF 38, Accounting for ESOP Trusts, transactions of the Liberty Global sponsored joint stock ownership
plan (JSOP) Jersey Trust (the Liberty Global JSOP) are treated as being those of our company and are therefore reflected in our

financial statements. In particular, the Liberty Global JSOP’s purchases and sales of shares of Liberty Global are debited and
credited directly to equity.

A3) Investments in Group Undertakings

The details of our investment in group undertakings during 2014 and 2013 are set forth below (in millions):

Balance at JAnuary 29, 2013 ......cc.oouioiiieiecieeee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e teeteete et e teereete et eteereereeneenes $ —
Additions, other than share-based COMPENSALION .........ccueeiiiiiiiieieeiecee ettt et e e seb e s e e sreeseaessaesssesseessaenes 19,099.7
Additions arising from share-based COMPENSALION () .......c.ecviiuiiuieieiiiiiiiiieieiete ettt ettt ste st ree s essesveereesnens 60.3
Balance at DecembET 31, 2013 .. ..ccuuiiiiiiiieeiie ettt et e et e e et e ettt e et e et e et ee st e eeteeeanaeesaeeenes 19,160.0
Additions, other than share-based cOmMPensSation (D) .........ccooiriiieiiiiiiiiieieiee ettt e s b re e esnens 1,298.3
Additions arising from share-based COMPENSALION (A) .......eververuirieieriiriiieeieieste st seetetesresreesaesessessesseessessessessnsssens 380.9
Balance at DECEMDBET 31, 2014 ......oueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e et e et e e et eeeaeeseaee e et ee s eesereeseaseeeseesereesenaeesneesaneenans $ 20,839.2

(a)  Represents additions attributable to share-based compensation associated with employees of our subsidiaries, less amounts
that we recharge to our subsidiaries in connection with the exercise of our SARs and options and the vesting of our restricted
share awards held by employees of our subsidiaries, as adjusted to reflect any deemed dividends arising from amounts
charged in excess of the allocated share-based compensation with respect to certain of our subsidiaries.

(b)  The increase in our investment during 2014 is primarily due to the acquisition of Ziggo Holding B.V. (Ziggo).

At December 31, 2014, our principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Proportion
of voting
Country of rights and
Name of subsidiary incorporation Holdings shares held Nature of business
Intermediate
Liberty Global, Inc.......c.ccccoevvecininccninirenenccenene United States Common stock 100.0% holding company
Intermediate
Telenet Group Holding NV.......c.ccoccvininninincnnnens Belgium Common stock 56.6% holding company
Intermediate
Unitymedia KabelBW Gmbh..........c.cocccevrvieinncncnnee Germany Shares 100.0% holding company
. ) Intermediate
UPC Holding BV ....ocoiiiiiieeeceee, The Netherlands ~ Ordinary shares 100.0% holding company
o . . Intermediate
Virgin Media Inc.......coceoeeiiiniiiiineeceeceecee United States Common stock 100.0% holding company
Intermediate
VTR Finance BV ..o, The Netherlands ~ Ordinary shares 100.0% holding company
Intermediate
Ziggo Holding BV .....cccooniniiiiniiiiiincceeee, The Netherlands ~ Ordinary shares 98.4% holding company
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets — (Continued)
December 31, 2014 and 2013

“) Transactions with Group Undertakings

The following table provides details of our group undertaking balances:

December 31,

2014 2013
in millions

LGINOtE RECEIVADIE (@) ..uvivieiieiieiieiieiieiieiete ettt sttt ettt et et e s et et e e steeseeneesensesseeneensensenes $ 9,557.6 $ 9,557.6
LG Broadband IT Limited NOTE (D)......c.cccueevieeiiiiiiieeiesiesieseteeiteeieesetesaeseeseeeseaeseaessaesseesssesssesssesseessnas 5,205.2 —
LG HOIAING BV NOE (€) .veovviiiiieiieeieiiieitieteetestestteetesttesetessaesssesseasssesssasssasseesssesssesssessessssssssessessseessees 461.6 —
LG Content INvestments NOE (d)......cccuerveerieriiiiiiiiieieeieeie e eteette e saeseeseeseaeseaesseesseessaesssesseesseessnas 99.4 —
TOtal NOLES TECEIVADIE .......c.eiiieiiiiiie ettt e ettt e et e e ae e e e et e e sateeeaaeeesaaeesneessnnes 15,323.8 9,557.6
Other TECEIVADIES (€) ...vveuviiiiuiiiieietiitieteeteteste et et et ebeeteereestesbesseeteeseessesseeseeseessessaseeseeseessensesseessessensenes 11.9 923
INterest TECEIVADIE (£) ..uviiuiiieiicieciece ettt ettt et et ta e e aaeeaaeeteeeteeeaseeaaesaeeeanas 448.7 247.1
TOLAL ..ttt bbbttt eb ettt et s $15,784.4 $ 9,897.0
Current NOE PAYADIE () .ooviiveirieieirieii ettt ettt ettt et et e te et a et e ete st et et e teere e e e s e beeteeneenserenns $ 6792 § —
Other accrued and current lHabilitieS (h) ......c.occviieiiiiieiiiciicie e 1,479.8 54.2
JSOP INOLE (1) -eveuvemeeterteiettetietet ettt ettt ettt et e st et et e et e s e st e beeaeneeseeseases e esesbeneeneesenseneeseeseseneeseasaneeseasensenis 18.9 18.6
TOTAL ettt ettt ettt e ettt eeae ettt e e e e e et eteeaesae et et enaenaeas $ 21779 $ 72.8

(a)  Represents a note receivable from LGI (the LGI Note Receivable). On June 3, 2013, Liberty Global received the LGI Note
Receivable in exchange for 80,200,632 Class A ordinary shares, 5,778,649 Class B ordinary shares and 205,879,511 Class
C ordinary shares of our stock. The LGI Note Receivable bears interest at 8.0% per annum and is due on June 3, 2021 with
interest payments due and receivable annually on the anniversary date of the LGI Note Receivable. The LGI Note Receivable
shall be subject to a guarantee and pledge agreement, as a condition to the continuing effectiveness of the LGI Note
Receivable, providing for the pledge of (i) 100% of the shares of LGI International, Inc. and (ii) 66% of the shares of Liberty

Global Holding BV (LG Holding BV), both of which are group undertakings.

LGI may redeem, in whole or in part, the principal amount of the LGI Note Receivable at the following redemption prices
(expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and any Breakage Amount (as defined
in the applicable indenture) due to us, if any, on the applicable redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve-month period

commencing on June 3 as set forth below:

Premium
Period price
JUNE 3, 2013 ——JUNE 2, 2017 .eeoieeee ettt ettt ettt e e e et e e ate e e e e e teeenaraeeraeeteaenes 101.0%
JUNe 3, 2017 aNd therCaTter........oooieviiiieieieeceeee ettt e et et e et eraeeeaeeenns 100.0%

(b)  Represents a note receivable from Liberty Global Broadband II Limited (LG Broadband II Limited). The note receivable
from LG Broadband II Limited bore interest at a rate of 6.09% as of December 31, 2014 and was settled during the first

quarter of 2015.

(c)  Represents a note receivable from LG Holding BV. Pursuant to the loan agreement the maturity date is June 5, 2023,
however Liberty Global may agree to advance additional amounts to LG Holding BV at any time and LG Holding BV may,
with agreement from Liberty Global, repay all or part of the outstanding principal at any time prior to the maturity date.
The note receivable is subject to further borrowings and repayments. The interest rate on this loan, which is subject to
adjustment, was 5.76% as of December 31,2014. At December 31,2014, this note had a principal balance of €381.5 million

($461.6 million) and was settled during the first quarter of 2015.

I11-7



(d)

(e
(H
(@

(h)

(M)

3

LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets — (Continued)
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Represents a note receivable from Liberty Global Content Investments BV (LG Content Investments BV). Pursuant to the
loan agreement the maturity date is September 23, 2022, however Liberty Global may agree to advance additional amounts
to LG Content Investments BV at any time and LG Content Investments BV may, with agreement from Liberty Global,
repay all or part of the outstanding principal at any time prior to the maturity date. The note receivable is subject to further
borrowings and repayments. The interest rate on this loan, which is subject to adjustment, was 7.33% as of December 31,
2014. At December 31, 2014, this note had a principal balance of €82.1 million ($99.4 million).

Represents certain receivables from other Liberty Global subsidiaries arising in the normal course of business.
Represents interest related to our various notes receivable as discussed above.

Represents a note payable to Lynx Europe 2 Limited (Lynx Europe 2). Pursuant to the loan agreement the maturity date is
July 16, 2023, however Lynx Europe 2 may agree to advance additional amounts to our company at any time and our
company may, with agreement from Lynx Europe 2, repay all or part of the outstanding principal at any time prior to the
maturity date. The note payable is subject to further borrowings and repayments. The interest rate on this loan, which is
subject to adjustment, was 5.68% as of December 31, 2014.

Represents (i) a $1,146.4 million payable at December 31, 2014 to Liberty Global Incorporated Limited (LG Incorporated
Limited) and (ii) certain payables at December 31, 2014 and 2013 to other Liberty Global subsidiaries arising in the normal
course of business.

Prior to the acquisition of Virgin Media Inc. (Virgin Media) by our company (the Virgin Media Acquisition), Virgin Media
and its employees held interests in a Delaware Trust set up to hold a JSOP (the Virgin Media JSOP). On June 4, 2013,
Liberty Global established the Liberty Global JSOP and issued a promissory note (the JSOP Note) to fund the trust (principal
balance as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $18.9 million and $18.6 million, respectively). As of December 31, 2014
and 2013, the JSOP Note bore interest at 1.81% and 1.22% per annum, respectively. The interest rate is subject to adjustment
on each of January 1 and July 1 during the remainder of the term to a certain U.S. Federal statutory rate, and interest shall
compound semi-annually on January 1 and July 1 of each year. The principal balance is due and payable on June 4, 2018.

On closing of the Virgin Media Acquisition, the Liberty Global JSOP exchanged (i) the JSOP Note for the Virgin Media
JSOP and (ii) the underlying shares of the Virgin Media JSOP awards for certain of our Class A ordinary shares and Class
C ordinary shares. For additional information, see note 6.

Called Up Share Capital

Our share capital is comprised of the following at December 31, 2014:

Shares Amount

in millions

Allotted, called up and fully paid:

Class A ordinary shares of $0.01 €aCh...........ccoeciiiiiiieieiiieiceeeee e 251,167,686 $ 2.5
Class B ordinary shares of $O0.01 €aCh ............cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceeeeeeeeeeee e 10,139,184 0.1
Class C ordinary shares of $O0.01 €aCh ..........c.cceouiiiiiiiiiiiicececeeceeeeeeeee e 630,353,372 6.3

Total ShAre CAPILAL........coviiiiiiciieict ettt ettt ettt ea et e et et et e beebeeteess e besbeereessesesteereessensesea $ 8.9
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets — (Continued)
December 31, 2014 and 2013

The details of our share activity during 2014 are set forth below:

Class A Class B Class C
ordinary ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of shares of
$0.01 each $0.01 each $0.01 each Total shares
Balance at January 1, 2014 ......ccoooiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 222,081,117 10,147,184 161,996,684 394,224,985
Issuance of shares in connection with the 2014 Share
DivIdend () .....eveereieeeieeieeiee e — — 394,224,985 394,224,985
Issuance of shares for acquisition of Ziggo (b)........c..cccevvevreuenen. 35,508,342 — 87,603,842 123,112,184
Repurchases (NOLE 6).......c.ccvevvierieieieieriieeeeeieeeie e (8,062,792) —  (28,401,019) (36,463,811)
Issuance of shares for the acquisition of noncontrolling
ownership interests in VTR GlobalCom SpA (VTR) and
VTR Wireless SpA (VTR Wireless) (C)...covvereereeneenveneennenne - - 10,091,178 10,091,178
Additional ISSUANCES ..........eeovvieeeeeieeeeeeeieeeee et 1,632,901 — 4,837,404 6,470,305
Conversion of VM Convertible NOtes ...........ccocveerveierienereenens 118 — 298 416
Conversion of Class B to Class A ordinary shares....................... 8,000 (8,000) — —
Balance at December 31,2014 .......cccooiiiiireieireece e 251,167,686 10,139,184 630,353,372 891,660,242

(a)  Represents the issuance of the 2014 Share Dividend based on shares outstanding at January 1, 2014.

(b)  On November 11, 2014, pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger with respect to an offer to acquire all of the shares
of Ziggo that we did not already own, we acquired a controlling interest in Ziggo.

(¢)  On March 14, 2014, a subsidiary of VTR Finance B.V. acquired each of the 20.0% noncontrolling ownership interests in
VTR and VTR Wireless from Inversiones Corp Comm 2 SpA.
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December 31, 2014 and 2013

6) Reserves

On June 19, 2013, the High Court in England approved the cancellation of Liberty Global's share premium account, with the
sums standing to the credit of the share premium account being transferred to a distributable profit and loss reserve. Our called
up share capital and reserves are comprised of the following at December 31,2014 and 2013 (amounts for the year ended December
31, 2013 have not been restated for the 2014 Share Dividend):

Called up Share Capital Profitand Treasury
share premium  redemption Other loss shares, at
capital reserve reserve reserves account cost

in millions

Balance at January 29, 2013 .......cccccoooveverieererrnnans $ — 3 — $ — $ — 8 — —
Profit for the financial period..........ccccceevveirveeenene. — — — — 408.6 —
Share issues, [€SS EXPENSes ........ccevvevververrereevenennes 4.0 29,517.6 — — — —
Purchase and cancellation of our shares................... 0.1) — 0.1 — (983.0) —
Share-based compensation............ccceeeeerreeseesreennenn. — — — — 211.2 —
Capital contributions (a) ........cccceeeveeververveseenneennn. — — — 131.7 — —
Exercises of Liberty Global JSOP share-based

AWATAS (D) oo — — — — (14.6) —
Treasury Shares ...........ccccvevveviereeeeieniece e — — — — — (7.7
Effect of approved capital reduction............c..c........ —  (29,068.6) — —  29,068.6 —
Balance at December 31, 2013 .......cccceovveieveniennene 3.9 449.0 0.1 131.7  28,690.8 (7.7)
Profit for the financial period.........c.cccoecvrvrverennnnee. — — — — 565.9 —
Share issues, 1€SS EXPENSES .......ccceevveerreerreereesreennens 1.4 6,047.8 — — — —
Purchase and cancellation of our shares .................. (0.3) — 0.3 — (1,596.9) —
Share-based compensation...........ceeceevveereereesieenneans — — — — 215.9 —
Exercises of Liberty Global JSOP share-based

AWATAS (D) cvoveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e — — — — (5.2) —
Share dividend ...........cccoooveeiiiiieiieieeceeeeeee 3.9 — — — 3.9 —
Treasury Shares ...........ccecevveveveeeeieniene e — — — — — 3.5
Balance at December 31,2014 ......cccoovvvvvenennnee. $ 89 § 6,496.8 $ 04 $ 1317 $27,866.6 $ (4.2)

(a)  Consists of $131.7 million in capital contributions from LGI, during the period that it was our parent company, primarily
associated with the funding of group undertakings.

(b)  For further information regarding the Liberty Global JSOP, see below.
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Share Repurchases

On June 11, 2013, our board of directors authorized a share repurchase program that provided for the repurchase of up to $3.5
billion (before direct acquisition costs) of Liberty Global Class A and/or Class C ordinary shares from time to time until June 10,
2015 through open market and/or privately negotiated transactions, which may include derivative transactions. During 2014, our
board of directors authorized an additional share repurchase program, which provides for the repurchase of up to $4.5 billion
(before direct acquisition costs) of Liberty Global Class A and/or Class C ordinary shares. In accordance with English law, we
may implement the program in conjunction with our brokers and other financial institutions with whom we have relationships
within certain preset parameters. The timing of the repurchase of shares pursuant to our share repurchase program, which may be
suspended or discontinued at any time, is dependent on a variety of factors, including market conditions and applicable law and
may continue during closed periods in accordance with applicable restrictions. As of December 31, 2014, the remaining amount
authorized for share repurchases was $1,933.7 million. Subsequent to December 31, 2014, our board of directors authorized an
additional $2.0 billion of availability for share repurchases.

The following table provides details of our share repurchases during 2014 and 2013:

Liberty Global Class A
ordinary shares

Liberty Global Class C
ordinary shares

Average price

Average price

Shares paid per Shares paid per
Purchase date purchased share (a) purchased share (a) Total cost (a)
in millions
Shares purchased pursuant to repurchase
programs during:
2014 e 8,062,792 § 42.19 28,401,019 $ 4425 § 1,596.9
2003 e 5,150,197 § 38.63 20,985,797 $ 3736 $ 983.0

(a)  Includes direct acquisition costs and the effects of derivative instruments, where applicable.
Call Option Contracts

From time to time, we enter into call option contracts pursuant to which we contemporaneously (i) sell call options on shares
of Liberty Global ordinary shares and (ii) purchase call options on an equivalent number of shares of Liberty Global ordinary
shares with an exercise price of zero. These contracts can result in the receipt of cash and shares of Liberty Global ordinary shares.
Shares acquired through the exercise of the call options are included in our share repurchases and the net gain on cash settled
contracts is recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital in our consolidated statements of equity.

JSOP Trust

Prior to the Virgin Media Acquisition, under the Virgin Media JSOP, participating executives and other key employees of
Virgin Media in the U.K. purchased, at fair value, jointly held interests in shares of Virgin Media’s stock. Participation in the
Virgin Media JSOP was voluntary. On June 7, 2013, the assets held in trust by the Virgin Media Delaware grantor trust, which
were comprised solely of Virgin Media shares, were transferred to the Liberty Global JSOP in exchange for the JSOP Note. In
connection with the Virgin Media Acquisition, the Liberty Global JSOP received consideration comprised of (i) 155,719 Liberty
Global Class A ordinary shares, (ii) 388,273 Liberty Global Class C ordinary shares and (c) $10.6 million of cash.

During 2014, certain participants exercised a portion of their interests in the Liberty Global JSOP, resulting in an aggregate
distribution of (i) 32,335 Class A ordinary shares, (ii) 81,119 Class C ordinary shares and (iii) $0.9 million in cash.

During the third and fourth quarters of 2013, certain participants exercised a portion of their interests in the Liberty Global
JSOP, resulting in an aggregate distribution of (i) 96,018 Class A ordinary shares, (ii) 239,780 Class C ordinary shares and (iii)

$2.2 million in cash.

At December 31, 2014, the Liberty Global JSOP held $6.7 million of cash, 32,020 Liberty Global Class A ordinary shares
and 82,181 Liberty Global Class C ordinary shares.
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At December 31, 2013, the Liberty Global JSOP held $8.6 million of cash, 59,701 Liberty Global Class A ordinary shares
and 148,493 Liberty Global Class C ordinary shares. The fair market value of the unvested awards totaled approximately $5.9
million.

Vesting of certain Liberty Global JSOP awards is subject to performance targets. The Liberty Global JSOP trustee will return
to us any cash or shares underlying awards that do not vest, and will return any dividends on the shares in the trust to our company
until the awards are exercised. The Liberty Global JSOP trustee will vote shares in the trust in proportion to the votes of other
shareholders of Liberty Global until the awards vest. Participation in the Liberty Global JSOP is closed to new participation.

@) Debtors and Other Assets

Debtors and other assets consist of the following:

December 31,
2014 2013

in millions

Amounts owed by group undertakings:

NOLES TECEIVADIE () c...vvivevetieeeeetiee ettt ettt ettt ettt et ettt ae et et e s et te s e tessesetess et eseasetese s esesnesesens $15323.8 $ 9,557.6
Interest and other receivables (NOTE 4)........coviieieieeiecee ettt ettt et eaeeaeeeeee e 460.6 3394
Total amounts owed by group UNdertakings..........c.ccceeereecierieneieeierieseseeeeeesse e seesesessesseesnessenss 15,784.4 9,897.0
OREE ASSELS ...vevieuieieitieiieiete st et et et e s te st ett et e testeeteessesseesesseessensessesseessensensesseassessensensesseensensenseeneessensanes 48.3 1.0
Total debtors and OTher ASSELS..........c..eevviierieeeie ettt e et e e e e reeeereeeneean $ 15,8327 $§ 9,898.0

(a) AtDecember 31,2014 and 2013, $9,657.0 million and $9,557.6 million, respectively, is due after more than one year. For
further information see note 4.

8 Creditors
Creditors consists of the following:

December 31,
2014 2013

in millions

Amounts falling due within one year:

Note payable — group undertakings (NOLE 4) ........cocvrieieriirerieieiete ettt ee e se e eneenees $ 6792 § —
Other accrued and current liabilities — group undertakings (NOt€ 4) ........ccccvrerieierierererieiee e 1,479.8 542
TTAAE CTEAITOTS ...ttt ettt ettt sttt et et e s ee st e ese e e s e ssees e eneesesseeseeseensensesseeseensensensesneaneans 23.6 11.4
Other accrued and current liabilities — third-Party ........cccccerierieriierieiieceeeeree e 14.7 6.7

Total creditors — amounts falling due Within 0Ne Year...........cccecvevviviieieiirieiieeceeeeeeee e $2,1973 § 723

Amounts falling due after one year:

JSOP Note — group undertakings (NOLE 4) .........cceeireerieriiriieieieienteereseetesesse e essessessessesssessessessesseeses $ 189 §$§ 186
Other NON-CUITENt lHADIIILIES .....ccuerveuiriiriiietiiteiee ettt sttt 1.9 1.6
Total creditors — amounts falling due after ONe Year............ccoecvevieriirieieiereseeeeee e $ 208 $§ 202

()] Long-lived Assets

Our intangible assets are comprised of domain names. These intangible assets are considered to have indefinite lives and had
an aggregate carrying value of $3.0 million at each of December 31, 2014 and 2013.
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LIBERTY GLOBAL PLC
Notes to Parent Company Only Balance Sheets — (Continued)
December 31, 2014 and 2013

10 Share-based Compensation

Prior to our incorporation, LGI and Virgin Media had established various share-based payment plans. In connection with the
June 7, 2013 Virgin Media Acquisition, we assumed the obligation to issue shares under the various plans of LGI and Virgin Media.
Equivalent awards for all of the share incentive awards that were outstanding on June 7, 2013 under these plans were granted and
measured at their fair value on that date. The following table summarizes the fair value calculated at June 7, 2013 and subsequent
grant dates attributable to share incentive awards for which shares had not been issued as of December 31, 2014:

Weighted
Number average fair

Grant-date Fair Value outstanding value Total

in millions
OPLIONS ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et ettt b et e bttt eseebe et ea et ebenaens 5,672,451 § 21.09 $ 1196
SARS .ttt ettt bttt ee 20,297,033 $ 1340 § 2720
Performance-based share appreciation rights.........cccooceveriereninenenienenceeecce 11,154,997 $ 835 § 93.1
RISUS .ttt 1,952,273 § 38.10 § 74.4
PSUs and Performance Grant UNItS ..........ccccoceeeeieriinineiienieninceeeieneseceeeeenrenee e 5,674,883 §$ 4173 § 2368

For additional information regarding our share incentive plans, see note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

a1 Guarantees

On June 11, 2013, we issued guarantees for certain intra-group debt of Lynx Europe 2, which guarantees were subsequently
confirmed in November 2013 in connection with amendments of the underlying loan evidencing the loan to Lynx Europe 2 from
Virgin Media Finco Limited. Interest on the loans is either (i) payable semi-annually at the applicable rate on April 15 and October
15 each year or (ii) upon mutual agreement between the debtor and creditor, is added to the principal outstanding. In aggregate,
the debt outstanding at December 31, 2014 subject to these guarantees is $3,579.5 million.

Interest Borrowing US.$
Debt: Maturity date rate currency equivalent

in millions

Intra-group debt A........ccocveievieiieieeeee e April 15, 2023 8.500% £ 9473 $ 1,476.0
Intra-group debt B........cooivieiiiiieieeeeeeee e April 15,2023 8.500% £ 1,350.0 2,103.5
] | TP P TR $ 3,579.5

12) Directors’ Remuneration

Information regarding directors’ compensation (remuneration), interests in shares and share options for consolidated Liberty
Global is included within the Directors’ Renumeration Report contained in this report.

13) Subsequent Events

For subsequent events that impact our subsidiaries, see note 20 to Liberty Global plc’s consolidated financial statements.
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